
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Monday, March 07, 2016 - 6:00 PM

Council Chambers - 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport , Oregon 97365

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for
the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder at 541.574.0613.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any
item not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with
a maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others

4. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
Any formal proclamations or recognitions by the Mayor and Council can be placed in this
section. Brief presentations to the City Council of five minutes or less are also included in
this part of the agenda.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under
a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and
considered separately on request.

5.A. Approval of  Minutes of  City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting of
February 16, 2016
February 16, 2016 Work Session.docx
February 16, 2016 City Council Minutes.pdf

6. PUBLIC HEARING
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to provide testimony/comments on the
specific issue being considered by the City Council. Comments will be limited to three (3)
minutes per person.

6.A. Considerat ion and Possible Adopt ion of  Resolut ion No. 3740, a Resolut ion
Providing for a Supplemental Budget and Making Appropriat ion/Total
Requirement Changes for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016.
City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Adoption of Resolution No. 3740.pdf
Copy of
Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_201
6_2.pdf
Staff_Report_Resolution_3740_City_Supplemental_Budget_-February_1__2016.docx
Supplemental__Resolution_No._3740_for_Feb_1_2016.docx
Budget_with_Supplementals.FY_2016_-_for_Resolution_3740_-_Attach_B.pdf
Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_201
6.pdf

7. COMMUNICATIONS
Any agenda items requested by Mayor, City Council Members, City Attorney, or any
presentations by boards or commissions, other government agencies, and general public
will be placed on this part of the agenda. 

7.A. From the Surf  Rider Foundat ion regarding Bacteria Test ing in the Nye Beach
Storm Sewer Basin
City Manager's Report and Recommendation -From Surfrider Foundation regarding
Bacteria Testing in the Nye Beach Storm Sewer Basin.pdf
Staff Report - Surfrider Presentation 3-7-16.docx

7.B. From Northwest Nat ional Marine Renewable Energy Center (NNMREC)
Dr.Belinda Batten and Dan Hellin, Report  on Pacif ic Marine Energy Center -
Wave Energy Test Sites

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4340/February_16_2016_Work_Session.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4341/February_16__2016_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5432/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--_Adoption_of_Resolution_No._3740.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5498/Copy_of_Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5498/Copy_of_Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5498/Copy_of_Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5296/Staff_Report_Resolution_3740_City_Supplemental_Budget_-February_1__2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5297/Supplemental__Resolution_No._3740_for_Feb_1_2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5298/Budget_with_Supplementals.FY_2016_-_for_Resolution_3740_-_Attach_B.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5299/Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5299/Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5426/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-From_Surfrider_Foundation_regarding_Bacteria_Testing_in_the_Nye_Beach_Storm_Sewer_Basin.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5426/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-From_Surfrider_Foundation_regarding_Bacteria_Testing_in_the_Nye_Beach_Storm_Sewer_Basin.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5031/Staff_Report_-_Surfrider_Presentation_3-7-16.pdf


City Manager's Report and Recommendation -From Northwest National Marine
Renewable Energy Center (NNMREC) Dr. Belinda Batten and Dan Hellin, Report on
Pacific Marine Energy Center - Wave Energy Test Sites.pdf
NNMREC_City_of_Newport_Council_03072016.pdf

7.C. From the Regional Airport  Review Task Force, Final Report  Recommendations
Relat ing to the Newport  Municipal Airport
City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From the Regional Airport Review Task
Force, Final Report Recommendation Relating to the Newport Municipal Airport.pdf
Memo for Regional Airport Review Task Force Report 2-17-16.pdf
Report for the City of Newport Regional Airport Review Task Force 2-17-2016.pdf

7.D.From Airport  Committee, Recommendations on Airport  Operat ions RFP. 
City Manager's Report and Recommendation --From Airport Committee,
Recommendations on Airport Operations RFP..pdf
Airport data for RFP.pdf
Email from Hodges.pdf
Newport Proforma Budget.pdf

7.E. From Dest inat ion Newport  Committee, Recommendation to Approve a Tourism
Market ing Grant for Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race
City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From Destination Newport Committee,
Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Coast Hills Classic Mountain
Bike Race 2.pdf
Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike 2016.pdf
CHC_DNCgrant_edit.pdf

7.F. From Dest inat ion Newport  Committee, Recommendation to Approve  a Tourism
Market ing Grant for Oregon Coast Aquarium for the Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K

City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From Destination Newport Committee,
Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Oregon Coast Aquarium
5K.pdf
2016 Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K.pdf
Flippers, Feathers, and Fins 5K Grant Fund Application 2016.pdf

7.G.From City Manager Salary Work Group –  Report  and Possible Act ion on City
Manager Salary  
Mayor Letter Regarding City Manager Salary.pdf
cm salaries.xlsx
EmplymtAgrmtAmd SN.docx

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5431/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-From_Northwest_National_Marine_Renewable_Energy_Center__NNMREC__Dr._Belinda_Batten_and_Dan_Hellin__Report_on_Pacific_Marine_Energy_Center_-_Wave_Energy_Test_Sites.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5431/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-From_Northwest_National_Marine_Renewable_Energy_Center__NNMREC__Dr._Belinda_Batten_and_Dan_Hellin__Report_on_Pacific_Marine_Energy_Center_-_Wave_Energy_Test_Sites.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5431/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-From_Northwest_National_Marine_Renewable_Energy_Center__NNMREC__Dr._Belinda_Batten_and_Dan_Hellin__Report_on_Pacific_Marine_Energy_Center_-_Wave_Energy_Test_Sites.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5149/NNMREC_City_of_Newport_Council_03072016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5420/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_the_Regional_Airport_Review_Task_Force__Final_Report_Recommendation_Relating_to_the_Newport_Municipal_Airport.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5420/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_the_Regional_Airport_Review_Task_Force__Final_Report_Recommendation_Relating_to_the_Newport_Municipal_Airport.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5206/Memo_for_Regional_Airport_Review_Task_Force_Report_2-17-16.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5207/Report_for_the_City_of_Newport_Regional_Airport_Review_Task_Force_2-17-2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5438/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--From_Airport_Committee__Recommendations_on_Airport_Operations_RFP..pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5438/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--From_Airport_Committee__Recommendations_on_Airport_Operations_RFP..pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5500/Airport_data_for_RFP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5441/Email_from_Hodges.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5499/Newport_Proforma_Budget.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5429/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Coast_Hills_Classic_Mountain_Bike_Race_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5429/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Coast_Hills_Classic_Mountain_Bike_Race_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5429/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Coast_Hills_Classic_Mountain_Bike_Race_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5148/Coast_Hills_Classic_Mountain_Bike_2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5504/CHC_DNCgrant_edit.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5428/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Oregon_Coast_Aquarium_5K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5428/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Oregon_Coast_Aquarium_5K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5428/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_From_Destination_Newport_Committee__Recommendation_to_Approve_a_Tourism_Marketing_Grant_for_Oregon_Coast_Aquarium_5K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4944/2016_Oregon_Coast_Aquarium_5K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4945/Flippers__Feathers__and_Fins_5K_Grant_Fund_Application_2016.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5227/Mayor_Letter_Regarding_City_Manager_Salary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5228/cm_salaries.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5229/EmplymtAgrmtAmd_SN.pdf


All matters requiring approval of the City Council originating from the City Manager and
departments will be included in this section. This section will also include any status reports
for the City Council’s information.

8.A. Considerat ion and Possible Adopt ion of  Resolut ions 3741 and 3742 approving
Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Agreements
City Manager's Report and Recommendation --Consideration and Possible Adoption of
Resolutions 3741 and 3742 approving Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan
Agreements.pdf
Staff Report CWSRF Loan Resolution Approval 3-7-16.pdf
Resolution_3741.pdf
Resolution_3742.pdf
OPNLTR Loan#R68934.doc
OPNLTR Loan#R68935.doc

8.B. Possible Act ion Regarding the Locat ion of  the 2016 Farmer’s Market
City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Possible Action Regarding the Location of
the 2016 Farmer’s Market.pdf
Aerial.pdf
Mary Young email.pdf
Letter to council.pdf
Petition.pdf

8.C. Report  on Workforce and Affordable Housing Strategies
City Manager's Report and Recommendation --Report on Workforce and Affordable
Housing Strategies.pdf
Dear Mayor Roumagoux and Members of the Council (1).docx
Bill Hall email.docx
Community Development Department Staff Report
Attachment A to Staff Report
LCLT Intergovernmental Agreement

8.D.Schedule a Public Hearing on City Council Goals for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year
City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Scheduling Public Hearing for City Council
Goals for 2016-17 FY.pdf
City of Newport  2016-17  Goals Report.pdf

9. LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD

9.A. Approval of  Purchase of  a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water
Distribut ion Department

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5443/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--Consideration_and_Possible_Adoption_of_Resolutions_3741_and_3742_approving_Clean_Water_State_Revolving_Fund__CWSRF__Loan_Agreements.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5443/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--Consideration_and_Possible_Adoption_of_Resolutions_3741_and_3742_approving_Clean_Water_State_Revolving_Fund__CWSRF__Loan_Agreements.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5443/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--Consideration_and_Possible_Adoption_of_Resolutions_3741_and_3742_approving_Clean_Water_State_Revolving_Fund__CWSRF__Loan_Agreements.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4934/Staff_Report_CWSRF_Loan_Resolution_Approval_3-7-16.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5448/Resolution_3741.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5449/Resolution_3742.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5230/OPNLTR_Loan_R68934.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5231/OPNLTR_Loan_R68935.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5489/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--_Possible_Action_Regarding_the_Location_of_the_2016_Farmer_s_Market.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5489/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--_Possible_Action_Regarding_the_Location_of_the_2016_Farmer_s_Market.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5490/Aerial.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5491/Mary_Young_email.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5492/Letter_to_council.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5493/Petition.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5469/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--Report_on_Workforce_and_Affordable_Housing_Strategies.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5469/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--Report_on_Workforce_and_Affordable_Housing_Strategies.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5470/Dear_Mayor_Roumagoux_and_Members_of_the_Council__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5475/Bill_Hall_email.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5353/Community_Development_Dept_Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5354/Attachment_A_-_Community_Development_Department_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5355/LCLT_Intergovernmental_Agreement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5423/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--_Scheduling_Public_Hearing_for_City_Council_Goals_for_2016-17_FY.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5423/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_--_Scheduling_Public_Hearing_for_City_Council_Goals_for_2016-17_FY.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5221/City_of_Newport__2016-17__Goals_Report.pdf


City Manager's Report and Recommendation - Approval of Purchase of a 2016 F550
Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water Distribution Department.pdf
Staff Report purchase of 2016 Ford Service Truck 3-7-16.pdf
Invoicing and Purchase Order for 2016 Service Truck.pdf

9.B. Approval of  Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavat ion for the SW
Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project  
City Manager's Report and Recommendation - Approval of Change Order No. 3 with C&M
Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project.pdf
Council Staff Memo - CO3 -2-19-16.pdf
Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Improvement
Project

10. REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL
This section of the agenda is where the Mayor and Council can report any activities or
discuss issues of concern.

11. PUBLIC COMMENT  
This is an additional opportunity for members of the audience to provide public comment.
Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes per person with a maximum of 15 minutes for all
items. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

12. ADJOURNMENT

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5430/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_Approval_of_Purchase_of_a_2016_F550_Crew_Cab_Service_Truck_for_the_Water_Distribution_Department.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5430/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_Approval_of_Purchase_of_a_2016_F550_Crew_Cab_Service_Truck_for_the_Water_Distribution_Department.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4948/Staff_Report_purchase_of_2016_Ford_Service_Truck_3-7-16.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4949/Invoicing_and_Purchase_Order_for_2016_Service_Truck.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5427/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_Approval_of_Change_Order_No._3_with_C_M_Excavation_for_the_SW_Abalone-Brant_Street_Improvement_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/5427/City_Manager_s_Report_and_Recommendation_-_Approval_of_Change_Order_No._3_with_C_M_Excavation_for_the_SW_Abalone-Brant_Street_Improvement_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4956/Council_Staff_Memo_-_CO3_-2-19-16.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4973/C_M_Excavation_CO3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/4973/C_M_Excavation_CO3.pdf


 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



February 16, 2016
5:15 P.M.

Newport, Oregon

The Newport City Council met in a work session at the above time in the Conference 
Room A of  the  Newport  City  Hall.  On  roll  call,  Roumagoux,  Allen,  Sawyer,  Engler, 
Swanson, and Busby were present. Saelens was excused.

Staff  present  was  City  Manager  Nebel,  City  Recorder  Hawker,  Community 
Development Director Tokos, and City Attorney Rich.

Also in attendance were Carla Perry and Ellen Bristow.

ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS

Roll was called and introductions were made.

MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Swanson, to excuse Saelens from this work 
session and the regular meeting of February 16, 2016. The motion carried unanimously 
in a voice vote.

PRESENTATION ON AFFORDABLE AND WORKFORCE HOUSING INITIATIVES

Nebel reported that this work session is to discuss workforce and other affordable 
housing  initiatives  in  the  city.  He  stated  that  a  number  of  these  initiatives  were 
discussed in a study that was conducted relating to the Marine Studies Initiative which 
identified  a  number  of  potential  strategies  to  address  various  affordable  housing 
issues.  

Nebel  reported  that  state  law requires  that  cities  inventory  buildable  lands  for 
residential use and encourages these plans to address availability of housing at price 
points commensurate with the financial capabilities of Newport households. He stated 
that strategies can then be developed to address areas where the inventory does not 
correspond to the financial capabilities of residents to afford housing. He noted that the 
strategies  can  include  working  with  groups  such  as  Habitat  for  Humanity,  Lincoln 
County Land Trust,  and other similar organizations to promote the development of 
affordable  housing  in  the  city  and  surrounding  areas,  addressing  issues  such  as 
development fees, zoning for density, street widths, and other similar issues to allow 
for more condensed housing to reduce the cost of land and typically the house due to 
smaller footprints for the properties. He added Council needs to discuss the potential 
role that Urban Renewal funding could play in addressing housing issues, and review 
various strategies to help move any identified initiatives forward.  

Nebel  reported  that  the  packet  contains  a  PowerPoint  presentation  that  Tokos 
prepared for the work session to trigger these conversations. He stated that Engler has 
been participating  in  a  number  of  forums regarding  affordable  housing  issues.  He 
added that he has asked Engler to provide a brief report on some of the initiatives that  
have  been  discussed  on  a  regional  or  statewide  basis  at  the  sessions  she  has 
attended.    

Nebel reported that at the joint City Council/County Commission meeting that was 

6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



held on February 10, 2016, there was a suggestion to create a joint committee among 
the County Commission and City Council  to collectively meet on a number of these 
types of issues. He noted that in Tokos’ PowerPoint, there are a number of collaborative 
issues that would take the cooperation of the city, county, and other taxing entities. He 
added  that  the  creation  of  this  type  of  body  to  meet  periodically  to  review  these 
initiatives might play a significant role in trying to move some of these collaborative 
issues forward.

Nebel reported that there is no single way to address the affordable housing issue 
in Newport or any other community. He stated that it really does require a mix of fixes,  
and it  is important that we get some consensus from Council  as to what tools and 
priorities are important to the Council in moving forward on these housing issues.

Nebel noted that no action will be taken on any items at the work session, but that 
today’s  discussions  may  lead  to  a  number  of  potential  initiatives  that  would  be 
discussed as regular agenda items at future City Council meetings.

Tokos  made  a  PowerPoint  presentation  on  workforce  and  affordable  housing 
initiatives. It included: partnership with Habitat for Humanity; partnership with the Lincoln 
Community Land Trust; creation of a multiple unit property tax exemption to support 
multi-family housing development; a review of city-owned property to identify whether  
others are suitable for land banking; tax foreclosed properties; the Community Services 
Consortium Housing Rehabilitation programs; System Development Charges; narrow 
street standards; leveraging urban renewal funding; and policy considerations.

Allen inquired as to Tokos’ status on the Lincoln Community Land Trust Board of 
Directors. Tokos reported that he was invited by the LCLT to serve as a general member 
due to his housing expertise. Allen stated that there seems to have been a blurring of  
the lines as to whether Tokos served as a general member or as a representative of the  
city.

Engler stated that the Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services, in Corvallis, is 
interested in working in Newport.

Nebel noted that this discussion could continue as a part of the goal setting session.
Engler  reported  that  she  had  attended  a  recent  housing  summit.  She  reviewed 

concepts that she learned at this event, and added that Caroline Bauman is organizing  
another housing summit for central Lincoln County. She reported that she has copied 
handouts from the housing summit and placed them in  the Council  mailboxes.  She 
asked whether Caroline Bauman should be invited to the Council goal setting session. 
She added that Bauman is organizing multiple agencies, along with the private sector,  
and other stakeholders. She stated that the Council goals on housing should be clarified 
in order to develop policies, strategies, plans, and follow-up, so that this work can stay 
on track.

Engler reported that she had recently attended the Smart Growth Conference. She 
noted that there were sessions on good neighborhoods, smart growth, ideas for slowing 
traffic, ideas for more walkable communities, and more. She added that she is hoping to  
get Dan Burden to work in Newport.

Nebel  noted  that  this  discussion  will  continue  during  the  upcoming  goal  setting 
session.

ADJOURNMENT

7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:00 P.M.
  

8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

 

February 16, 2016 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
  
 

Document Body  
The Newport City Council, and the City Council acting as the Local Contract Review 
Board, met on the above date, in the Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll 
call, Allen, Busby, Roumagoux, Engler, Sawyer, and Swanson were present. Saelens 
was excused.  
 
Mayor Roumagoux requested a moment of silence to honor Sergeant Jason Goodding, 
Seaside Police Department, recently killed on duty, and for Supreme Court Justice 
Antonin Scalia, recently deceased. 
 
Mayor Roumagoux requested that Council view a YouTube video, produced by students 
from Roosevelt Middle School, in Eugene, Oregon, regarding the Cascadia Subduction 
Zone earthquake/tsunami risk. The video was shown and Council unanimously 
concurred that the students had created an excellent production. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Council, staff, and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ellen Bristow provided positive comments and constructive criticism regarding the 
YouTube video on the Cascadia Subduction Zone. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 

A. Approval of City Council minutes from the work session and regular meeting of 
February 1, 2016; 

B. Confirmation of the Mayor’s appointment of Braulio Escobar to the Retirement 
Trust for a term expiring December 31, 2019; 

C. Confirmation of the Mayor’s appointment of Wendy Henriksen to the 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee; 

D. Approval of a recommendation to the OLCC to issue an off-premise sales liquor 
license for a new outlet to US Market No. 260, LLC, located at 910 North Coast 
Highway. 

 
MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Swanson, to approve the consent 

calendar, with the changes to the minutes as noted by Allen. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 From the Destination Newport Committee – Recommendation to Award a Tourism 
Marketing Grant for the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts Capital Campaign. Hawker 
introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts 
will be featuring three special events during 2016 as fundraising activities. He stated that 
two of these activities should draw visitors from outside the Newport area. He noted that 
the first would be Country Music on the Coast, and the second would be two 
performances of Capitol Steps. He added that a package will be developed and 
promoted that includes a couple of nights in a local hotel, plus tickets for the event. He 
stated that by drawing out of town visitors to these performances, the PAC can increase 
and diversify the types of performances that take place in this facility, and increase 
visitor stays in Newport. He noted that the funding will be used for marketing activities 
for these events. 
 Mark McConnell, addressed Council on behalf of this request, and urged their 
positive support. He reviewed upcoming events. 
 MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Swanson to authorize the payment 
of $5,000 for marketing and advertising for the 2016 “Stay and Go Promotion” to the 
Oregon Coast Council for the Arts. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Consideration of an Extension of the Franchise Agreement with Falcon 
Telecable, Locally Known as Charter Communications. Hawker introduced the 
agenda item. Nebel reported that the current franchise agreement with Charter 
Communications expired on April 22, 2013. He stated that the franchise has been 
extended several times since that expiration date. He noted that in the past year, there 
have only been a couple of discussions with Charter on a replacement franchise, due to 
transitional issues at Charter with the possibility of transferring all of the Charter 
franchises in Oregon to Comcast, and on the city’s part in waiting to see if a model 
franchise would come out of a consortium of cities negotiating together with Charter. He 
added that on February 2, 2016, he, Rich, and Hawker met with Marion Jackson, 
Director of Government Affairs, and Mary Roehr, Senior Manager of Government Affairs 
to reinitiate discussions on a new franchise agreement between Charter and the city. He 
stated that the last extension of the agreement expired the fall of 2015, and that Charter 
has requested that Council consider an extension of the franchise agreement through 
June 30, 2016. 

Nebel reported that the packet contains a draft franchise agreement that was 
presented to the city, by Charter, as the basis for going forward with negotiations on a 
new franchise agreement. He stated that since the implementation of the Cable 
Communications Policy Act of 1984, and subsequent amendments to the Act, the 
relationships between cities and cable companies has seen significant modifications in 
the last two decades. He added that as communications technology continues to 
develop and evolve, cable companies do not have the same type of monopoly as they 
did a decade or more ago. He noted that as a result, the cable companies compete with 
various satellite, online, and video services, which in some cases are not required to pay 
any local franchise fees. He stated that franchise agreements should create a level 

10

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

playing field for other like cable franchises. He noted that the city has two cable 
television franchises, including Charter and Broadstripe, LLC. He added that the 
Broadstripe franchise expires on December 31, 2018, and primarily serves customers in 
South Beach. 

Nebel reported that there are several issues that staff has been discussing with 
Charter regarding a new franchise. He stated that first of all, staff believes it is important 
for the city to maintain a public, education, and government (PEG) access programming 
channel within the cable system. He noted that in the proposed agreement, Charter is 
requesting that if the city retains a PEG channel, it is actually utilized with some 
performance standards imposed by Charter. He added that staff is exploring with the 
Lincoln County School District the future of the PEG channel to determine how the 
service can be best utilized in the future. He stated that the city could request PEG fees 
to offset certain costs related to the utilization of the PEG channel. He noted that these 
would be fees that would be charged by Charter, to the cable customers, and utilized by 
the city to cover certain costs including such things as equipment to broadcast Council 
meetings, other governmental meetings, upgrades, and facility improvements relating to 
public broadcasting and other similar issues. He added that PEG fees cannot be used 
for staffing expenses and other operational expenses. He stated that as with the 
franchise fee, any PEG charges are passed along to Charter customers. He added that 
while the city has a provision for providing a PEG channel with the Broadstripe 
franchise, there are no provisions for PEG fees to be paid by Broadstripe. He noted that 
if Council is interested in proposing a PEG fee in the franchise agreement, it may need 
to be conditioned upon the same provision being provided in the city’s other cable 
television franchise for it to be enforceable. 

Nebel reported that staff will also be reviewing the requirements for rights-of-way use 
in the franchise agreement. He stated that at first glance, the requirements seem 
consistent with the current practices between Charter and the city regarding the use of 
rights-of-way. 

Nebel reported that there are a number of court cases that may have an impact on 
revenues collected by local government related to cable services. He stated that Rich 
will present an update on potential impacts to the city’s franchise agreement. 

Nebel reported that with the added competition from other sources of video 
programming, Charter has seen a decline in subscribers from 2,500 in December 2008 
to about 2,000 currently.   
 Rich reported that the packet contains the newest proposed franchise 
agreement. He stated that the significant difference between the earliest proposal 
and the new version is that the earliest proposal had no reference to PEG fees. He 
noted that some jurisdictions get PEG monies, and cited Eagle Point where the 
PEG monies amount to $ .50 per subscriber, per month. He added that Charter 
prefers a more ad hoc process. He stated that the staff would like to tighten the 
process to predict how much money would be generated. He added that the use of 
the PEG monies is limited to capital assets rather than operating costs. He reported 
that the City of Portland enacted a utility license fee which is still pending before the 
Supreme Court. 

Busby asked what the city would be broadcasting on a PEG channel. 
Peter Vince, videography instructor at Toledo High School, and coordinator of the 

filming of City Council meetings, reviewed the history of video production and use of the 

11

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

PEG channel. He stated that the city entered into an agreement with the Lincoln County 
School District that the District would operate the video server that sends programming 
to channel four and to Lincoln City. He added that in 2007 and 2008, his salary was paid 
half-time from a school improvement grant to create programming for the District. He 
noted that after 2008, the fund was eliminated, and his time was redirected toward more 
teaching. He stated that he supports the PEG channel and would like to see the District 
utilize it more. He added that at one time, the superintendent wanted an hour of original 
programming monthly. He stated that this is difficult due to post-production time. 

Nebel reported that staff will be meeting with District staff and more will be known 
after that meeting. He stated that the PEG channel has been underutilized, but noted 
that it is important to reserve the channel in the Charter agreement. He added that there 
are two issues, one is that the city is requesting the PEG channel, and the other is the 
PEG monies. He asked whether Council was interested in including a provision for PEG 
monies in the agreement. He noted that these costs, as franchise fees, are passed on to 
the customers. He noted that the PEG monies would provide a source of funds for 
equipment to develop content for the PEG channel. He stated that Charter's position is 
that the city does not have a similar PEG fee requirement in the Broadstripe agreement, 
but this requirement may be enacted in the future if it is imposed in the Charter 
agreement. Busby stated that he failed to see the immediate need to push \the issue 
that hard. He suggested that the fee cannot be imposed across the board as it could not 
apply to satellite providers. He added that with internet in nearly every home, he is not 
sure how important the PEG channel is. Allen noted that if the PEG money requirement 
was imposed, there would be two fees – one is the franchise fee of five percent, and the 
other would be the PEG monies fee. He stated that Charter is required to provide the 
PEG channel, and asked whether there is a requirement for Charter to force the city to 
use the channel. He asked what Charter’s legal standing would be if the issue was 
pushed. Rich stated that it is his understanding that Charter would not have a legal 
basis to force the city to use the channel. He added that Charter wants the requirements 
to kick in when Broadstripe is required to provide equal services. He reiterated that the 
Charter franchise has expired, and that the city will agree that it will not treat Charter and 
Broadstripe disparately when the Broadstripe franchise is up for renewal. 

Vince reported that he filmed Rebecca Cohen telling stories and that he has those 
episodes in the PEG channel rotation. He stated that the PEG channel has been 
enlightening for him and his students to see local government in action. 

Busby asked to whose advantage it is to conclude these negotiations rapidly. Nebel 
reported that the city is meeting the obligations of the existing franchise. He noted that 
at this stage, no side is in a big hurry. 

Sawyer reported that when he watches live on the internet, the video does not 
always display properly. He noted that Charter moved the channel number, and it is 
difficult to find. He added that the channel defaults to arts programming when local 
programming is unavailable. Vince noted that this is the solution to black video. Sawyer 
stated that he would like to know when programs are going to be broadcast. Vince noted 
that he has not had directives about publicizing this. Sawyer noted that he would 
support the fees if they would be helpful. He stated that Charter does not have good 
customer service in the county, and asked why the programming is no longer on 
channels four and 21. 

12

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

Allen asked what amount might be anticipated if the PEG monies were a certain 
amount. Nebel noted that some of the recent franchises provide for $ .50 per month, per 
subscriber. Allen asked whether the franchise agreement could be amended at a later 
date to include the PEG fee. Rich noted that if both parties agree, the franchise 
agreement could be amended. Allen asked whether the fee is necessary or whether it 
could be added later. Nebel reported that he has never seen a franchise amended. 

Allen stated that the city has the ability to look at the complaints filed related to the 
Charter service. He asked whether staff has ever looked at the complaints. Nebel 
reported that staff has talked with Charter about general complaints. Allen stated that he 
would like to see the complaints, and requested staff review the agreement to determine 
whether this is provided for under the agreement. 

Swanson stated that she supports the PEG fee. 
Sawyer asked whether Lincoln City has a video system that is fully automated. Nebel 

reported that one of the issues in Newport is that the city does not have the ability to 
send live feeds from City Hall into the Charter system. He stated that Charter is 
reviewing what it would cost to install a live feed from City Hall. Swanson asked whether 
a direct connection to Charter would be useful during emergencies, and Nebel 
responded that it would be useful. Sawyer noted that Charter provided free cable 
television service to City Hall, and asked whether that was still the case. Nebel noted 
that Charter no longer provides free services to City Hall. 

Allen asked whether a specific amount would need to be included in the agreement 
for PEG monies. Rich stated that the amount is whatever the parties decide. He added 
that could be a specific charge per subscriber, or reimbursement based on what was 
spent on eligible PEG costs. Allen stated that there are two options: one is a discreet 
amount per month; and one is to add general reimbursable language where if no 
purchases are made, nothing gets charged. He added that he is more in favor of the 
second option, and that he further prefers not to have an additional charge to customers 
now. He noted that this would provide more latitude in what the spends and buys. 
Sawyer stated that he agrees with the PEG fee, and prefers the first option. Swanson 
stated that she prefers option one. Busby, Engler, and Allen concurred with the second 
option. 

MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Engler, to authorize the Mayor to 
execute a franchise extension agreement with Falcon Telecable, a California 
Limited partnership, locally known as Charter Communications through June 30, 
2016, or until a new franchise agreement is negotiated, whichever comes first. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

Allen asked Rick whether the option two reimbursement language is viable with 
Charter. Rich responded that this is generally how Charter has envisioned the 
process now. 

 
 Authorization of a Letter of Commitment to the Oregon Water Resources Department 
Regarding a SB1069 Grant Application. Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel 
reported that a grant application has been submitted to the Oregon Water Resources 
Department SB1069 Program to continue work on the seismic remediation of the Big 
Creek Dams. He stated that the city would be eligible to receive an additional $250,000 
through this program. He noted that the application has been reviewed on a preliminary 
basis, and in order to proceed with this funding request, a letter of commitment to match 

13

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

the grant is being requested by OWRD. He added that Council has appropriated 
$451,300 towards seismic remediation of the Big Creek Dams in the current fiscal year 
that can be used as a match to this grant. 
 Allen noted minor wording changes to make the letter inclusive and reflective of the 
entire Council. 

MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Busby, to approve a letter, as 
amended, of commitment to the Oregon Water Resources Department regarding a 
SB1069 Grant Application to fund continued work on the seismic remediation of the 
Big Creek Dams and authorize the Mayor to sign the letter on behalf of the City of 
Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD 

 
 The City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, began its meeting 
at 7:12 P.M. 
 
 Notice of Intent to Award a Contract with ZCS Engineering for Professional 
Consulting Services for the City of Newport Fire Station Seismic Upgrades. Hawker 
introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that the city was awarded a $1,491,223 
grant for seismic rehabilitation of the city’s fire hall. He stated that proposals were 
requested for engineering services, and ZCS Engineering was the firm receiving the 
highest score of the proposals received for this work. He noted that following the scoring 
and selection process, ZCS was requested to submit a price proposal, and the proposal 
fell within the budgeted engineering amount submitted with the grant request. He added 
that there may be some additional geotechnical engineering that will need to be 
completed once the design process is initiated.     
 Busby asked whether the city had ever compiled its expenditures for preparation 
for a seismic event. Nebel noted that it would be good to have a compilation of all 
costs for preparation for a seismic event. 

MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Engler, that the City of Newport 
issue a Notice of Intent to Award the consulting services agreement for the seismic 
upgrades for the Newport Fire Station to ZCS Engineering of Grants Pass, Oregon, 
in the amount $167,375, and contingent upon no protest, authorize award and direct 
the City Manager to execute the contract after seven days on behalf of the City of 
Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
Approval of Task Order No. 2 with HDR Engineering for Phase IV, Engineering 
Preliminary Design, Environmental Permitting, and Professional Surveying to 
Determine the Feasibility of Construction a Roller Compacted Concrete Dam at the 
Big Creek Reservoirs. Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that on 
September 21, 2015, Council accepted the report on the seismic evaluation of Big 
Creek Dams No. 1 and No. 2, Phase III, engineering evaluation and corrective action, as 
prepared by HDR Engineering. He stated that as part of the approval, Council requested 
further discussion and analysis regarding other ways to mitigate the life risks, identified 
by the state, posed by the existing dams. He noted that engineering staff has reviewed 
the areas that would be impacted by a dam failure. He added that to address the loss of 
life issues, the city would have to acquire 18 private homes, additional undeveloped 

14

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

property, address the flooding of the Water Treatment Plant, and relocate Big Creek 
Park to address the life hazard issue. He stated that in discussing this issue with Keith 
Mills, Oregon Dam and Safety Engineer with the Oregon Water Resources Department, 
there are a number of significant maintenance issues that are occurring with the dam 
structures that would need to be addressed if these dams are not replaced, in addition to 
the acquisition and relocation of the properties in the flood area. He noted that staff also 
discussed with Mills the issue that the flood area for the dams is also identified by 
DOGAMI as a tsunami inundation area. He stated that Mills indicated that due to the 
limited duration of a tsunami event, and the fact that the valley is protected by the fill 
area for Highway 101, the dam failure risk is determined independently of a tsunami. 

Nebel reported that also discussed was what the state’s reaction would be in the 
event that the city chose not to address any structural issues with the dams. He noted 
that Mills indicated the state’s probable action would be to restrict the elevation of water 
that would be allowed to be stored in the reservoirs. He added that from a city 
standpoint, a significant reduction in the amount of water that can be stored in the 
reservoirs would be problematic during the summer months when the reservoir levels 
can drop significantly. 

Nebel reported that Mills also indicated this is great opportunity for the city to 
significantly increase its overall storage capacity to meet not only current, but future, 
needs. He stated that Mills indicated the city has a great site to build a dam structure 
that will be stable in the event of future seismic events. 

Nebel reported that if Council proceeds with this next phase, the preferred location 
for a roller compacted concrete dam would be evaluated. He stated that this would be 
done in order to determine issues relative to the depth of soil above the bedrock at the 
proposed dam location, which would be removed to bedrock. He noted that this would 
allow for the development of a more specific estimate for the future construction of a 
new dam at that location. He added that Mills also indicated that the design of a new 
roller compacted dam would be such that it would increase the storage capacity for the 
city, replace the two existing reservoirs with one larger reservoir, and restore lost 
storage due to sediment accumulation. He stated that it is also Mill’s opinion that if the 
preliminary evaluation of the dam location confirms what is expected for conditions at 
that location, the constructed dam would be able to withstand a Cascadia Subduction 
Zone event without experiencing catastrophic failure. 

Nebel reported that he believes it is important to proceed with the task order to 
initiate the preliminary design including permitting and professional survey to determine 
the feasibility of constructing a roller compacted concrete dam at the Big Creek 
Reservoirs in the preferred location. 

Busby noted that the letter from Mills is consistent with his comments from the earlier 
work session, and that the implications are obvious. 

MOTION was made by Engler, seconded by Sawyer, to approve Task Order No. 2, 
Phase IV – Engineering Preliminary Design, Environmental Permitting, and 
Professional Surveying to Determine the Feasibility of Constructing a Roller 
Compacted Concrete Dam at the Big Creek Reservoirs, with HDR Engineering in 
the amount of $159,942.12, and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
agreement on behalf of the city. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

15

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

Approval of Change Order No. 2 with KSH Construction Company for Safe 
Haven Hill Tsunami Evacuation Improvements. Hawker introduced the agenda item. 
Nebel reported that the Safe Haven Hill Tsunami Evacuation Improvement project is 
proceeding. He stated that as was indicated at the February 1 Urban Renewal Agency 
meeting, ODOT required a modification to the design, as bid, to replace sections of 
proposed six-foot and four-foot wide sidewalks with a seven-foot wide sidewalk. He 
noted that this change required significant additional excavation into the hillside in order 
to build the wider sidewalk. He added that as a result, the design for the retaining wall 
had to be modified from a concrete masonry wall to a soldier pile wall with wood lagging 
in order to deal with the additional height needed for the retaining wall. He noted that the 
city received the permit, this week, from ODOT for this work. He stated that FEMA has 
also approved the modification and has given preliminary approval for the additional 
funding to cover this change in project scope. 

Allen asked whether the city or the URA had entered into the agreement. Nebel 
noted that the project was funded by the URA, but the city had contracted for the 
construction. He added that if additional funds are needed to complete the project, the 
request will be made to the URA.      

MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Sawyer, to approve Change Order 
No. 2 Safe Haven Hill Tsunami Evacuation Improvement Project in the amount of 
$207,210.06, with KSH Construction Company, and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the Change Order. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Pavilion Construction Company for the 

Aquatic Center Project. Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that on 
September 21, 2015, the Local Contract Review Board awarded a contract to Pavilion 
Construction for the construction of the Newport Aquatic Center. He stated that work has 
moved forward with this project. He noted that as indicated at the time of award, the 
single greatest unknown impacting the construction of this facility would be dealing with 
the underground issues at the site located next to the Recreation Center. He added that 
during the excavation, a significantly greater amount of soil had to be excavated and 
replaced than what was included in the initial estimates for the project. He stated that 
the total increase to the project costs, associated with excavation of poor soils, import of 
suitable soils, and compaction is $210,254.20. He added that there are a number of 
smaller items that have been encountered bringing the total change order for Council 
consideration to $244,939.05. He stated that this is an increase of approximately 3.0% 
over the contract sum. He noted that Change Order No. 1 was a deduction of the 
contract in the amount of $74,400. He distributed a handout and provided a more 
detailed summary of the project expenses to date. He added that in the near future a 
decision will need to be made regarding the items that were held in abeyance from the 
project at the time of award. Gross reviewed the status of the project. He noted that the 
contractor is about to begin vertical construction; footings will be poured on Friday; and 
walls will be constructed next week. He added that after that, the cement block walls will 
be constructed. He stated that the sidewalks are being installed today, and the 
intersection of Second and Avery Streets should be paved in early March which will 
reinstate the ADA accessible parking spaces. He reviewed the cost savings from the fill 
component of the project. He stated that the estimated completion and occupancy date 
is December 24, 2016. 

16

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by Engler, to approve Change Order No. 2 
with Pavilion Construction, in the amount of $244,939.05, for the Aquatic Center 
project and authorize the City Manager to execute the Change Order on behalf of 
the City of Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCILORS 
 

Roumagoux reported that she met with Maryann Bozza, on February 8, for an 
informal lunch and discussion regarding an upcoming art exhibit for the new marine 
studies initiative. She added that the exhibit would show at the Corvallis and Newport 
campuses. 

Roumagoux reported that she met with Bobbi Wilson, from Environment Oregon, 
who inquired as to how Newport could incorporate solar into the region and goals. She 
noted that Wilson will also be meeting with Lincoln County Commissioner Bill Hall on 
Thursday, and will report additional information when it is available. 

Roumagoux reported that, on February 11, she attended the Chamber After Hours 
event at the PAC. She noted that it was well attended, and that VAC Director, Tom 
Webb, introduced the VAC’s new assistant who is well-qualified for the position. 

Sawyer addressed the e-mail regarding concerns over ODOT’s proposed closures of 
Highway 20. He noted that a detail that ODOT omitted was the number and duration of 
the closures. He volunteered to obtain additional information regarding the closures. 
Nebel reported that ODOT indicated that it is just beginning discussions with 
stakeholders on the next phase of the project, and that he anticipates additional 
information in the near future.  

Swanson reported that she attended the recent Sister City meeting. She noted that 
information received at this meeting included the numbers of adults planning to 
participate in the exchange; the schedules; costs of travel; etc. 
 Swanson reported that she attended the recent active shooter training. She noted 
that it was interesting and well-attended. 

Busby reported that the Regional Airport Review Task Force will hold its final 
meeting tomorrow to develop its final recommendations to the City Council. 

Busby reported that the RFPs for operating the airport and FBO were reviewed and 
discussed by the Airport Committee last Tuesday. He added that each proposer made a 
presentation to the Committee, but that the discussions are not complete, and the 
Committee will meet again on February 26 to finish the discussion. 

Busby reported that the next meeting of the Airport Master Planning Committee will 
be held on March 15, and will be a time for public input. He added that he hoped that the 
comments made by the Regional Airport Review Task Force would be applicable to the 
upcoming meeting. Nebel reported that a preliminary meeting to discuss the master 
planning process will be scheduled with the City Council or as a joint meeting with the 
City Council and Airport Committee. Allen asked whether the results of the airport 
operations RFP process will play into the master planning process. Nebel noted that the 
operations are a separate focus from facilities and land use issues, and not a primary 
focus of the master planning effort.  

Engler reported that she attended the recent meeting of the Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee. She noted that the Committee interviewed three applicants to fill 
the one vacancy, and recommended Wendy Henriksen. She stated that the Committee 

17

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

is very organized and is reviewing the Master Plan to determine what projects have 
been completed. 

Engler reported that she attended the recent Smart Growth Conference in Portland. 
She stated that there were lots of new things related to bicycle/pedestrian issues. She 
noted that she would leave the publications and items that she collected at this 
conference in the Council office. She stated that this was a national conference with lots 
of interesting and provocative presentations. She added that most of the PowerPoint 
presentations are available on-line. She noted that she participated in a walking audit 
with Dan Burden, and is hoping that this can be done in Newport. 

Engler reported that the Solid Waste Advisory Committee will conduct a table top 
exercise about emergency debris management on March 1. She noted that this activity 
is open for anyone to attend. She added that she would forward specific information to 
Council. 

Allen asked whether Nebel had received feedback from Committees for the 
upcoming goal setting session. Nebel noted he had not, but that before the goals are 
adopted by Council, he would ask the Committees for feedback. He added that Council 
could revise the goals prior to adoption. 
 Allen reported that he attended the active shooter training. He noted that there was a 
good turnout as most of the volunteer firefighters, and some of the paid Fire Department 
staff, were in attendance. 

Allen stated that he is unsure why the Lincoln County Commissioners chair the joint 
meeting with the City Council which is held once annually. He added that this is the 
city’s work session, and perhaps the Mayor should chair this meeting. He inquired as to 
why the work session had to be held on a Wednesday evening, and suggested it be held 
on a Monday before a regular City Council meeting. He added that the Commissioners 
are paid full-time and suggested they accommodate the City Council schedule since 
Councilors are volunteers. He also suggested the possibility of more than one joint 
meeting annually, as he believed there was more discussion that needed to occur on 
certain issues such as the Farmer’s Market, housing, and Lincoln County’s development 
plans. He reiterated that he would like to see another joint work session at 5:00 P.M., 
before a regular Council meeting, chaired by the Mayor. 

Sawyer reported that the Seafood and Wine Festival will be held next week, and 
there are still volunteer opportunities. 

Nebel reported that the city is shifting to Granicus for agenda management and 
video streaming. He noted that the streaming is through Granicus, rather than the free 
system, so it should be uninterrupted. He stated that the Granicus program allows 
timestamping of the video so that viewers can skip to specific items. He added that 
when the system is fine-tuned, this information will be available on the city’s website. 

Nebel reported that he would like to schedule a work session with Council at the 
second meeting on March 21, at noon, to demonstrate the Granicus agenda 
management system and discuss whether to issue laptops, tablets, or IPads to 
Councilors in order to handle the agenda and packet electronically. 

 
 
 
 
 

18

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



      
 

 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Ellen Bristow thanked Peter Vince for his work with the students and the videography 
program. She stated that this program has been great training for the students; created 
something special for the students; and that the arts can produce income. 

Bristow suggested that the city explore the addition of other programming to the PEG 
channel, including programs from OCCA, OCCC, PAC, etc. Nebel noted that 
programming from other governmental and educational entities could be included. He 
added that the city will be initiating discussions to determine the program direction after 
the retirement of Vince. He added that someone, with time and ability, needs to manage 
the functions of the channel. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
  

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:09 P.M. 
 

 
 
 

_____________________________ _______________________________ 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder  Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor  
 

19

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:6.A. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 

Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution No. 3740, a Resolution 
Providing for a Supplemental Budget and Making Appropriation/Total 
Requirement Changes for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

Background: 
Resolution No. 3740 makes certain changes to the budget to address unforeseen 
circumstances that occurred during the course of the fiscal year. The supplemental 
budget transfers monies that were set aside for salary and wage adjustments in a 
contingency line item to the appropriate expenses. The adjustments recognize $127,835 
in revenue that was received by the city to offset expenses for the fire personnel 
participation in Conflagration events this past summer. The Airport Fund is adjusted to 
address slide damage that was repaired as part of an emergency declaration by the City 
Council. Parks and Recreation Fund is recognizing unanticipated revenue and expenses 
for a middle school basketball project. The Capital Projects are being adjusted to reflect 
the audited expenditures that occurred in the previous fiscal year for projects continued 
in the current fiscal year. Please note that project expenditures were estimated in April in 
order to complete the budget process. This amendment will adjust those projects based 
on the actual expenses incurred through June 30 for those projects.  
 
Please note that an error was discovered on the breakdown of the proposed supplemental 
budget after publication. It is appropriate for the Council to correct this error at time of 
adoption of the resolution. The error related to the Capitol Projects – General Fund 
resources and the additional removal of AIP 22 RW 34 Airport project. Since this is a 
reduction in expenditures it does not require further public notice. These numbers should 
be adjusted as indicated in the revised summary which follows my report as the 
supplemental budget is adopted.  

Recommendation: 

I recommend the Mayor conduct a public hearing on the adoption of Resolution No. 
3740, a resolution providing for a supplemental budget and making appropriation/total 
requirement changes for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Following the public hearing and considering any public comments. I recommend 
the City Council consider the following motion:  
 

I move to adopt Resolution No. 3740 with Attachment A, as revised, a resolution 
providing for a supplemental budget and making appropriation/total requirement changes 
for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016, with a correction from the published resolution to Capital 
Projects – General Fund Budget Amendment recognizing revised FAA-Airport revenues 
of $1,270,101 and deleting the AIP RW 34 Runway Rehabilitation project for $990,933.  
 
 
 

20

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



 
Fiscal Effects: 
None  
 
Alternatives: 
None 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

21

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

ATTACHMENT "A" - RESOLUTION NO. 3740 ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET,

MAKING APPROPRIATION AND CHANGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

General Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

NO additional resources Police - wages & benefits 58,511               

Fire - wages & benefits 31,092               

Contingency for future commitments (89,603)

Revised Total Resources 14,229,487   Revised Total Requirements 14,229,487      

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for union personnel.

Parks & Recreation Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Fee and charges for service 1,000             Sports Program - Materials and Services 1,000                 

Revised Total Resources 1,710,537     Revised Total Requirements 1,710,537         

Comments: Additional monies received to partially fund middle school basketball uniforms.

Street Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Street Maintenance 3367

Storm Drain maintenance 3367

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (6,734)               

Revised Total Resources 1,641,456     Revised Total Requirements 1,641,456         

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Capital Projects - General

Adjusted

Resource Amount Project Name Project # Adjusted Budget Change Budget

Beginning fund balance (2,784,713)   Hwy 1-1 Pedestrian Crossing Improve 11024 185,050 (185,050) 0

FAA - Airport 1,270,101     Bay Bld,SE Moore Dr, SE Fogarty & SE 4th 12015 2,949,100 (32,530) 2,916,570

FEMA - Safe Haven 293,834         Strategic Grant Consulting Services 13011 23,605 (492) 23,113

SW Abalone Brant Street Improve 14002 2,174,000 24,171 2,198,171

SE Ferry Slip Rd Street Improve 14003 1,438,000 15,459 1,453,459

2015-16 Street Overlay 15003 264,232 82,138 346,370

Preparation of Newport Urban Renewal Plan 15037 0 30,000 30,000

AIP 22 RW34 Rehabilitation (duplicate) 12092 990,933 (990,933) 0

Aquatic Center 13019 8,262,000 (128,706) 8,133,294

Aquatic Center Parking Improvements 14004 285,884 (38,013) 247,871

Contingency 58,458 3,178 61,636

Revised Total Resources (1,220,778)    Revised Total Requirements -                                                (1,220,778)       (1,220,778)   

Comments:  Adjust Beginning fund balances (BFB) to audited financial statements and adjust project balances to match BFB amount expected.

Capital Projects - Proprietary

Adjusted

Resource Amount Project Name Project # Adjusted Budget Change Budget

Water

Restricted Water Revenue bond (224,920)      NE 71st St Water Tank & Pump Station 11018 2,037,139 (221,670) 1,815,469

Beginning Fund Balance (614,557)      Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

Clean Water SRF Loan 609,959         Sewer

Wastewater System Master Plan 13008 111,651 (1,348) 110,303

Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

-                  

Revised Total Resources 11,548,707   Revised Total Requirements 11,778,225 (229,518)           11,548,707  

Comments:  Adjust Beginning fund balances (BFB) to audited financial statements and adjust project balances to match BFB amount expected.

Water Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Water Plant - wages & benefits 7016

Water distrib - wages & benefit 6735

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (13,751)             

Revised Total Resources -                  Revised Total Requirements 0.00

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Note: Only adjusted projects are shown.

Note: Only adjusted projects are shown.

22

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

ATTACHMENT "A" - RESOLUTION NO. 3740 ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET,

MAKING APPROPRIATION AND CHANGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

Wastewater Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Wastewater plant - wages & benefit 7,135                 

Wastewater collections - wages & benefit 4,715                 

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (11,850)             

Revised Total Resources -                  Revised Total Requirements 0

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Public Works Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Engineering - wages & benefit 4,905

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (4,905)               

Revised Total Resources 1,218,577     Revised Total Requirements 1,218,577         

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

23

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



City Council Agenda Item 
                                  
                             
Meeting Date  March 7,         
2016

Issue/Agenda Title: Resolution  No.  3740 providing  for  a  supplemental  budget  and 
making appropriation/total requirement changes for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

Prepared By: Murzynsky   Dept Head Approval: Murzynsky City Mgr Approval:

Proposed  Motion:  I  move  to  adopt  Resolution  No.  3740  with  Attachment  "A",  a 
resolution adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2015-16  and making 
appropriation increases and changes for fiscal year 2015-16.

Background information  :  

The General Fund requires an adjustment for increased revenues due to the participation 
of Fire personnel in Conflagration events in the summer of 2015.  The additional revenue 
is  $127,835  will  be  used  to  reimburse  the  overtime  and  materials  related  to  this 
participation.   Additionally,  $46,  245 will  be  transferred  to  the  Fire  Reserve for  future 
equipment.  See Attachment A for details.

The Airport Fund requires an adjustment due to the slide damage incurred during the Fall  
Storm of 2015.  Council had declared an emergency via Resolution 3738 which enacted 
Municipal Code Section 1.70.  Per section 1.70.02 B (2) the Airport was required to use  
their contingency which was not sufficient so the unappropriated ending fund balance was 
used to help cover the balance of the repair work.  Adjustments are listed are listed on 
Attachment A.

The General Fund (Police and Fire departments), Street Fund (Street and Storm Drain 
Maintenance),  Water  (Plant  and Distribution),  Wastewater  (Plant  and Collections),  and 
Public  Works  funds  (Engineering)  require  a  salary  adjustment  due  to  union  contract 
increases so the contingency related to the payroll is being allocated.  These are noted on 
Attachment A.

The Capital  Projects General and Proprietary Funds require an adjustment in order to 
match audited beginning fund balance with budgeted beginning fund balance.  The main 
reason for the adjustments, the 2015-16 budgeted expenditures were incurred and spent 
in the 2014-15 fiscal year.  The projects adjusted are listed on Attachment A.

For the Parks and Recreation Fund, unanticipated revenues were received to partially 
fund a middle school basketball project.  Thus materials and services related to the Sports 
Program in the Parks and Recreation are to be adjusted to match this increase revenue. 24

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Staff recommends the adoption of the supplemental budget and making appropriation 
and transfer of funds changes in the funds as detailed on Attachment "A"  to 
Resolution No. 3740.

ORS 294.471 allows for a governing body to approve a supplemental budget. ORS 
294.471(a) permits a local government to make a supplemental budget where there is 
“an occurrence or condition that is not ascertained when preparing the original budget 
or a previous supplemental budget for the current year or current budget period and 
that requires a change in financial planning.” ORS 294.473 provides the procedures 
for  those  instances  where  the  supplemental  budget  changes  the  estimated 
expenditure by ten percent or greater.  The required notices have been published.

25

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Also  included,  Attachment  B,  is  a  listing  which  shows  the  original  budget  noted  as 
$86,189,073  and  then  individual  adjustment  columns  shown  for  each  Council  budget 
adjustment.  The final column is a cumulative total and the City budget has increased to 
$82,530,645.

Fiscal Notes:  

The  funds  included  in  this  supplemental  budget  are  the  only  ones  requiring  an 
adjustment.  The individual fund information is noted on Attachment A.

Alternatives:  None

Attachments:

Resolution 3740
Attachment A – Summary for resolution 3740
Attachment B – Original budget with subsequent adjustments

26

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT

RESOLUTION NO. 3740

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-16, MAKING APPROPRIATION/TOTALREQUIREMENT CHANGES FOR 

SPECIFIC FUNDS

 WHEREAS, the City of Newport’s 2015-16 budget requires changes of appropriation for 
the  General Fund, Parks and Recreation Fund, Street Fund, Capital Projects – General and 
Proprietary  Funds,  Water  Fund,  Wastewater  Fund  and  the  Public  Works Fund;  and  have 
complied with the provisions of ORS 294.

WHEREAS, under  the  provisions  of  Oregon  Local  Budget  Law,  fund  accounts  are 
required to reflect sufficient authorized appropriations consistent with available resources; and

WHEREAS, ORS 294.473 requires a supplemental budget with a public hearing when 
the estimated expenditures differ by 10 percent or more from the most recent amended budget 
prior to the supplemental budget, the governing body may adopt the supplemental budget with a 
public hearing at a regular meeting, and

WHEREAS, the General Fund require an adjustment for increased revenues due to the 
participation of Fire personnel in Conflagration events in the summer of 2015.  The additional 
revenue  is  $127,835  will  be  used  to  reimburse  the  overtime and  materials  related  to  this 
participation.  Additionally, $46, 245 will be transferred to the Fire Reserve for future equipment. 
Adjustments are listed are listed on Attachment A and no other adjustments are needed; and

WHEREAS, the Airport Fund requires an adjustment due to the slide damage incurred 
during the Fall Storm of 2015.  Council had declared an emergency via Resolution 3738 which 
enacted Municipal Code Section 1.70.  Per section 1.70.02 B (2) the Airport was required to use 
their contingency which was not sufficient so the unappropriated ending fund balance was used 
to help cover the balance of the repair work.  Adjustments are listed on Attachment A and no 
other adjustments are needed; and

WHEREAS, the General, Street, Water, Wastewater and Public Works Funds require an 
expenditure adjustment due to increased payroll due for the new union contracts.  No additional 
appropriation increase authority is required; and 

WHEREAS, the Capital Project – General and Proprietary Funds requires an adjustment 
for increased revenues due to audited and revised beginning funds while the related costs were 
adjusted due to the revised beginning fund balances.   Adjustments are listed are listed on 
Attachment A and no other adjustments are needed; and

WHEREAS,  the  Parks  and  Recreation  Fund  requires  an  adjustment  for  increased 
revenues and the related costs due to unanticipated revenue.  Adjustments are listed and no 
other adjustments are needed,

27

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1) The City of Newport hereby adopts the FY 2015-16 Resolution 3740 set forth above 
and listed on Attachment A and appropriates the related expenditures.

 This resolution will become effective immediately upon passage.

     Adopted by the Newport City Council on March 7, 2016.

_________________________________________
Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor

Attest:

_____________________________________
 Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder

28

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

101 - General Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 2,595,226 50,000 2,645,226

Revenues 11,530,761 11,530,761

Conflagration reimbursment 0 127,835 127,835

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 21,822 21,822

Transfer from Street Fund 5,578 5,578

Transfer from Water Fund 13,050 13,050

Transfer from Wastewater 13,050 13,050

Total Revenues:  14,179,487 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 127,835 14,357,322

101 - General Fund

City Administration 1,995,430 20,095 2,015,525

Police 3,603,480 12,857 58,511 3,674,848

Fire 1,892,439 4,510 112,682 2,009,631

Emergency Coordinator 107,000 0 107,000

Library 1,225,857 13,232 1,239,089

Community Development 315,380 3,782 319,162

Facilities & Parks 800,364 5,921 806,285

Facilities & Parks Projects 426,000 0 426,000

Non-Departmental 421,488 0 421,488

Transfer to Airport Fund 310,288 310,288

Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 5,500 50,000 55,500

Transfer to Gen Debt Fund 167,442 167,442

Transfer to Parks & Rec Fund 569,002 569,002

Transfer to Housing Fund 13,200 13,200

Transfer to Building Inspection Fund 3,000 3,000

Transfer to Reserve Fund - Fire 150,000 46,245 196,245

Transfer to Reserve Fund - Police 30,000 30,000

Transfer to Prop Capital Projects Fund 0

Contingency 541,322 (60,397) (89,603) 391,322

Total General Fund Appropriations 12,577,192 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 127,835 12,755,027

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 1,602,295 1,602,295

Total General Fund 14,179,487 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 127,835 14,357,322

GENERAL FUND - 101 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

201 - Parks & Recreation

Beginning Fund Balance 347,870 347,870

Revenues 612,165 1,000 613,165

Transfer from General Fund 569,002 569,002

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 180,500 180,500

Total Revenues:  1,709,537 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,710,537

201 - Parks & Recreation

Administration 164,626 2,103 166,729

60+ Activity Center 168,321 1,431 169,752

Swimming Pool 392,466 2,430 394,896

Recreation Center 545,606 1,489 547,095

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Attachment B Page 1 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

29

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Recreation Programs 176,944 176,944

Sports Programs 122,266 1,000 123,266

Contingency 139,308 (7,453) 131,855

Total Parks & Recreation Fund 1,709,537 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,710,537

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Parks & Recreation Fund 1,709,537 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,710,537

PARKS & RECREATION - 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

211 - Public Parking Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 323,733 323,733

Revenues 32,310 32,310

Total Revenues:  356,043 0 0 0 0 0 0 356,043

211 - Public Parking Fund

Public Parking - Nye Beach 12,722 12,722

Public Parking - City Center 6,896 6,896

Public Parking - Bay Front 22,218 22,218

Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 40,000 40,000

Contingency 274,207 274,207

Total Public Parking Fund 356,043 0 0 0 0 0 0 356,043

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Public Parking Fund 356,043 0 0 0 0 0 0 356,043

PUBLIC PARKING FUND - 211 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

212 - Housing Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 157,851 157,851

Revenues 530 530

Transfer from General Fund 13,200 13,200

Total Revenues:  171,581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 171,581

212 - Housing Fund

Housing 135,849 135,849

Contingency 35,732 35,732

Total Housing Fund 171,581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 171,581

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Housing Fund 171,581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 171,581

HOUSING FUND - 212 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

220 - Airport Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 353,254 353,254

Attachment B Page 2 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

30

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Revenues 343,965 343,965

Transfer from General Fund 310,288 310,288

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 25,000 25,000

Total Revenues:  1,032,507 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,032,507

220 - Airport Fund

Airport Operations 693,941 2,843 70,246 767,030

Transfer General Debt Fund 6,746 6,746

Transfer to Capital Proj - Airport 154,293 154,293

Contingency 71,691 (2,843) (68,848) 0

Total Airport Fund 926,671 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,398 928,069

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 105,836 (1,398) 104,438

Total Airport Fund 1,032,507 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,032,507

AIRPORT FUND - 220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

230 - Room Tax Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 778,488 72,000 850,488

Revenues 1,321,300 36,855 1,358,155

Total Revenues:  2,099,788 0 0 0 72,000 0 0 36,855 0 2,208,643

230 - Room Tax Fund
Room Tax 1,145,246 (200,000) 36,855 982,101
Transfer to General Fund 21,822 21,822

Transfer to Parks & Rec Fund 180,500 180,500

Transfer to Airport Fund 25,000 25,000

Transfer to Debt Service General 14,491 14,491

Transfer to Debt Service Wastewater 127,325 127,325

Transfer to Capital Proj Fund 375,513 60,000 272,000 707,513

Contingency 126,381 (60,000) 66,381

Total Room Tax Fund 2,016,278 0 0 0 72,000 0 0 36,855 0 2,125,133

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 83,510 83,510

Total Room Tax Fund 2,099,788 0 0 0 72,000 0 0 36,855 0 2,208,643

ROOM TAX FUND - 230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

240 - Building Inspection Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 469,943 469,943

Revenues 167,010 25,000 192,010

Transfer from General Fund 3,000 3,000

Total Revenues:  639,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 664,953

240 - Building Inspections

Building Inspections 258,868 3,029 25,000 286,897

Contingency 25,887 (3,029) 22,858

Attachment B Page 3 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

31

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Total Building Inspections Fund 284,755 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 309,755

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 355,198 355,198

Total Building Inspections Fund 639,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 664,953

BUILDING INSPECTION - 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

251 - Street Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 588,769 588,769

Revenues 982,687 982,687

Transfer from Water Fund 35,000 35,000

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 35,000 35,000

Total Revenues:  1,641,456 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,641,456

251 - Street Fund

Street Maintenance 655,041 878 3,367 659,286

Storm Drain Maintenance 426,956 878 3,367 431,201

Transfer General Debt Fund 62,190 62,190

Transfer General Fund 5,578 5,578

Transfer Capital Projects 10,000 10,000

Contingency 109,156 (1,756) (6,734) 100,666

Total Street Fund 1,268,921 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,268,921

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 372,535 372,535

Total Street Fund 1,641,456 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,641,456

STREET FUND 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

252 - Line Undergrounding

Beginning Fund Balance 732,615 732,615

Revenues 172,800 172,800

Total Revenues:  905,415 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 905,415

252 - Line Undergrounding

Line Undergrounding 400 400

Transfer General Debt Fund 59,435 59,435

Transfer Capital Projects 200,000 200,000

Contingency 645,580 645,580

Total Line Undergrounding Fund 905,415 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 905,415

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Line Undergrounding Fund 905,415 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 905,415

LINE UNDERGROUNDING FUND 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

253 - SDC Fund

Attachment B Page 4 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

32

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Beginning Fund Balance 1,112,230 1,112,230

Revenues 249,070 249,070

Total Revenues:  1,361,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,361,300

253 - SDC Fund

SDC - Streets 50,000 50,000

SDC - Administration 25,000 25,000

Transfer to Proprietary Debt Fund 10,000 10,000

Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 187,500 60,000 247,500

Contingency 1,088,800 (60,000) 1,028,800

Total SDC Fund 1,361,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,361,300

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total SDC Fund 1,361,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,361,300

SDC FUND - 253 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

254 - Agate Beach Closure

Beginning Fund Balance 1,404,584 1,404,584

Revenues 18,000 18,000

Total Revenues:  1,422,584 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,422,584

254 - Agate Beach Closure

Agate Beach Closure Fund 60,327 60,327

Contingency 1,362,257 1,362,257

Total Agate Beach Closure Fund 1,422,584 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,422,584

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total SDC Fund 1,422,584 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,422,584

AGATE BEACH CLOSURE - 254 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

270 - Newport URA

Beginning Fund Balance 774,253 774,253

Revenues 430,857 430,857

Total Revenues:  1,205,110 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,205,110

270 - Newport URA

Newport Urban Renewal Operations 200,423 200,423

Transfer to Capital Projects - General 300,000 300,000

Contingency 704,687 704,687

Total Agate Beach Closure Fund 1,205,110 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,205,110

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total SDC Fund 1,205,110 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,205,110

NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Attachment B Page 5 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

33

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

301 - Debt Service - Water

Beginning Fund Balance 118,219 118,219

Revenues 839,114 839,114

Transfer from Water Fund 124,676 124,676

Transfer from Water Fund 330,988 330,988

Total Revenues:  1,412,997 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,412,997

301 - Debt Service - Water

WTP GO Bond 904,825 904,825

Water General Debt 124,676 124,676

Water Revenue Bond 330,988 330,988

Total Bonded Debt Fund 1,360,489 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,360,489

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 52,508 52,508

Total Bonded Debt Fund 1,412,997 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,412,997

BONDED DEBT FUND - 301 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

302 - Debt Service Wastewater

Beginning Fund Balance 1,145,329 1,145,329

Revenues 880,807 880,807

Transfer from Wastewater 431,113 431,113

Transfer from SDC Fund 10,000 10,000

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 127,325 127,325

Transfer from Wastewater 200,000 200,000

Total Revenues:  2,794,574 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,794,574

302 - Debt Service Wastewater

Wastewater GO Bond 935,925 935,925

Wastewater General Debt 568,438 568,438

Total Proprietary Debt Fund 1,504,363 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,504,363

Loan Reserve - Proprietary Debt 568,438 568,438

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 721,773 721,773

Total Proprietary Debt Fund 2,794,574 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,794,574

PROPRIETARY DEBT FUND - 302 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

303 - General Debt - General

Beginning Fund Balance 58,186 58,186

Revenues 475,784 475,784

Transfer from Street Fund 62,190 62,190

Transfer from Water Fund 4,553 4,553

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 31,337 31,337

Transfer from General Fund 167,442 167,442

Transfer from Airport Fund 6,746 6,746

Attachment B Page 6 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

34

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Transfer from Line Underground 59,435 59,435

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 14,491 14,491

Total Revenues:  880,164 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 880,164

303 - General Debt - General

Swimming Pool GO Bond 488,419 488,419

General Debt  Service 343,638 343,638

Total General Debt Fund 832,057 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 832,057

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 48,107 48,107

Total General Debt Fund 880,164 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 880,164

GENERAL DEBT - 303 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

304 - Debt Service - Newport URA

Beginning Fund Balance 2,442,359 2,442,359

Revenues 2,364,195 2,364,195

Transfer from Water Fund 0

Total Revenues:  4,806,554 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,806,554

304 - Debt Service - Newport URA

Debt Service 1,517,732 1,517,732

Total Revenue Bond Debt Fund 1,517,732 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,517,732

Loan Reserve - Revenue Bond 785,463 785,463

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 2,503,359 2,503,359

Total Revenue Bond Debt Fund 4,806,554 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,806,554

REVENUE BOND DEBT - 304 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

402 - Capital Projects - General Projects

Beginning Fund Balance 14,347,532 (2,784,713) 11,562,819

Adjust BFB 0 0 0

Reserve - Premium on Pool Bond 381,973 381,973

Revenues 5,864,829 5,864,829

FEMA Revenues - Airport 0 2,261,034 2,261,034

FEMA Revenues - Safe Haven 0 293,834 293,834

Transfer from Room Tax 95,795 272,000 367,795

Transfer from Street Fund 10,000 10,000

Transfer from Line Undergrounding 200,000 200,000

Transfer from Public Parking Fund 40,000 40,000

Transfer from URA 300,000 300,000

Transfer from SDC Fund 87,500 60,000 147,500

Transfer from Room Tax 150,000 60,000 210,000

Transfer from SDC Fund 100,000 100,000

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 140,000 140,000

Transfer from Airport Fund 154,293 154,293

Attachment B Page 7 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

35

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Transfer from General Fund 5,500 50,000 55,500

Transfer from Room Tax 129,718 129,718

Total Revenues:  22,007,140 0 0 120,000 322,000 0 0 0 (229,845) 22,219,295

402 - Capital Projects - General Projects

Capital Projects - General

City Center Park Improve 10006 90,000 90,000

So Beach Tsunami Improve (Phase II) 11014 492,294 0 492,294

Hwy 1-1 Pedestrian Crossing Improve 11024 185,050 (185,050) 0

Bay Bld,SE Moore Dr, SE Fogarty & SE 4th 12015 2,949,100 (32,530) 2,916,570

Wayfinding Sign Project - Phase 3 12018 6,000 0 6,000

NW 6th Str Storm Sewer 13002 380,000 (180,000) (200,000) 0 0

Agate Beach Rec & Wayside Improve 13010 100,624 300,000 0 400,624

Strategic Grant Consulting Services 13011 23,605 (492) 23,113

Storm Sewer System Master Plan 13012 20,000 20,000

SE 35th & Hwy 101 Signalization Improve 13018 67,547 0 67,547

Sam Moore Crk Water Quaility & Improve 13020 129,550 129,550

SW Abalone Brant Street Improve 14002 2,174,000 24,171 2,198,171

SE Ferry Slip Rd Street Improve 14003 1,438,000 15,459 1,453,459

Fire Station Seismic Rehabilitation 14005 1,491,223 1,491,223

2015-2016 Sidewalk & Bike Improve 14007 15,000 15,000

2015-2016 Street Overlay & Improve 15003 264,232 82,138 346,370

Parks System Master Plan 15011 37,500 37,500

LID Code Update Study 15012 15,000 15,000

Nye Beach Turnaround Pavement Rehab 15013 25,000 25,000

Harbor Way- Nye Str to Abbey Street 15014 81,675 81,675

Agate Beach State Park to Hwy 101 15015 29,120 29,120

NE 6th Str Right of Way Acquistion 15016 50,000 50,000

Ferry Slip Rd Utility Line Underground 15017 500,000 500,000

NE 7th & Harney Sliplining 15018 100,000 100,000

Sharrows-BayBlvd fr Natherlin to John Moore 15019 10,000 10,000

Preparation of Newport Urban Renewal Plan 15037 30,000 30,000

Nye Creek Storm Sewer Repair 15036 0 200,000 200,000

Capital Projects - Swimming Pool

Aquatic Center 13019 7,940,000 322,000 (128,706) 8,133,294

Aquatic Center Parking Improvements 14004 285,884 (38,013) 247,871

Capital Projects - Airport AIP

RW16-34 Rehabiliation 12092 990,933 0 990,933

RW16-34 Rehabiliation AIP 22 12092 997,256 0 997,256

FBO Building Repairs 14021 310,000 0 310,000

Airport Master Plan 15001 385,000 0 385,000

Capital Projects - VAC/PAC

Runyan Floors 15020 18,746 18,746

Entry Stairway & Hall 15021 8,422 8,422

2nd Floor Room Configuration 15022 5,924 5,924

Wooden Art Doors 15023 2,500 2,500

Lobby Expansion 15024 282,267 282,267

Women's Restrooms 15025 47,230 47,230

Transfer to SDC Fund - Streets 0

Transfer to Proprietary Capital Fund 0

Contingency 58,458 3,178 61,636

Attachment B Page 8 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

36

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Total Capital Projects - General 22,007,140 0 0 120,000 322,000 0 0 0 (229,845) 22,219,295

Restricted - Swim Pool 0

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Capital Projects - General 22,007,140 0 0 120,000 322,000 0 0 0 (229,845) 22,219,295

CAPITAL PROJECTS GENERAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

403 - Capital Projects - Proprietary 

Beginning Fund Balance 842,934 (614,557) 228,377

Restricted Water Revenue Bond 3,123,083 (224,920) 2,898,163

Revenues 6,337,547 6,337,547

Clean Water SRF Loan 0 609,959 609,959

0

Transfer from Water Fund 1,177,075 1,177,075

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 297,586 297,586

Total Revenues:  11,778,225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (229,518) 11,548,707

403 - Capital Projects - Proprietary 

Prop Capital Projects - Water

NE 71st St Water Tank & Pump Station 11018 2,037,139 (221,670) 1,815,469

Big Creek Dams Preliminary Design 11025 451,300 451,300

Yaquina Hts Tank Interior recoat & Handrails 12010 100,000 100,000

Fixed base Metering System 12029 1,150,000 1,150,000

Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

Seal Rock Water District Intertie Project 13013 75,000 75,000

Water Rights Revisions 13014 5,533 5,533

Pave Parking Lot at WTP 14012 60,000 60,000

WTF Hallway Expansion 14013 25,000 25,000

Old WTP Demolition/New Storage Garage 14014 200,000 200,000

Water Distribution System Flushing Plan 14015 40,000 40,000

Candletree Pump Station Replacement 14016 450,000 450,000

Emergency Generator 14018 330,000 330,000

SCADA System Upgrade Proj-WTP 15026 73,000 73,000

NE3rd/Yaquina Heights Dr Water Line Install 15029 250,000 (120,000) 130,000

Utility Rate Study 15030 20,000 20,000

Hwy 101 & Golf Course Drive 15035 0 120,000 120,000

Other Eligible Revenue Bond Projects 11,644 11,644

Prop Capital Projects - Wastewater

Nye Beach Screen & Grinder Pump 11020 200,000 0 200,000

Big Creek Wastewater Lift Station Force Replacement 12025 2,346,128 553,872 0 2,900,000

Wastewater System Master Plan 13008 111,651 (1,348) 110,303

2016 Sanitary Sewer Televising Program 13009 132,044 132,044

Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

Smoke Testing Program 13015 45,079 0 45,079

SCADA System Upgrade Proj-WWTP 15027 82,000 82,000

SCADA System Upgrade Proj-WW Collection 15028 42,000 42,000

Utility Rate Study 15030 20,000 20,000

Gravity Sanitary Sewer Upgrade-NW 48th to Big Creek 15031 1,401,323 1,401,323

Attachment B Page 9 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

37

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Schooner Creek WW Lift Station Foremain Replace 15032 1,794,000 (553,872) 0 1,240,128

NE 7th & Douglas & Hurbert between 3rd & 6th 15033 275,000 275,000

Contingency 0

Total Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 11,778,225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (229,518) 11,548,707

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 11,778,225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (229,518) 11,548,707

CAPITAL PROJECTS PROPRIETARY FUND 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

404 - Reserve Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 501,938 501,938

Revenues 2,050 2,050

Transfer from General Fund 180,000 46,245 226,245

Total Revenues:  683,988 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,245 730,233

404 - Reserve Fund

Capital Outlay - Police 40,000 40,000

Capital Outlay - Fire 425,000 425,000

Total Reserve Fund 465,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 465,000

Reserve for Future - Police 55,256 55,256

Reserve for Future - Fire 153,628 46,245 199,873

Reserve for Future - Library 10,104 10,104

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 0

Total Reserve Fund 683,988 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,245 730,233

RESERVE FUND - 404 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

601 - Water Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 1,174,476 1,174,476

Revenues 3,942,200 3,942,200

Total Revenues:  5,116,676 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,116,676

601 - Water Fund 0

Water Plant 1,067,465 1,809 7,016 1,076,290

Water Distribution 938,418 1,736 6,735 946,889

Water Non Departmental 930,412 930,412

Transfer from General Fund 13,050 13,050

Transfer to Gen Debt Fund 4,553 4,553

Transfer to Street Fund 35,000 35,000

Transfer to Water Debt 455,664 455,664

Transfer to Revenue Bond 0

Transfer Proprietary Capital Projects 1,177,075 1,177,075

Contingency 259,917 (3,545) (13,751) 242,621

Total Water Fund 4,881,554 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,881,554

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 235,122 235,122

Attachment B Page 10 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

38

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

Total Water Fund 5,116,676 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,116,676

WATER FUND - 601 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

602 - Wastewater Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 892,737 892,737

Revenues 3,872,680 3,872,680

Total Revenues:  4,765,417 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,765,417

0

602 - Wastewater Fund 0

Wastewater Plant 1,536,391 1,809 7,135 1,545,335

Wastewater Collection 601,914 4,715 606,629

Wastewater Non Departmental 995,704 995,704

Transfer to General Fund 13,050 13,050

Transfer to Gen Debt Fund 31,337 31,337

Transfer to Street Fund 35,000 35,000

Transfer to Water Debt 631,113 631,113

Transfer to Capital Projects - General 140,000 140,000

Transfer Proprietary Capital Projects 297,586 297,586

Contingency 279,425 (1,809) (11,850) 265,766

Total Wastewater Fund 4,561,520 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,561,520

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 203,897 203,897

Total Wastewater Fund 4,765,417 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,765,417

WASTEWATER FUND - 602 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

701 - Public Works Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 189,102 189,102

Revenues 1,029,475 1,029,475

Total Revenues:  1,218,577 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,218,577

701 - Public Works Fund

Public Works Administration 290,723 3,432 294,155

Engineering 533,554 4,018 4,905 542,477

Fleet Maintenance 88,282 881 89,163

Contingency 86,606 (8,331) (4,905) 73,370

Total Public Works Fund 999,165 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 999,165

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 219,412 219,412

Total Public Works Fund 1,218,577 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,218,577

PUBLIC WORKS  FUND - 701 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Attachment B Page 11 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

39

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Agate Beach 

Wayside NURA

Adopted Budget Appropriation Appropriation Appropriation Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adopted Budget Adjusted

Project  Resolution Change Change Change Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Budget

Fund Appropriation Level No. #3710 August 17, 2015 August 17, 2015 August 31, 2015 3726 3706 3728 3735 3740 FY 2015-2016

CITY OF NEWPORT
Budget with Supplementals/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

BALANCING AMOUNTS

TOTAL REVENUES 82,189,073 0 0 120,000 444,000 0 0 61,855 (285,283) 82,530,645

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS: 74,112,632 0 0 120,000 444,000 0 0 61,855 (330,130) 74,409,357

TOTAL NON-APPROPRIATED: 8,076,441 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44,847 8,121,288

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 82,189,073 0 0 120,000 444,000 0 0 61,855 (285,283) 82,530,645

Attachment B Page 12 of 12 2/22/2016 5:21 PM

40

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

ATTACHMENT "A" - RESOLUTION NO. 3740 ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET,

MAKING APPROPRIATION AND CHANGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

General Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Conflagration revenues 127,835         Police - wages & benefits 58,511               

Fire - wages & benefits 112,682             

Transfer to Reserve Fund - Fire 46,245               

Contingency for future commitments (89,603)

Revised Total Resources 14,357,322   Revised Total Requirements 14,357,322       

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for union personnel.  Conflagration revenues and related expenditures were reimbursed for the fiscal year.

Parks & Recreation Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Fee and charges for service 1,000              Sports Program - Materials and Services 1,000                 

Revised Total Resources 1,710,537     Revised Total Requirements 1,710,537         

Comments: Additional monies received to partially fund middle school basketball uniforms.

Airport Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

NO additional resources -                  Airport Operations 70,246               

Contingency (68,848)              

Unappropriated fund balance (1,398)                

Revised Total Resources 1,032,507     Revised Total Requirements 1,032,507         

Comments: Adjustment to expenditures needed due to Fall Storm of 2015 repairs.

Street Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Street Maintenance 3367

Storm Drain maintenance 3367

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (6,734)                

Revised Total Resources 1,641,456     Revised Total Requirements 1,641,456         

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Capital Projects - General

Adjusted

Resource Amount Project Name Project # Adjusted Budget Change Budget

Beginning fund balance (2,784,713)   Hwy 1-1 Pedestrian Crossing Improve 11024 185,050 (185,050) 0

FEMA - Airport 2,261,034      Bay Bld,SE Moore Dr, SE Fogarty & SE 4th 12015 2,949,100 (32,530) 2,916,570

FEMA - Safe Haven 293,834         Strategic Grant Consulting Services 13011 23,605 (492) 23,113

SW Abalone Brant Street Improve 14002 2,174,000 24,171 2,198,171

SE Ferry Slip Rd Street Improve 14003 1,438,000 15,459 1,453,459

2015-16 Street Overlay 15003 264,232 82,138 346,370

Preparation of Newport Urban Renewal Plan 15037 0 30,000 30,000

Aquatic Center 13019 8,262,000 (128,706) 8,133,294

Aquatic Center Parking Improvements 14004 285,884 (38,013) 247,871

Contingency 58,458 3,178 61,636

Revised Total Resources (229,845)       Revised Total Requirements -                                                 (229,845)           (229,845)       

Comments:  Adjust Beginning fund balances (BFB) to audited financial statements and adjust project balances to match BFB amount expected.

Capital Projects - Proprietary

Adjusted

Resource Amount Project Name Project # Adjusted Budget Change Budget

Water

Restricted Water Revenue bond (224,920)       NE 71st St Water Tank & Pump Station 11018 2,037,139 (221,670) 1,815,469

Beginning Fund Balance (614,557)       Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

Clean Water SRF Loan 609,959         Sewer

Wastewater System Master Plan 13008 111,651 (1,348) 110,303

Strategic Grant Consulting Service 13011 25,192 (3,250) 21,942

-                  

Revised Total Resources 11,548,707   Revised Total Requirements 11,778,225 (229,518)           11,548,707  

Comments:  Adjust Beginning fund balances (BFB) to audited financial statements and adjust project balances to match BFB amount expected.

Note: Only adjusted projects are shown.

Note: Only adjusted projects are shown.

41

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

ATTACHMENT "A" - RESOLUTION NO. 3740 ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET,

MAKING APPROPRIATION AND CHANGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

Reserve Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Transfer from General Fund 46,245           Reserve for future -Fire 46,245               

Revised Total Resources 683,988         Revised Total Requirements 730,233.00

Comments:  Fire Reserve Adjustment due to participation in 2015 Conflagration.

Water Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Water Plant - wages & benefits 7016

Water distrib - wages & benefit 6735

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (13,751)              

Revised Total Resources -                  Revised Total Requirements 0.00

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Wastewater Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Wastewater plant - wages & benefit 7,135                 

Wastewater collections - wages & benefit 4,715                 

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (11,850)              

Revised Total Resources -                  Revised Total Requirements 0

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

Public Works Fund

Resource Amount Expenditure Amount

Engineering - wages & benefit 4,905

NO additional resources -                  Contingency for future commitments (4,905)                

Revised Total Resources 1,218,577     Revised Total Requirements 1,218,577         

Comments:  Allocate Contingency for future commitents to wages and benefits which will cover the 

2% COLA for non-union personnel.

42

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.A. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
From the Surf Rider Foundation, Regarding Bacteria Testing in the Nye 
Beach Storm Sewer Basin  
 
Background: 
The Surf Rider Foundation will present their findings relating to bacteria testing in the Nye 
Beach Storm Sewer Basin as well as the results of the “Blue Water Scholar” student 
intern, Leland Wood, who conducted a six-week program to test certain points upstream 
from the Nye Beach Storm Water Basin. Surf Rider has worked closely with the Public 
Works Department and the Oregon Coast Aquarium on this effort.   

Recommendation: 
None at this time.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

43

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Prepared by:Timothy Gross, PE, Director of Public Works/City Engineer                                  

Title: Informational Presentation by Surfrider Foundation regarding Bacteria Testing in the 
Nye Beach Storm Sewer Basin  

Recommended Motion:

N/A

Background Information:   

Surfrider Foundation has an ongoing program to test for Enterococcus bacteria at 
beaches and storm sewer outfalls, including at least 7 locations in the Newport area.  In 
the past, high bacteria readings have prompted Public Works to perform smoke testing 
to discover cross-connections between the City’s wastewater and storm sewer systems. 
One area where past cross-connections were discovered is Nye Beach.  A series of 
high readings at the Nye Beach Pipe Outfall (west of the turnaround parking lot) in fall 
2015 caused concern that another cross-connection may exist.

In order to narrow down the source of the bacteria, Surfrider Foundation, Public Works, 
and Oregon Coast Aquarium partnered on a 6-week program to test at points upstream 
in the Nye Beach storm sewer basin.  Surfrider developed a “Blue Water Scholar” 
student internship and selected a local high school student, Leland Wood, to perform 
the testing and analyze the results.

Leland, and Charlie Plybon with Surfrider, will present their findings from the Blue Water 
Scholar program, and additional information on bacteria testing in the Nye Beach storm 
sewer basin.

Fiscal Notes  :  

N/A

Alternatives:

N/A

STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

44

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Attachments:

None

45

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.B. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
From Northwest National Marine Renewable Energy Center (NNMREC) Dr. 
Belinda Batten and Dan Hellin, Report on Pacific Marine Energy Center - 
Wave Energy Test Sites 
 
Background: 
Dr. Belinda Batten Director of the Northwest NNMREC at Oregon State University will be 
giving a presentation on the Pacific Marine Energy Center – Wave Energy Test Sites off 
the coast of Newport. NNMREC’s mission is to facilitate the commercialization of marine 
energy technology. This effort puts Newport at the forefront of wave energy research and 
development.    

Recommendation: 
None at this time.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

46

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Pacific Marine Energy Center: 
Wave Energy Test Sites off Newport 

Belinda Batten 
Director 

Northwest National Marine Renewable Energy Center 
Oregon State University 

City of Newport Council Work Session 

March 7, 2016 

47

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Hawaii National Marine 
Renewable Energy Center 

(HINMREC) 
University of Hawaii 

(wave & OTEC) 

Southeast National Marine 
Renewable Energy Center 

(SNMREC) 
Florida Atlantic University 
(ocean current & OTEC) 

National Marine Renewable Energy Centers 

Northwest National Marine 
Renewable Energy Center 

(NNMREC) 
University of Washington (tidal) 
Oregon State University (wave) 

University of Alaska Fairbanks (river) 

48

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

"-,

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF

ENERGY

~NMREC-_....
bMw.-blit£nlrvrc.n..



Our Mission, Objectives & Impact 

Mission 
NNMREC’s mission is to facilitate the commercialization of marine energy 
technology, inform regulatory and policy decisions, and to close key gaps in 
scientific understanding with a focus on student growth and development. 

Objectives 
• Develop facilities to serve as integrated test centers for marine renewable 

energy developers  

• Evaluate potential environmental and ecosystem effects 

• Optimize devices and arrays for deployment 

• Improve forecasting  

• Increase reliability and survivability 

Impact 
NNMREC is a unique “go-to” team for industry, regulators, and funders that 
advances understanding of marine renewable energy, provides integrated 
research & testing, and provides access to world-class faculty and students. 

 

  

49

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016 ~NMREC-_....
bMw.-blit£nlrvrc.n..



Approach 

Environmental 

Site Characterization 

Marine Mammals 

Benthic Ecosystems  

EMF and Acoustics 

Sediment Transport 

 

 

Social 

Fisheries/Crabbing 

Outreach/Engagement 

Existing Ocean Users 

Local/State Economy 

Policy 

 

Technical 

 Testing/Demonstration 

Resource Forecasting 

Survivability/Reliability 

Advanced Materials 

Device/Array Optimization 

50

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016 ~NMREC-_....
bMw.-blit£nlrvrc.n..



Umbrella organization for wave, current, 
river academic & scientific research 

Industry and academic partner network 
(domestic and international) 

Umbrella organization for all marine 
renewable energy test facilities at partner 
institutions 

Providing facilities and O&M support for 
devices testing 

 

NNMREC vs. PMEC 

51

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Pacific Marine Energy Center

~NMREC-_....
bMw.-blit£nlrvrc.n..



The Pacific Marine Energy Center (PMEC) 

52

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

• Seattle
UW:
Harris
Hydraulics
Lab

Corvallis
• OSU:

WESRF
Hinsdale



PMEC Wave Energy Test Sites off Newport 

North Energy Test Site (NETS) 

 Non-grid connected test site 

 One mobile test berth 

 No array testing 

 100kW maximum capacity 

 1 nm2 area 

 45-55 meters depth 

 Approx. 2 nm from shore 

 Fully permitted & operational 

 First test occurred in 2012 

 
53

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

N ·..··0····
R If

.:"~'
F f C 0 -C E A N

.,-""-----;---------

South Energy
Te~t ~ite

'1

(

,......

"'i

\ .

W'E'"
. ~ , ,

, '. . ~"

.'. ·s;

~.;-

--'- Centr~.1Alterna~ive •
",

--"- Southern Alternati'ye

~HDD ..Segment

NalJticalMile

\"

~O,5

Call.le R~utes

.,-- P~~ferred.Route

c



PMEC North Energy Test Site 

54

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Sig nal to Shore

r.--a..taelfnMn_
MI'"IY~l7;t1lrl.""'"

ttl",...tlUIW.



PMEC Wave Energy Test Sites off Newport 

South Energy Test Site (SETS) 

 Grid connected test site 

 Four test berths 

 Single device & array testing  

 Maximum of 20 devices 

 20MW maximum capacity 

 2 nm2 area 

 65-78 meters depth 

 Approx. 6 nm from shore 

 In permitting & planning phase 

55

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

N ·..··0····
R If

.:,,~.
F f C 0 -C E A N

.,-""-----;---------

South Energy
Te~t ~ite

'1

(

,......

"'i

\ .

W'E'"
. ~ , ,

, '. . ~"

.'. ·s;

~.;-

--'- Centr~.1Alterna~ive •
",

--"- Southern Alternati'ye

~HDD ..Segment

NalJticalMile

\"

~O,5

Call.le R~utes

.,-- P~~ferred.Route

c



PMEC South Energy Test Site 

56

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

....... -

w
"OregonWaveEnergy UNIVERSITY of

-.I WASHINGTON

Research device

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF

ENERGY

Anchoring infrastructure not shown

Pacific Marine Energy eenter
South Energy Test Site



Belinda Batten 
541-737-9492  

Belinda.Batten@oregonstate.edu 

www.pmec.us 57

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.C. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
From the Regional Airport Review Task Force, Final Report 
Recommendations Relating to the Newport Municipal Airport 
 
Background: 
On July 24, 2014, the Newport City Council approved Resolution No. 3689 establishing a 
Regional Airport Review Task Force. The Council delayed the appointment of members 
to the Task Force until 2015 with the first meeting taking place on July 28, 2015. Over the 
next eight months the Task Force met six times as a group and worked individually on 
various aspects of the report. The final meeting of the Task Force was held on February 
17, 2016. The work of the Task Force is broken down into six categories including 
commercial air service, governance, finance, marketing, land use issues, and emergency 
services with a total of 27 recommendations for the City Council, Airport Committee, and 
The Airport Master Plan Planning Advisory Committee. Council President Ralph Busby 
was elected by the group to Chair the meetings of the Task Force. Council President 
Busby will provide additional comments regarding the work of the Task Force.  
 
Once presented to the City Council, The Council can share the report with the Airport 
Committee (on March 8) and the Airport Master Plan Planning Advisory Committee (on 
March 9) in order to initiate an action plan for follow through with the recommendations 
outlined in the report. This is an opportune time to have the report issued with the city 
since we are currently engaged with WH Pacific on completing a new Master Plan for the 
airport over the next year and a half. It is our hope that many of these recommendation 
will fall within the realm of that process. For items not related to the airport master plan, I 
will provide a follow-up report for the City Council and the Airport Committee outlining 
those items that will need to be addressed outside of this process.  
 
I greatly appreciate the time invested by the members of the Regional Airport Review 
Task Force which included Mayor A.J. Mattila, Depoe Bay; Mayor Don Williams, Lincoln 
City; Mayor Sandy Roumagoux, Newport; Former Mayor Ralph Grutzmacher, Toledo and 
Airport Committee member; County Commissioner Doug Hunt; General Manager of the 
Port Kevin Greenwood; John Lavrakas representing economic development interests; 
Lorna Davis of the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce; Susan Painter representing 
the Airport Committee; City Council President Ralph Busby; Jamie Rand and Mark Fisher 
serving as an at-large members of the Task Force. This group did an excellent job in 
taking their charge very seriously and I believe have developed sound recommendations 
for the Council’s consideration.  

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move acceptation of the February 17, 2016 report regarding recommendations on 
the future operations and development of the Newport Municipal Airport and further 
convey copies of this report to the Airport Committee and the Airport Master Plan 
Planning Advisory Committee for their review, consideration, and action.   
 

58

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



Fiscal Effects: 
None by accepting the report.   
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

59

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 
Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 
Newport, OR  97365 

s.nebel@newportoregon.gov 
 

 
 
DATE:  February 17, 2016 
 
TO: City of Newport City Council, Airport Committee, and the Airport Master Plan 

Planning Advisory Committee (PAC) 
 
FROM: Regional Airport Review Task Force 
 
SUBJ.: Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 
 

 

The Regional Airport Review Task Force respectfully submits the Report of the Regional 
Airport Review Task Force to the Newport City Council, the Newport Airport Committee, 
and the Airport Master Plan Planning Advisory Committee for review, consideration, and 
use in future planning for the Newport Municipal Airport.   

60

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

OREGON

mailto:s.nebel@newportoregon.gov


 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



61

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

A.J. Mattila - City of Depoe Bay Mayor

Don Williams- City of Lincoln City Mayor

Doug Hunt - Lincoln County Commissioner

Jamie Rand - at large member

John Lavrakas - representing economic development interests

Kevin Greenwood - Port of Newport General Manager

Lorna Davis -Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce Executive Director

Mark Fisher - at large member

Ralph Grutzmacher - Airport Committee Member

Susan Painter - Airport Committee Member

Ralph Busby - City of Newport Councilor

Sandy Roumagoux - City of Newport Mayor

February 17/ 2016



�

62

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

On July 24, 2014, the Newport City Council approved Resolution No. 3689, a resolution 
establishing a Regional Airport Review Task Force. The purpose of the Task Force was to 
review the role the Newport Municipal Airport (ONP) plays on the central coast. 
Furthermore, the City Council requested that the Task Force review various options for the 
long-term support and development of the airport facility in the best way to serve Lincoln 
County and the central coast. After the resolution was adopted, the Mayor and Council 
held off on making appointments to the Regional Airport Review Task Force until 2015. 
The Task Force consisted of A.J. Mattila, Mayor of Depoe Bay; Don Williams, Mayor of 
Lincoln City; Doug Hunt, Lincoln County Commissioner; Kevin Greenwood, General 
Manager of the Port of Newport; John Lavrakas representing economic development 
interests; Lorna Davis of the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce; Jamie Rand serving 
as an at-large member; Mark Fisher serving as an at-large member; Susan Painter from 
the Airport Committee; Ralph Grutzmacher from the Airport Committee; Ralph Busby, City 
Councilor; and Sandy Roumagoux, Mayor. Please note that Mark Fisher replaced Dennis 
Reno who was originally appointed as an at-large member, but resigned from the Task 
Force when his schedule would not allow him to participate in Task Force meetings.  
 
HISTORY OF THE NEWPORT MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
 
The Task Force reviewed the history of the Newport Municipal Airport which began on 
March 27, 1943 when the Civil Aeronautics Administration ordered a contract for the 
construction of an airport in Newport, Oregon. This work included two runways, each 
5,080-feet long and 150-feet wide, and several taxiways each 50-feet wide. In order to 
build the airport, the contractor had to move 300 million cubic yards of sand and clay with 
1.7 million cubic yards brought in as fill. This cut and fill project addressed a canyon that 
was 140-feet deep by re-grading the high points of the land into the canyon which 
ultimately led to 94-feet of fill being placed in a canyon over a length of about 1,100 feet. In 
order to properly drain the site, nine miles of concrete drain tiles were laid and small 
canyons and gullies were filled to create the necessary runways for the airport. The original 
contract for clearing and grading was $1,064,472; the paving contract for the project was 
$423,466. The project was plagued by rainy weather, saturated soils, and compaction 
issues. The aggregate for the project came from the quarry near Agate Beach. The May 
1944 edition of the Pacific Builder and Engineer VWDWHG�WKDW�WKLV�ZDV�«�³RQH�RI�WKH�KDUGHVW�
EXLOGV�LQ�DLUSRUW�KLVWRU\´��DUWLFle from the Don Davis collection). 
 
The Civil Aeronautics Administration constructed the airport on property provided in a land 
grant from the city. The airport and associated city property was turned back over to city 
ownership in 1947. Since that time, the airport has been under the city¶V�MXULVGLFWLRQ�� 
 
The next major renovation to the airfield occurred as part of the Airport Master Plan that 
was adopted in September, 1979 and completed by George Baldwin and Associates. 
Phase I of the plan called for land acquisition, clearing, road relocation, a runway lighting 
system, and lighted wind sock. This work was estimated to be $333,334. Phase II of the 
project started out at $1,234,444 and increased to $1,466,555 and included reducing the 
NE/SW runway (2-20) from 5,080-feet long and 150-feet wide to 3,000-feet long and 75- 
feet wide. The north/south runway (16-34) was lengthened and overlaid. Phase III of the 
project included construction of taxiways utilizing a portion of the property that was formally 
occupied by the NE/SW runway which was shortened as part of Phase II.  

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 1

63

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

 
From the 1970¶s until 2006 the airport was operated by city staff with a Fixed Based 
Operation providing aircraft services. The FBO agreements included Newport Flying 
Service, Inc. in 1974, Bertea Aviation in the mid 1980¶s, Aero Pacific Development, Inc. in 
1994 and Central Oregon Coast Air Service, LLC in 1996.  
  
The City of Newport acquired the assets of the fixed based operator on April 16, 2006, for 
$250,000. 
 
Since 1946 the Airport has been served at various times by commercial air services and 
charter services including Newport Air Service, West Cost Airline, Ports of Call, Skyworld 
Airlines and Harbor Air.   
 
The last commercial passenger service was provided by SeaPort Airlines from March 15, 
2009 to July 18, 2011. The City of Newport, jointly with the Port of Astoria, received a 
ConnectOregon and a USDOT grant to provide commercial air service to both 
communities. An RFP (Request for Proposals) for commercial air service providers had 
been issued, and the contract was awarded to SeaPort Airlines. Over a period of two 
years, SeaPort Airlines provided twice daily flights to and from Portland International 
Airport (PDX) to Newport (ONP) and Astoria (AST). When the subsidies expired, service 
continued for approximately six months at which time it was discontinued. Since that time, 
there has been no commercial air service to Newport. Through most of the airports history 
since the 1970¶s, air passage service has been more the exception then the rule in 
Newport.  
 
Currently, FedEx and UPS provide daily air freight services for the Central Coast at the 
Newport Airport. 
 
In 2014 and 2015, major reconstruction occurred at the airport costing $9.7M. This work 
included a complete rebuild of the ILS Runway 16-34 north and south of the Runway 2-20 
intersection.  The FAA paid 90% of the costs of the project.  A state grant from 
ConnectOregon also covered approximately half oI�WKH�FLW\¶V�UHTXLUHG�ORFDO�PDWFK�IRU�WKHVH�
projects. 
 
Runway 16-34 was narrowed by 50 feet, requiring the installation of a new storm drainage 
system and new runway lights. Part of the reconstruction also included relocating the FAA 
navigational aids, a task which seems to be a work in progress as we collaborate with 
various departments of the FAA. The data for this work comes from the Airport 
Geographical Information Survey conducted as part of the overall project. Smaller project 
components included: a new emergency generator for the lighting system, relocation of the 
old emergency generator to support the Fixed Base Operation (FBO) building, a new ARFF 
(Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting) truck, an update to the Wildlife Hazard Management 
Plan, and reestablishment of access roads and removal of the old race track. 
 
RECENT OPERATIONAL HISTORY OF THE AIRPORT 
 
Since the purchase of the fixed base operations by the city, the city has operated the FBO 
and maintenance activities at the airport. The first manager of the FBO and airport was 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 2

64

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

Dennis Reno. As part of the fixed base operator system, fuel sales, hangar rental, car 
rental, and various services were provided. Following Dennis Reno, Gene Cossey was 
hired as Airport Manager. He was responsible for fixed base operations as well as general 
DLUSRUW� PDQDJHPHQW�� )ROORZLQJ� *HQH� &RVVH\¶V� UHVLJQDWLRQ� DV� $LUSRUW� 0DQDJHU�� &LW\�
Manager Jim Voetberg elected to divide the Airport Manager position into two separate 
positions with Terry Durham managing the fixed base operations, and Lance Vanderbeck 
managing the airport maintenance activities. Both reported directly to the City Manager, 
Jim Voetberg. A full time lineman also worked for both the FBO Manager and Operations 
Manager. In addition, temporary employment services were utilized from Barrett Business 
Services to staff airport operations. During the past two years, Melissa Román, from the 
Public Works Department, has provided support for budgeting and project services, 
particularly relating to the major north/south runway reconstruction project as well as 
associated projects funded by the FAA.   
 
During the past 18 months, the airport has undergone additional personnel changes: 
lineman Charles Norman left in March of 2014, and Terry Durham left in June of 2014. In 
addition to Lance, a temporary employee has been hired for the linemDQ¶V� SRVLWLRQ� DQG�
Lance VanderbaFN�KDV�REWDLQHG�WKH�)XHO�6XSHUYLVRU¶V�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�KDV�DVVXPHG�WKH�
FBO responsibilities at the airport during this interim period. 
 
Because of the significant changes that have occurred in staffing at the airport, the Airport 
Committee, with the blessing of the City Council, explored the possibility of privatizing the 
operation of the airport and the FBO operations. The Airport Committee issued an RFP 
and received three proposals for the operation of the airport. After extensive study and a 
meeting with each of the proposers, the Airport Committee recommended that the City 
Council reject each of the proposals for the private operation of the FBO and airport 
operation.  The Airport Committee has asked the City Council for direction concerning 
implementation of the numerous suggestions contained in this report as well as additional 
review of management and operation decisions for the airport and the FBO. [ Note: this 
action occurred at a special meeting of the Airport Committee held on February 26, 2016 
following the last meeting of the Task Force. Since it is pertinent to this report, this action 
has been included in the Task Force Report.] 
 
The City Council has also employed WH Pacific to update the Master Plan for the airport. 
The Master Plan will provide a 20-year road map identifying necessary airport 
improvements to serve current and projected aviation demand, comply with Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) standards, and address airport issues as identified by the 
airport users and other stakeholders. This planning process is estimated to be completed 
in approximately 18 months.  
 
With these significant changes occurring, it was a very appropriate time to bring together a 
Task Force to review how the airport can best meet regional transportation needs in 
Lincoln County and the central coast and to help guide these other initiatives that are 
currently moving forward for the airport. 
           
 
 
 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 3

65

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

CURRENT AIRPORT OPERATIONS 
 
The Newport Municipal Airport currently consists of two runways with 16-34 (N/S) being 
5,398-feet long and 100-feet wide and 2-20 NE/SW being 3,001-feet long by 75-feet wide. 
The airport has a 2,400 square foot office building that is currently rented to FedEx. The 
FBO has two offices on the main floor, a ticket counter, pilot¶s lounge with refrigerator and 
counter space. There are three offices on the second floor, larger conference area, and bar 
with a small kitchen. In addition to the space rented to FedEx, one office space is rented in 
the FBO building, and a lease has been provided for a double-wide trailer to FedEx. An 
aerial view of the airport can be found in Attachment F. Other services currently provided: 
  

x Fuel, Jet-A, Jet-A with additive, AV-Gas (100LL) truck and self-serve; 
x Car rentals; 
x Courtesy cars 3, plus 1 van; 
x Oil for turbine and piston aircraft; 
x Charts; 
x Current newspaper; 
x Catering, utilizing local vendors; 
x ONP branded products, including shirts, sweaters, rain jackets, and hats for sale; 
x Small selection of concessions - coffee, candy bars, chips, and soda; 
x Free WIFI; 
x After-hours shelter; 
x Fax; 
x Computer;  
x Pilot lounge area; 
x Tie-downs; 
x Overnight hangar space, if available; 
x Tug/ battery cart for aircraft towing and starting;  
x Taxi arrangements; 
x Hotel reservations. 
 
Airport staff is also responsible for maintaining the following facilities/operations at ONP 
(Newport Municipal Airport): 
 
x ILS (Instrument Landing System); 
x Two runways and associated taxi ways: 
x AWOS (Automated Weather Observation System); 
x Lighted wind sock; 
x Rotating beacon; 
x ARFF (Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Truck);  
x Wildlife hazing;  
x Field lighting/sign maintenance;  
x Field security/ public security; 
x Field maintenance.   
  

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 4

66

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

The airport receives National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS) funding in the 
amount of $150,000 per year. Please note that this money is held in an account by the FAA 
Airport District Offices and is spent directly for improvements by the FAA. The city does not 
receive or spend any of these funds. The funding is held for up to five years and can be 
consolidated on qualified improvements to the airport as determined by the FAA and local 
airport management. 
 
The airport is certified under FAA regulations as a Part 139 airport. Part 139 prescribes the 
rules governing operation and maintenance of airports that serve scheduled air carriers 
utilizing aircraft with more than nine seats, or nonscheduled operators with more than 30 
seats. The airport undergoes regular inspections and is provided a list of areas to address 
as part of that inspection for continued Part 139 certification. 
                              
In the 2013/2014 fiscal year, airport employees logged 6,289 operations at the airport. An 
operation includes a plane landing or taking-off. These counts do not include any landings 
and take-offs when the airport is not staffed or when the landing and/or take-off is not 
observed. The FAA estimates annual aircraft operations based on a combination of 
observed flights (which only occur when the airport is staffed and operation is observed) 
and an estimate of unobserved flights. The airport currently has two cargo carriers based 
at this facility, which include Empire and Ameriflight. In addition, the U.S. Coast Guard has 
a satellite air station at the airport, and recently added is an air tour operation. The current 
traffic at the airport is made up of corporate, recreational, charter, and military aircraft. 
Fueling services during the last three fiscal years have been 58,211 gallons of fuel in fiscal 
year 2011/2012; 49,476 gallons in fiscal year 2012/2013; and 98,226 in fiscal year 
2013/2014. 
 
The FBO is staffed seven days a week from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., minus three holidays. 
The airfield is normally open 24 hours a day; seven days a week; 365 days a year.  
 
REGIONAL AIRPORT REVIEW TASK FORCE MEETINGS 
 
The first meeting of the Regional Airport Review Task Force was held on Tuesday, July 28, 
2015. The Task Force met monthly after that time, except during the months of September 
and December, with the last meeting held on February 17, 2016.   
 
During these monthly meetings, the Task Force was given an overview of the operation 
and history of the airport; elected City Councilor Ralph Busby as Chair of the Task Force; 
and elected Susan Painter to serve as a representative of the Task Force on the Public 
Advisory Committee that is being established to oversee the development of a new FAA- 
funded Airport Master Plan. The Task Force toured the entire airport facility as a group in a 
bus provided by the Lincoln County Transit Authority. The Task Force met with Mitch 
Swecker, Director of the Oregon Department of Aviation, to understand the state¶V�
perspective on the role that the Newport Municipal Airport plays as part of the state 
aeronautics system. The Task Force heard a report from Rainse Anderson, PE, Director of 
Aviation at WH Pacific, Inc., who described the transition of the North Bend Municipal 
Airport from a facility operated by the Port to one now operated by the Coos County Airport 
District. After reviewing the airport facilities, overall operations, reviewing the budget, and 
hearing from a number of other sources regarding the operation of other similar facilities, 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 5

67

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

the Task Force agreed to form subgroups focusing on five specific areas which have an 
impact on the long-term operations of the airport. The Task Force created subgroups with 
the following individuals taking responsibility for coordinating information on the following 
subject areas: Commercial Air Service ± John Lavrakas; Governance ± Kevin Greenwood; 
Financial ± Ralph Busby; Marketing ± Lorna Davis; Land Uses/ Development ± Ralph 
Grutzmacher.   
 
Task Force members were encouraged to forward information regarding the various 
subject areas to the appropriate contact persons, with those individuals then preparing a 
report for the January 26, 2016 Task Force meeting. At that time, the Task Force met as a 
group to hear the reports on the five areas identified for specific discussion and analysis. 
As a result of the reports, the Task Force has summarized these findings and makes the 
following recommendations to the Newport City Council, Airport Committee, and PAC 
Committee.  
                                   
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Over the course of the six meetings, the Task Force had an opportunity to look at a number 
of issues that are significant to maximizing the impact of the airport on transportation 
services in the central coast area. The following information summarizes the findings and 
recommendations of the Task Force to the City Council, Airport Committee, and Public 
Advisory Committee. The Task Force prioritized each recommendation as high, medium, 
or low.  
 
A. Commercial Air Service 

 
Commercial air service has been provided at different times during the history of the 
operation of the airport. Commercial passenger air services were last provided by Seaport 
Airlines, which received government subsidies to provide that service. Seaport offered 
twice daily flights from PDX to Newport and Astoria. Once the subsidies expired, the 
service was discontinued approximately six months later. There has been no commercial 
air service to Newport since Seaport discontinued service. Currently, the only coastal 
community receiving commercial passenger service is North Bend.  
 
The Task Force discussed a number of factors that may affect the success of commercial 
passenger service. The destination golf resorts south of Coos Bay, for example, bring a 
substantial number of passengers to that airport. In addition, the challenges of traveling to 
one of the major hubs (i.e. Portland or San Francisco) is much greater for travelers to and 
from the Coos County area. Furthermore, Coos County has a population of 62,475 
compared to 46,446 for Lincoln County. Even in Lincoln County, the value of flying out of 
Newport may be different for someone in the central or south part of the county from that 
experienced by those in the north part of the county where driving time to Portland is 
reduced.  
 
With current security standards for passenger service flights, Newport would need to make 
significant investments to the terminal building in order to accommodate TSA requirements 
for passenger screening if passengers traveling from Newport wished to check their bags 
at Newport and pick them up at their ultimate destination after continuing on an 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 6

68

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

City 22

State 12

Special District (ORS 198) 11

Airport District (ORS 838) 1

Port of Portland (ORS 778) 3

Port District (ORS 777) 6

Park & Rec District (ORS 266) 1

County 7

County Department 7

County Service District (451) 0

Intergovernmental Agreement (ORS 190) 3

TOTAL NUMBER 55

PUBLIC AIRPORT BY GOVERNANCE TYPE

interconnecting flight. The alternative is for passengers to fly into PDX, collect their bags, 
and then check in through security at Portland to continue their flight. While this is not as 
seamless as clearing security at the originating airport, it is a way to accommodate air 
passenger travel without significantly increased overhead at the Newport airport.  
 
Finally, the impact of other transportation improvements needs to be considered in any 
analysis of the feasibility of commercial passenger service at the airport. Even 
improvements such as construction on U.S. 20, which will eliminate a number of the curves 
and reduce travel time by 10 or 15 minutes, PD\�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�D�SHUVRQ¶V�GHFLVLRQ�WR�
drive either to Portland or Eugene to catch a flight rather than one that would originate in 
Newport.  
 
Nevertheless, providing commercial passenger air service into Newport would clearly be a 
significant tool to continue support of the marine research community, commercial fishing, 
and tourism economies in Lincoln County. Task Force member John Lavrakas compiled a 
report including the components that should be included in any air service study completed 
for the airport. These findings are included in Attachment A.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
A.1 The City of Newport should conduct a study to determine the feasibility of 

implementing commercial passenger air service at the Newport Airport incorporating 
the guidelines as outlined in attachment A. Furthermore, a local steering committee 
should be established to work with the consultant selected to perform the feasibility 
study to assure that the findings are representative of the local community. The 
results of the study should be summarized and included in a package that could be 
used with any potential carriers. Priority: High   

 
B. Governance   

  
There are five distinct governance types operating airports in the State of Oregon. The 55 
major public airports in Oregon are operated as follows:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 7

69

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

40% of these airports are run by cities with the balance of the airports being operated by 
the state, counties, port districts, airport districts, a parks and recreation district. Three of 
the airports are operated through an intergovernmental agreement. Of these three airports, 
two have governmental entities extending over two states that operate the airport 
(Columbia River Gorge Airport and Border Coast Airport Authority) with one airport being 
operated jointly by the City of Prineville and Crook County.  
 
The Newport Municipal Airport is one of the 22 airports that are owned and operated by a 
city. In reviewing data for Oregon port districts, it should be noted that over a quarter of the 
port districts operate airports.  
 
There are a number of issues to consider in an analysis of modifying the 
governance/ownership of the airport. One important factor is to look at who is serviced by 
the airport and compare that with who is financially supporting the airport. There are 
obvious advantages from a financial standpoint if the airport is supported by a larger 
constituency (city versus county as an example). Furthermore, there could be advantages 
to some type of intergovernmental agreement that divides the governance of the airport 
among several governmental entities. 
 
Finally, there could be some advantages in conducting a more detailed comparison of the 
airport with other airports having a similar impact in the state. Data from the 2014 Oregon 
Airport Aviation Plan Economic Contribution to the Oregon Economy by Airports, reveals 
that other airports that have a similar impact on the local economies of the regions they 
serve include Hermiston (city), Columbia Gorge (IGA), Tillamook Bay (port), Ashland (city), 
and Grants Pass (county). A more detailed review of these facilities may shed additional 
OLJKW�RQ�RSHUDWLRQ�ILQDQFLDO�DQG�JRYHUQDQFH�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�1HZSRUW¶V�airport.  
 
The Task Force also discussed whether there would be any benefit to operating the airport 
in conjunction with Siletz Bay, Toledo, and Wakonda Beach State Airports. This issue was 
discussed with the Oregon Department of Aviation Director, Mitch Swecker. Director 
Swecker indicated that the state would be willing to discuss some sort of arrangement that 
made sense for the state.  
 
Kevin Greenwood concluded that a specific governance type does not necessarily 
guarantee a successful airport operation. The issue of governance ± or reorganization ± 
ERLOV�GRZQ�WR�WKH�SXEOLF¶V�GHVLUH�WR�VXEVLGL]H�DQ�RSHUDWLRQ��:LWK�DQ�LQFUHDVHG�WD[�EDVH��D�
reorganization could result in new public tax revenue for capital investments (i.e. extending 
municipal utility service, new hangars, or leasable buildings) to cover operations or some 
mixture of both. The successful public airports in Oregon enjoy unique relationships either 
with private industrial parks or residential development nearby, centralized locations, a pre-
arranged public partnership or adequate facilities for recruiting tenants. Some of those 
characteristics can be replicated in Newport; others will be more difficult. Consolidation of 
airport facilities may result in decreased operational costs that could make a regional 
special district, or county service district, an option. The question will be whether the public 
sees value in a publically operated airport and how a reorganization would result in 
increased benefits. Greenwood noted, significantly, that passing a struggling asset 
between local government units with similarly sized service boundaries will not significantly 
result in leaner operations or increased revenue. 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 8

70

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

 
For further information, see attachment B which is the report from Kevin Greenwood to the 
Task Force. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
B.1 The Task Force recommends that the City of Newport explore discussions with the 

State of Oregon to see if there are any mutual benefits of collaborating on the 
operation of all airports in Lincoln County. Priority: High  

B.2 The Task Force recommends that further analysis be conducted of other similar 
sized airports to evaluate governance and organization issues relating to the 
operations of those airports. Priority: Medium    

B.3 The Task Force recommends that specific goals be identified for the future of the 
airport and determine whether any changes in governance/ownership of the airport 
would help the airport achieve those goals. The Task Force further recommends 
that continuing discussions occur with the Port of Newport, Lincoln County, or other 
local entities to determine whether there is any interest in pursuing a change in the 
governance/ownership of the airport. Priority: Low  

 
C. Finance 

 
The City of Newport provides a subsidy to the airport for its operation. While this subsidy 
varies from year to year, the current subsidy is in excess of $300,000 which is the single 
largest source of income for airport operations. In addition to the city General Fund 
subsidy, the airport has projected fuel sales of up to $250,000. The airport also obtains 
revenue from rents and leases of approximately $52,000, and receives revenue from the 
sewer fund for disposal of sludge of approximately $30,000. On the expense side, 
personnel costs account for approximately 33% of operational costs. Fuel for resale equals 
approximately 23% of the expenses. The city Budget Committee has established a goal of 
reducing the subsidy from the General Fund and Room Tax Fund for airport operations 
over the next three to five-year period. In order to accomplish this reduction, it is important 
for the city to review increasing revenue opportunities as well as reducing expenditures.  
 
Recommendations: 
  
C.1 The Task Force recommends conducting a review and evaluation of similar sized 

airports to benchmark the revenues and expenses generated and incurred from the 
operation of the Newport Municipal Airport. Priority: High      

C.2 The Task Force recommends reviewing opportunities to generate additional 
revenues by increasing the customer base at the airport. Priority: High 

C.3 The Task Force recommends continuing the pursuit of a private entity to provide all 
or portions of the operations and FBO services. Priority: High     

C.4 The Task Force recommends reviewing all the fees to determine whether they are 
fair and adequate to cover expenses without having an adverse impact on 
consumers purchasing/using those services. Priority: Medium     

C.5 The Task Force recommends placing discussion on changes to the FAA Part 139 
FHUWLILFDWLRQ� LQ� ³KROG´� VWDWXV until the Master Plan evaluation of this issue is 
completed. Priority: Medium 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 9

71

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

C.6 The Task Force recommends reviewing staffing levels to determine whether there 
are opportunities for savings relating to the operation of the airport. Priority: Low    

 
D. Marketing 

                                     
The Task Force reviewed opportunities to provide a better marketing of the airport. 
Certainly one of the benefits that resulted from convening the Task Force is that individuals 
in leadership positions throughout Lincoln County have gained a better understanding and 
awareness of the significant transportation infrastructure that is located in the heart of 
Lincoln County. The initial meeting of the Task Force illustrated a profound lack of 
understanding about various issues relating to the operation, ownership, and assets of the 
airport.   One member acknowledged that he had not even been aware that Newport had 
an airport! 
 
The airport has been subject to a number of controversies which dominated the public 
dialogue relating to these critical operations located in the city. With a number of recent 
initiatives, the City Council has been able to focus discussion on how the airport can best 
serve the citizens of Newport as well as the central Oregon coast.  
 
Hand in hand with marketing the airport is the necessity to have user-friendly services 
available at the airport. It is important to utilize any available resources including websites, 
social media, and other forums to share what services are available there. Local hotels and 
other businesses could take opportunities to create packages for airport users. The city 
might want to consider renaming the airport to focus on its role as a regional airport versus 
a purely Newport Municipal facility.  
 
One of the limiting factors at the airport is weather. Perhaps a formal relationship with the 
Toledo Airport could be explored; transportation or other services might be offered there for 
folks that are unable to fly into Newport as a result of weather conditions. There may be an 
advantage to the airport in contracting with a person or team to generate marketing 
information and to promote the use of the airport. There are also potential opportunities to 
provide additional business at the airport if properties around the airport could be 
developed for commercial, industrial, or even residential uses tied to the use of the airport. 
For additional details see the report submitted by Lorna Davis in attachment D. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
D.1 The Task Force recommends exploring the possibility of contracting with a 

person/firm, or assigning this task to the Destination Newport Committee, to develop 
professional marketing information regarding the Newport Municipal Airport. Priority: 
High  

D.2 The Task Force recommends that once there is a clear understanding of what land, 
facilities, and amenities could be made available to prospective tenants as a result 
of the airport master planning process, that marketing information should be 
developed to promote the use of land and facilities by the appropriate developers 
utilizing the airport to enhance economic development in Lincoln County. Priority: 
High  

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 10

72

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

D.3 The Task Force recommends identifying various air services (i.e. instrument 
training, aircraft sales, tourist/recreational opportunities such as flightseeing), and 
develop marketing materials in order to attract services at the airport. Priority: High   

D.4 The Task Force recommends reviewing the user friendly services that are available 
at the airport and where those services are not in existence, explore implementing 
those new services. Priority: High   

D.5 The Task Force recommends exploring the possibility of renaming the airport to 
capture its role as a regional facility, or developing a plan to offer sponsorship-type 
naming opportunities for the airport. Priority: Low     

D.6 The Task Force recommends developing an operational plan utilizing other airports 
as back-ups when weather challenges occur. Low 

 
E. Land Use Issues 

 
The Newport Municipal Airport occupies a large land area in the City of Newport south of 
the Yaquina Bay Bridge. A significant amount of land surrounding the airport is currently 
undeveloped. The topography surrounding the airport has numerous challenges including 
a series of deep canyons separating areas of relatively flat land. Water service is available 
on the west side of the airport. There is no sanitary sewer service available at this time.  
 
It is important that the airport master planning process take a close look at how airport 
boundaries are currently defined to determine whether boundaries should be adjusted in a 
way which does not have a negative impact on the airport but would promote development 
around the airport perimeter. Furthermore, it is important to look at the potential for long-
term development around the airport that may relate directly or indirectly to the airport 
operation. Once the airport plan is completed, it will require review and incorporation into 
WKH�FLW\¶V�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�3ODQ�� 
 
Significantly, the large parcels of property located to the south of the airport are zoned to 
accommodate a destination resort type facility. With the close proximity of the airport, a 
successful development of this property in the future could have a significant impact on 
traffic in and out of the airport.  
 
The airport master planning process and a follow-up to the work of the Regional Airport 
Review Task Force should include connecting the majority of city, county, and regional 
residents to a recognition of the catalyst that the airport could be for future economic or 
business development. This will be critical in order to ensure that the appropriate financial 
resources are available to develop the necessary infrastructure to maximize the economic 
potential of this facility to the central coast. The airport, city, and its partners need to 
explore abilities to enter into economic development ventures or partnerships to encourage 
the development potential in and around the airport. For additional information see 
attachment E submitted by Ralph Grutzmacher on behalf of the Task Force.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
E.1 The Task Force recommends providing sanitary sewer to the airport and completing 

the water distribution system. Priority: High 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 11

73

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

E.2 The Task Force recommends that the airport master planning process identify 
specifically what land, facilities, and amenities could be made available to 
prospective tenants on and adjacent to the airport. Priority: High 

E.3  The Task Force recommends the master planning process evaluate the current 
boundaries of the airport to determine whether there are any lands included in the 
airport boundaries that could be excluded from the airport property in order to make 
them available for future compatible economic development. Priority: High 

E.4 The Task Force recommends identifying the existing permitted land uses around the 
airport as part of the airport master plan. Priority: High 

E.5 The Task Force recommends identifying areas within the airport that would be 
available for long-term leases to allow the construction of commercial or industrial 
facilities for airport bases to support businesses at the airport as part of the master 
plan process. Priority: High 

E.6 The Task Force recommends development of economic development incentives for 
businesses desiring to locate at the airport. Priority: Medium 

E.7 The Task Force recommends promoting the awareness of the destination resort 
property located at the southern end of the airport to foster development of a project 
that could generate additional activity at the Newport Airport as well as providing 
additional jobs in the tourism/service sector in the Lincoln County economy. Priority: 
Medium 

E.8 The Task Force recommends continuing obtaining buildable fill materials as 
available. Priority: Medium 
 

F. Emergency Services 
 

The Newport Municipal Airport is the only full services general aviation airport on the 
Oregon coast located above the tsunami inundation zone. In the event of a natural 
disaster, the airport could play a critical role in meeting the emergency needs of individuals 
on the central coast. This will be essential since it is likely that in a Cascadia Subduction 
Zone event, ground travel may be impossible for a number of weeks. Furthermore, the 
airport has the opportunity to serve as an emergency staging area, storage area, and a 
central response area for the central coast. The U.S. Coast Guard already houses a 
rescue helicopter at the airport. This facility is operated as part of the North Bend Air 
Station. Significantly, both the North Bend Air Station and the Astoria Air Station are 
located in tsunami inundation zones.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
F.1 The Task Force recommends the city urge the U.S. Coast Guard to conduct an 

evaluation of the air facility hangar at the airport to determine its stability in the event 
of a major Cascadia event. Priority: Medium  

F.2 The Task Force recommends working with FEMA to establish an emergency supply 
depot facility. Priority: Medium 

F.3 The Task Force recommends that the master planning process fully evaluate the 
Newport Municipal Airport for its capabilities to respond to a regional emergency 
and to determine whether the existing facilities have the ability to withstand a 
seismic event. Priority: Low 

 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 12

74

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
The Regional Airport Review Task Force has completed a review of the role that the airport 
plays as a regional facility for Lincoln County and the central coast. The report and 
recommendations reflect the observations and findings of the Task Force developed over 
the past six months. The Task Force respectfully submits this report to the City Council, the 
Airport Committee, and the Planning Advisory Committee for the Airport Master Plan 
update for your information and consideration.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
The Regional Airport Review Task Force 

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 13

75

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



�

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 14

76

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 15

77

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

ATTACHMENT A

COMMERCIAL AIR SERVICE



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 16

78

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Steps to implement Commercial Passenger Air Service Study for ONP
ONP Task Force

Contact: John Lavrakas

The City of Newport desires to learn what it will take to bring commercial passenger
service to its airport (ONP). This document describes the elements that a commercial
passenger air service study will contain, providing a way forward. It does not describe an
implementation plan, but rather a plan to collect and analyze data and make
recommendations. An implementation plan would come later to carry out the
recommendations.

Observation: for this study to result in effective and actionable recommendations, it needs
to be lead by someone who understands what is needed, and will ensure each phase of the
work is done effectively, productively, and efficiently. Without this leadership, the city risks
completing a study that is of little value.

Outline:
• Background Define Team
• Identify Current Needs
• Past Experience
• Similar Experience
• Other Investigations
• Analyze the data
• Propose recommendations

Background - explain the value of commercial air service to the central coast and what
steps have been taken to date, including previous commercial air services (such as SeaPort)
and the work of the Task Force.

Define Team
• Define team to collect the data and conduct the study. Combination of city personnel

and volunteers. Tasks include personal contacts, creation and implementation of
surveys, collating and analyzing data, and preparing reports. A strong leader needed
who understands the purpose of this task, ensures the data collection and analysis
are effectively and efficiently done, and will ensure the study results in a set of
reasoned and appropriate recommendations.

• Assemble a steering committee of people representing the local community who are
committed to the success of this task to oversee the work that is done. Such
oversight can include guiding tasks to be performed, assessing the thoroughness of
the work performed, and ensuring objectives are being met.

Identify Current needs
• Identify the driving needs (those that are at the top of the list that make the

decisions as to whether to drive to Eugene, to PDX, to use one's car, to take a train,
or to not travel



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 17

79

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

• Meet with key players in the region
o Talk to major players in the central Coast who could use passenger air

service. What is their need for air service, either as an organization or by
their people? Identify possible usage, such as the number of flights per month
from area airports (PDX, EUG), preferred days of week. Players might include
NOAA, Hatfield Marine Science Center, Samaritan Hospital and Education
Center, Salishan, Chinook Winds, OSU, Community College, etc.). Pay
attention to the expansion of OSU to include up to 500 undergraduate
students

o Examine key sectors, including marine science, commercial fishing, tourism,
health care, retirement, and any other deemed significant in size and scope

o Examine reasons for travel, such as attending conferences, going golfing,
o Survey the public as well
o Consider travel in both directions. Why outsiders would fly here and why

residents would fly to other destinations.
o Identify current usage of air service by these players
o Survey critical services (must haves) and beneficial services (desire to have),

group into categories, and score each service across the users being
interviewed

o Find out the value of regular flights vs infrequent flights. Perhaps there could
be twice weekly, or MonfWed.fSaturday flights?

o Survey which airports are used, and why the selections are made
o Explore the importance of distance, time spent, how the travel costs are

funded, what price is being paid for typical flights, how much money is spent
for driving to airports and parking (actual costs).

o Develop accurate enplanement estimates to provide to prospective
providers.

o Talk with other airports to explore the value of connecting ONP with their
airports

• When talking with major players in the region, plan on multiple contacts. First to
gather data, next to follow up to confirm results and get feedback, finally to confirm
approaches. Look at this phase as one in building relationships that will be needed
later when implementation begins.

Past Experience - examine data from past experience with airline service
• Examine city records, ONP records, News-Times Articles
• Gather up any records of value from prior air service (number of enplanements,

flights per month, marketing efforts) and examine them for useful information.
• Retrieve accurate enplanement estimates to provide to prospective providers.

Similar Experience - talk with other airports similar in size and circumstance
• Identify other small airports (3-5) offering commercial passenger service and find

out who their customer base is, what distinguishing features they provide with their
air service, and their profitability

• Identify and contact operators who are currently providing this type of service.



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 18

80

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Other investigations
• Contact flight training companies that might have an interest in co-pilot training in

conjunction with a scheduled operator.
• Contact airlines that would consider a regional Central Oregon Coast market. The

suggestions at the last meeting to link ONP to hubs other than Portland appears to
be a promising idea. Perhaps linking up with Coos BayfNorth Bend, Eugene, San
Francisco, or Corvallis airports.

• Water and sewer needs to be available to the FBO and to the south end of the airport
where an industrial park is waiting to blossom.

Analyze the Data.
• Examine the data from various perspectives, including over time, over multiple

airports, over multiple sectors.
• Create various graphic representations of the data, including word clouds, pie

charts, bubble charts, geographic maps. Anything it takes to let people have rapid
and quick understanding of the data.

Propose recommendations
• Craft a marketing strategy (three or four key elements or thrusts, fewer is not

enough, more is too many to take in) and have it reviewed by regional experts from
a variety of sectors (business, recreation, personal travelers) and listen to their
comments.

o Investigate local businesses to partner, or provide integrated package deals.
o Document the strategy in a Marketing Plan to be given to the Marketing team

to implement
• Craft a strategy to entice air service providers

o Provide clear answers to key questions
• What is the return on investment?
• What risks are there and what is being done to mitigate them?
• What support can we expect from the city and the community?

o Consider a contracted private FBO which includes the hangers. Evaluate the
rental rates on the hangers and raise the rent amounts in accordance with
the going rate with airports similar to ONP's size.

o Develop a comprehensive package of what ONP will make available to a
provider. Then advertise the opportunity.

o Search for investors interested in this type of endeavor.
o Research potential freight opportunities that could be linked to passenger

service.
o Create a package of relevant data that can be used by commercial air service

providers in evaluating ONP as an airport they would service
o Creation of a marketing kit for prospective commercial air service providers.



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 19

81

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Deliverables
• ONP Marketing Kit - to be given to prospective commercial air service providers 

describes the features and benefits of operating commercial air service out of
Newport. Includes market description (types of flyers, key organizations with
contact information), key statistics (expected enplanements, preferred days of
week), flight and FBO services provided at ONP, and other relevant data necessary
to determine suitability of ONP as an airport for their service.

• ONP Marketing Plan - to be used by ONP marketing team - identifies key goals and
objectives, actions required to fulfill the goals and objectives with assignees,
prioritization and notional timeline of carrying out the actions.



�

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 20

82

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 21

83

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

ATTACHMENT B

GOVERNANCE



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 22

84

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

REGIONAL AIRPORT REVIEW TASK FORCE

DATE: January 15, 2016

FROM: Kevin Greenwood, Task Force Member

TO: Ralph Busby, Task Force Chair

REGARDING: Governance and Ownership of Public Airports in Oreaon

A. Governance and ownership of the airport. Identify various ways airports of this size are owned and
operated, and which ones run profitably.

GOVERNANCE

PUBLIC AIRPORT BY GOVERNANCE TYPE
City 22
State 12
Special District (ORS 198) 11

Airport District (ORS 838) 1
Port of Portland (ORS 778) 3
Port District (ORS 777) 6
Park & Rec District (ORS 266) 1

I compiled a spreadsheet of 55 public airports using
resources found through the Oregon Aeronautics
Division and Wikipedia. Spreadsheet includes the
following statistics for all 55 airports: FAA Code and
name of facility, the facility's role within the state
inventory, and 2013 commercial boardings. Jobs,
payroll and business output were pUlled from a 2014
OAD report. Governance was obtained from the
websites and/or phone interviews.

There are five distinct governance types operating
airports in Oregon: cities, state, special districts, multi
governmental units utilizing intergovernmental
agreements (IGAs) and counties.

County
County Department
County Service District (451)

Intergovemmental Agreement (ORS 190)
TOTAL NUMBER

7
o

7

3
55

The county airports are all departments of the county government. The Lake, Union, Grant, Jackson and
Josephine airports are budgeted separately using enterprise funds. Grant and Morrow Counties track airport
activity using special revenue funds. Oregon counties also have the ability to operate and fund airports using ORS
451.010(1 )(h), public transportation service districts, similar to county bus agencies. The county commissions
normally preside over special service district units, but variations do exist. There are no airports in Oregon
operating through county service district statutes.

Three airports operate via ORS 190 intergovernmental arrangements. Brookings Airport is run by the Border
Coast Airport Authority, a unique IGA that includes the City of Brookings, Ore., City of Crescent City, Calif., Del
Norte (Calif.) County and the Elk Valley Native American Nation. The Columbia River Gorge Airport is operated
through an IGA between the City of the Dalles, Ore. And Klickitat, County, Wash. Operations are centered in
Dallesport, Wash. The Prineville Airport is operated jointly by the City of Prineville and Crook County.

It should be noted that there are numerous state facilities not included in this analysis. (ie. Wakonda, Nehalem
Bay State Park, Toledo)

Based upon the 2014 Oregon Airport Aviation Plan Economic Contribution to the Oregon Economy by Airport,
The City of Newport Airport supports 160 jobs through direct employment and surveys of airport tenants (2014
OAP, Pg. 5). Airports supporting a similar number of jobs include 107 at Hermiston (City), 159 at Columbia Gorge



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 23

85

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

(IGA), 159 at Tillamook Bay (Port), 172 at Ashland (City) and 215 at Grants Pass (County). Other airports that
could be considered based upon payroll and business output would be Corvallis (City) and Independence (State).

FINANCES

Researching budget and financial data was limited to the following airports: Hermiston, Columbia Gorge,
Tillamook Bay, Ashland, Grants Pass, Corvallis and Independence. I focused on the operational activities
(personal service, materials and service, debt service and contingency) when assessing financial viability.
Enterprise Funds are assumed to be self-supporting activities based upon operational income and generally do
not rely on property taxes for operations. Special Revenue Funds have a specific revenue source earmarked for
activities. The possible revenue sources for special revenue funds are wide ranging and could include specific
fees or charges, revenue sharing from the state or operational levy income. General Fund activities are generally
considered governmental services and may be reliant upon some subsidy from standing property tax.

Ashland Airport (Citv). The City of Ashland, which utilizes biennial budgeting, records airport financial reporting
through a Special Revenue Fund. The 2015-17 bUdget shows service fees estimated at $276,000 with "other
financing sources" of $270,000. Operating expenses (Materials & Service, Debt Service, and Contingency) total
$551,000. It doesn't appear that any transfers or property taxes are directed to this fund. This appears to be a
break-even venture, though further inquiry should be made into the origination of the other financing sources.
http://www.ashland.or.us/Files/FINAL%20WEB%20BUDGET%2012-18-15.pdf

Hermiston Airport (City). The City of Hermiston operates the airport as a department within the General Fund. For
2015-16, operational income is budgeted at $210,000 and operational expenses is budgeted at $209,640. Pretty
much break even. Historically, however, the airport has been able to place $20,000-80,000 of positive net
operating income into a future capital reserve fund. This appears to be a more than break even operation.
http://www.hermiston.or.us/sites/hermiston.or.us/files/File/FinanceDepartmentl1516-adopted-budget.pdf

Columbia Gorge Airport OGA). The airport is owned jointly by the City of The Dalles, Oregon, and Klickitat
County, Washington. The City is the prime operator of the Airport via a management contract with Aeronautic
Management and Gorge Aviation, two separate entities owned and operated by the same two partners. They
also have an Airport Board made up of City and County members. The City Manager oversees the contract
Airport Managers. All the Airport assets are owned 50% by the City and 50% by the County. They do consider
the airport to be successful and future plans look very promising. http://www.columbiagorgeairport.com/

Tillamook Bay Airport (Port). The Port of Tillamook Bay (ORS 777) operates their airport as a department of the
General Fund. For fiscal year 2014-15, POTB showed $307,700 in operating revenue and $422,593 in operating
expense (personal services, materials and service, and debt service). This shows a negative net income of
$115,000. Other departmental activity, property tax and/or fund balances make up the operating deficit.
http://www.potb.org/documents/Draft Budget 2014-2015.pdf

Grants Pass Airport (County). Josephine County operates two airports (Grants Pass and Illinois Valley) an
enterprise fund to track activity. The 2015-16 budget shows program revenue of $634,000 and operational
expenses of $699,000 for the Grants Pass Airport. The beginning fund balance is $150,000 and a budgeted
contingency of $100,000 in the fund that could apply to either airport.
http://www.co.josephine.or.us/SIB/files/Finance/I-Enterprise%20Funds%20Budget%202015-16.pdf

Corvallis Airport (City). The City of Corvallis uses an Enterprise Fund to account for airport activities. For FY14
15, operational revenue is budgeted at $500,000 and operational expense is set for $459,000. Positive net
income is transferred into a capital fund for future projects. This is a healthy fund and has cash reserves of over
$620,000.
http://archive.corvallisoregon.gov/0/doc/660859/Electronic.aspx

2 / Airport Governance and Ownership



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 24

86

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Independence Airport (State). 60-acre facility. Matt Maas, airport manager, says that they generate about
$100,000 off "through the fence arrangements" with abutting private homeowners who utilize an easement directly
onto the airport. Maas says that arrangement helps make Independence a profitable airport for the state.

RESOURCES

2014 Oregon Aviation Economic Update
http://www.oregon.gov/aviation/docs/system plan/2014 Oregon Aviation Economic Update Executive Summa

~

2014 Aurora State Airport Report
http://www.oregon.gov/aviation/docs/system plan/Airport Reports 2014/Aurora State Airport.pdf

Committee Member Input
Mayor Sandy Roumagoux
Ideas for governance and ownership of the airport: Because I am floundering in waters ( really floundering
instead of metaphorically on this stormy day) where I know not what I speak, I will just write what I have thought
about. I do see the Port of Newport involved in the ONP. The large amount of acreage available especially at the
south end of the airport is where an industrial park could flourish which could help increase the Port's available
space. Of course, the catch is that water and sewer infrastructure needs to be available. Also, there would be
room to accept the Port's dredgings.

Chair Ralph Busby
1. What are the goals to be accomplished by redesigning the ownership/governance?
2. Perform a cost comparison study of a variety of governance options utilizing existing public entities and/or

creating a new one.
3. Look at the effect of combining various existing Lincoln County entities.
4. What would be the benefit of also assuming responsibility for the three state owned airports?
5. What benefits would a combination/restructure of existing organizations provide to other entities beside ONP

(Ports, cities, etc.)
6. Identify new revenue sources that could be available with a different governance model
7. What is optimum regional base (County wide or?).
8. What additional leverages could be brought to bear with a regional organization?
9. What governance model best reflects the public's needs in a local airport/port organization?
10. Prepare and execute a survey of 20 or so airports in the NW that are comparable, obtaining ownership,

management, lease policies, profitability, unique characteristics, marketing strategies, etc.

Statewide Input. I contacted the six port managers in Oregon and asked for their qualitative input about the
"profitability" of their airport and airports generally. Following are brief summaries of their comments. (No
response from the Ports of Gold Beach and Astoria.)

Gary Neal, Port of Morrow: Our facility has never had much other than a paved runway and rules from FAA that
tend to not promote aviation activity. The Port's Airport has never had an FBO or any type of support facilities.
FAA funds have not been allowed to be used to further usage, they require us to deal with safety only and the
things that might enhance activity are not allowed to be on the list for their funds. We have made a conscious
decision over the years to not self-fund the type of activities that might increase aviation activity. Maybe someday
we will, but so far we have made investment in other activities. There are general aviation options in the area, 30
minutes away, so we have deferred the general use to that facility which is the City of Hermiston's airport. If you
are looking at some successful operations that I think from the outside seem successful, I would contact Port of
Benton in Richland Washington. They have to very active Airports, one in Richland and one in Prosser. As you
know Mike McElwee has the Hood River Airport, Baker City has a municipal airport that is relatively bUSY,
Pendleton's airport struggles and has always been a challenge. Port of Walla Walla has an active airport that
seems to be working OK.

3 / Airport Governance and Ownership



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 25

87

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Michele Bradley, Port of Tillamook Bay: Our operations have been mildly successful. We always end up in the
black, but not by very much - about $20,OOO/year at the most. Some years it is $5,000. All airport income has to
be kept in the airport, so it's a constant struggle not to use it in other areas. We only have an airport office, self
service fuel (both AV gas and 100 LL), and about 35 T-hangars that we lease out, which are almost always full. It
pretty much manages itself. We do not have a manned tower, so we get to steer clear of additional oversight by
the FAA.

Paula Miranda, Port of St. Helens. Although we try to keep some general tally on our personnel cost on each of
our properties/industrial parks, we don't maintain a direct personnel cost inventory that I am aware of. Our HR
costs just come out of our general funds, which we use to manage all of our properties. We don't keep any full
time employee at the airport. Our maintenance personnel work in all of our properties as needed and our airport
manager also wears the hat of property and operations manager.

Michael McElwee, Port of Hood River. We've intended to take a good look at the Airport from a more rigorous
financial standpoint for over two years. Just haven't gotten to it. We need to better isolate R&E for the Airport
and then drive back through maintenance/management expectations to address T-Hangar lease rates to achieve
break-even on operations. Just haven't done that yet. Our Airport operates at a small loss, bigger depending on
capital spending. We get $150,000 /yr. from the FAA but it requires a 10% match.

.:###-

4 / Airport Governance and Ownership



�

Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 26

88

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 27

89

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

ATTACHMENT C

FINANCE



R
e
p
o
rt o

f th
e

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l A

irp
o
rt R

e
v
ie

w
 T

a
s
k
 F

o
rc

e
2
8

90

C
ity C

ouncil P
acket for M

arch 7, 2016

400,000

ONP FY16 Budgeted Revenue & Expenses
(Excludes Capital Projects and Purchases)

~.-- /
,,~lII!~ ---c
<:~d

350,000

'I.e~~
.ll'

. /,~o?eee,
I.C e~

29% 3% 8% 8% 1% 3% 3%

~~...
"~~o

~~~
"e.,o\:>

o
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 0 0
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 0 0 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
;;' (' (\> ij', ~ ~ ~ 'b ~ "90 ~ ~ ~ ~~ ~ -r; ~~.

'{.l ~ ¢' ~ ~ ~ ~ ~. 2 -:? ~ 1- ~ <3- g,. <3- '£ ~
~ ~ e;:, .,Ko ... ~ 0 - ..,. (\) ~ - N> ... -0 '2. (\)

11' ~ ~ 0 ~ ~ c. ~. 1-: 7- 'fo <3- '" ",' 1-
11' ':?> c. ~ ~ '?-- 01- ~ G' i>;.. cz. ~ ~
~ ~~. ~ ~ L- iJ' -0 ~ (\) "0-

~ 0 L.. ~ ~ c. ~ ~
~ ';.; 1<0 :{; ~ <3- ~ 6-
~ ~ 11' (\) '(i1 ~ 2-
- , '? 11' :{; G'
G' ~ ~ ¢' ~
~ ::..; 11' (0(\ •
~ Q ~

e;:, ~ ~
'? ~ ~

<a:;

Revenue $760,052 Expenses $760,052

50,000

250,000

300,000

200,000

150,000

100,000



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 29

91

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

ATTACHMENT D

MARKETING



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 30

92

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

D. Marketing the use of the airport. Identify the types of value-added services the airport can
provide, determine which have the greatest cost-benefit, and develop an initial set of marketing
approaches for those which are likeliest to bear fruit.
Contact: Lorna Davis

Here are some of the suggestions that were offered regarding this topic

1. Need to identify specifically what land, facilities and amenities could be made available
to prospective tenants. This could come out of the master planning process.

2. Emergency services hub, and "side" services that could be attached.
3. Transportation hub, combined ground/air facility.
4. Group tour origination point.
5. Flight training; particularly instrument saturation training. Few airports have the

amount of actual instrument weather conditions, coupled with the available instrument
approach procedures and light traffic.

6. Aviation component manufacturing.
7. Agricultural use of airport property.
8. Establish a marketing person/team, (paid?).
9. Aircraft sales (advantages of Oregon tax laws)
10. Federal Gov't. opportunities: DOD, NOAA, etc.
11. Work with the State/County/City to create a tax incentive package.
12. Identify developers interested in facilities development on the airport.
13. Redmond, Bend, and Aurora all have aviation manufacturing businesses on their

airports. What do they offer that makes them attractive to these companies?
14. Have local hotels and other businesses create packages that could linked to an airline.
15. Rekindled the destination resort plans and the role of the airport within.
16. Museum? We almost got Erickson, there may be other opportunities.
17. Nature trails around the perimeter.
18. Infrastructure in place for development (water and sewer)
19. Have regular scheduled air service that connects to Portland, Eugene, Coos Bay, San

Francisco, Vegas.
20. Rename airport Central Coast Regional Airport or something similar.
21. Build more hangars and market to the Bay area or other areas for rental space.
22. Work with Toledo airport if weather related challenges occur.

Here is some insights I came to when doing some research on other regional airports.

A. Airport should have user friendly services available, ground transportation, Wi-Fi access,
meeting space, business center, Coffee/Hot Water/Cups (waiting area) Wall mounted screen or
large area to hand large maps or other documents, conference table and chairs.

B. Food service
C. Baggage assistance
D. Have a website developed that is inclusive of Airport information and opportunities. There are

too many to name here but Redmond Oregon is a great example:
http://www.flyrdm.comI?Terminal-lnformation



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 31

93

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

E. Contract with or hire someone to assist in marketing rental space, services and other amenities
in trade publications, online, via social media and other industry channels.



�

94

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 29

95

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

ATTACHMENT E

LAND USE ISSUES



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 30

96

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

TASK

Newport Airport Land Use Issues

Identify land use and economic opportunities for airport property

Thank you to each person who contributed observations and suggestions regarding the
non-traditional uses for land at the airport complex. Since several comments contained
similar observations or ideas for use of the land, I have consolidated them for ease of
consideration. There are opportunities as well as barriers to expanding revenue
producing activities at the airport that are laid out without compromise.

OPPORTUNITIES.

Be prepared to say 'Yes" to those who bring proposals for airport uses to the City.

Provide economic development incentives for businesses desiring to locate at the
airport.

Explore the availability for Oregon funding of infrastructure (water/sewer/streets/storm
drainage)required to accommodate construction of leased and owned building$.

Master Planning processes should identify the existing permitted land uses around the
airport.

Provide for agricultural uses by one or more farmers/ranchers.

Provide for storage of fishing gear (gear shed.)

Provide for storage of recreational vehicles.

Provide for active recreation (tracks and courses) and parks.

Provide for long-term leases to allow for the construction of commercial or industrial
facilities (UPS/FedExlAmazon/Google) that use air shipment of goods or delivery
services.

Provide lease space for use by airport based support business (airframe paint
shop/aircraft refurbishing/aircraft supply retailers and wholesalers/aircraft maintenance)
that do not have walk-in customer traffic.

Improve the existing airport structures and civil engineering facilities to present a well
maintained appearance.

Promote the airport's geographic features (high, dry, stable, cool) to attract pilots and
businesses to use and locate at the airport.



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 31

97

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

BARRIERS

Water and sewer services are not available to support uses throughout the property.

Airport Master Planning and Newport Master Planning processes need to be completed
before additional permitted or conditional use activities can take place.

Lack of significant joint venture or partnership business experience by the City for
economic development projects.

Low levels of connection by majority of City, County and regional residents with the
economic or business success of airport.



�

98

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Report of the Regional Airport Review Task Force 32

99 City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

B-II B-II B-II

DO-J2B SAME DO-J2B SAME

J001' K 75' JODI' K 75' 5J9B' X ISO' 5J9B' X ISO'

ASPHALT ASPHALT ASPHALT

PAVEMENT DESIGN STRENGTH JJ,OODSWL JJ,OOOSWL 75,OOOSWL 75,OOOSWL

RUNWAY UG,'lTING HIRL HIRL MIRL MIRL

RUNWAY MARKING BASIC BASIC PRECISION PRECISION

EFFECTIVE GRADIENT (X) 1.0" 1.0" .4B%

VISUAL APPROACH AIDS VAS/,MALSR RElLS,PAPI

ILS!VORTAC

150' ISO' JOO' JOO'
JOO' JOO' 600' 600'

W 500' 500' BOO' 800'
L JOO' JOO' 600' 600'

W 400' 400' 400' 400'
L 200' 200' 200' 200'

RUNWAY END COORDINATES N 49' J4' 40" N 49' J5' 16" N 49' J5' 25" N 49' J4' 06"
NAD BJ W 124' OJ' 27" W 124' OJ' 10" W 124' OJ' 26" W 124' OJ' 24"

APPROACH VIS. MINIMUMS M/Tl MITl M/Tl MITL

FAR PART 77 APPROACH VISUAL PRECISION NON-PRECISION
SLOPES

FAR PART 77 20:1 20:1 50:1 J4:1

ACTUAL J9:1 UNKNOWN 0:1 50:1

THRESHOLD DISPLACEMENT NONE NONE NONE JOO'

THRESHOLD RELDCATION 1700' 400' NONE NONE

~~
TORA 2980' 2980' 5100' 5400'

TOOA 29BO' 29BO' 5400' 5400'

~~ ASOA 29BO' 2980' 5100' 5400'

LOA 29BO' 29BO' 5100' 5100'

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF AVIATlON
NEWPORT MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

AIRPORT FACILITIES

NEIIPORT
EXHIBIT 1A

OREGON

SCALE: IPROJECT NO. IDRA WING FILE NAME:
I 1A SHEET

1"=800' 30295 J0295-NWP-EX1 A

160'
N 44' J4' 49"

W 124' OJ' 2J"

ILS;VORTAC;MALSR

AIRPORT ELEVATION (NAVD BB)
AIRPORT REFERENCE POINT (ARP)

TAXIWAY MARKINGS

NOTE:
1. EXTENSION OF RUNWAY SAFm AREA FOR

RUNWAY 34 DESIGN STANDARDS LIMITED
DUE TO TERRAIN.

BUILDINGS/FACILITIES

TERMINAL BUILDING CD
AUTO PARKING ®
TlEDOWNS 0
HANGARS 0
ROTATING BEACON ®
WIND SOCK ®
JU FUEl TANK 0
COAST GUARD ®
AlRCRAn RESCUE &< FIRE ®
FBO HANGAR ®
LARGE AlRCRAn PARKING AREA @
HANGAR DEVELOPMENT AREA @

P14.JlIUlnr.~.en.SUrTeTOT'II·lAnd4c4peArchitects

•

~~ S:OoBarnes Road

PorUll1ld, Oregon 97225

(003)626-0455
(Oo.)oza-on. Fox

wbpacllie.com

o

AIRPORT REFERENCE POINT EB

DESIGNED BY: CHECKED BY:~

DRAWN BY: ~ APPROVED BY:__

LAST EDIT: ~ PLOT DATE: ~

DA TE BY R~ REVISION CK'D APPR

"5,
~:r--------------------------------------------------- ....b=!~~===db~~=..!_=~~db~~=..!_=~~=~

~

~
JlllHllJ-III'-lMJ1



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.E. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16

 

Agenda Item: 
From the Airport Committee, Recommendation on the Airport Operations 
Request for Proposals (RFP)  
 
Background: 
For the past year the Airport Committee has had a number of discussion regarding the 
possibility of using a private contractor for the operation of the airport and the fixed base 
operations. In February 2015, the Airport Committee, with the consent of the City Council, 
had issued Expressions of Interest for the operation of the airport.  At that time, three firms 
submitted Expressions of Interest indicating interest in submitting a proposal for the 
operation of the Newport Municipal Airport. Based on this level of interest, the Airport 
Committee recommended, and the City Council concurred, that an RFP should be 
developed to give private operators the opportunity to bid on the operation of the airport. 
Beginning in the summer of 2015, the Airport Committee initiated review and revisions for 
a RFP for the operation of the Newport Municipal Airport. The proposals were structured 
with the operator keeping the revenues obtained from the operation of the airport and 
being responsible for the expenses of the airport. This put the risk/benefit onto the 
contractor who would be successful in receiving a contract to operate the airport. The RPF 
was issued with the response deadline of January 6, 2016. On January 6, the city received 
3 proposals for the operation of the airport from the following companies:  
 

1. ABS Aviation, submitter Michael A. Hodges, Tampa Florida   
2. Aviation Career Services, submitter Eric L. Mercado, Chicago Illinois 
3. Infinite Air Center, Tony Hann, Albany.     

 
The three proposal and the RFP can be found in the Airport Committee Agenda Packet 
for February 9, 2016.   
 
http://www.newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/onp/agendas/Feb_9_2016_agenda_and_
packet.pdf 
 
The bids received from ABS Aviation and Aviation Career Services departed substantially 
from the RFP, placing the risk/benefit of operating the airport back to the city. The proposal 
that most closely met the originally intent of the RFP was from Infinite Air Center.  
 
One of the stated objectives in the RFP was the reduction and or elimination of subsidy 
from the city’s general fund over a three to five-year period for airport operations. Attached 
is an evaluation of what the city’s revenues, expenditures and not expenditures would be 
with each of the three proposals received. Utilizing the 2015-16 budget as a base, the 
proposals submitted would cost the city more then what is projected in the 2015-16 budget 
with city operations. The increase in cost ranged from $62,448 to $240,769 over the cost 
of current city operations. 
 
The other objectives of the RFP were to maximize reinvestment in public infrastructure, 
expand the commercial use of the airport, continue to exercise quality customer service, 
and facilitate local economic development by positioning the airport in surrounding 
property to be ready for development. While the firms submitting the proposals would 

100

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~

http://www.newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/onp/agendas/Feb_9_2016_agenda_and_packet.pdf
http://www.newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/onp/agendas/Feb_9_2016_agenda_and_packet.pdf


bring a certain level of value to the airport and could increase services at the airport, it 
was the Airport Committee’s unanimous recommendation to the City Council that the 
three proposals be rejected. Furthermore, there was discussion from the Airport 
Committee that is was a very significant benefit to go through the RFP process to 
determine whether the airport could be operated much more economically through a 
contractor arrangement. Based on the proposals received, operating the airport with a 
private operator would not save the city money. The unanswered question is whether a 
private operator would be able to substantially increase activity at the airport. This remains 
an unknown.  
 
Since the time of my predecessor, the airport has been operated with temporary staffing 
and with a temporary structure. I would like to work with the Airport Committee to 
determine a more permanent administrative structure and staffing for the operation of the 
airport as a continued department of the City of Newport, based on our inability to find a 
cost effective contractual operation of the airport. Finally, I would like to express my 
appreciation to Lance Vanderbeck and John Matherly who have done an excellent job of 
keeping the airport going in a positive direction during the discussions of privatization. 
Throughout this time both of these people have been professional and matter of fact 
regarding the potential impact on their jobs should the city choose to go forward with a 
private contractor. As part of the 2016-17 budget it will be my intent to layout an 
administrative structure for the airport going forward.       

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to concurance with the Airport Committee recommendation to reject the three 
proposals for the operation of the airport and direct the City Manager to work with the 
Airport Committee to develop a permanent administrative structure for the operation 
of the Newport Municipal Airport.    
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by this action.  
 
Alternatives: 
As suggested by the City Council.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

101

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



ABS Aviation, Inc. Infinite

Aviation, Inc. Career Service Air Center

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget

Revenues

JET FUEL REVENUE 400,496$       339,782$       175,000 175,000$            -$                        -$                        

AVGAS REVENUE 73,340           50,123           75,000 75,000                -                          -                          

OIL 663                348                520 520                     -                          -                          

PILOT SUPPLIES 973                10,609           7,300 7,300                  -                          -                          

FOOD CATERING 1,383             544                500 500                     -                          -                          

TIE DOWN 137                122                100 100                     -                          -                          

SERVICE PROVIDED FOR SEWER FND 30,704           30,704           30,704 30,704                30,704                -                          

RENTS & LEASES 53,018           57,943           52,780 52,780                -                          -                          

CONCESSIONS 394                1,625             1,000 1,000                  -                          -                          

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 2,600             1,036             561 561                     -                          -                          

MISC. SALES & SERVICES 2,149             2,574             500 500                     -                          -                          0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUES 565,857         495,410         343,965         343,965              30,704                -                          0 0 0

Expenditures 0 0 0

WAGES & SALARIES 100,370$       77,425 116,195 -$                        -$                        -$                        

OVERTIME 11,869           14,169 8,000 -                          -                          -                          

ON-CALL 6,600             4,700 4,700 -                          -                          -                          

INSURANCE BENEFITS 29,469           14,711 37,867 -                          -                          -                          

FICA EXPENSES 9,014 8,028 9,860 -                          -                          -                          

RETIREMENT 20,995 14,356 12,257 -                          -                          -                          

WORKER'S COMPENSATION 2,748 2,852 3,179 -                          -                          -                          

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 1,365 1,498 773 -                          -                          -                          

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10,069 2,189 8,000 8,000                  8,000                  -                          

FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 15,485 10,525 10,000 2,000                  2,000                  -                          

LEGAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 11,857 5,692 2,000 2,000                  2,000                  -                          

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 33,717 39,545 28,000 -                          -                          -                          

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,925 1,840 2,000 2,000                  2,000                  -                          

UTILITIES - ELECTRIC 12,731 13,393 12,500 12,500                12,500                -                          

UTILITIES - WATER & SEWER 0 644 6,600 6,600                  6,600                  -                          

UTILITIES - OTHER 4,296 1,405 1,800 1,800                  1,800                  -                          

BUILDING & GROUNDS EXPENSES 46,621 23,172 34,000 34,000                34,000                -                          

PERMITS/LICENSES EXPENSES 2,405 4,222 3,800 3,800                  3,800                  -                          

OTHER PROPERTY SERVICES 517 0 600 600                     600                     -                          

CLEANING EXPENSES 6,858 5,102 5,000 5,000                  5,000                  -                          

VEHICLE EXPENSES 16,626 6,090 13,000 13,000                13,000                -                          

EQUIPMENT EXPENSES 11,444 39,960 31,000 31,000                31,000                -                          

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 5,615 5,120 5,000 5,000                  5,000                  -                          

INFRASTRUCTURE EXPENSE 0 0 10,000 10,000                10,000                10,000                

LEASE EXPENSES 1,127 497 1,000 1,000                  1,000                  -                          

RENTAL EXPENSES 3,146 3,488 4,500 4,500                  4,500                  -                          

INSURANCE PREMIUM & EXPENSES 17,063 18,383 20,733 20,733                20,733                20,733                

COMMUNICATIONS EXPENSES 5,182 4,079 4,200 4,200                  4,200                  -                          

ADVERTISING & MARKETING EXP 372 1,178 500 500                     500                     -                          

PRINTING & BINDING 279 188 500 500                     500                     -                          

TRAVEL & MEETING EXPENSES 430 3,255 3,500 -                          2,000                  -                          

CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

102

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



ABS Aviation, Inc. Infinite

Aviation, Inc. Career Service Air Center

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget

MEMBERSHIPS, DUES & FEES 305 600 560 -                          560                     -                          

TRAINING 8,619 3,752 4,310 -                          1,500                  -                          

PROGRAMS & PROGRAM SUPPLIES 0 55 100 -                          100                     -                          

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,031 7,594 8,800 880                     880                     -                          

OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,703 9,683 12,000 12,000                12,000                -                          

BOOKS/PERIODICALS/DVD & VIDEO 0 600 600 600                     600                     -                          

POSTAGE/SHIPPING EXPENSES 323 403 400 400                     400                     -                          

CONCESSIONS & CATERING 2,134 2,753 1,500 1,500                  1,500                  -                          

AMMUNITION & FIREARMS 48 1,514 1,300 1,300                  1,300                  -                          

CLOTHING & UNIFORMS 297 495 500 500                     500                     -                          

GENERAL EXPENSES 3,409 3,025 2,700 2,700                  2,700                  -                          

SAFETY & HEALTH EXPENSES 31 6 0 -                          -                          -                          

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 12,980 0 0 -                          -                          -                          

FUEL 9,601 6,103 6,500 6,500                  6,500                  -                          

JET FUEL EXPENSES 315,215 168,236 105,000 105,000              105,000              -                          

AV-GAS EXPENSES 44,510 102,108 70,000 70,000                70,000                -                          

SERV PROVIDED BY GENERAL FUND 53,552 54,679 66,281 66,281                66,281                66,281                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 848,953 689,312 681,615 436,394 440,554 97,014

PROPOSED FEE 450,000 * 68,057 ** 303,084

*  6 Month Adjustment for City's Personnel

**$313,261 less $381,318 equals $68,057

OPERATING SUBSIDY (283,096) (193,902) (337,650) (542,429) (477,907) (400,098)

1 - (Undetermined)

2 - (Undetermined)

3 - ACS represents a 5% reduction in certain lines (37,139)

4 - ABS overstated fee (120,000)

5 - Infinite Air FBO Improvements 15,000

NOTES:

1-

2-

3-

4-

5-

6- Infinite Air included a $40,000 cap on their expenses

ACS sites a reduction in budget expenses for various line items equal to $37,138.94 in fiscal year 2016-2017

ABS indicated on January 15, 2016 that their costs are overstated by a $10,000/month.  The actual monthly rate is $27,500, versus $37,500.  This was noted after the proposals 

were made public

Infinite Air proposes that the City make $15,000 improvements to the FBO

Services provided by General Fund would be reduced based on the level of work required by Finance, with the most significant reduction occurring with the Infinite Air Center 

proposal and Aviation Career Service (ACS) proposal to a lessor extent.  This would likely remain unchanged with ABS Aviation.

City insurance cost would be reduced to same degree with all three proposals

103

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



10
4

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

,
•

!pencer Nebel

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Michael A. Hodges <mhodges@absaviation.com>
Friday, February 26, 2016 6:24 PM
Spencer Nebel
Peggy Hawker; bthompson@absaviation.com; 'Randy Bisgard'
RE: Airport Committee
Newport Proforma Budget.xlsx

As mentioned in my prior e-mail, after some final adjustments to our proposed budget, we are
conservatively projecting a savings to the City of around $30,000 in Year one, increasing significantly on
an annual through our proposed contract term. The significance of our proposal is that it is built not only
on reduced operating expenses, but also on increasing revenues through attracting more activity, and
facilitating more sales from current and future customers. Moreover, it is significant to note that these
revenue projections exclude anticipated revenues from an airshow that we intend to bring to the
community, as well as our efforts to bring other aeronautical businesses to the Airport. Finally, once we
have the opportunity to further refine the budget after we learn more about the operation's historic
operating and management structure, I am sure that we can further reduce the City's annual subsidy.

I would sincerely appreciate your reconsideration of our proposal. We are confident that we can bring
the operational and financials successes to the Newport Municipal Airport that we have yielded at all of
our other management contracts.

Regards, Michael

Michael A. Hodges
President/CEO
ABS Aviation, Inc.
12950 Race Track Road, Suite 206
Tampa, Florida 33626-1307
Phone: (813) 855-3600
Fax: (813) 200-1014
Cell: (813) 317-3170
www.absaviation.com

----=tP':__

From: Spencer Nebel [mailto:S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov]
Sent: Friday, February 26, 2016 7:59 PM
To: 'thann@InfiniteAirCenter.com'; 'Eric L. Mercado'; 'Michael Hodges'
Cc: Peggy Hawker
Subject: Airport Committee

To: Tony, Eric and Michael:

1



10
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

i

The Airport Committee met today to review the proposals that were submitted for the operation of the airport. The
Airport Committee recommended on a 4-0 vote that the proposals be rejected since none of the proposals
demonstrated a savings in current airport costs. The Committee suggested that the City Council explore alternatives
other than contracting the operation of the airport. I appreciate your efforts in submitting proposals for this work.

Spencer R. Nebel
City Manager
City of Newport, Oregon 97365
541-574-0601
s.nebel@newportoregon.gov

2



CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ABS AVIATION, INC. PROJECTED OPERATING BUDGET

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Comments
Actual Actual Budget

REVENUES

JET FUEL REVENUE $400,496 $339,782 $175,000 $80,000 $92,000 $110,400 $132,480 $158,976 Revenues reflect gross profit
AVGAS REVENUE $73,340 $50,123 $75,000 $15,000 $16,500 $18,150 $19,965 $21,962 Revenues reflect gross profit
OIL $663 $348 $520 $800 $840 $882 $926 $972
PILOT SUPPLIES $973 $10,609 $7,300 $10,000 $10,500 $11,025 $11,576 $12,155
FOOD CATERING $1,383 $544 $500 $1,500 $1,575 $1,654 $1,736 $1,823
TIE DOWN $137 $122 $100 $1,000 $1,200 $1,440 $1,728 $2,074
SERVICE PROVIDED FOR SEWER FND $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 $30,704 Unknown revenue source remaining fixed through projection period
RENTS & LEASES $53,018 $57,943 $52,780 $60,000 $66,000 $72,600 $79,860 $87,846
CONCESSIONS $394 $1,625 $1,000 $1,800 $1,890 $1,985 $2,084 $2,188
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $2,600 $1,036 $561 $1,000 $1,050 $1,103 $1,158 $1,216 Increase at 5% per year
MISC. SALES & SERVICES $2,149 $2,574 $500 $2,500 $2,625 $2,756 $2,894 $3,039

TOTAL REVENUES $565,857 $495,410 $343,965 $204,304 $224,884 $252,698 $285,111 $322,954 Lower revenue than historic due to gross profit only on fuel

OPERATING EXPENSES

WAGES & SALARIES $100,370 $77,425 $116,195 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OVERTIME $11,869 $14,169 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ON-CALL $6,600 $4,700 $4,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INSURANCE BENEFITS $29,469 $14,711 $37,867 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FICA EXPENSES $9,014 $8,028 $9,860 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
RETIREMENT $20,995 $14,356 $12,257 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
WORKER'S COMPENSATION $2,748 $2,852 $3,179 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE $1,365 $1,498 $773 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $10,069 $2,189 $8,000 $2,500 $2,575 $2,652 $2,732 $2,814
FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE $15,485 $10,525 $10,000 $2,000 $2,060 $2,122 $2,185 $2,251
LEGAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $11,857 $5,692 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
EMPLOYMENT SERVICES $33,717 $39,545 $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $1,925 $1,840 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
UTILITIES - ELECTRIC $12,731 $13,393 $12,500 $12,500 $12,875 $13,261 $13,659 $14,069
UTILITIES - WATER & SEWER $0 $644 $6,600 $6,600 $6,798 $7,002 $7,212 $7,428
UTILITIES - OTHER $4,296 $1,405 $1,800 $1,800 $1,854 $1,910 $1,967 $2,026
BUILDING & GROUNDS EXPENSES $46,621 $23,172 $34,000 $24,000 $24,720 $25,462 $26,225 $27,012
PERMITS/LICENSES EXPENSES $2,405 $4,222 $3,800 $2,500 $2,575 $2,652 $2,732 $2,814
OTHER PROPERTY SERVICES $517 $0 $600 $600 $618 $637 $656 $675
CLEANING EXPENSES $6,858 $5,102 $5,000 $1,200 $1,236 $1,273 $1,311 $1,351
VEHICLE EXPENSES $16,626 $6,090 $13,000 $6,000 $6,180 $6,365 $6,556 $6,753
EQUIPMENT EXPENSES $11,444 $39,960 $31,000 $12,000 $12,360 $12,731 $13,113 $13,506
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS $5,615 $5,120 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
INFRASTRUCTURE EXPENSE $0 $0 $10,000 $1,000 $1,030 $1,061 $1,093 $1,126
LEASE EXPENSES $1,127 $497 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
RENTAL EXPENSES $3,146 $3,488 $4,500 $4,500 $4,635 $4,774 $4,917 $5,065
INSURANCE PREMIUM & EXPENSES $17,063 $18,383 $20,733 $10,000 $10,300 $10,609 $10,927 $11,255 Portion of insurance covered in management fee
COMMUNICATIONS EXPENSES $5,182 $4,079 $4,200 $4,000 $4,120 $4,244 $4,371 $4,502
ADVERTISING & MARKETING EXP $372 $1,178 $500 $2,000 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
PRINTING & BINDING $279 $188 $500 $500 $515 $530 $546 $563
TRAVEL & MEETING EXPENSES $430 $3,255 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MEMBERSHIPS, DUES & FEES $305 $600 $560 $500 $515 $530 $546 $563
TRAINING $8,619 $3,752 $4,310 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROGRAMS & PROGRAM SUPPLIES $0 $55 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES $1,031 $7,594 $8,800 $1,000 $1,030 $1,061 $1,093 $1,126
OFFICE SUPPLIES $6,703 $9,683 $12,000 $1,200 $1,236 $1,273 $1,311 $1,351
BOOKS/PERIODICALS/DVD & VIDEO $0 $600 $600 $600 $618 $637 $656 $675
POSTAGE/SHIPPING EXPENSES $323 $403 $400 $400 $412 $424 $437 $450
CONCESSIONS & CATERING $2,134 $2,753 $1,500 $1,500 $1,545 $1,591 $1,639 $1,688
AMMUNITION & FIREARMS $48 $1,514 $1,300 $1,300 $1,339 $1,379 $1,421 $1,463
CLOTHING & UNIFORMS $297 $495 $500 $500 $515 $530 $546 $563
GENERAL EXPENSES $3,409 $3,025 $2,700 $2,700 $2,781 $2,864 $2,950 $3,039
SAFETY & HEALTH EXPENSES $31 $6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT $12,980 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FUEL $9,601 $6,103 $6,500 $6,000 $6,180 $6,365 $6,556 $6,753
JET FUEL EXPENSES $315,215 $168,236 $105,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 No cost of sales due to revenues reflecting gross profit
AV-GAS EXPENSES $44,510 $102,108 $70,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 No cost of sales due to revenues reflecting gross profit
SERV PROVIDED BY GENERAL FUND $53,552 $54,679 $66,281 $60,000 $61,800 $63,654 $65,564 $67,531 Unknown expense increased at 3% per annum

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $848,953 $689,312 $681,615 $175,400 $179,922 $185,095 $190,422 $195,910

PROPOSED MANAGEMENT FEE $330,000 $339,900 $350,097 $360,600 $371,418

OPERATING SUBSIDY -$283,096 -$193,902 -$337,650 -$301,096 -$294,938 -$282,494 -$265,911 -$244,374

Projected

106

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.E. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
From Destination Newport Committee, Recommendation to Approve a 
Tourism Marketing Grant for Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race 
 
Background: 
Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race will take place on May 14, 2016. The Destination 
Newport Committee is recommending that the City Council approve the requested 
amount of $3,000 for the Newport Parks and Recreation Department to promote the 2016 
Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race. This will be the last year of eligibility for this 
event.  

Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move approval of a tourism marketing grant, submitted by the City of Newport 
Parks and Recreation Department, for assistance with marketing and advertising for 
the of the 2016 Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race, in the amount of $3,000. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
$25,000 is appropriated annual by the Council to bring visitors in from outside the 
Newport area for these types of event.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

107

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

       
       

   
 
             
   

 
 

 
Prepared by: _Cindy Breves_______________________________ 
 
Title: Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Coast Hills Classic 
Mountain Bike Race 
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve the tourism marketing grant fund application, submitted by the City of 
Newport Parks and Recreation, for assistance with marketing and advertising for the of 
the 2016 Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race, in the amount of $3,000. 
 
Background Information:    
For the third year, the City of Newport Parks and Recreation Department requested 
$3,000 to assist with marketing efforts and event promotion for the 2016 Coast Hills 
Classic Mountain Bike Race. The City of Newport Parks and Recreation Department 
partnered with Bike Newport anticipate this event will bring bike enthusiasts from all over 
the State to challenge their skills and endurance against the rugged coastal terrain. It is 
estimated that about 1000 visitors will be brought to the city many of which bring their 
families and stay for the weekend to partake in the city’s many attractions. The Destination 
Newport Committee discussed the request and is forwarding a positive recommendation. 
Should the Council approve this grant the Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race will not 
be eligibility to apply for a Tourism Marketing Grant again.  
 
Fiscal Notes: 
If approved, this funding would come from the $25,000 in Transit Room Tax monies that 
have been set aside for Tourism Marketing Grants. This will be the third and final year 
for this event.  
 
Alternatives: 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
Tourism Marketing Grant Fund Application submitted by the City of Newport Parks and 
Recreation Department 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

108

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



10
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

General Information:

Name of Applicant Organization: City of Newport Parks and Recreation Department

Mailing Address: _16_9_S_W_C_o_a_st_H_WY_o _

City, State, Zip: Newport, OR, 97365

Telephone: (541) 574-5453 Fax: _(5_4_1)_5_74_-_65_9_6 _

E-Mail Address: M.Cavanaugh@NewportOregon.gov

Principal Contact (If different from Applicant): _M_ic_h_a_e_1C_a_v_a_n_au_g_h _

Mailing Address (If different from Applicant): _

City, State, Zip: _

Telephone: Fax: _

E-Mail Address: _

Date(s) and Time(s) of Event: _Sa_t_ur_da_y_M_a_y_1_4_,2_0_1_6 _

Description of Event or Activity*: _
Mountain bike enthusiasts from all over the state will converge on Newport to challenge

their skill and endurance against the rugged coastal terrain. The course will be a steep 12 miles

of mud, dirt, gravel, and tree roots, that will provide a white knuckle ride for even the top riders.

Nature of Event or Activity:

Single Day Event May 14

Multi-night local lodging event days

Extended calendar event. days

Amount of Funding Requested: $ _30_0_0 _

Total Event/Activity Budget: $ _70_0_0 _

What specific marketing expenditures will the granted funds be used for?*
Statewide and Pacific Northwest targeted marketing efforts including:

Placing adds in mountain bike publications

Bike Show Fees and associated expenses

Mailing materials to bike shops across the Northwest

List event/activity supporters or partners*: _
Bike Newport will be our partner in all aspects of planning, developing and hosting this race.

The Newport News-Times has pledged in-kind sponsorship to help us make this

event a huge success.

·Use additional sheets as necessary. 2



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:7.E. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
From Destination Newport Committee, Recommendation to Approve a 
Tourism Marketing Grant for Oregon Coast Aquarium for the Oregon Coast 
Aquarium 5K 
 
Background: 
Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K will take place on April 23, 2016 at the Aquarium. The 
Destination Newport Committee is recommending that $3500 be awarded to Oregon 
Coast Aquarium to offset marketing cost to bring individuals in from outside the Newport 
area. This is the second year that this grant has been approved for this event which was 
formerly called Flippers, Feathers, and Fins 5K.    

Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move approval of the tourism marketing grant request, from the Oregon Coast 
Aquarium, for assistance with marketing and advertising for the of the 2016 Oregon 
Coast Aquarium 5K, in the amount of $3,500. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
$25,000 is appropriated annual by the Council to bring visitors in from outside the 
Newport area for these types of event.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

110

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

       
       

   
 
             
   
 
 
Prepared by: ____Cindy Breves_________________________________________ 
 
Title: Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Oregon Coast 
Aquarium for the Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K 
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve the tourism marketing grant fund application, submitted by the Oregon 
Coast Aquarium, for assistance with marketing and advertising for the 2016 Oregon Coast 
Aquarium 5K formerly Flippers, Feathers, and Fins 5K, in the amount of $3,500. 
 
Background Information:    
The Oregon Coast Aquarium has requested $3,500 to assist with marketing efforts and 
event promotion for the 2016 Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K Flippers, Feathers, and Fins 
5K. This is a 5K race and Kids Dash that runs through the aquarium. This event is 
designed to encourage healthy lifestyle and bring people to Newport and the Oregon 
Coast. Last year of the 239 participates, 159 traveled more than 50 miles to participate. 
This year the goal is to increase participation to 500. In order to achieve the increased 
participation, the Oregon Coast Aquarium will work with Portland Running Company who 
will sponsor the race and assist with the execution. Due to the races early start time 
runners will need to stay the night before the race increasing the need for rooms. The 
organizers estimate about 100 rooms will be used by race participates. Each participate 
receives a free pass to the aquarium for the day, which encourages participates to stay 
longer and bring their families. Additional sponsors are News-Times, Samaritan Health 
Services, Portland Running Company and a pending sponsorship with Big 5 Sporting 
Goods. All proceeds from this event benefit animal care programs at the Oregon Coast 
Aquarium. The Destination Newport Committee discussed the request and is forwarding 
a positive recommendation.  
 
Fiscal Notes: 
If approved, this funding would come from the $25,000 in Transit Room Tax monies that 
have been set aside for Tourism Marketing Grants. This will be the second year for this 
event to receive this grant.  
 
Alternatives: 
None 
 
Attachments: 
Tourism Marketing Grant Fund Application submitted by the Oregon Coast Aquarium 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

111

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



11
2

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

OREGON

CITY OF NEWPORT
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, Oregon 97365

541.574.0603
c.breves@newportoregon.gov

TOURISM MARKETING GRANT FUND APPLICATION

The purpose of the grant program is to promote tourism and increase stays in lodging
establishments within the city limits of Newport. Funding for events/activities scheduled
for the off and/or shoulder seasons, September 15 through June 15 will be given priority.
Funding may not be provided for well established events/activities, although funding
may be provided for expansion or changes of existing events if the city determines the
changes will increase tourism.

Applications for grant funds must be submitted two months prior to an event to allow
sufficient time for review by the Destination Newport Committee and the City Council at
their regularly scheduled meetings.

The regular Destination Newport Committee meetings are held on the third Thursday of
the month. Applications will be reviewed by the Destination Newport Committee and
forwarded to the City Council with a recommendation for approval or denial. Applications
must be submitted to the City Manager's Office.

The city reserves the right to grant all or a portion of a request; deny a request; or
recommend no award regardless of availability of funds.

Please read the rules instructions on page 5. prior to completion.

Updated 2/27/13



11
3

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

General Information:

Name of Applicant Organization: Oregon Coast Aquarium

Mailing Address: 2820 SE Ferry Slip Rd

City, State, Zip: Newport, OR, 97365

Telephone: 541-867-3474 Fax: 541-867-6846

E-Mail Address: contact@aquarium,org

Principal Contact (If different from Applicant): _J_a_s_o_n_K_in...;g;....-~ ~ _

Mailing Address (If different from Applicant): ~

City, State, Zip: ~ ~ _

Telephone: Fax: _

E-Mail Address: marketing@aquarium.org

Date(s) and Time(s) of Event: _4_/2_3_/2_0_16 _

Description of Event or Activity*: Come for a race, stay for an aquarium adventure. Every particlpant In the

4th _ ... ()qgon Coal1 Aq....= 51< & Kids' Oash wlR"", only Iak. pe~ In a fun race. they will ,_iv.1Iee Intly 10 1l'1e O<egon Coast Aquorium fer thl rell of til. eIIy

this 5K (3.1 mile) lOute will sian and end at the Oregon Coasl Aquarium. This event Is parted for the speedy, the slow Bnd everyone In between.

The Oregan Coast Aquarium 5k seeks 10 ptOIllota heaJlhy lifastyles on tha ttlasl and pmceads wi" llenefil animal care programs at lha Otagon Coast Aqu8Ilum

Nature of Event or Activity:

Single Day Event _Y_e_s__

Multi-night local lodging event days

Extended calendar event. days

Amount of Funding Requested: $ _3_5_00_,_0_0 _

Total Event/Activity Budget: $ _1_3_38_0_.0_0 .......... _

What specific marketing expenditures will the granted funds be used for?*
We plan to use $2500 on targeting runners in the Portland DMA, Salem, Corvallis, Eugene and Bend markets on Facebook.

w. pion to UIll S1000 10 maka I buy will1tha Portland RUMing Company to resell thair 95.000 aublCrtbara uling ditaCl eml~ and on-aita pRlmOUOnl It varioul IUMing evant..

Updated 2/27113 2



11
4

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

L' t t/ t"ty rt rt * N_~ New..11m•• "'.convnllodlooponlO,lh....monel In .dditio. provid.lDCII_nJ.lng,IS even ac IVI suppa ers or pa ners : _

Portland Rumlng Company has ag'nd to sponso, the race by assisting with advertising at various event. aClOu the 11I0ion lealling up to ou' event and day 01 execution

Applicant/organization must be a non-profit corporation. Attach a copy of the IRS
determination letter.

Has applicant received funding in prior years from the city for this event/activity? If yes,
when:
Yes we received funding In 2015

Projected Event/Activity Impact:

Describe how the event/activity will affect the Newport economy (e.g., room nights,
number of visitors/attendees, restaurant sales, retail sales, etc.)*: _
In 201~ we .ddod over 100 poid runners CZImpotod I. our 201. toliollnd h.d.toliol.' 281 poi! p.rticiponts. 011110" 281, ,._bIy 201 travel.d mo.. til•• ~O ...101 to vol to Newport.

We al1l expedlng Ihal we will see our numbeB grow ye.egaln wllh the support of Oul sponsors and are planning to see the event reach over 400 runners In 2016.

Cu. to the elrly ,tort time 0I1ho...,. mOil """,ers wi. noed to trovel 10 Nowport the night bolore. A Clln......ti.. elti"",'e on """_111<1 .moonllD 100 room nights ., local holel•.

In addition to lodging, the participants will most likely need to eat a minimum of 1-2 meals at local restaurants.

Furthermore. by offering complimentary entry 10 the Oregon Coast Aquarium. runners have additional funds to potenllBlly spenel at local rela~ eslabllshments.

Updated 2/27113 3



11
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Financial Reporting Requirements:

Please provide a proposed budget of revenues and expenditures in a form similar to the
following:

PROPOSED REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

PROPOSED EXPENDITURES

Source #1

Source #2

Source #3

Source #4

Source #5

Runner Registration Fees (300xS35 and 100xS20)

Sponsorships

Advertising Grant

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

$12,500

$1500

$---

$--
$3500

$17,500

Additional Staffing

Aquarium Admission (300xS22.95 & 100x14,95)

Use #1

Use #2

Use #3

Use #4

Use #5

Use #6

Use #7

Use #8

Use #9

Use#10

Race Bibs

Advertising

Race Medals

Race OJ

Race Timing

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$500

$4,000

$ 700

$500

$800

$500

$8380.00

$--

$--

$--
$15380.00

REVENUES MINUS EXPENDITURES $2120.00

As a final condition to accepting granted funds, the applicant agrees to provide the City
of Newport with a final report summarizing result of the event/activity (e.g., attendance,
local and regional publicity, lodging occupaz:ny,clos' evenue and expenditure report,
etc.), with a detailed and verified accounting.

•
2/4/2016 . ~

-----~~~~-+.:...-_--~-

Date Applicant Signa fe
Jason King

Applicant Printed Name

Updated 2/27113 4



11
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

INSTRUCTIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR
EVENT/ACTIVITY GRANT APPLICATION

1. Complete the prepared application for event/activity grant funding. The forms can
be obtained from the city manager's office at the Newport City Hall or on the city
website at www.newportoregon.gov. Use only the city form when preparing an
application.

2. Applications for grant funds should follow this timeline:

Applications must be submitted a minimum of two months prior to the scheduled
event. The Destination Newport Committee will consider applications at their
regular monthly meetings. Applications for events that have already occurred will
not be accepted.

3. Applications for funding will be reviewed by the Destination Newport Committee
and recommendations will be forwarded to the City Council for final approval.
Incomplete applications will be returned to applicant for correction, and may not
be considered if the delay creates a late application.

4. The applicant, or applicant's representative, may attend the Destination Newport
Committee meeting at which the application will be considered. No applicant
presentation is required, but applicant should be prepared to respond to
questions.

5. Applications submitted after an event/activity occurs will be rejected.

6. Applicants are required to provide the city with a final report summarizing the
results of the event/activity (e.g., attendance, local and regional publicity, lodging
occupancy resulting from the event, closing revenue and expenditure report,
etc.). This information must be submitted to the city manager's office no later than
one month from the final day of the event/activity. Samples of all marketing
materials and acknowledgements should be attached to this report. Failure to
provide a final report to city shall jeopardize future applications

7. The purpose of the grant program is to promote tourism and increase stays in
lodging establishments within the city limits of Newport. Funding for
events/activities scheduled for the off and/or shoulder seasons, September 15
through June 15 will be given priority. Funding may not be provided for well
established events/activities, although funding may be provided for expansion or
changes of existing events if the city determines the changes will increase
tourism.

8. Preference will be given to events/activities that have taken place for three years
or less, or new components/improvements to existing events/activities.

Updated 2/27/13 s



11
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

9. Events/activities may not be considered for funding more than three times.
Applicant should plan for other funding sources beyond the third request.

10. Funding is contingent upon available monies, and the process is competitive.
There is no guarantee that funding, if granted, will be available for an
event/activity in subsequent years.

11. Acknowledgement must be given to the City of Newport in all promotional
materials, and programs associated with the event/activity.

Updated 2/27/13 6



11
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Sandy Roumagoux, Mayor
CITY OF NEWPORT

169 S.W. Coast Hwy.
Newport, OR 97365

S.Roumagoux@newportoregon.gov
541-265-9260

March 1,2016

Re: Salary Adjustment for City Manager, Spencer Nebel

Dear Member of the City Council:

On Monday December 7,2015, the City Council in Executive Session received a report on the
performance evaluation of City Manager, Spencer Nebel. The Council indicated that they were
most pleased with the City Manager's performance during his third year as an employee with the
City of Newport. At the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on February 1,2016, there
was a report on the 2015 evaluation of the city manager.

There was no adjustment in salary for City Manger Spencer Nebel's first two years of
employment except for cost of living increases. A work group consisting of Councilor Busby,
Council President Saelens, and me met to review the compensation for the City Manager.

The work group from the City Council reviewed compensation structures used in other cities for
the city manager position. The attached City Manager's Compensation Study spreadsheet
completed February 23, 2016 lists the cities surveyed. In addition, Spencer Nebel's stellar
evaluations from the City Council were factored in. Spencer Nebel's expertise as city manager
has resulted in a superior job performance.

I am recommending that the City Council approve a salary of$125,500.00 retroactive to January
1,2016. An amendment to the City Manager's employment contract with the new amount is
attached.



City Manager's Compensation Study
23-Feb-16

City Population Assessed ValuationYears of service Annual Salary Deferred Salary Total Salary Effective Date of Current Salary
Current City Total CM (in addition to base)

Lincoln City  8,040  $1,607,592,253 1 23  $117,645.00  $7,058.70  $124,703.70 1/20/2016
Florence 8,700  $880,996,318 1 1  $109,000.00  $-    $109,000.00 1/1/2016
Indepence  8,775  $415,094,690 5.5 30  $113,405.00  $-    $113,405.00 7/1/2015
Monmouth  9,620  $427,930,595 9 17  $126,853.00  $6,342.00  $133,195.00 7/1/2015
North Bend  9,755  $662,242,396 4 37  $107,910.00  $-    $107,910.00 7/1/2015
Newport  10,116  $1,280,355,385 2 30  $119,646.00  $-    $119,646.00 12/16/2013 w/COLAs July 2014 & 15
Sandy  10,395  $730,462,848 2.5 2.5  $98,004.00  $5,880.24  $103,884.24 1/1/2016
Dallas  15,040  $933,776,225 3 4  $140,192.00  $4,205.76  $144,397.76 1/1/2016
Coos Bay  16,160  $995,556,821 6.5 6.5  $137,076.00  $-    $137,076.00 10/1/2014

Newport's Rank 4th 2nd 7th 2nd (tie) 5th
(highest to lowest) 

Note: Astoria and Sweet Home were included in the salary study but did not provide responses.

119

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



City Manager's Compensation Study
23-Feb-16

City Car Allowance Phone Allowance Benefits in Addition to Department Heads

Lincoln City None - Car for Business Use $300/yr None
Florence Paid per diem and Mileage $960/yr Car Per Diem
Indepence $3000/yr $720/yr 11 months severence, Vac. accrual starts as a 10 yr employee, 30 days sick and vac. At hire.
Monmouth $4200/yr City Provided 80 hours comp. time
North Bend $3600/yr $900/yr None
Newport $2100/yr+mileage out of Lincoln Co. $600/yr 24 hours of additional vacation accrual, four months severence pay
Sandy $5400/yr $359.40/yr 40 hours of additional vacation pay
Dallas $6600/yr $1320/yr None reported
Coos Bay $6000/yr $900/yr Nine months severence, Payout of sick leave with uncapped accumulation

120

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO THE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT AND SPENCER R. NEBEL

THIS AGREEMENT No. 1 is to the above described Employment Agreement dated November 5, 2013, 
between the City Of Newport, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon (“City”), and Spencer R.  
Nebel (“NEBEL”).

WHEREAS,  the above  described agreement,  paragraph 4,  provides  in  part:  “The City Council  shall 
review NEBEL’s performance annually…. Adjustments to NEBEL’s compensation, based on the annual 
performance review, shall be effective on January 1.”, and

WHEREAS, based upon the annual performance review, the City desires to continue the employment  
relationship with NEBEL as City Manager and make an adjustment to his compensation; and

WHEREAS, under Chapter VIII of the Charter of the City of Newport, the City Manager, City Attorney,  
and Municipal Judge are officers of the City appointed by a majority of the entire council; and

WHEREAS,  the  City Manager,  City Attorney and Municipal  Judge are  not  included in the  City Of 
Newport Salary Schedule for Non-Union Employees, which includes a Salary Range with a series of 9 
individual salary steps, which are awarded to employees upon satisfactory performance of their respective  
job duties and responsibilities; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties acknowledge, represent and agree as follows:
1. All relocation expenses incurred by NEBEL have been reimbursed by CITY, and items under 

8.F. of the Employment Agreement are completed and satisfied.
2. The respective rights and obligations of the parties under the described agreement are being 

undertaken and fulfilled in a highly satisfactory manner.
3. The annual  salary of  NEBEL shall  be  $__________________ effective January 1,  2016, 

subject to future modifications as provided in the described agreement herein.
4. Except  as  expressly set  forth  herein,  all  provisions  of  the  herein  described  Employment 

Agreement shall continue and remain in full force and effect.

Dated this ______ day of March, 2016.

CITY OF NEWPORT SPENCER R. NEBEL

_____________________________ ___________________________
Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor City Manager

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM

_____________________________ ___________________________

121

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder Steven E. Rich, City Attorney

122

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:8.A. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolutions 3741 and 3742 
approving Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Agreements  

Background:  
At the February 1 regular meeting of the City Council, Council approved motion authorized 
the CWSRF Loan Agreement No R68935 with the Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality for the Bay-Moore Basin Storm Sewer Improvements, the Sam Moore Creek Bio-
Retention Facility, and the Big Creek Fish Passage Mitigation in the amount of $4,128,454 
and authorized the Mayor to execute that agreement.  

In addition, the Council approved a motion authorizing a CWSRF Loan Agreement 
R68934 with the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality for the Nye Beach Pump 
Station Grinder and sanitary sewer pipe replacement to address infiltration issues in the 
amount of $1,115,000 with the Mayor being authorized to execute agreement as well.  

Both of these loans will carry a favorable 1% interest rate for the life of the loan. 
Furthermore, since these funds are distributed on a reimbursement basis, the city is only 
charged interest on funds that are actually dispensed and the repayment of the loan is not 
required to begin until six months after the project is completed. In preparing the 
submission for these loans, we have discovered that we did not have the Council approve 
these actions in a resolution format. We are requesting that the Council approve 
Resolutions No 3741 and 3742 to confirm the actions taken at the February 1 City Council 
meeting. 

City Attorney Steve Rich has prepared letters for both loans required for legal review of 
the bond issuance. They are attached for your review as well.   

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 3741, a resolution approving a CWSRF Loan 
Agreement for the Nye Beach Grinder and various wastewater improvement to address 
inflow and infiltration, and authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement No. R68934 
with the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 3742, a resolution approving a CWSRF Loan 
Agreement for the Bay-Moore Basin Storm Sewer Improvements, the Sam Moore Creek 
Bio-Retention Facility, and the Big Creek Fish Passage Mitigation, and authorizing the 
Mayor to execute the agreement No. R68935 with the Oregon Department of 
Environmental Quality.  
 
 
 
 

123

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



 
Fiscal Effects: 
Adoption of the resolutions are required for the city to proceed with the revolving fund 
loan for these projects.   
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

124

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

       
       

   
 
             
   

 
 

 
Prepared by: Timothy Gross, PE, Director of Public Works/City Engineer    
 
Title: Approval of Resolutions 3741 and 3742 approving Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund (CWSRF) loan agreements 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
I move to approve resolution no. 3741, a resolution approving a CWSRF loan agreement 
for the Nye Beach Pump Station Grinder and various wastewater improvements to 
address inflow and infiltration, and authorize the Mayor to execute the resolution on behalf 
of the City of Newport. 
 
Background Information:    
 
At the February 15, 2016 regular Council Meeting, the City Council approved Clean 
Water State Revolving Loan Fund (CWSRF) agreements 68934 and 68935 with the 
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (ORDEQ).  It is a requirement of the loan 
that the Council approve a resolution authorizing the loan agreements.  City staff 
neglected to include the resolutions when the agreements were submitted to Council, 
and are now attached for the Council consideration. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 

The terms of the CWSRF loan agreements are summarized as follows: 
 

1. The CWSRF interest rate of 1.0% is lower than any currently available bond rate; and 
 

2. The CWSRF program operates through a disbursement process, where the City fronts the cost of 
the project and is reimbursed on a quarterly basis; 

 
3. The City is only charged interest on funds that are actually dispersed, and repayment of the loan 

is not required to begin until six months after the project is completed. 

 
Alternatives: 
 
Reject the loan agreements and finance the project through alternative means. 
 
Attachments: 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

125

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

 Resolution 3741 

 Resolution 3742 
 
 
 
 

126

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 3741 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CWSRF LOAN AGREEMENT FOR THE NYE BEACH PUMP STATION GRINDER 
AND VARIOUS WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS TO ADRESS INFLOW AND INFILTRATION 

 
FINDINGS: 

 
1. The City of Newport has identified the Nye Beach Pump Station Grinder and various wastewater 

improvements to address inflow and infiltration as high priority projects and projects that could 
be funded through CWSRF loans; and 

 
2. The CWSRF interest rate of 1.0% is lower than any currently available bond rate; and 

 

3. The CWSRF program operates through a disbursement process, where the City fronts the cost of 
the project and is reimbursed on a quarterly basis; 

 
4. The City is only charged interest on funds that are actually dispersed, and repayment of the loan 

is not required to begin until six months after the project is completed. 
 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Mayor of the City of Newport is authorized to sign the Loan Agreement No. R68934 for 
the CWSRF loan funding for the Nye Beach Pump Station Grinder and various wastewater 
improvements to address inflow and infiltration. 

 
Section 2. This resolution will be effective on adoption. 

Adopted by the City of Newport City Council on March 7, 2016. 

 
 

 
 

Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 
 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 

127

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 3742 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CWSRF LOAN AGREEMENT FOR THE BAY-MOORE BASIN STORMWATER 
PROJECT, THE SAM MOORE CREEK BIO-RETENTION FACILITY, AND THE BIG CREEK RESERVOIRS FISH 

PASSAGE MITIGATION. 
 

FINDINGS: 
 

1. The City of Newport has identified the Bay-Moore Basin Storm Water Project, the Sam Moore 
Creek Bio-Retention Facility, and the Big Creek Reservoirs Fish Passage Mitigation as high 
priority projects and projects that could be funded through CWSRF loans; and 

 
2. The CWSRF interest rate of 1.0% is lower than any currently available bond rate; and 

 

3. The CWSRF program operates through a disbursement process, where the City fronts the cost of 
the project and is reimbursed on a quarterly basis; 

 
4. The City is only charged interest on funds that are actually dispersed, and repayment of the loan 

is not required to begin until six months after the project is completed. 
 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Mayor of the City of Newport is authorized to sign the Loan Agreement No. 

R68935for the CWSRF loan funding for the Bay-Moore Basin Storm Water Project, the Sam 
Moore Creek Bio-Retention Facility, and the Big Creek Reservoirs Fish Passage Mitigation. 

 

Section 2. This resolution will be effective on adoption. 

Adopted by the City of Newport City Council on March 7, 2016. 

 
 

 
 

Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 
 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 

128

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Steven E. Rich
 City Attorney

169 S.W. Coast Hwy.
Newport, OR  97365

s.rich@newportoregon.gov
5415740607

March 1, 2016 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program
Water Quality Division
Department of Environmental Quality
811 S.W. Sixth Avenue 
Portland, OR   97204-1390

RE: $1,115,000 Revenue Secured Loan Revolving Fund Loan Agreement No. 
R68934

Dear Sir/Madam:

As City Attorney for the City of Newport, I have acted as legal counsel to the City in 
connection with the referenced matter.

I have examined a copy of the Loan Agreement referenced above and have reviewed the 
City of Newport Resolution adopted in connection with same.  On questions of material 
fact, I have relied upon representations of City staff without undertaking to verify the 
same by independent investigation.

On the basis of the foregoing, I am of the legal opinion that:
1. The City of Newport is a municipality duly authorized and validly existing under 

the  law  of  Oregon  with  the  power  and  authority  to  execute  and  deliver  and 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement referenced above.

2. This Agreement has been duly executed and acknowledged where necessary by 
the  City’s  authorized  representative,  all  required  City  approvals  have  been 
obtained, and all other necessary City actions have been taken so that the Loan 
Agreement, when it is also signed by DEQ’s authorized representative, will be 
valid,  binding  and  enforceable  against  the  City  in  accordance  with  its  terms, 
except as such enforcement is affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, or 
other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

3. To my knowledge, the Loan Agreement does not violate any other agreement, 
statute, court order, or law to which the City is a party or by which it or any of its 
property or assets is bound.

4. The Gross Revenues from which the Net Operating Revenues are derived and that 
are  used as security  for  the  Loan will  not  constitute  taxes  that  are  limited  by 
Section 11b, Article XI of the Oregon Constitution.

Page | 1
129

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



The opinions expressed herein are solely for your benefit in connection with the above 
referenced loan and may not be relied upon in any manner for any other purpose by any 
other person or entity.

Respectfully yours,

Steven E. Rich
City Attorney

SER/hs
cc OCM/Public Works

Page | 2
130

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Steven E. Rich
 City Attorney

169 S.W. Coast Hwy.
Newport, OR  97365

s.rich@newportoregon.gov
5415740607

March 1, 2016 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program
Water Quality Division
Department of Environmental Quality
811 S.W. Sixth Avenue 
Portland, OR   97204-1390

RE: $4,128,454 Revenue Secured Loan Revolving Fund Loan Agreement No. 
R68935

Dear Sir/Madam:

As City Attorney for the City of Newport, I have acted as legal counsel to the City in 
connection with the referenced matter.

I have examined a copy of the Loan Agreement referenced above and have reviewed the 
City of Newport Resolution adopted in connection with same.  On questions of material 
fact, I have relied upon representations of City staff without undertaking to verify the 
same by independent investigation.

On the basis of the foregoing, I am of the legal opinion that:
1. The City of Newport is a municipality duly authorized and validly existing under 

the  law  of  Oregon  with  the  power  and  authority  to  execute  and  deliver  and 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement referenced above.

2. This Agreement has been duly executed and acknowledged where necessary by 
the  City’s  authorized  representative,  all  required  City  approvals  have  been 
obtained, and all other necessary City actions have been taken so that the Loan 
Agreement, when it is also signed by DEQ’s authorized representative, will be 
valid,  binding  and  enforceable  against  the  City  in  accordance  with  its  terms, 
except as such enforcement is affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, or 
other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

3. To my knowledge, the Loan Agreement does not violate any other agreement, 
statute, court order, or law to which the City is a party or by which it or any of its 
property or assets is bound.

4. The Gross Revenues from which the Net Operating Revenues are derived and that 
are  used as security  for  the  Loan will  not  constitute  taxes  that  are  limited  by 
Section 11b, Article XI of the Oregon Constitution.

Page | 1
131

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



The opinions expressed herein are solely for your benefit in connection with the above 
referenced loan and may not be relied upon in any manner for any other purpose by any 
other person or entity.

Respectfully yours,

Steven E. Rich
City Attorney

SER/hs
cc OCM/Public Works

Page | 2
132

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:8.B. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
Possible Action Regarding the Location of the 2016 Farmer’s Market 

Background:  
The Farmer’s Market has operated at various locations in the City of Newport over the 
years. The Market brings in a significant amount of people to purchase fresh foods, art 
and crafts produced in the region. For a number of years, the Farmer’s Market was held 
on SW Angle Street immediately south of City Hall and on the grounds of City Hall. In 
2015, the Market was shifted to the west side of US 101 to Angle/Second Streets running 
between 101 and Nye Street. While there was some resistance from the Farmer’s Market 
making this move, the site proved to be a good site from the Farmer’s Market 
perspective. Through the course of the Saturday events the city did receive a number of 
complaints from business owners in the immediate proximity of the Farmer’s Market 
primarily due to problems with parking and congestion that impacted their business on 
Saturdays. In order to try to address those issues, the city assisted the Farmer’s Market 
with parking signage and required that the Farmer’s Market man the parking lot at Big 5 
and the Antique Mall in order to endure adequate parking for their customers. The city 
was a recipient of complaints throughout the Farmer’s Market season indicating that the 
Farmer’s Market had a negative impact on the Antique Mall. Furthermore, Newport Pawn 
also indicated that they experience a significant reduction of sales during the Farmer’s 
Market hours and had difficulty accessing the back of their store during the Farmer’s 
Market hours. On February 7th 2016, Strip Mall Owner Bret Fox indicated that the 
Farmer’s Market was disruptive for the businesses that are housed in the strip mall he 
has developed. This particularly effected the Antique Mall and Big 5 but he indicated that 
he had complaints through the season from Napa, the Dollar Store, and others. Bret Fox 
indicated that he pays significant property taxes for valuable property on 101 and that 
the Farmer’s Market is having a negative impact on his property. Furthermore, Peggy 
Sabanskas indicated that they pay significant rent for their business to be located at its 
current location. She indicated that she did not believe it was fair to the businesses 
paying substantial leases and property taxes to be negatively impacted by the Farmer’s 
Market which pays no fees or taxes to the city. Bret Fox indicated that the Market Should 
be moved West, perhaps on Nye Street between Second and Olive. He indicated that 
he would participate financially in signage for the Farmer’s Market if it were moved to the 
west of its current location.  
 
We have had a number of conversation with County Administrator Wayne Belmont 
regarding other options for the Farmer’s Market in the same general area. The use of 
Nye Street is problematic from the County Jail standpoint as well as from the US Post 
Office standpoint since all of their vehicles that utilize the back parking lot are required 
to use Nye Street. Wayne Belmont offered the Fair Grounds on a year round basis for 
the Farmer’s Market as an alternative. There would be an effort to tie in the County Fair 
the Farmer’s Market on that day when both events are going on at the same location. 
The Farmer’s Market representatives were concerned about trying to operate the 
Farmer’s Market in the grassy area of the fairgrounds since many of their customers are 
older and require an even surface to walk on. There was an inquiry about the utilization 
of NE Harney Street between NE Third and Seventh for the Farmer’s Market this could 

133

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



be a possibility. Since the February 7 meeting, the Farmer’s Market has looked at two 
other alternative locations. The first would be utilizing SW Lee Street from 101 to Seventh 
Street and Seventh Street up to the bank exit drive. Farmer’s Market personnel have 
spoken to various property owners regarding this option and have not received any 
objections from the owners that would be impacted by the closure. This concept was 
circulated to city staff and from a Police, Fire, and Public Works standpoint there was 
concern about closing SW Seventh Street which serves as a secondary route for local 
drivers avoiding the 101 corridor. Emergency vehicles use this route regularly.  
 
This information was shared with the Farmer’s Market who then explored a third option 
of closing SW Second Street between Nye Street and Lee Street as well as Lee Street 
between SW Second and Seventh and then utilizing the private parking lot located just 
to the south between Seventh and SW Second Street. I did discuss this with the Post 
Office who indicated that they would not object to the closure of SW Second Street at 
this location. Farmer’s Market had talked with the other property owners that would be 
impacted by this closure however on further review by the Farmers Market Committee 
they have determined that this location would not be feasible due to the disconnected 
segments and some of the slopes that costumers of the Farmer’s Market would need to 
navigate at this location. The Farmer’s Market has indicated to me that the only two 
viable options they see are the 2015 location or the alternate of closing Seventh Street 
and utilizing Lee Street from 101 to Second.   
 
Please note that at a staff level we have also suggested to the Farmer’s Market the option 
of Lee Street between and east of 101 and SW Ninth Street plus utilizing the parking lot 
off of Lee Street owned by Western Title. Farmer’s Market did take a look at this option 
but there are a couple of Businesses that front Lee Street that could be seriously 
impacted by this configuration. Furthermore, it places available parking at a greater 
distance from the Farmer’s Market than what would be available with the other two 
options.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 
 
I have prepared an analysis of the various sites that have been discussed for the 
Farmer’s Market for you review.  
 
 

 SITE PARKING VISIBILITY 
FROM 101 

CONFLICTS 
WITH 
BUSINESSES 

CONFLICTS 
WITH 
TRAFFIC 

1 2015 Site Good Excellent Existing 
Complaints 

Manageable 

2 Nye Street (2nd 
to Olive 

Good Poor Objections 
P.O./ County 

Concerns 
with Closure 
of Nye 

3 Lee/7th 
(west of 101) 

Good Good None Known Concerns 
with Closure 
of 7th 

4 Lee/Parking 
Lot 

(east of 101) 

Limited Good Possibly 
Significant 

Manageable 

5 2nd/Lee/Private 
Lot 

(west of 7th) 

Good Fair None Known Manageable 

6 NE Harney Good None None Known Manageable 
 
 
Site Description: (Also see attached map) 

1. NW Angle/Second Street west of U.S. 101 to Nye. 
2. NW Nye Street from US Post Office driveway to Olive. 
3. NW Lee Street west of U.S. 101 (and west of the bank driveway) to Second Street 

and Seventh Street from the bank driveway through Lee Street.  
4. NW Lee Street east of U.S. 101 to Ninth Street and using the Western Title 

Parking Lot off Lee Street. 
5. NW Second Street from Nye to Lee, Lee between Second and Seventh and the 

private parking lot located to the south. 
6. NE Harney Street between Third and Seventh.  

 
Mary Young LCSFA Board President has indicated that the only two options that would 
really work for them within the City Center Area would either be Angle/Second Street 
which was utilized in 2015 or Lee Street with the closure of Seventh Street from 101 west 
to Second Street. 
 
After reviewing all of the options and considering the various factors in this decision. I 
would recommend that the Council consider the use of Lee Street with the closure of 
Seventh as the best option to minimize conflicts with existing businesses and to provide 
a reasonable location for the Farmer’s Market in the City Center area. While this location 
would create some traffic issues on Saturday mornings, I believe that individuals and 
vehicles will be able to reroute themselves around this closure of Seventh Street at this 

135

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



location. While I certainly understand the inconvenience that the closure of Seventh 
Street to some local traffic on Saturday mornings, it is my opinion that this is less of a 
concern then the complaints from business owners that the Farmer’s Market is creating 
an economic hardship on business in the immediate vicinity of 101 and Second Street.   
 
Attached please find a letter and petitions supporting the Farmer’s Market remaining on 
Second Street and Angle Streets.                                       

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the closure of SW Lee Street from U.S. 101 west to Second Street 
and Seventh Street from Lee Street to the bank driveway for the 2016 Farmer’s 
Market.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
We will need to discuss the responsibility of barricades and other issues for this 
location since there will be some additional signage required for this configuration 
with the Farmer’s Market. There may be some shared cost for barricades. The city 
does not receive any revenue from the Farmer’s Market for the use of the city streets.   
 
Alternatives: 
One of the other sites that was analyzed during these discussions or as suggested 
by the City Council.    
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

136

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



City of Newport
Engineering Department
169 SW Coast Highway Phone: 541-574-3366
Newport, OR 97365

I2NDST

.4.
SE 2ND ST

—SE 2ND ST

This map is for informational use only and is not suitable for legal. englneenng, or surveying purposes. : i’i’
It includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its use and
users of this map are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Engineenng Department.

Farmers Market Options
N

13
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

City of Newport
Engineering Department
169 SW Coast Highway Phone: 541-574-3366
Newport, OR 97365

O.£OON

This map IS lor infonnational use only and is not suit bl I I I . ,
It Indudes data Irom multiple sources. The Cit I N a e or ega. englneenng. ~r s.urveylng purposes.
users 01 this map are cautioned to verify all iJ 0 tWPolrt assumes no responslblHty lor its use and

orma Ion Wth the City 01 Newport Engineering Department.

N

Farmers Market Options t!'.,
W E

~.,.: flllJJ AA~ ·s·



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Spencer Nebel

From: Mary Young <whimsyartglass@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, Match 02, 2016 8:12 AM
To: Spencer Nebel; Katie McNeil; Kurt Gehlken; Peggy Hawker
Subject: RE: Market Site 2016

Spencer:

A delegation of board members physically inspected the proposed site last week and have rejected this as an

option.

We found that this proposed site would not be: safe for customers and vendors, ADA compliant, or large

enough to house our entire market.

Ultimately we feel that this will not solve the complaints that have been brought up by local businesses and
would be a compromise that would have a negative impact on the market and our customers.

We respectfully ask that the city consider our application as written for Angle and 2nd Street again or give us

access to the whole of Lee Street from 101 to 2nd Street. We have found no other option that keeps us in

central Newport.

Best Regards,

Mary Young
LCSFA Board President

From: S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov
To: katie@pacificsourdough.com
CC: P.Hawker@Newportcregon.gov; kurtg55@hotmail.com; whimsyartglass@hotmail.com;
C. Breves@ NewportOregon .gov
Subject: RE: Market Site 2016
Date: Wed, 2 Mar 2016 06:07:45 +0000

Katie, Mary and Kurt:

I have reviewed the alternate location for the Farmers Market using 2, Lee and the private parking lot (as outlined
with the dark green on the map) both internally and with the US Post Office. You have indicated that you have talked to
all the other property owners bordering these roads. The Post Office is supportive of the the closure of 2 that runs next
to their customer lot for the Farmers Market as long as their parking is protected. If 7th remains open they are not
concerned with closing the intersection of 2 and Lee, although that would be problematic from a signing standpoint, If
this plan works for you, I will forward a recommendation to this effect to the Council for the March 7th Council meeting.
Please let me know if we are all on the same page regarding this alternate location.

Spencer R. Nebel
City Manager
City of Newport, Oregon 97365

1

13
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

.!fencer Nebel

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Spencer:

Mary Young <whimsyartglass@hotmail.com>
Wednesday, March 02, 2016 8:12 AM
Spencer Nebel; Katie McNeil; Kurt Gehlken; Peggy Hawker
RE: Market Site 2016

A delegation of board members physically inspected the proposed site last week and have rejected this as an
option.

We found that this proposed site would not be: safe for customers and vendors, ADA compliant, or large
enough to house our entire market.

Ultimately we feel that this will not solve the complaints that have been brought up by local businesses and
would be a compromise that would have a negative impact on the market and our customers.

We respectfully ask that the city consider our application as written for Angle and 2nd Street again or give us
access to the whole of Lee Street from 101 to 2nd Street. We have found no other option that keeps us in
central Newport.

Best Regards,

Mary Young
LCSFA Board President

From: S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov
To: katie@pacificsourdough.com
CC: P.Hawker@NewportOregon.gov; kurtg55@hotmail.com; whimsyartglass@hotmail.com;
C.Breves@NewportOregon.gov
Subject: RE: Market Site 2016
Date: Wed, 2 Mar 2016 06:07:45 +0000

Katie, Mary and Kurt:

I have reviewed the alternate location for the Farmers Market using 2nd
, Lee and the private parking lot (as outlined

with the dark green on the map) both internally and with the US Post Office. You have indicated that you have talked to
all the other property owners bordering these roads. The Post Office is supportive of the the closure of 2nd that runs next
to their customer lot for the Farmers Market as long as their parking is protected. If 7th remains open they are not
concerned with closing the intersection of 2nd and Lee, although that would be problematic from a signing standpoint. If
this plan works for you, I will forward a recommendation to this effect to the Council for the March 7th Council meeting.
Please let me know if we are all on the same page regarding this alternate location.

Spencer R. Nebel
City Manager
City of Newport, Oregon 97365

1



Newport City Council Members, March 2, 2016

In the absence of a decision we ask that the council approve the permit application to hold the 2016 Summer Season Newport
Farmers Market on Angle Street west of Highway 101 and on 2 Street west from the closed portion north of the clock park to the
intersection of Nye Street. We are running out of time to plan for our outdoor market season.

The Farmers Market organizers are aware of complaints by two local business owners and the property owner of the parcel adjacent
to the proposed market sight to the north. While these complaints claim business interruption and parking congestion there has
been no proof that these issues are directly caused by the operation of the Farmer Market for 5 hours each Saturday, 6 months of
the year.

The Farmers Market is contained to the area of the permit request and does not infringe on the private property of these
businesses.

The Farmers Market provides ample parking for its customers at the County Courthouse (170 spaces), as well as signage and maps
directing traffic to those parking areas and will contract with a professional security agency to provide a uniformed parking monitor
to prevent market shoppers from using the adjacent business parking.

The Farmers Market will also erect temporary fencing to deter pedestrian traffic from crossing into the market from the above
mentioned parking area.

We feel these measures are sufficient to mitigate any parking issues perceived by the adjacent business owners.

The Newport Farmers Market has been in continuous operation for 38 years and provides a community event that attracts an
average of 2000 people each Saturday. The direct market sales exceed 1 million dollars a year and most of that money stays in
Lincoln County providing jobs for people who pay taxes. Having a Farmers Market in the center of town provides access to fresh
foods, creates a place for the community to gather and shop, and incubates small businesses. This contributes to the livability of the
neighborhoods in the City. The Market is also an event that at attracts travelers to stop and enjoy Newport.

The Lincoln County Small Farmers Association is the organizing entity of the Newport Farmers Market but the Market is comprised
of, and for, the people of Newport and Lincoln County. This is the community’s Market and benefits all of us.

We hope you will consider the good of the whole when determining if our permit request will be granted.

Respectfully,

The Board of Directors, Lincoln County Small Farmers Association
Mary Young, President
Kurt Gehlken, Vice President
Linda Cline, Treasurer
Alana Williams, Secretary
Board Members:
Sarah Booth
Della Gonzalez

Jennifer Ingram
Katie McNeil

Amy Pattison
Renee Roberts
Laurie Sanders

Angela WartesKahI

13
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Newport City Council Members, March 2, 2016

In the absence of a decision we ask that the council approve the permit application to hold the 2016 Summer Season Newport

Farmers Market on Angle Street west of Highway 101 and on 2nd Street west from the closed portion north of the clock park to the

intersection of Nye Street. We are running out of time to plan for our outdoor market season.

The Farmers Market organizers are aware of complaints by two local business owners and the property owner of the parcel adjacent

to the proposed market sight to the north. While these complaints claim business interruption and parking congestion there has

been no proof that these issues are directly caused by the operation of the Farmer Market for 5 hours each Saturday, 6 months of

the year.

The Farmers Market is contained to the area of the permit request and does not infringe on the private property ofthese

businesses.

The Farmers Market provides ample parking for its customers at the County Courthouse (170 spaces), as well as signage and maps

directing traffic to those parking areas and will contract with a professional security agency to prOVide a uniformed parking monitor

to prevent market shoppers from using the adjacent business parking.

The Farmers Market will also erect temporary fencing to deter pedestrian traffic from crossing into the market from the above

mentioned parking area.

We feel these measures are sufficient to mitigate any parking issues perceived by the adjacent business owners.

The Newport Farmers Market has been in continuous operation for 38 years and prOVides a community event that attracts an

average of 2000 people each Saturday. The direct market sales exceed 1 million dollars a year and most of that money stays in

Lincoln County prOViding jobs for people who pay taxes. Having a Farmers Market in the center of town provides access to fresh

foods, creates a place for the community to gather and shop, and incubates small businesses. This contributes to the livability of the

neighborhoods in the City. The Market is also an event that at attracts travelers to stop and enjoy Newport.

The Lincoln County Small Farmers Association is the organizing entity of the Newport Farmers Market but the Market is comprised

of, and for, the people of Newport and Lincoln County. This is the community's Market and benefits all of us.

We hope you will consider the good of the whole when determining if our permit request will be granted.

Respectfully,

The Board of Directors, Lincoln County Small Farmers Association

Mary Young, President

Kurt Gehlken, Vice President

Linda Cline, Treasurer

Alana Williams, Secretary

Board Members:

Sarah Booth

Della Gonzalez

Jennifer Ingram

Katie McNeil

Amy Pattison

Renee Roberts

Laurie Sanders

Angela Wartes-Kahl



0C000C0a).CuE
.

E
cu

c
u
v4
-
.

1
.

4
-
.

L
L

a
)

t
)

a
)..’

a)000
.

DCoCCoG
)

Ca)

G
)

c
o

U
-
.

t
I

f—
a
)..’

—
a
)

a
)

w
.
I
-
I

Qjja
)
-2

V
D

I.zLU00

0U
)

C
i)

c
r

Ua:z0U
)

LUz0UI.za:0

140

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\ ],\s\r=:;'PETITION
To keep the summer:Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

1 hOJVV\:Bo.Jes 16~ 13~ 7/r (:3 {,(wrt< S ~ Gf _ i Iove.V\c~
2 ~

9 NfA-- 7hflp( kl4:iJb 6555tJJ C~ Sr-- )J~f-~----
§kro6 -1J~kf,& ClIiuur,~, (.06p;. t;2.S- ~t'J"'- Be4 ()/1

7 S \()/ _ V
~())~ ~oP@o.L,t"~\'\d- .. nd

6 flo~~ilavjJ ~QdeJ?-a/AtLA ~< / (j

4 r -;r - I I .
A~ SV \ :1 \ \M..~c- 1.. A""-'~ j \W\. C--V\ t Y (.~ L~ "--j -(.. \ @~ q"- 0 \I • L <oJ ~ tV .tL~ f ~ l-t-

5 :r€)\lI.~ Of' lIAS(~ J,L ~;;l~"" tJW I",--L.J~. LL

8 c,hv J l~a-/ ;;Z d-07 s~G.,~Jl.: s.:&~ Ikr,1-: 1----:32>-
9 v

-1-0'1J\iW'J-~ n~ 13S)I~

~~ d:ti-NG Idr~ Covr+ \'Ia.vpor+, oR CD'3-.~ (j)



1

eC
r

z0Fw0

U)I—00)00a)
z0)E2Co0)
-c0a

,
0)

2

0>
%as

-cICasa)

.iU
)

VCC44J

a)

0C0ci04
-’
Cci)0ci)

-CE
.

ci)E
cu

c
u
-c4

-’

c
u
d
)

C
C

Q
’
a
j

Z
G

)

U
)

0
,C

a)000Co
Va)CCoa)Ca)

IC

jL
I

c)0

w00

0

C
O

0
COU

i

0
<

<
U

i

U
i

z(7COU
i

z0U0

Icfl)

c

c)

141

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\~(\\SPETITION
To keep the summer~Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

~r ?'?~~,

COMMENTADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

SIGNATURE

3

S'Ter/€ '>TC&~,e:.. 5rev.fl S5 8 e.eS d5_&HAll

,,~u,~ Gr)fo

PRINTED NAME

2

t~(;~\~ &efMCJ\

8

mA~ 7oWlrvlI9L~ \tI~~_i~~~ILf)ytt1
9 $/lMv If- f0t.-Ih fcJJ~ PD tii1-30, l).JoJdjor(.11 01/i1 ... _
10

S{vlf1j~u ~.____ "P6 150'f- 2-(;2- 1J~~ 9f3C5'" ~

7 .JI9VlB-u:>lbvot!lk~lJ~ 40r;;"JZ.7&V1\( LJ( 511ke f-t.-~ h€-vU

Ii e.-e,v #0 v- ~ I ()~ tJ 77 Cf ( / h e..e't ho

u ~~ 3U Vr~NrJ21f.. t9~ tJ&
5~~~ \\ {I to lode! '~j.. 0 q 13(;'~
6 ~... ,

\N \\\.\~~~o .r~ ~t~.~ G. tr\ 5 5. ~ . ~Al,b ~~ tu(~{\}( {)f q 7 J OJ!

\r~ \,'£)7



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 107

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Stteet, Angle Street and Highway 101.

( 6Ltj t 3‘ £?

) 1C/7

‘%&ii ii W Pc / /p,Lv&dLo&
o

6 fl oV
- / V U) 5 C 0 9 5

fty O1 77

10 /
1VL \ N \r V S4

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT& h--c-- — 4-

142

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\;'t- \"5 \ t<jPETITION
To keep the summer"Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .....

--4tktf\ ~fu1 MkL- 9~]~ 5e g",--IY-v~h~St----::~~1J-.~_u:_h..._q7fo~b _
2

~e(1Y_0~~ ~~ _n _Z"33 aLl! l3~_;Ue.o.JP?f-(- Q73£S-
3 l' ~

5

t1arflta....lJJ{T}5Vf

6 l-JC( n r:-cN

~)O~
~0'1\ ~OX

2-/

Po 6d)/~31 fo~A)ttllJ~06t{2J

zsr A/tu f.R.1J\ Sf; /U-eWR6Zl- () /!.. r/3~
,.s rVW Hi Jnst f\I ~ wfor t 0 f q7 , G5

7

~l?i)J)&W\i\~ 13'194 ,.,)W\(P",",'i~L. ~ ~. dJ.-'f137.£,
8 r ------- 7

9 @ryJ,., fLt¥1 'rVirHf} i-L.t:= l57/Ro AI/A! ~Si J.eJ !eLk!- oR {7Dr>

){Al.\k\OJNQ k~e UI1 \.-/4-e'L LJ fill) uw gbPA ~-r ~'Cf)c &$ 0Rw V31~
10 ~ - ,

R~\~ E\_,",\sDN q2.,72.- N \N t~<SJ- S~(lDcJ\ ~q7){~
, ,~

CY



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

4

(‘fV5

:
Z(CU \[:

SA /2< ?M//o

143

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

V2J5~ tS-PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

,~

c...o~,

"n:--

··~wQWiA

R.IN2-

c~ tlltffJClO/. (OIM.-

:is .t1" I" r(,(\NI~ r~:::> --/~ co-/L../ J'2)1< 7-tA//o~ (,.1 ~LJ I /JA/u/. Co~
9 ~

=t.R.\f! ~ IA M~ .tUN \\ G- 0 a ~ ()..C;Y ;\VV@ :J WI"II, c... Ii ti\I1
10

S2{f\;~ ~~~O"I\-l blL \nc-~~ \ f.0,

4

8

7

3

2

1



cc

I

-1
1

—

0
—

3 cj
) 0-

-U -f m
CD ‘-I. CD

m
D CD 0 D CD Q

.
C,

)
C

z - C
0

m

C
DC

D I
rC

D

CD

>
c

D
O

C
J
)

0 Cl
)

-‘ CD

w -‘ 1.

C

I
p 27

CD

C
D

D
ø

C
D

l
+

U
)

D C
,3

rC
D

-
‘

-
‘

CD C
D

Z
‘C

D

_
L

U
)

0

CD

-D m —
f
- 0 z

C

2 F

144

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\2J~I\S-PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market s':Jmmer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME

f\\l.~

SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

s~ ~,



2

0
’

L
I._

t
1

0C0004
-
I

Ca)0a)S
.1

a)c
tsva)

C
C

Z
a

a)0C
.

C
.

U
)

Va)CC
,

U
)a)

VCDa)

I
I

I—zw00

0a)

C
0

c
C’)
w0
<

UDz00Uz0UIz
0

)

145

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\v[e:; l~
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

Cf i-"3 t::/:~- E 3F

:267 Z &-rcA-~

6

'cLt ~ ~ ~- S ~ /AlE "'"3 V' cl £:1 /t(-IJI-_L~) Y" 9 ,):i~:;-

4

7 7 , I

__B-==..11fn?: CIt1dz~ OJ Z.-t/i C\fi A'L~sr~ 0'\) ~-+l.1(~rg--JC1'-J.....l~~ _
8

__11JW V'f:l.k.tW~ "IV'] SlN Ps;\/D(1? sLrJt!A\for2T 1LQ-:....:..J5...L.7~~<O~~!-- _

9 ftAtt.ot. k flu 1ft- tJtwk. fJL l?O. 13t> J{ t ~l \1 JeGJ4 I OK- 174 q e
10 (

ATNlv'I/M.. i1d Umt/JIVk. lite PD~ /!P5 c... )je1.uJD'('/: D1!. q7 '3tR;:s c:->



CD

CD CD C D CD 0 D CD 0 C - -c o
0

CD
CD

11
-c

D
C

D

C
i)

D
ø
C

D
C

D
—

1 C
D

Z
C

D
C

D
D 0

—

I —
.

—
‘

ft
_

i
z -C

D 3
<

_
’

-

.
3
-

CD 1:

1

e I—
’

I
I N \J

146

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\1J~'1 (S-
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMEJT. _-:-+-()
, ~U::16~ EMAIL ADDRESS ~~ .

1 L J.;Jl12 Y-)-l H ~---
71J fllbJf . ..der~l f?)Iit Jlz;(j - C&t-r °

3 2(~-- 1M~ f.bo'!6f.A?fZ -:rrii~MicjJ;W.
~~v ,-< ~tO 1~ ~4~ f\.\ c4 Vv11 U~"t <~ f'~ ~f (pytl<f I' I ~"'\

4 U I 0/ I (
.J~rr.\~C\ f\\),AiV\S ~1_I 5>'5 A: LIKt.<.ll C.\? S .

5 • J -\l'J

"J (j Ie- J{AM~ ;0G1cJ...L~ ~_ ._ _ _?.3~ JO 4J~(il5l:LX~·6 ~ "---

·1rJaw&A..Ul~_ 01-33 5£ Pcn-k..- L~Y7e

9 ( - - - - _'0 -- •. ••• - -

10 [;;U. \jA \ \ ~1L{D C~¥ ~ CXWe-OGk leAve 'W-
';LrSM&1i&;Ji,vYfl'j'.L~ tAh f,9 r:.-.-ft:O otd.hv<--~ ,£pr, ®

7 f-'-

--8"-:L~L ~L~ I/Lflo.o f()W..Jl~¥l L~ J:. .J~
-11A 11.. t/ U/'fi'~k-I-l«':-""_ _ ft/c- u./'/>.?.M' :r- / c !! I./(~ / -:;- ~I



I

4
-’
a)a
)c

L
L

.

Z
O

-
c

F
%

f-a
)—

—
a)a)

0C0.tci04
-I
CI—0

1

a)C
D

I

c
C

i)

D
C

Z
a
,

a)
-000Cl)

a)C0I
.

-DCa)

£

,

I—zLU00

0U
)

cC
W

C
O

lD
COLUcc

LUa:Dz0C
o

UzDUa:0

-s-J

‘.1]

3

C
-

33:
1

CD
0

)
01

147

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

.-. \ -- \''":)
PETITION \ LA 'J

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
w. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'e::-

5l.(3 0 l\J LV {LAoR Q VU} eJ2v tJ\k w~O'r1
cQ t\ t~
/2I.~"

5

3

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

1 Kvr~ be hJ !... ~ 1111 Wi lOr!" 1Y fVe"'f'o'"

2 ~{''2.~'l~~O~~~ 7~~ ~6. t~~ ~~F""

6

(> ( ~\ \C <:> L <A \ ~( ~ f c::, I> <:;, r ():s j (C.~ {<1.. ()( t Ce I J I l

7 ~1 :5rn~ :£eY~ 1>,0, ~ 191,,<; Ne0reJ ~973~;;
__---l.&~vll~tb\Ziw 1~~"12w= fo go, ({yIP Tt>IgJb /

9 'I1rt Oil--~. Po lJox {~ ~f!11 «ad? Ptt!tL5~ . /
10 I ."

KE.lJf0cTl-\ WA~NE,L 2220 )JW fp,:6(\~0-r wAY. IAJAL'Dec~ ?'S"'.



—
‘

i.
Q

F
’

—

-
.

0
-Q

9

\j
—

-
f

-
—

—
-

-
,
.
-
‘

1
—

L-’

I
I

-c
—

(:7
-

N

c
L

-
-

I—
ç
j
-

) 4
—

—
‘
•

-
—

-i-
k

E
L

g

I

Z
O

j
-

—
—

a)
—

L
L

...
1
J
i

z
.

—

w

2
—

cç
f

j
-

.
a)

4
,
-
-
-

I
I

P
P

_

1

I
_5_

-
w

t
—

v
a)

I
/

z
-

(‘J
C’)

148

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

(LJ5It~
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

, I' . l ' I
,.. \" \"Y.J,rx'lf'(O, J(\ (ef';{{t.A \rvte:(~ o~.k"/l'

?fl +~1e, tllife!ti- IdIOYlI

Vv:; tit: crfA
lI
7-'I cuC{5'ftA.{ 1.v12t/L(4e&r

tA f f Y E Go[ 1"", IH.I (,'t;. t~> CC<- vi. iv.{ It/ ,<. CY'",/ Iv}.....
/,v/.<.E'''L J.'Nll/1t.. dc-t.I't w.{"11 tv l:Jo? ot...75:cf<e

~r G-uv~ n-t- lCl'-~+r •.n (zre£"d- Ct.Cc:Q::6
I ' \" I '/ r_ )'c:..i Ilk, Itl'1/J tJ J '::xif..?\ l~dWl i6'

(;t-t (reA.J +-, I oeel J, " ON ,::. b '<" t-f·u" +J"t:, .v
+11'( /t;J. f !::.,/( ~" ~ ..J-11 e S.j-;@~· 13~+f~·'"

·PClt~.-'"\. '1A.>~J s(t/~1 d(.£e~ r...." PLrbl:(.,1

/~ /-rItU-~/~~~ ~ •
{~I l,/v£~..(~.VMdfJt;~~1

~A/r"\Il',yr.;/. /""""0 I/ ...~/'I A:" a,Q/~if/....

c::7~~,q-r P~RiLIN 1 4c::e.<:-.SS r~(.J·1A.

--r1-Vc. P6':>J or6<:...E. .J

wo
o\~,,~~ \-z:P-YQNCO \t..C¥' C6\f\~~

.hoc . LUYh (~t'a.\- lO~~<1I-)

If\'") q ~ LCo I"n

t-r(3( UwY do TO((t/P 0/2

tJ..nnie

9

7YJa t } cJttLJt Z- ?li&~_ ~LdeJs+fec).-& e i/'ve I (' 0 ~

7

6

10

Rll~h7.il1\m<r I)j£ h;,v-I ItLthM eJl:!1tte horYftitlL .LIJ"M

4

3

1

___..:.....k:_1m_'_eo lit*~ I) ~V-V!, r Q )11 'LIGl ,) f!? :d" hoi) ,0ilV~ IKL£<>~, (JHV.I d.V"l\;.{l; ll<t<1'fllY\ TO rr It!
2 A I

A1fl,/;T;r(



f
l

a)c0I
-

a)C”
Ut

z
oEED0a)a)a)

0>C”

.IC”a)a)
4
-
I

U
)Cc’J

00.00Ca)0a)
-c.E

.
U

)

E
c

C
oc4

-
.

c
c

Z
a
)

a
)4

-’
-c

c
D

U)00Coa)Cc,)0a)
VCDa)
-C

11

r0

L
P

L1%-

149

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\~\s-f lC;-PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

8

ADDRESSOR COMMENT

'7'"/ ~
. (OM VE<.lL 345 ~E: z.. '5,. U.s;e....Y~:::..J{Q~f2:.::::.-t-t _

•
9

j)£'IfNW£ (~Sftrrp ...__ (J~_ 8t., ---=.{~g~3_01)__=___=AJ:.._::6::.....:w:.=....:...._P():...__.YL._.:..r _

10 ~f '_./, YYl-:,Y 7? S ~ V/f~;'~ t~
<~crv I / (CIL7)HVY! (LO Il/.Mv f}t'07f- Cd

. C' ~)



0
)

6
-o

— CD
1 (D

Z

>
-D

(
D

C
l)

0 0

I
.

-
L

o o
-
L -
3 —

I

CD 0 CI
)

CD CD D 0 z C
D 0

CD CD ‘-
p

CD Cl
,

C 3 3 CD -
‘ z CD -D 0 -T
i

3 CD 0 0) -
‘ CD I
-
p

m —
I 0 z

150

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\-z-Is- J(~PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

3

trv~~(c~

A\.

()'\l,w-A~'-'\-\\{ \-\f\~ \ (}..Ij\~ \u
fl\.l i3~f'LAhavcff - ~~L\..~ 3SIIV;;gc/1t ~1-,l//t"IA.,J-/JW'Tt1~ hp5f5j)~i-

)e~VI f)e)el! ~ V'-
, "

9 / I 1'1 - IIJ/ :ivJSI,,/k t+ ,*5"~~"-+ rt (l e.- -I c.s/;z 3'1';;(}J Lo\)'3:::.hST UX--NIO/..

10 !. ~ L';// ~Ck --m~~tJe-AJ,lA!±L\1:·~~t_id7l' /

8

7



To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location ol
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

PETITION

GA PJV)>c

vi* 11tM./i
10 ‘ -

- -

I ‘ ‘— 1-
-

V)’ Jwi )‘tC(.W\ (( ) cc.X •Qo) -c’’ tcJ
151

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

)z.,/~ ~ l'~

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

k!~~r
~t.

:3 ii.]' (.'1.1 - ot I LIe§' <;'r
/\((:-'1J?o It. ,.

't;t.-\ N~ ~'1.ft s-....
tvbliP" r+ ()1Z- q-(lf:,'$'

,vf

~~

8 ~I/~V /JiJ"v.../c-

loi5 GMt Nvuo(JJ)
7

o \;l..t- )";oeJ-Mct'

6
~

5

9

~-w~~~~~~ £~~~~~~~~L~~~d~'d~~~~~~-
---1Yluve/;ma~ I\4J\.jl1h~U({3@.. qmW::\ .~o"YL--- ~ Lt(..k~ Q



z0I—I—w0

4
-’

a)
.CoI.a)

U0a)
za)EECoa)4-I0a)a)

10>as0
)

IVasa).CD•0c,J
4JCoa)

0C000Ca)II0a)I-.

E5
o

iii
I-.

I
.

a,
I-.

W
a
,

t
0
)

zSF

zU00

C
oCo

U
)

Uc
r

0
<

<
U

Ua
:

DzCo

I

Uz0Uza:
a-

I
0

0
)

II-

152

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\2,\')ll'::>
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE

____ A

ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

\-\u\"t Si>Df~~ ?J\:~s~~~O~C\~Q::iL.::!iW~.d~ _
~J\"",,\-1e~"', ~m. 'kl'"~\ ''''~~~ ~,,~\. tel\-

4 . J

____y::~-eJ--=--.~_K-€""I"",. . k",j~~<'3 """,,!I~. (~.c\A:"\~ _

r;~L~J~ ~~ Z~0~~~~~~~~~~1~~~~~~-
6 ~ /jJd fl . Qufe<U..f a bs.mf"4I-ltN!~ll~r:-:...!.(VC).f.-'-=Cc~Sl....:-Yl:..L-I _
7 ~ . r J
~~/l/~ La7q,1 __ .~~ffLb~cJ9R .t2._f2A2a?// Cd #)



d(

z0Iw

4
-’
a)cu0a)

U0U
)

za)22Co

U)
4
-
I

0a)a)

2

10>%Cu

C
,

ICCu
4
-’

a)U)
4
-I

0C.;U)

0C000Ca)I-.

0I
.

E
ce

ce-c,

h
..

cuC
!)

U
a
)

Z
a
,I—

a,00
.

0
.

Co
Va)C0

)
0U

)
0Ca)4
-.

a)

Th

IK;:)

I0
)

153

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\2J S-) \'S-PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

Of{VS\",1?J5 N

8

7

9 C1i-r btrtd,U)jV\. 'C~ Cik~ _t-71te )Jt1p~[ 4$ f00-.~---
10 n .
Ve-u,'S(!TlffPu/),;() .(Y~~ ?o.l?'ox-dt"?lJJC ttJ/IJ.£! t,0jt



0C00.2

__

Ca)
t.%

\

0a)
-C

LIøE
>

>
co

_
C

.
‘

-
I
-

C
tS

V

Z
O

v
c
o
c

L
c
n

h
..

i_
.

0
c

C
a

<
U

i

w
ø

if:

.c)

(J

‘IV

.1

)I..

154

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\z>/5 /I "5"PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

G~ cr 7 5> it>S"
~

e-o- r#/1\..f.1.Mf
Ih~t\-I;j i'\S' ~ eC\f"{\vvt. f\ct

'h& ".- .h-I'./ \l .21{)~ ~l "';JLJ'

/1(3 5 "' (j Jy- J (. -,- -LJ I '~1.~.) .. ,.......~_ _ l .tLI ('.7(. 1 e reo.. (

9 . 1 \cfL,,, ~ '?J

5 \ . / \ J J <-.--L "A, po Bvt- jqsY
lSV~-1}~Lc,ls (7yf'111-1U&"~ AJ~~vVf. t~ Q73r,5

1

6

7 LtHH'~S",vJe6 ~SvJ,12. ISetv1tter$ 222-@3V1'lti c /,t61v]1-- _

-_::f9-bL1 £ve.fa vv1 jo~" eve(4k\J€(.()m~!!.(J: ~t _
f\~:, Li' :\\ec " V~~ '<-0'). L! lA ~- I -- £> ~ "L ,._-



0000a)a)
I1V

w

c
1

0
O

G
)

0

o
E

>
c
ts

=o
-c

u
_
.)
I

-
,,-

c
v

Z
O

-
D

ø
c

o
_
c

3
3

0
F

Z
I
u
)

h
.

c
o

h
C

Z
a
)
.

0
0

C
l)

0-
a)-

U
•0

a:
0

2
c
i

z0
0Va)0
)

01
.

a)
VC

w
‘I’

zU
a)

Iza:0

)

155

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

rtJ<;;/l<)
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

@

COMMENTADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

SIGNATURE

4

_ ·-,<t'2I) '_ ~7~ ,ru loi,olls @ omr.,:, I, CDff\

10

3

2

1

PRINTED NAME



CD

I
c

-t z -1 m z > m

(T

‘S.

p

C
,-‘

C

c
i

c

r:;.

L
i

ç2 4..

4%

( D

CD CD 0
.

CD Ci
)

C
o CD 0
.

0
0 C

I
j -‘

‘
C

D
Z

m
>

>
:
i

(
0

c
o r

C
D

.

o o
.
3

m
-
‘

z

I.I
J
j in 0

& CD CD CD 0 C 3 3 CD - z CD

- 0 -n CD 0 -
‘ CD

-D m -I -1 0 z

0
A

-C
,

156

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

l2-1 S}l S-
PETITION

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

L' n tI A .rA '5)..g t-J~ JL7Ttt -~-_.~.~ . {

~6k:Qa0eIlQn;; ~.21=tfX.A- NJLZ..ugcn* O~ ~ ,:el.
2 I ~

~'\ CL~'-5.t?i",-k€.r+OV\. c;.,l.s 6-;; 6M6/ vd.:tf~-lJe0/J~ltJot< II
3

4~a ''6fCY1MhMY 253 ~() £:. ;?~f-t ~~-=...f/e1lr-9~7~?t",,-£ _

~~t~ ~~~~y ~rin~~e~~~r~\e~~~)~~~~~~~a~IJ~,c~lo~m~ _

• ~ )..ly 17 (""it R-/7 ~ b.£,X 1I<:s.5"" ,0.Q~ t<;r C< 9''1365
;

1 t

6

7

''Y73~S

o{2- ql~b~-



-U z -
CD

m
—

ID

CD

m
0
.

CD 0 (0 CD 0
.

0 2 >
-

-
0

m

—

-
‘

‘C
D

Z
m

>
E

D
-

>
0

(
0

ID
C

D
m

0
-‘

3
—

ø
0) 0
.0

)
z
.

0
)3

o o
-
L .3

0)
m

-
‘

z -
R. I

-L

/
—

-

I-
,

7- (

7

1 f’) 1 r’ F
-

& CD

ø
C

D

0
. If-o m -1 —

I
0 z

;

7

I

157

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

12-)~/i~'PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

~~-"-'f-

~
. .,..,-.~ ..

'" .... I

'. 1\

'-. I "-'Z, C \v\. \,:11\. ~ C3 ex \'\s. <t: ,--' , C("'1-\. \.
....,

\ \\\)G\({\e( \ U 1')'\.A-- 11\c\l\9~4g4t·O) \JC\\f\OO ·~00

2

1

3 (~) tI . ] .' \.
" --"..v\ \'" G\\\",,\.Q\ ~\~ 2 ~",\'')<.a-~'~_>h_ \ll3 5w It lk1St- }J~)pt6LQ:(,::t.305- ,

4 U. .
___j I&.)-e~ ~Jc 0L&.L~·· LL4. --LU.Y'JJy,,:c~

5 "" \J.
JlSeJct~:ryJ ~~, f-{-r•..JdJ ;~It-- ~~~ I)j J(fD?V1-~'--t---LJ) .C"'Wt

6 /} '.

7
3D S~A--J

r.,-
<J ':'W AI



0004
-’

a)0a)

4
-
’

zw
-

00
o

-E
c

c
I

a
).—

i
i

L
J
.....

t
I

Z
O

-
o

0
.

‘
-
C

E
$

W
a
)

.
,4

-’
Q

)U
)

.U
)

G
)

D
4
-
’

I1i

7

3

1
’

158

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION ,2-/ s-IrS-
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

~

'-:i\
." 1\\:;.:J '

j I····
I .... .I /) •.

\........ .. _. ,t"i .I' ,"';- I y"0 . "'\ /' ." ' .' - ...
I'" II J~.!i\ b0- 'f:,.: 1~ r,,J (__::- ""i,~': -=::~ t),·VI,...I.""",,, It-{ l(: .j- u;~ I::~\)G~,( l'~l7"'L~Vr{ I

t\ I J" _ _ " , I '" - , . - ./ ,. ,I 1

'4- f"'Vl L J '.r~l~i.l-I,JL .../ ~ --.. ,-"'~}. ,V \.......' _r~ "·t ~ .... t.r,.- l J"

6

J II . \ __

5 ~. , " \ ,', "i), ~.:.-\
"-.J I( ."""' .. ~

4 ·t ~-- f. I ....... _."l J ,
/ , ...------;J'. I/}-. ,(I, '.' I "./ ,f:., I

\.... ._ ...... :'t-",· . (6/,'...t Ie..~ ~.(I,"()C .v;;- k IJ..'\~/\._ ..'L---- ; Li...t.l-li.. '...-

3

7

~ .., ::::>hc-;~'r-v- -~~.~ Z:X S'"' h/J.I- ".01 /1./ n--0'.j--
8

___f\c~ r\,' \"V\ \~\"'DYY\ e-(' \ \ 0 S\J (Or (\1\ C v- A;-\ Dl...-!,~-<' Ba.v,
9 r .=:7

,-.J(,oV:JGt-Y'- ,b ~'\..- ~ if5 iflU f1'11iJ'Jv.'A. 12'\ I C0~lL/,/J
10 . 7~

R~
,---- ~~7

J'IJ('"NI/tlN€f'Y(~ C:d:.f~~~ ®



0 lIT

V
,4

-z -c
,.

‘
i

L

-

(A 4 c
‘l -

-U -1
•

m

C
m

D 0
1’

0 D CD
V

0
.

0 C
z

- -

—
C

D
D

C
O

D
”

cn
C

D
C

D
Z

.C
D

D

J
J
m

D
O

((
)

rC
D

-
-

m
k

u
O

“J
CD

C
D

CD
Z

_
3

C
D

-.

D
-D

O
)
0

c
.o

Z

I
.

$
)3

‘
<

-
.

‘<
3

.L
U

)

Q
0

Q
.
.
.
.
L

—
m

CD
CD

-
‘

I—
— CD C•

)
C I,.159

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

l21~/I~PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE
·7

1 :):",~ 7,,"r-id ~.#-~r

ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

/6~~ s....J g-z,.-!Jrl
$,./........, ~-:1. ,~ 1">6'-

COMMENT

$,.;/}"/',I.. Loc!rl
(}'t!.lN1o-1 !

tihere
?\t~

Be s. r lOC',1-!rU\l\. ~ A..f!
GC] -cr.:J ·5RJt

.
~J (

c~ fj,(c;ti fJ t<ndey?en/1cl ;) mf;./}· COY1f1

5kvvt"70J-fN l/PrLEJf-; (g '1 VV"' 4/ I ,e (J'JN\

l0f;rvt thb2 (tl,Ufl-N \qoi M'VN'ft,~GWPOrZJf\ 'fer!!'

2 -I' f!il
l { / tt,

5
/

6 i<,..krb 5t'ol~ l(~ ~"''''i ~~"",c", \.C IW\ QR-ffi\ LOCA n ~N
.9 ~ G.cs-fc. II!;;"q\t&/e-r e;tos- St~ u-t~ S f- (£}! 41..li '" h ~ .

t::L Q.( ) (,) ~..:..u' " "r·t- 012... Cfi73(;; (- - Q .1:.
7 () i'A i.~ '(, ,J . _'. 1'-.J~~6 v.~.r\M/l -ra~

ct ~C~~ k.(;t·Hlljt;(i'-~e'~ :27 (~ DLO PC:d~A-\~ ~l ~-rA-lf2173~5

9 . ,

........J . C IJ ., ." rt- .s IL. . S...,()ri)~~ I () t~.)
it (\\()L ~(CAy ........ tf1~ S ~ J') -St· D~ N 04.~l ,~tk ~. ..e£...J{\;:.."",_

8

3 -/

L.~/U5tin

10 ---:-,J d

,1,;1'\\(.. ~"(wayv\lfM11/l t~ \'It ~ ~\ N~o-A OfJ.- \1£> .0



-3

F
r\

IzU00

z0LU

4
-
.

0)

.0
)
4
-
.

.
-

4
-’

0
)
0

0)

2

C000CU
)

I-.

D0E
.1

I-.

a)E
c

0
-
C

ciC
I)

u
-a)
t
)

ø
c
L

)
Z

a
)I

U
)

00U
)

a)Cc,)
0a)Ca)
-C

Cl)
-

c
W

-
i

g
c

A
:
:

w
<

\..
0
<

<
U!

Uz
I

CD

1-’-

\
U

—
-

Uz0UI—z0
1

C
0

)
Ii-

160

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\'2-/ ~/ I~.-JPETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location (
W. 2nd Street; Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE " ADDRESS OR
'. . EMAIL ADDRESS

1 ~. J'" ~) 7-r /3 S-;\/E ~ t/~f0 -
. I"1 ,.. I ,. t.()-- . '\

/~(;Ii-JU(C j i(1c/1 /i1
2d f.lft-J?z.r-tji./l-i73t

COMMENT
..."""",/.... )

~;> C::1(i(.J,·

I
.. 'r .- ~-/--

{{/(.. ';'~ • I t, 7~ -

2 .

" 3 Devv\se Doe.r-Mer- ~W101+ '\hIS IS -\he best csf~
\<e.....;'DD~~'.-e, s~ . I' "'l'~,~,-}sec~ '--:C;-(L ~ (u->s ~ (.>(.),t\C:.

4

5 M~ ~{-~ • 0dttkd: 0/ed' ¥-iJ<W<b: t:ory'
fliJ.f{{O-re} k i.<b' if!l(J,Vl~K };(jdJ~"or( f.il1fl'-&J qfjcei..RA'AJtir/l .(;,v

6 I . j" , jYl.lrchtJ./1.

CLM.€ p/yvL- /~4~{U ~Ci.A+>· '~~Jk~

, 7 r~{Pl J2dM Q 600£ Le-'?aft q 7 ".

8 'J - ( ~ -to Llk~ tc~ Ltc t f,

:CL~~~~ <Jli5Tt1 tl\.&- tur~l\ b ~e~ . 0
---::-9-~-:...l

10 LJ-'d~ -;fz.t-uL= £!.¥o.e. 6..j , cU' - L,~ bbCfK.a r,. u.m.//I1Jt'l';1:

~ RIC el...I IV£: /1ft wfJ11;2.,1' 1() {> t-o1.:;41"1jtJ1~5R~{;( (
--...

~;)



-
—

C
D

D
Ci

)
CD

C
D

(D
(D

D o
z

I (s
-n

t
D

•1

-
‘

CD

E
2 CD

-
D 0 C

,

0

161

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION \2-15/ f~
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

- , V'" .., J 'J -. "",(It,. ~(()~.

(;Jerri 9t1y{L~ Si~ ~ll ~(bev\-H iA\f~,t ,
J", ~J

~ _/ .... ~G)

'J2I~V\lo TIJ4x~ -i!~("22~~~& teo~JU)//_6L~

P,\INTED NAME ADDRESS OR COMMENT ~w
t.- ' MAIl,.ADDRESS - ~'~ ~~

1 r ll\O{.l ~\ \I1t- l1':t\ (<..d. ah(f/Ut/(l'1 P-€rM1<t 612lO: Ja{ 0.&..0. ~·t~

4 /!} (
L.,t ('

5

6

@/ 95?;;C/.) tlb~O.11Jj);<J



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of

W. 2nd Street, Angie Street and Highway 101.

ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE

2

COMMENT

it

.....

7

8

9

10
162

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION IZ~/51 \S-
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

>5itj:i£J'?,,~ r;z35"L,fJ1Yj}JJ(J~¥ &~~
I<,'IL\\<;~" -RO.</fiVl. / f pd~;OV'~

3 '-' <......JJ..J "--' t I '. ( f"
*~~.~~ ~ Ii JJllt- '.

4 - I·, 7\ 'JL . 6) /{

~_~dQ1{ ,UQe(~r ~p~oe~"_D~a~~~D~~~~~~~~~
5 \ 7
6

7

8

9

10

.~



z0I—Fw0

4
-
’

a)

t
I

c
r
s

a
)—
Z
—

—

p

-50.004
-’
Ca)0-
cEI
.

a
)
0

iiiø
c
uI4
-’

t
)

Z
a
,I-.

C
1
)

00
.

00a)Cc,)
0a)C-C

1
”

\fl

C
)

0()S

w00a:
0CDCoU

i
a:

U
i

a
:Dz
,CD

ccc

3

r

,
•

—
‘.

Cr)
U

,
H-

I
1

)

163

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\"2-/5/ \~PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

COMMENT

~ VI Sl b\ II i \

.c: ,",,J Jt. I

...>t.(I tvE. S• S,;' IV I

.,'" -'"~' .• ': .-, r I ' I
/)f(.·I/I/''::/1 /.Ir.)e,· j(,:,

, ()" 1,'" &

L1/(.1 fl ) ct,~{:/.e.v .

4 / -----------I-I----~..::.~7y.:::.~~~2-

3

~ ,/-/ C; 1/)"1 0J D11. c-... _~~v L~~~.... P. yr!- ~.\j 0 . (.()~

2

5

6

7

8

9

10

(1719



H
——

..j

z0Fw0

FzU00

I
a).0
’

-
L

..

00004
-.

I0a)(‘3Ia)E
c(‘3
4
-.

I4
-.

‘3C
1)

c
c

Z
a
)I

(
J
)

cJ)c

a)000a)0a)CDa)
-CU

)

.
.
-

Q.Ifi

3

(‘1’

(

fl

U
)

Co

U
)

U<
L

ii

UDz0CDUz0UFz0

)

-

1
C

l)
L

I)
CD

0
)

01

164

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

\'USt\'JPETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location 01
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT ...

'1t:zt~~~0?
tte~{/£Jrv

~A 1

C;ff.t1 r- !t?C",,'1r'iVt. 1WWMti551eQ e\~/'/. It>.<V\

~ \"'"l- ,",,~:>{~1..:.{tJ ~,,-Ml.(tlk'---

4 ' U ·-u . '.J ~

5 0 Tl Fr. OJ,I'I>-1'- 075,rH )(,J;;.,..;;i ;J"l.« ~ .5of.l/.Z>t>l>C,L Cd--

J-16if.12 f Ifl1elCl /Il/#

kV. lv\o~'/

2

3

1 'N i\\ M6t~\\

6

7

8

9

10

~



CCD
Th

-u z -1 m z m

4
- N p 3

CD CD CD 0 C
D D CD

ci)
Cl

) =
z >

-D
-

0
C m

11 >
D

>
0

C
O

Q
)

••
-n

r
L

D
.

o o
-

m
-‘

z -
.

p) I& CD CD CD 0 3 3 CD —
I z CD 0 71 CD 1 Cl

)

-
‘ CD

-D m —
I

—
I o z

2
-

—
I

165

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r,

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

1 Gl-e,,"-F(tJ:J ~~'R ~ c/lh''l@t.~,;;;
2 /" I /~ , <'" 73 Yo
J;(Nt: r~~ic-v 04('~ &tl ,40.. t(lX yO:: J(R:12-

"" -----'----___ __ I

3 (1 ,- _
~ L1'2 ;10E:.'H :S:-'{)'l)~~ dlj;;.W·}b~ rn~ )f)e.W:1JD-;:t/~<£,~h.st.:Ct'-"h1

4 /l ,Jill t' - /
J}lCI'::>I.Jf} Lr=;c:y ft4/-hlg, - _ .:;/t?!tYt!:jJec{~. D~

7

6 > U--- ---I

C~IL~\~~ .~~.l'\ XTItJA JfY\ ~ 1-\<:\ ~,\ . (cA,

5

l\N1)A30~lY> ~ \S,,\~~f\\~'\tk~~-----.-------t'-----------

8

9

10



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

\a POL

3
ri 5 L flP50 N ci

4
Rc TY

C C°i’ )

5xJ E/4Y

:
8

9

10
166

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION ()
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

6
\ .

})£A-,.j PAl t-e~

,J ClOr S(J(\

E!~,()t!

7

5

4

8

9

10

2-



0I.

-27)13)/\73c

°i2tu)

1N3O3
ssaav7tVL;43

ossiaav3lfl!VNDISkWNG31NId

1.01.AeMI46!HPUB88J8I6UV‘jeeiM 40UOE3OIueiinoeqeirnwiewwnsepBvJSJeW]eIJOUM8Neq6u!deeNpoddnspeu6;siepuneq8M

1OI-AEMq5pueeeiispu4S8Mie
jejiejsiewrnIjodMeN.iewwnseqdeeNoi

6

B

NOIILL3d

167

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r,

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

,

Lt5ca.~

6e.s+ Vet LO!U/- \e..

f\/W

Po .£D X0; i S()~ Beach ~73~ 6

..;lYo/ N vJ r~S! tJ (Jj 913b:-

g1A000V'l e: fYl;"\o lIo-Z
8

3

2

9

10

-,

-.::::>



-u z —
f m Z

CD 0
.

CD 0 Cc
2 CD ci

-
0

0
m

CD
CD

t
\
)

<
D

C
D

-,
co

C
D

CD

C
D

C
D

D
m

>

>
D

3
‘
J
i
l
l
’

>
C

9
.

C
D

C
D

Z
H

U
0
-
o
Z

(
s
-
n

o
—

‘
o m

-
‘

CD
z

— LI

I-

168

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support ~eeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

~~~~

@r-e~+S~) .1

.2JQ Y\.\ U «
() \j \Lr\A' \lNw.J--.

W//YI oler-Pl.1. II t 1
~c-c..es.s I'h) e

'IAk.- J.-oJe- c; t-\'y

c.r'Y)~~3e ~O+-Vha:\< CoVV\ 50(+ l'dh~

( ~rzDb\U YS

~

1

6

if

LrNe.. ..vk... lovo.-*,'-

lY\~ir ~c>..lt14}e{ ~&L?-!;t' / / {

8dN)~i~UI{S - ~5 S£u,!wrlurf ff Per

7
gC0b

9~ ~~ 10 ~ 37'1/ AJ~pad ~ 7'7?fr,? &t2~ -~4~
10

(?~ r5 d)(,0<;~
~ . / ... "t «..-" ( I

'I

w.



4
-
’

a)cci

U
)

a)

L
W

zof—
a
)

F
Z

u
-
a
)22U
)

a)
4
-’

a)

0>
%

cci

Icci
4
-
.

a)a
,

4
-
’

U
)

-cc
J

1;;a)

00004
-I

a)I.I0cDccia)iii
co.=

cci-0cci
U

)
I
.

I

ciC
/)

c
c

2
<

Z
a
)

a)a0
.

(0
Va)0

)
0I
-

a)
Va)
4

-I

a)

U00

0Cl)
c
rw

C
O

O
U

)
U0
<

<
U

UC
r

DzC!3U
)

Uz0UzC
r

0

ciL
()

169

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r,

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

..
H1tjfwedl/ YJ;tJ"" c c,01'\-

~\ -\C'-V'Yl q \ 2.-05 S£; I s"t- -S +- Loc...AA ~v...5\V\ESSc-S
_~ ~ )..1,.., "......_v-.L.- o..-v-e tA..U IVV\?Clr-.-\-fM!\-t

9

1

l'"Y\AR'I you,~<2J

-J &p 29-PS AiE 1h.11,y f<,~ IX -.!... low D-<./ fflM~I

J'\\\ ~~t ~ N~$r-J
3 ~ 1/7 $£J /~ptujt

/Yl /f t<V~ tc JJtJA MJM/lt04. _~~tJgfLT.tJt- I ~ vL



PETITION
To keep the summerNewport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of

W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

ADDRESS OR
AIL ADDRESS

PRINTED NAME

GLf Sii2S
SIGNATURE COMMENT

D%’

Laov& ;?1%/( ca) aOfCQW\

SS(3

S p -

uflV\

10 0 0 (

c_Q \)
9 I s s & ,I.p V
10

2
T

170

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer:.Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

(p

~rr-

l

~ II'L- ;;/SS~ b~~ /-42-
9

8

7

J \A. R~ YO\Av'\

4
Ge

__10 j11u.r1~G~ 1 r-S~(N Cd ~ Laoy J1-



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 107.

ADDRESS OR
EMAILADDRESS

2t 5z-ot t1
o

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE

c)

COMMENT

)91N 4/ &

r&4A-t

.

6 t4WvP

7
-

8 / /
7& ç . [C’ 7 t76 /5 t_

A
cjAJ

17

171

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer;Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support ~eeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..-.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

v - --- -- ..-v

2 ol12 sw Il-b ~

He~~ln9fr1 &<,I ;-01--
/}

~NIsi? t1fi, ~edv C (!de;
1 1;;)-, leifpc/ =7?'y

:~~.--\---;;k-.- A/~~ C7k--1
75

cpT ~--- _._-r4 ~~ ..~ ;7~ ~t~ .~.~ vd~,

f7

/

'-"-~t~

9

B

~~

5G-1-~t~~ ;~
6 }Ad.A) P ~l h-e..~ J--

_--=--'-rYL_~~0 ~~_f --:-- _

<.:..W ~bl.17ffh- fJcVllfc-k- fbk. "5



.1

4
l

a)I
.

c
a
T

c
o

T

L
L

_

z
o
-D

—
a)

I—Q11P

I
.—0C000Ca)L

...

0a,S
.

I.-.

a)E
c

ø
c

W
a
,

O
C

Z
a
)

a)00000a)C0I
-

Ca)

J

t

c
)

di,

C
C

”
0

)

172

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer~Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
,,' W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

C)

COMMENT

J~I

'~L\Ii s E>?-J.<......~ &CS¥61 KES~,-vL -:SO'St~1: 97'?rLl(;
8

. .,fLl..H .$;'f..-{ ~~ $yt~/~ ... ,GI"l&. a.ul Co~
7 '

.5/~Aj[ l/wfl7)' ~tdk/ff Ill,} I(}L/~1-(7;J I '17};v

1

~uv.~ ~

PRINTED NAME

9

~~~~~I! \?'·eA..A%'~ '"' -- ., '\
10 . < ~

~~~tWscs LJJd ~()l,-t 'l)lL.



C000a)h
.

1
.

z0U)

•g
a)

S
.

S
..

—
1

1

L
U

—

L
L

._
D

t
z

Z
O

v
a)

a
S

E
2?

0
.
)

—
a)

F
,’

0
C

-

2
“
rD

Ja)
4
-..

c

173

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer'lNewport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport,Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. '...

et

d }S(!j~ /) e..re-d 1K.1f.:""/<.A
wkfJI.. d~;_.A '''5-'b!J tJl\. /"

,( ...

{)(I. fc--e-.v, .
kfl.-rts/U

D?01~~

~+ 01'- qi-~~-

,.,

W~

" L(/~ /01

~~z.. ~z. 6~~~i~C

;(ot5%~rUl

flJh_()1ICPtflJeuJfif»!Ycr. 10

- J(A)" f ~b1~Vt.(l

~~
~'J~

\

2

\\..:.._ .....

5-r

S~V0OJ~
6

(~,\NA~
2' 4{Jjf [OflJ\. (f- ~U f:WFbtf o!- C( 7~

(})f



‘4
-

0C0O

r
U —C

-
‘

a)
‘I

-4—
’

.
.

-
-

-‘
.
.

.

w
E

c
;
;

ø
F

>
E

c
1
3

L

c
v

Z
O

v
C

o
°
-

a
)a

)

-
-
-

C
]

‘

E
v

D
C

I

)

Ia)
W

C

174

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer~Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

..
PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR

EMAIL ADDRESS
COMMENT

4

r~$/~
5

AA\toJ ~,LAfl..>o,-1 ~). l.- \ul[.Jt:> ..')u.j I'fCfI@YM"~(.(O"'" !1.i.Jr f'-/Tc.E.1

f {J~J5fie-; r;;rj"~JY Ifl!~S-i / J2Lt'lErL /-/
8 ;p---

w.de~~~ 3<rs )./UJ ~t- /' pfiJofCf--
bV/lltter;' Q-4~...l9-~:':"+..f!L,~.I£-J/_--------------------------

9 " ,--

rk0..~ .
10

/J1.Iet-f/~L-Ui ~I rfA f(;Q' f:U [;)(.{~~/1Jrsy, '0" vft1'd~ f/22-



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 701
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of

W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

2

/

-

:

4

.j), /Jk

175

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer ..Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. ....

PRINTED NAME

1

SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

POt

COMMENT

2
J" ,-'

<-.0;0 G

(



CD CD C D 0 CD -
‘ Cl
,

D CD a (I
,

C)
C

z
-

C m

r’
)5

.
— CD

.-
‘ C
D

C
D

D
O

t-
I•

-
I

o o
.3

I:

-t
i

Z1
5 z m z m

1

c
N c

0

0 C
o

-p -ç ‘J
D

& (D
C

D

C
D

D
(l

)C
D

—
ø

r’
J
c

D g
z
z
!

D
O

c
.
o
Z

I (
f
l

_
0 CD

176

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer;Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current Jocation of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. ....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

1

2

3

4

5

6

fit> (6)( -BC;0J9"3

AN(!I\)lH.f '~C;xloX'/,
'f 0 Y?ox. %.:to1"7:5

V~c.o~v(: <;~{.;,~

. <t\3lt)
2. 41 /(JE Iur~ -(0....{4. ~M-f ,C'I-..

\~:;g L.f St.; PI) R; Pl$G
~ D IJ -r ~ ~ ~- A I'" ~I

- fJ 0 l3o'X Ii..tt~ .

uJ~(Jporl oR. ~73q~
./ I) 4- ..5 W I- t e jJ'

1f~5ef [" ..J'MfYlfu f/evfN~ ufl i1"36J
7 ~ C"\' I ~~\3o g&~

\\r\O{'l"\85 \-1\ Il'C\-L_, I~, ~ vJ~":lt i.. I Q'(~ C\1 ~l9C
8
~'" I /"oop-w --r;;j}c...__7'ih wfi' sf. jJ~vi 17f~5'

~
'

9 (\ ~

(bJ( .&~ Of2/1 O~(i!CL~A~S~\g~-L(f)'LWW

10 '1(1K~ fo(J"'xIOI7~1o,J-J? <;7'f~{



-U

CD
m Z

CD
>

CD Cl
).

D CD Cl
)

C)
) G)

—
1

C
0

r
’
D

0 -
D

C
D

‘‘
P

)
CD

—

—
CD

CD

L
a
O

Z

_
.-

n

o
—

m
-
‘

177

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer·,.Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME

\.'-
0.

COMMENT

"'" ( -1. :., ith ,

"..

ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

r..

SIGNATURE

..... ,. ~ A l\. ,. J "-...........,
~ M"

-~ ,

4

"',

3

2

1

..

Lf _oJ:? ./} ,-:.. "'.; .'"
.1 n/

~ ....~·~t":

t It
~ tt. '--

bts\.~in~~e.s -- A/Ai.d

.
V\\j

I Y

'I,

J'oo-'-

j ......~- -

UXAi

1, ../('

,
.!

i.WAt·i
'. J

/J(_a'

. .. "") q(kf

-,I
,/ "

..

....... -'"
("). 1'1". •• 1 A

-.... I

-

,\ ~11". ~-\7'- ',;I
\'N~ .,. \,';'

.- I ·1·.l' . Ii Ii
i~ ~ ..~ 1)

) J !'. -r'h ,) f!.~·S t.- r

6

5

...-/ r""')

~VI

. 7
, r ) ·fe-/\'"'lt~ ,n I" tI

8
, ~

"',

., \ \ ! \ (-~"\
1\

1"- l f

9 ....
} 1I

/,..--1 \r.A 1.\ ~f}-~'

10
i.... f\



H

SS3HGOV1IVL43
HOSS3HGGV

1.01-AeMII6!Hpuj38Jei6u‘eeJSpuM
ouoeojue.unoeqeepwiewwnsjepeJsiewijliodMeNeq6uIdeejoddnspeu6tsiepunO14OM

.Oj.AeMq6pueeipusej\
e>pjsiewi-jliodMeN]8WWflS8q4dee)01

:;

-]

1hJ1

5p°fl1-=5
(7(31c%53

A
,.1)

(AVI

Ø7

£%y‘61‘°

1N31’WIOD3Hfl1VNflS3P’1VNC3INIHd

N011113d

178

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r,

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

..
PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR

EMAILADDRESS
COMMENT

5

10

(llt,t,F7 L
--- - g'~r:;,-lJtJ ~~o../floc-/.<;rI.<;dl!~(.

a::V~ II GIf I S~ A>;~l,C;f. I ~'"-t~ 1.S'f''\cl-..

~e~ ~\-\ ,

I<&'"DD tl- ~

k'.,,,1" * l?



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location ot
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 107.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

1

2
[)

I’

4
j) t / 7s6 Ct 66
lV6 7 I t C

Str±
.

A QV td Qk

\\
179

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer~NewportFarmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support ~eeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 ..

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

( (

..
ql ?>lgS

tA t\

Po ~ 1345' Ai

~l~ ~, e-a'f.l..d-d-~(tJit l.~

~f)~~ '. bV1Qcllq ~va~"~

3

2

M, r16-0-~ '"St)yJ,

1 .

~Sl'-ltL~rJ~ (;\



-4
0)

L

E
o

a

c
i

I
.

-D

CD
m c
i

Z > m

CD 1 0 D CD a 0
0

—
I

C
0

C
D

m

C
D

c
ic

i,

-
‘

‘
(
D

U
)

_
0

c
.
0
Z

—
.1

,

f
lj

o
_‘

w
o

-
‘

-
J

II
I

— I180

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r)

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support ~eeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .....

PRINTED NAME

9

SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

ID



I
4
-’

cii0cii
C

u

z
o

,
-
022(0a

)

4
-’

ciU
)

a)

01>crj

ICciia
)

a
)

4
-’

U
)CC
’]

4
-’

U
)

a)

0C000h
..
I0a)(iiI
-

a)iii’

(‘s-c(ii

U
a
)

C
C

Z
G

)
a
)4

-’
C

C
O

4
_
D

.C
’b

J

a)0C0U
)

Va)C0a)
VCa)
4
-
I

a)

wa0

0

Cowwa:Dz0Co

wzawI.za:E1

181

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

7
I""'::

PETITION r, ~
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

·a~ (0~q7+t~ IM€ c::,~od- ~'5 ~
,,_ ~-r- f\ew l!9Ca:116}Vl

6 . ~~ /11 Z5c t->L ..k.>..··c~r

_~e.Lla< ~~ !J§"?~, ere, o/f)(.K-;k,;L J1. /-I.:.. f~~:+ Iar.~$:r
~ R - I !t36 (\IF; /If'" ~I-
Jcoj-i fl) 'faJ-tC~r"e'I-::;iP'_izb NfIVJOOi-1, Or> .

5 \ f\..V {\ _ ~uu '\ V\. \.JCA.cVl 8 f' ?tj5 $ to -eJ..u.Jf'/k. 0 G 8

~\JS tfrllJfkr! ( 6R qrr3'~ EV-lr'10IL f W;AS \

:~M B~Y1n~wtorY\ 5Svy~ \J.M~24~IbiJP~
~~ r»Mm/1eh~% (cJi).( & AL-t<J IkcufJ>n. r

3 :;::::l) f'tl~ (P\s"_ 'IV\.lS 'Ie;. CA ,s~~
S\utz... evt en 3%'~ @~r(\tvf.h~ \'r\sn ,0> fv\ ~~\e.-~, 111 ~~.s ~

8 r-r -:-::.-:-~~;-;,t-;-:------::----:--::----,--

"Jy~ {Y!MM~ fh-~ ~:;:J':t~7Jk:;; L6~:J-S~~tdt~.t6L..
9 V / rl;)O~ I~I( .' 1
10 Lv'r<U<.'.,J kr:tuktetL d-oJc..I~ IOt..Jo\ p,/q~91' - ~ Pl~.'1 ( t

~ / fir "1-'1 )f:JiM 'g C. cJ a< -;-7, /

_-L6L~ ~ Cf q1j~ (}~, 1/



C000Cci)
I0ci)

4
-I

4
-.’

U
‘I)

00
‘
I

(fl-C

C

t
I

E
j

u
)

co
o

L
L

i’-
t
,

C
s
J

G
)

CO
.C

4
a
a

-

oI—
(3

ci)
C•0a)

Lu
Cza)

z0
4
-I

a)

L
t

0

182

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION r)

To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

-.
PRINTED NAME

4

5

6

SIGNATURE

.~

COMMENT



z0HHu
J

0

D

0

c
i)

C
e

IL
L

2
t
I

—
I__

c
’
J

c
D

U
)

a
I
.

2

.9
-

CCC00a
)

0a)EE
c

4
.d

c
3

)

c
tS

t3

Ct3
L

L
a
)

C
C

4

zLu00zN
c’J

C
)

LI)
CD

0
)

C1

183

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

5tP1
~plltJPETITION

To keep the summer .Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. .

'.

5

{J/ 'u, l~th ~A Ivt
6 ~/--- •

7
II•

8

9

10

ADDRESS OR

To kLu (jIGe

EJD

COMMENT

~



b

z0HHw3-

a)C”U
)

L
..

a)C”
U00a)
za)EEU

)

a)
-Ca)

1C>C
”

D
)

ICC
”

a)a)

(1
)

-DCc”J4
a

U
)

aC0C)04
-
,

CD0ci

IIct
U)

4
-’

I—

c
U

)
W

a
)

t
O

)
D

C

Z
a

0
4
-
’

O
)

a)000DCl)

a)C0a)Ca)4
-
,
,

0

H
‘

zw00

t.

wcc2D0C
l
)
OaqJ

U
]

<
c

zU
]
—

H2
:ccEl-

01

184

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer .Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
t-""" "\/\/1 9":- EMAIL ADDRESS

1 '"'-- 10. \ne 'v I~z.c> ~ Q::;:> ,~= 101 E m(;Y:(L Jo1r.1JCl.Ad~---- _

~l /~)~-~ ~4~/~~,~~~~--------------------- _

Y+ IN') 5'4 L-0~ tL0'<t

I//~

0d~Vt~ I~L &rlA) 1'5 ~77JO

I JJ-& !Vf [Pes tr, Aj(>r/[;~;1-

9r7 jJW C OfP ~1 S;-r- vrrr q7)6)

/01 S SW SJ y-2ft. tlllf'1J11A /', I ~ / ~
9

8

4



z z > m
c
i

CD 1 Cl
,

Cc
:2 D CD

CD
CD V

> C n
l H/fl cD

-n
C

D
CD CD

CD

o o
- .
3

S
.

-
‘

z
CD CD C) -
, CD 0 C
, 0 0 -

4
,

cJ

-

/‘ C)II; fr
T

0

C

1\
)

N

c (
J I

L

CD

C
D

D
u
C

D

D 0 rC
D

.-
‘

_
•I

CD C
D

Z

i
;
:

c
E

5
’

—
‘

-
c
I
,

C -

CD

m H H 0 z

m (c

185

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer .Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street an.d Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. .

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

1 Qavoi ~():... ~~ 1/D NB3e-t-fvI·v p(
2

vibStni-th ~\J~-6nA~ ZJlSW 211M51-. M:Vu.f!L-t _
3

JO-IQ Q-.loh "14 sO ~ 9:< 3 S c.8Q'J-=-~-'--!u-,=<:-cf_~_1:~----It~-----
[\o,\v~f\\~0J0 ~~"3 ~.~ (3~"f \)\ vb 4: \S-

5___.__ ~e, :J1!'A)b,h,/ 1(7--7 .-S

ff!.tr/(Pf'C4 j [ ~h/t~ ~0 JJ// / r0 -5- )}Pt/J"JtJ tI'- -f ()
7

~~~ to 13c?J ~~~ Llea-U£Jwf- 6e.
8 ,-------- - /

'6 n.rA.Y'.\~ ~O-P)(J1A()f---- £b f-)b><1 C?qq \.i?o< \J f(l..a.-ft.-:.-.,rr-=O~~~_---

9~V,,'u:..-- ~~btl00 f(6 bO"0l> OJ e., 0-'U~Jp-=----:...on---=-------r-1 -"£-(J)...J-L _
10

::J e0~ I [fIL lo nq ~?1//raffmr/ (\571-/ titAV-e(f st /V.evJfJorf



4
-

0000a)0a)

4
—

-
w

.
‘—

-
0

c
Ø

0

i
’

c
’:i

t
L

.
c

Z
0
D

C
o
a
l

O
-

Co
CD

L
.

-
C

oca

L
C

<
U

i

G
)U

)
£
(I)

G
)

•
D

0

a)
U

i
to

a
:

I—
D

0
.

c
i

0
U

,

ci)Coa)

LU
D1L

1

4
—

LUHz
-

a:a-

186

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer .Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

/-

'oe~\ \0 ~c-\\.G~ ~

\0::.. &ID~'\-- a.-~~S~ ~

d/lf6~;;rr~.;/~-I/u./d.. P;.,,/ft/

~CDM

......

<;J" .V\~~

aU,

J f ft It (7 IIrf (f) }.1 J ~ . c iJ/Vl

~"" .

LlJa~J<(../LU-l ",,,,,,,..J'G;/~,6~

W~(\~ ~vJ- ~

~ d-'\,\u ~\~ .

~~~

f~~J) /Vl411ff (5/
9

10 \\\\CL~% iP-

4

6 ___

7

8

&1 L t..1~""""'CLJ;:.<Z..-~

~r~~

3

2

1



}Y7
‘4

i’i

SS:1QGV1lV
1N3lM”ODOSS3COVflI’v’N9ISVVNG1NiEU

L.O1-AEM16tHpueeiisoi6uV‘eOiL9pu‘M
LOUO!3O1uaunoeiepwiewwnssiewiJodMaNoq6u!deejoddnspeu6isiopuneip.

1-01-AEMq6!pU1eeJspuSeM
ejJsiewie-jiodMeNiewwnsoqdee)f01

NOt1LLd

i-Th

187

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. .

'.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

'"'-'"'

"
w~ '7-1: ~ ~~ .

.JZtM" ~+t'\.(S ~ c"""' ~
gy:'r2ti7 ~''1L-~rl -: J::-r .

,5 AO"lA--fJ -C<cfptt rltr'O"'(/i~U. 5'iJ'l€'s.J'. r f (
,.~. ~t-. ..J /J...u, II .• , If ...,;/ Jrr'"t 1....-

t/u'? <""' 1v1w ~o(:;t.. ")/

(-~ -"', /1
~~ (;LM

Jh J(

Sf L'£c ~ 'C) C.{~~os\iC.O.Q~S (~(OC~~ GErve.J.

CiD5 Nl3 '1tt-.. 5f

t{ -0 ~e toO"'"
S\. Lt\ flr. £, 1IJ t.n Jf)oo:t VY\C{ r,

\~~e\rl~s'~bvu Wh'~ v~{;.v·kv-, l,~r

MtUU

10

9



CD CD D c
i

CD a) c
c D CD c
i ci, o

0
CD

CD
C

D
r
)
3

<
D

C
D

C
fl

C
D

t-+
.(D

C
D

C
D

D

>
t3

D
C

-
‘

-.
‘

_
-
n CD

.
-

-
o
Z

(s
-n

Cl
,

—
‘C

’)

-

-
‘ CD

CD C) CD 0 0 ‘-
I;

C D 0 -4
’

188

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer .Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

7

. 6~..!L.5 f A/eW/Jorf ()f(

J.1() / 7t1E 6t;jJ s

3~'o ',/11'(; s~ rr 13~ 0

q;}. 3 S,E.t?t11..1 y;i lid tV0:-Upcnr' [Ftc-

SIGNATURE

tZ (~\.. n $ ()jlj--

Fret 1'\ k.
4

3

1

PRINTED NAME

'/\1,;' V-... \ '. ,



0
,

CD CD CD C,
) CD 0

C
D

C
D

Z
C

D
C

D

> c
Q

C
D

m

CD — —
C

D

.
3

CD I

-
L 0

c:)

CD CD CD Ci
)

C 3 3 C z CD 0 CD Ci
,

CD

‘3 m H H 0 z

/

189

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

,
51

YYl

( _ '=-t 1 )Lo L-

COMMENT

, I

\I'JA

I. I

. ,- V
,'-I L \ t+-

J &. t-(../ '7. ~..£ e· 71::)-~t' , C ~,.~

~JYl{L / {f S-r!/!II/I!- /Ic/t l S-; -5>+ le,tVJ I C; _/ .~cJ G
E/l,/qc:,//-y;t, h 111-f

T~~ Lc i~ tvl <-

4

'EIK{!J:<P~f l!l/~ 55.tC.'1(j"ITf
2

3

10

v~{/ t" P/~VL~ 7/0 fi ~ ~f.rf Xk~1-4'C'L ~l7j'01



1)U
)

ci)

U

z
o

o
G

)EE:DU
)

1)
4—Icici)ci)

2

C>Ici)ci)

(0CU
)

0 4-00ci0a)0a)I.ct3E
c

a
),

c
t3

C
,,4

-,

0
04-’cutc
3
)

c
c

F

C,”0‘JaN

0
c)

0
)

190

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

, .

C(76 9y

COMMENT

af!a~

7"'<'[ A/V) -tEE. J7?-~l-( /-'~wP'Jlr: o~ 971 6:.5

..------

)\)fj \1 L L
7

6

5

4

1

PRINTED NAME

8

9

10



0C0C
)0I.Cci)IC)

ci)

44
-

zL
U

0
o

-

c
1
)

u
_
n
’

ci)

H
Z

G
)

L
L

D
)

U
)<

LA
..i

h.
°
E

c
0

g<
c
t
I

C
C

Q
)
0

D
c
J

Z
o
,
.

ø
4
j

0
+

_
’

W
)

C
U

)
cD

I1
LUz0LUzEL

C
”

0

191

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

'.

<..,;

/ or.:. -477 0 (\)cz

COMMENTADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

)6"-JP~r '?/) PMx i B() b
l,..

SIGNATURE

~

4 I .11 V 'L J. 1/)J A k.) '.
I'",I'~\ _ ~\..o.~~ __ r;:/te~ /~u _ _ _ _u/ j '~U __N'''',J...-

3

PRINTED NAME

1 1" \ " 0--f~ p b v' ~ / 1//,

__ J-C--Y ({;/'-t:-r I f3c;t" /12:2 v0 . 6>( D..J L--I ~c
2

':-+/.v 7).e /;y;/l1.. '\Jt--st l--i~ tIL J/L \DR Cl(oc;,g fA'

5 __ -

6 . !~r SherfOV(Q.-- ~ \-2&- iJ-i) 5~ 5::;" .

S\I'JU\~,-,\ '\ (\ ~~\ 1'(\.J0U~~.~~~~%?N'~ 'J-~~~ . ~~ \+~""- \ (~)' vW~ ..
NQAJU P1J\0(" r I

'-.c::i

l--t.... ___

9 (J-'

7

\0YlC\\'\(), 'K,\Je{(~ /
8 -___I v I

/r

10



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location olW. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 701.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

6

3%.
JttJ

—_____ S
—— I1 L. CiJI t\ C4

— .___-Ji
- •1 /L-_g9tt — ! •t.lk’l C, —(: ,i

IuLJie (L €cij (c
Ls fl-1. L 1frLL C1Z.94\J S Q+S%’)Oj’wo. c*-

:- & cks\e t
E17 27 yerE% \10

192

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summe("Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market Summer market at the current location 01
,- W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

((

)~-6bJ(C
Q

,'c'l-}w l

9

8

7

6

5 /I /1" /I'" / 1// ~ /I

;)() sw ~o~ L (?0r ;; ~;L

1 ~f>I\rJ£'~"1tUL- (?¥= (yY\ho.pei£~v"-l"oo v:,~
2 ~L,~~~-(----r-,---
~l.~ W(t.~1!AAA.A) CO; -~C~ ? ') ~

. v) IJClV\I'I"-' 6\ \ISG-\-... i 1Ml\.~~.ritl,~Vl...:..Lg~hQ("""",,J_'_c&-vv- _

H?(.tTA4Ie:~~,- c:1u~A' _ IJI JJkJ (.""'- -tv



PETITiON
To keep the summerNewport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned

‘z-. 1/
— Sc

support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location ofW. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

V
—

/ L/

\L \JJCZth 77t)kA rnc i

?o /O i/,6 f
5( rLt’

7 OCJ1flr j9J4 liL -‘v4 ñvL V3

8
1

r C 1

10

(I

193

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summe(,Newport Farmers Market

.at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

(

COMMENT

~ c-:1~ ~VJ l~ 'AI(r Lfltt I~_/I_A'· L ')

...

~ l'~C~ (? 'f~I't.~~t

SIGNATURE

2

1

favt Q.~l.c ./1

PRINTED NAME

3 j . .....J...J "J •

L .-7' (

---q::JM.\l\~ Z<wt~ " 0, nw; I ~l-") l.S1\\t.ysr~

4 J?tnvffcwJ~fyt?",,1/,f)g~,ti'(b?!k 2 t "yO

5 tt1JIML ~), mg", Tw ' Kr4 bG t °YO}.rJ//6/I, ~~ac-r__- _
6 I'f '9 t {I' IJ!--\ 0 3/ Y1LU~rv~~

----.:;7.---~rtiD-lt H:rit - N~v<-r ail q \31oiL

~r<'D'~")1":)-(o ~ _u/?6}5:t:p~ LJ~L~ \'? \~{~'ul CI2~T~_L__S~.- ....- '\ ~- ---

8 h '""' (1/ I ,,7'

_---"oc.-t-L-"'-J(ri-~ffl V V~(C.U t I /

AVV\izj;1"\ QKk" 33S NbJ ~f5i~$T ",-\e1!.J~ 47sb6> atllLI I
10 0' o~ ° U'~

..5tuU{;I/LKeJ:~~« <f;W,,~,~ r!t..L0--;~



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 107
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of

W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESS OR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS

3/

% /
t1 q5lJ(7M)/v ,)‘LIVji}

J I AI c6

ef(r-ô jecSrç
7

L\

8

i- LOkQr’c)\ (kk)- Lxk 1r if

( (o’
194

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION v

To keep the summer'.Newport Farmers Market
at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. '...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

~

-vt
/7-3-~

~- ()f2-
DR.

?a~hO- y,detSRlN1JD
-~A1 '""1'), (f.7>.-

t'-J ijvJ r'~' I

to' COM

5StA!f:3~.

f·o.B~ s6~

C; 'J::&±±JJF I je-"5'1 r f @ cj""~ d. COo"""

6

4

5

2

1 '

K~/S+;l7ei/.



-o
U

’
CD

m

CD

m

CD CD
I

ci
)

0

z
-D

-

-
-1 0

m

CD D
t)

. CD
ø
Q

)
C

D

R
1

>
u
)

C
D

.-
..C

D
—

Q
ø

.—
—

‘
—

‘

CD
Z

_
C

D

[
‘<

3
.L

C
i)

0 m
-
‘

I

0 C -
‘ CD 0 0 0 a

c

195

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer~Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
, W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.. .

....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAILADDRESS

COMMENT

1
\4

oJ ~~

2

3
I ,:",_, !

.,

(
' ~ ........

" \' 1 \ t "').' .I J. 1... \ 1 'I' ,"L_" 10- ,1 .......... ~'.:::'; ¥ ~
_. ,

4 _ \
I ; H i" E. '. '" , ..,-"\ l ....~ ..-.... .P\

fl'
/ :r!:r

.., "''v{

r: I. ...• -I
/, "'-";. .... :-.}/... I

":"kO (- 0' t~...... , ,

I '.

~. .:. ~ )"

rr
I t\.(~>(

"
/i , ' •4'l

\ ~"
. ',J• I

I

yo .1)

_- I

\\ -

9

8

10

~i
VI.. ~I

': , j vf (.' .... \ I'.... \,,,''"' 5 j .
G.! ' "



AC—)

a)I—0
1

0)

L
L

_
t
I

I—
a
)—

0)

I
I

0C0.000)1I0a)(
v

Coh
-.

I
.

Z
a
)

0
)
4
-
I

•%
C

’tJ

a)aCo
.
,

CCoI
-

a)

Ca)
.C

.

I

3:

U00trW

C
f)0

0
<

wDzC
,

CDwzc
i

Ua-

0

>
‘

j
)
oV

)

1
-

—
0
)

196

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer'·,Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

COMMENT

td~·A~11

'\.
..-.J1 '

{ (

At;

1+5. N', Ct iO 110 ~t>t"t.~l,W -t f.\:tJC-

t'
f,

9

v .
(L y15t n1 e LM. C> TO

3

2 - )2#J'w ;/'/1.J1-
1 /.....Y,NrJ m, 'dm':t1. ;{JY~1 /15- Sf W'J...{e!r-j.lJr



To keep the summer Newport Farmers Maiket

PETITION

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location ofW. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS/_4L S-t

o%3 S) AS\o
SoeccVNff c-i3

‘-1&r;3 3’-)
-.%v c’ C\ \d,ó

PRINTED NAME
4r zzI ‘), &Jf - / ]t/

1/_
-

SIGNATURE

‘—
— 1-

COMMENT

4T c (?% L.’-L liLly’ hAt
1I)S /%

2

c Ltue

£ocLt ,&y\ 3/ 75)S 4I
-

SLcS t3’1

197

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer\Newport Farmers M~ket

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
.. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

....

PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE

elt.
1

ADDRESSOR COMMENT
EMAIL ADDRESS
/ae..?>~ ~-t N-r- O<""l,. tJiC-P,-f-~_ /vii

At,~~ ~b\e.

Cor-

8

9 j-{lec\ho.r S~y\ Cif\~

10 C,,",'f \e:, S~" \ c<'~

t> \?D,L. S1ltn-

( I've11I/1(;1:--

~/?)?t)

lD\J~ ""-'\ ~CA\Y'Y"L~,) ~~~



PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101
We the undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of

W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101.

I 0 11 i 1q ji41i Y 1) 1 C L7 0

PRINTED NAME

2

ADDRESS OR
EMAIL ADDRESS

•1
a

&m -crfl

COMMENT

3 U
, -J:

: LI •
3€na i\ c0:

yY ic itkcLQqa kcfl .(i)ty•.
198

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
ac

ke
t f

or
 M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

01
6

PETITION
To keep the summer Newport Farmers Market

at West 2nd Street and Highway 101

We t~e undersigned support keeping the Newport Farmers Market summer market at the current location of
. W. 2nd Street, Angle Street and Highway 101 .

...

PRINTED NAME

1

8

9

01'

ADDRESSOR
EMAIL ADDRESS

,'lY"'6! ~es'1' {,&J ......

COMMENT



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:8.C. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
Report on Workforce and Affordable Housing Strategies 
 
Background: 

At the February 23 Goal Setting session, time was spent on discussing specific strategies 
to encourage the development of workforce housing and affordable housing in and around 
the City of Newport. At the Goal Setting session, a number of concepts were discussed 
with the Council with the Mayor then determining whether a majority consensus existed 
for each of the concepts discussed. Attachment A to Derrick Tokos’ report outlines the 
concepts that the Council supported as a strategy for dealing with affordable and 
workforce housing issues in the City of Newport. Please note that we combined a couple 
of issues that were brought up at the Goal Setting session from the Council including 
participating in regional forums with regional partner agencies such as is proposed by the 
Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County with a workforce housing forum in 
Newport scheduled for April 5. We also expanded the potential opportunities to use city 
owned properties to incentivize housing on a land banking/donation or sale basis. This 
would keep a broad range of options available regarding the use of city property available 
for planning considerations.   

In Addition, the City Council has had extensive discussions regarding the city’s 
relationship with the Lincoln Community Land Trust particularly relating to the handling of 
the potential development of city property located adjacent to Don Davis Park. In this 
particular case the Trust had issued proposals for the potential development of the city 
owned site without specific Council approval or notification of their desire to consider the 
development on that property. This matter was compounded further when inquiries were 
made by Council members and information was not shared in a transparent manor to the 
City Council by the Trust. In a January 29 communication to the City Council from Trust 
President Bill Hall, the Lincoln Community Land Trust acknowledge their failings in acting 
transparently  

As a result of discussions between the city and Trust, the Trust is now providing monthly 
meeting packets to the City Council and are in agreement to a multi-step process to 
provide transparency in consideration of any other city properties for workforce housing 
project prior to proceeding with any specific proposals. The Trust has invited both the City 
of Newport and Lincoln City to designate one of its members as ex officio board member 
to act as a liaison between the cities and the trust. Furthermore, any Council members 
are welcome to attend any meeting of the Trust.   

In evaluating the situation on behalf of the City of Newport, I believe that there are several 
reasons why the city should continue its commitment with Lincoln Community Land Trust. 
First of all, I believe that Proud Ground as contractor for the Trust has an opportunity to 
meaningfully address workforce housing in Lincoln County as they have done in the City 
of Portland. It is important to remember that the Trust has not had professional support 
up until their recent agreement with Proud Ground in order to carry out their initiatives. 
Secondly, I believe affordable/workforce housing are only going to be addressed with 
collaborations such as the city currently shares with Lincoln City and Lincoln County. I 

199

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



also believe there may be opportunities with other collaborations with other organizations 
in our efforts to try to address this significant issue. Finally, I believe it is important for the 
city to maintain its commitment to intergovernmental agreements that we enter into unless 
significant problems with that relationship exist and go uncorrected. I believe that the Trust 
has made a good faith effort to address the serious concerns that the city shared with the 
Trust regarding the operational methods for that organization. It is important that when 
the city enters into this type of commitment that the city be viewed as a trusted and reliable 
partner going forward to the end of that commitment. It is my recommendation that the 
city actively participate with the trust for remaining year and a half of the memorandum of 
understanding. I have attached a couple of communications outlining the Lincoln 
Community Land Trusts’ commitment to address the concerns that the City Council 
shared regarding the ongoing relationship with the memorandum of understand.                                     
  

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motions: 
 
I move that Council find the affordable/workforce housing strategies identified in 
Attachment A to be consistent with the city’s existing housing policy and direct the 
City Manager to take appropriate steps to implement these strategies as resources 
and opportunities allow.  
 
I move to confirm the city’s commitment to the memorandum of understanding with 
Lincoln County, Lincoln City, and the Lincoln Community Land Trust to temporarily 
fund Lincoln Community Land Trust professional staffing, direct the City Manager to 
make the $30,000 payment to the Trust the city budgeted for in the current fiscal year, 
and to cover its share of the cost in the third year of the agreement with such 
commitment not being construed as city support to provide funding beyond the 3 year 
term of the agreement.          
 
I move to appoint Councilor ____________ to serve as liaison to the Lincoln 
Community Land Trust Board with the City Manager conveying that appointment to 
the Trust.    
 
Fiscal Effects: 
$30,000 is budgeted and being held in the current fiscal year for this purpose.  
 
Alternatives: 
If the Council is inclined to terminate the memorandum of understanding, then I do 
believe that the city would have an obligation to make payment in our current fiscal 
year which has not been paid to the Trust at this time. From an overall financial 
standpoint, as is outlined in the memorandum of understanding, the Trust has 
based their financial operations in the current fiscal year on the $30,000 being 
available from the two cities and Lincoln County. This would give them notice so 
that they could make financial adjustments for the 2016-17 fiscal year if the city 
withdraws from the memorandum of understanding.  
 
 

200

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



The Council could defer a decision on continuing the memorandum of 
understanding until after a second meeting with the Trust to confirm the city’s future 
working relationship with the Trust.  
 
In addition, if the Council can modify, add, or delete any of the items in Attachment 
A as strategies going forward. If there are suggestions for modifications, then these 
changes could be discussed and acted upon prior to approving a final list of 
Council Strategies going forward with affordable/workforce housing.           
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

201

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



From: Bill Hall [mailto:whall@co.lincoln.or.us] 
Sent: Sunday, December 27, 2015 10:04 AM
To: Spencer Nebel <S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Materials for Council Packet

Hi Spencer,

Thank you for the suggestions. I have incorporated them, along with a couple of other additions 
and tweaks. Initially I thought Diane was going to do a separate memo to the council, but she 
suggested I include information about PG staff time in this letter, so I have done that.

I will locate the bylaws as soon as I can--I can't immediately locate them electronically--and will 
pass them along. I also need to have a conversation with Derrick about his role. At this point, I'm 
not certain how clearly we defined his role, Allison Robertson's, Ron Tierney's, or Max Glenn's. 
They're all staff or electeds, but I just don't recall whether we have considered them official 
representatives of their jurisdictions or not.

It was a nice, but damp Christmas, and I hope you had a great one too. Here's to more good 
things moving forward in 2016!

Bill

204

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

mailto:whall@co.lincoln.or.us
mailto:S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov


 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



December 28, 2015

Dear Mayor Roumagoux and Members of the Council:

Expanding on my comments made at the December 14 Council work session, I want to 
apologize on behalf of the LCLT board of directors for jumping the gun on this project. In our 
eagerness to fulfill our promise to you in July of 2014 to get things moving in actual production 
of housing, we truly put the cart before the horse. We wanted to bring you a clear concept for 
discussion and possible consideration, but I realize this put the council in a difficult spot once 
the rumor mill caught fire, and I’m truly sorry about that. I hope that we can move past this and 
move forward productively from here.

As was noted at the December 7 council work session, the city’s own study shows a deficit of 
more than 800 housing units. With a challenge that great, no one solution can address the 
problem in its entirety. But the LCLT can be part of the solution, and fill a niche that no other 
housing program in the county can fill—home ownership opportunities for teachers, nurses, 
small business owners and others earning above 60 percent of area median income.

Per your request, the Lincoln Community Land Trust is submitting to you an accounting of all the 
city and county monies spent to date, as reflected in our most recent financial report. Diane Linn 
estimates that approximately 800 to 900 dollars in total staff time went into preparation of the 
RFP. Proud Ground does not break down individual line items by funder, but if you want to 
assume the cost was shared equally by the jurisdictions, you could say approximately 300 
dollars in city funds went into preparation of the RFP. We are also supplying the information 
prepared by the Housing Development Center, in case it is useful to council and staff in 
evaluating the future use of these properties by any party.

One of the concerns that was expressed by the Council was the access to information regarding 
the Land Trust activities. In the interests of clearer ongoing communication, I am proposing to 
the LCLT board that we provide each of you with our monthly board packet, which includes the 
meeting agenda, minutes of the previous meeting, the executive director’s report and the 
financial report.

Another concern expressed by the Council was relating to a process for going forward with 
discussions about the potential use of city property for workforce housing. City Manager 
Spencer Nebel and I met on December 15 and discussed a path forward. It is my understanding 
he will be presenting a recommendation to you for a process for the council to consider requests 
for donation of property to the trust. I hope you will be open to that proposal.

Although we never formally brought a proposal to the council regarding the property adjacent to 
Davis Park, concern in the community that the Trust might do so has generated enough 
controversy that I would like to convey to the Council that the Trust will cease its efforts to 
evaluate the property and will not make a request of the City to develop the site for work force 
housing.  I think everyone will be best served if we set this issue aside.

The other members of the board and I look forward to working with you in the year ahead.

202

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Sincerely,

Bill Hall, LCLT Board Chair

203

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Page 1 of 3 

       
       

   
 
             
   

 
 

 
Title: Workforce and Affordable Housing Strategies       
 
Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director    
 
Recommended Motion:   
 
Affirm Affordable and Workforce Housing Strategies 
 
Motion:  I move that the Council find the affordable and workforce housing strategies 
identified in Attachment A to be consistent with the City’s existing housing policies and 
direct the City Manager to take appropriate steps to implement each of the strategies as 
resources or opportunities allow. 
 
Appoint Liaison to Lincoln Community Land Trust 
 
Motion:  I move to appoint Councilor _____ to serve as a liaison to the Lincoln Community 
Land Trust Board and that the City Manager convey the appointment to the LCLT. 
 
Participation in LCLT, Lincoln County and Lincoln City Intergovernmental Agreement 
 
Motion (Option #1): I move to confirm the City’s commitment to its intergovernmental 
agreement with Lincoln County, Lincoln City, and the Lincoln Community Land Trust 
(LCLT) to temporarily fund LCLT professional staffing, and direct the City Manager to make 
the $30,000 payment to the Trust that the City budgeted for FY 15/16 to cover its share of 
those costs.  Such commitment shall not be construed as City support to provide funding 
beyond the 3-year term of the agreement. 
 
Motion (Option #2):  I move to direct the City Manager to prepare a letter to the elected 
officials of Lincoln County and Lincoln City, and to the Board of the Lincoln Community 
Land Trust advising that the City of Newport will not be participating in the funding 
agreement, effective 7/1/16 as it no longer believes that it is in the public interest to do so. 
 
Background Information:  Under state law the City of Newport is responsible for 
inventorying its buildable lands for residential use and for developing plans to 
encourage the availability of housing at price points commensurate with the financial 
capabilities of Newport households.  To that end, the City engaged its community 
partners in 2011 and 2014 to update its housing data and develop strategies for 
improving the inventory of affordable and workforce housing in Newport.  A number of 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

205

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Page 2 of 3 

the strategies and recommendations have been implemented including expanded 
allowances for accessory dwelling units, new regulations to provide flexibility for siting 
“park model” units in Manufactured Dwelling Parks, and the creation of a revolving loan 
fund and land bank program.  Other implementation strategies are ongoing or have not 
yet to be implemented. 
 
On February 16, 2016, the Council held a work session to discuss workforce and 
affordable housing strategies that are in the process of being implemented or have yet 
to be initiated.  The strategies were further discussed and refined during the Council’s 
February 23, 2016 goal setting session and a revised version of each is included in 
Attachment A to this report along with an explanation of how each can be developed 
and moved forward.  The strategies listed in Attachment A have been informed by prior 
community engagement and policy the City has developed and will undoubtedly evolve 
and change once the City completes its community visioning project and new 
opportunities become apparent for the City to facilitate the provision of needed housing 
within the community. 
 
On January 4, 2016, the City Council adopted a motion to withhold all future payments 
to LCLT until satisfactory data and planning information is provided to the City Council.  
Since then, the LCLT has provided the Council with its monthly board packets and 
offered the City Council a liaison position so that it can more actively engage and/or 
monitor Trust activities.  It has also prepared a 2015 annual report which will be 
distributed shortly, as required by the intergovernmental agreement.  The Council 
should determine if this information is sufficient or if there is other information that it 
desires, in which case it should specify what it is looking for so that the Trust can 
respond. 
 
Payments the City is withholding are called for in an intergovernmental agreement that 
the City entered into with Lincoln County, Lincoln City, and the LCLT Board in 2014, as 
amended in 2015, to provide funding for LCLT professional staffing for a period of three 
years.  The Council should determine if it intends to adhere to the agreement or not. 
 
The City’s partnership with the LCLT is one of several workforce and affordable housing 
strategies it is pursuing.  That is why the topic was included as part of the February 16th 
and 23rd discussions.  At this point, the most prudent course of action for the Council 
might be to appoint a liaison to the LCLT Board and monitor the Trusts activities and 
progress through the term of the 3-agreement (which is about half done).  Once the 
agreement is concluded, the Council is under no obligation to provide additional funding 
but may do so if it feels it is appropriate. 
 
If the City were to back out of the agreement before it is concluded, such action may 
send a message to Lincoln City, Lincoln County, LCLT and others that the City of 
Newport is an unreliable partner that cannot be relied upon to fulfill its commitments.  
This could make it difficult for the City to make headway on other initiatives, housing or 
otherwise, where it needs the County, Lincoln City, or other local partners to cooperate.  
There is also a legal question as to the extent to which the City is obligated under the 
agreement to provide its proportional share of funding for the current fiscal year.  If the 

206

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



Page 3 of 3 

Council elects to cease its participation, it might be best to do so effective 7/1/16.  That 
would provide time for the Council to inform its partner agencies before they have 
committed funding for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no immediate fiscal impacts associated with the Attachment A 
strategies.  Sufficient funds have been budgeted to cover the City’s financial contribution 
towards LCLT professional staffing for the current fiscal year. 
 
Alternatives:  The Council may elect to forge ahead with the affordable and workforce 
housing strategies listed in Attachment A, make changes to the listed strategies, or 
choose to take no action at this time.  Likewise, the Council may elect to clarify its 
stance on the LCLT intergovernmental agreement or postpone such action.  Because 
the LCLT agreement includes a funding commitment it is important that the Council 
provide its funding partners clarity as to how it intends to proceed for the current and 
upcoming fiscal year. 
 
Attachments:   
 

 Attachment A to the staff report 

 Intergovernmental Agreement with Lincoln County, Lincoln City and LCLT, dated 
3/25/15 

207

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



ATTACHMENT A   March 7, 2016 

Page 1 of 2 

The Newport City Council recognizes that the limited supply of affordable and workforce 
housing in our community is a significant challenge that must be addressed through the pursuit 
of a variety of strategies consistent with the City’s adopted housing policies, including: 

1. Engaging Lincoln County and other taxing entities on the viability of establishing a multiple 
unit tax exemption program to incentivize construction of multi-family rental housing. 

A technical work group could be formed to develop a framework for a tax exemption 
program.  The group should include legal, planning, developer, assessor, and affordable 
housing representatives.  Options would then be presented to policy makers for discussion 
and possible action. 

2. Assessing city owned properties to identify if any are surplus to the public need and suitable 
for land banking (i.e. donation) or for sale. 

Background information on each city owned property has been compiled and presented to 
the Council in the past.  It can be refreshed and brought forward for discussion in a work 
session to see if there is general consensus if any of the parcels are surplus to the public 
need and, if so, what other use they may be suitable for.  Any steps to surplus property 
require formal Council action, and the scope of what that might look like may become 
clearer following the work session.  If an opportunity exists to sell, as opposed to donate 
property for workforce or affordable housing, the City should evaluate if a sale for less than 
market value could be used to leverage affordable units. 

3. Looking into whether or not the City wants to convey to Lincoln County that it is willing to 
forgo tax revenue from the sale of foreclosed property if the property is to be used for 
affordable or workforce housing purposes.  

This might be best accomplished by letter and a draft can be brought forward for Council 
consideration at a future meeting.  Such a letter could then be distributed to other affected 
municipalities to see if they would be willing to sign on. 

4. Investigating if changes are needed to the intergovernmental agreement the City has with 
Community Service Consortium (CSC) to improve citizen access to Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds the agency is managing on the City’s behalf. 

As an initial step, the Council may want to invite Community Service Consortium to provide 
an update on their implementation of the intergovernmental agreement, what they believe 
has and hasn’t been working, and any suggestions they may have for how the program can 
be strengthened. 

5. Exploring opportunities to incentivize the construction of affordable or workforce housing 
units with reductions in System Development Charges. 

Funds have been budgeted for this work, and a Request for Proposals will be put out this 
spring to secure a consultant to assist the City in updating its System Development Charge 
(SDC) methodology.  Strategies for structuring SDC fees to facilitate construction of 
affordable and workforce housing will be examined.  An advisory committee will need to be 
formed to assist with the project, and the resulting recommendations would be presented 
to the Planning Commission and Council. 208

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

6. Evaluating the viability of adopting alternative street standards into the Newport 
Transportation System Plan and subdivision codes to reduce infrastructure costs for new 
development. 

This will require coordination with the Public Works and Fire Departments and it might be 
best to forward the Planning Commission to develop options for reduced street sections for 
consideration and possible adoption into the Newport Transportation System Plan. 

7. Evaluating opportunities to leverage Newport Northside Urban Renewal funds in 
redevelopment projects that will create new affordable and workforce housing units, 
recognizing that such funds will not be available for expenditure for several years. 

No specific action is needed at this time.  Goals were included in the urban renewal plan to 
support use of funds to promote the construction of affordable and workforce housing units.  
The Urban Renewal Agency should be in a position to initiate an Agate Beach 
neighborhood plan, and Downtown revitalization plan beginning in 2017/2018 and these 
planning efforts present an opportunity to identify if urban renewal funding can be leveraged 
to help realize new affordable or workforce housing units. 

8. Participating in regional affordable and workforce housing forums with partner agencies 
and stakeholders. 

This includes dedicating staff and meeting space to better understand partner 
agencies/stakeholders housing related needs, expertise and resources in order to develop 
concepts for moving affordable and workforce housing projects forward.  The Economic 
Development Alliance of Lincoln County is tentatively looking to hold such a forum in 
Newport on April 5, 2016. 

9. Reviewing any newly adopted statewide legislation intended to improve the availability 
affordable or workforce housing for potential application in Newport. 

It is likely that the 2016 short session will produce some changes, including authority for 
local governments to adopt inclusionary zoning in a limited capacity (e.g. the ability to 
mandate that a portion of the units in a new multi-family development be affordable), and 
authorization for local governments to adopted a modest construction excise tax.  The 
legislation could be forwarded to the Planning Commission for its consideration and 
recommendation as to whether or not any of the new authorities should be implemented. 

10. Assisting Habitat for Humanity in implementing a land donation agreement for the 
construction of affordable housing at SE10th and S Pine Street. 

Staff time will need to be dedicated to assist Habitat in putting easements in place, adjusting 
property lines, and taking similar measures to position the properties for development. 

209

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



210

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Amendment March 25, 20 IS
Memorandum of Understanding

By and Between
Lincoln Community Land Tmst, a 501 (c)(3) nonprofit

and
the City of Newport, the City of Lincoln City and Lincoln County

Note tllis Amcndmcnt to thc Original MOU bchvccn thc partics pl'Ovldcs that cach Public Pal1ncl'
will providc "up to" $30,000 annually find that funding will bc uscd for profcssional staffing lind dclctcs
rcfcrenccs to II full timc staff person and rcfcrcnccs IIttllchecJ e-mllil.

This Memorandulll ofUnderstamling (MOU) is entered into by The Lincoln Community Land Trust
(LCLT), a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization and the City of Newport, the City of Lincoln City and Lincoln
COllllty (togetlJcr:the Pnblie Partners) pursuant to ORS Chapter 190. It is intended to establish base funding
by the Public Partncrs for administrative services to be provided by LCLT in supporting LCLT'5 mission to
provide permanently affordable homeownership for working individuals and families within Lincoln County.

The Public Pllrtners, subject to al1l1ual appropriations through their individual locnl budget processes,
will each annually on-July I provide up to $30,000 to LCLT beginning July 1,2014 and continuing through
June 30, 2017 (total of $90,000 per public partner and $270,000 by all the Public Partners for the tlu'ce fiscal
years). (See the attached e-mnil communication from Lincoln County Commissioner Bill Hall to Newport City
Mnnager Spencer Nebel, dated March 3, 2015). The funding will support professional stnffing for the LCLT
and associated administmtive support services. It is intended that the funding will cover all costs associated
with the position and services amI LCLT will be responsible for covering any shortfalls between actual costs
and the funding provideQ. If LCLT should for any reason not be able to fulfill its obligations, any remaining
funds will be returned 10 the Public Partners.

In ·addition .to the ftllll.ling support for LCLT's miSSIOn, the Public Pllrtnel'S, without a specific
commitment of resources or properties, agree to give a high priority, within requirements under law, to
providing surplus or foreclosed land held by them and/or revolving loan funds to the LCLT for housing
development. Without committing to a specific number of homes in specific locations, LCLT conm1its to
making a priority to distribute housing units throughout the county with as much equity as possible.

It is intended that the Funding provided by this MOU is temporary in nature and that LCLT will work
towards full budgetary self-sufficiency by the end of this funding allocation. Towards that end, LCLT shnll
provide alUlual reports by .July 1 of ench ycar and a final report to the Public Partners, no laler thun December
I, 2016, detailing its accomplishments to that date, ftlllding for services aAerJuly I, 2017 and how it intends to
be fully funded for services thereaner.

The parties understand that thc law reserves cel1ain decisions to the governing bodies of the respective
parties, and nothing in this agreement shall divest those goveming bodies of their authority.

City of Lincoln City

1



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:8.D. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 

Schedule a Public Hearing on City Council Goals for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year  
 

Background:  

On Tuesday, February 23, the City Council met from 10 A.M. until 4 P.M. to hear reports 
from the various city departments on departmental goals for 2(l16-17 and to identify 
Council goals for this next fiscal year. In addition, with the Council’s direction to conduct a 
long-term community visioning project during the 2016-17 Fiscal Year, the goal setting 
process will see some significant changes in future years. It is my hope and expectation 
that the visioning process will develop a framework for the City Council to consider 
adopting longer term goals that would be tied to various aspects of the overall vision that 
will be ultimately develop for the greater Newport area. 

 

The City Council Goals include the status of the 2015-16 City Council goals indicating 
whether they are either ongoing, completed, or dropped. This is followed by the draft  
2016-17 City Council goals which were established at the work session on February 23. 
Throughout the course of the day many different ideas and concepts were written down 
by Council members as part of the overall presentations from departments, reviewing 
previous planning efforts, and including issues of importance to the City Council members. 
Those items were then categorized and prioritized by the City Council. Items prioritized by 
three of more City Council members have been included in this report. In addition, there 
are a number of items that the City Council has previously committed itself to which are 
listed by consensus the report with a "(C)". These are included to recognize other 
significant efforts that staff will be working on through the course of the year. 
 
Attached is the draft City Council goals for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year for your review. I would 
ask the that Council formally accept the report and schedule a public hearing for the March 
21 City Council meeting. Please note that the draft report has been sent to the various 
boards and committees for their review with a request that they forward their comments 
prior to the March 21 meeting. If the Council wants to t ake any modifications changes or 
corrections to this report please let us know so that we can finalize it before we publish 
the draft report for public comment.  

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move that the draft report for the City Council Goals for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year be 
accepted and a public hearing be scheduled on the goals for the March 21, 2016, 
City Council meeting.  
 
 
 

211

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Nf,~

~I
O"-':"QN~



 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by scheduling the hearing.  
 
Alternatives: 
The Council could modify certain provision of the report or as suggested by the City 
Council.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

212

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY COUNCIL GOALS FOR THE 2016-2017 FISCAL YEAR 

Introduction 

The Newport City Council met in an annual goal setting session on Tuesday, February 23, 2016, 

beginning at 10:00 a.m. and concluding at 4:00 p.m. The meeting was held in the City Council Chambers 

located in City Hall at 169 SW Coast Highway. The Council reviewed the Mission Statement, heard 

presentations on departmental goals, and reviewed various plans and documents prior to identifying 

potential future goals for the City to pursue in the next fiscal year and beyond.  

 

The City Council also discussed the visioning effort that is proposed to take place during the 2016-17 

Fiscal Year. It is expected that the visioning process will redefine the Council’s Annual Goal Setting 

process in the future. The visioning process should help focus development of longer term goals that are 

directed towards implementing the overall community vision.  

 

The primary purpose of the current goal setting process is to identify priorities that the Council would 

like to address in the upcoming budget for the City of Newport. This is the basis for the recommendations 

that will follow in this report.  

   

Throughout the course of the Goal Setting Session, Councilors identified various projects or goals that 

the City Council would like considered in the upcoming budget for this next fiscal year. These issues 

were noted on 5 x 8 index cards by each Councilor. Once the cards were collected they were organized 

into various groupings for the Council’s review. Councilors were provided with 14 stickers, which could 

be placed on 14 items that were identified through the course of the work session to determine overall 

Council priorities. Those items that were identified by 3 or more Councilors as a priority have been 

included as Council Goals for the 2016-2017 fiscal year. Other ideas mentioned during the Goal 

Setting Session are listed for informational purposes only. Please note that the specific goals of the City 

Council may include some goals that were identified as priorities by the departments. At the March 7, 

2016, City Council meeting, the Council will formally will proposed goals for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year, 

and requested public comments on the proposed goals. On March 24, 2016, following a public hearing, 

the City Council will adopt the Departmental Goals and the City Council proposed goals.  

 

As part of the upcoming budget process, the budget message from the City Manager will detail how 

the Council goals have been addressed, or not addressed in the proposed budget for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017. The Budget Committee can evaluate the City 

Manager’s proposed budget and make any modifications to reflect the wishes of that body. This will 

also include any ongoing goals from the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.   

 

 Review of the 2015-16 Fiscal Year City Council Goals  

 

The 2015-16 Fiscal Year has been a transformative year for the City of Newport.  Many public 

improvements are taking place along the US 101 corridor in South Beach addressing Safe Haven Hill, 

access to the OMSI property, improvements to Ferry Slip Road, implementation of neighborhood 

refinement plans, and other projects that are part of the Urban Renewal District for South Beach. 

 

213

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 1 

Camp Gray is in process of being completed by OMSI west of US 101. Furthermore, Oregon State 

University continues to move forward with planning for an undergraduate campus that will ultimately 

house 500 students in conjunction with the Hatfield Marine Science Center.  This effort by OSU will have 

a significant impact on the City by expanding both Newport’s university student population, as well as 

adding faculty and support staff who will work in Newport.  With these additions, the Marine/Science 

sector of Newport’s economy will continue to grow.  

 

Discussions have been taking place regarding the regional role that the Newport Municipal Airport 

could plays for the future on the Central Oregon Coast. In addition, discussions have also taken place 

on the best way to operate the airport.  Work is underway on the construction of the Aquatic Center 

adjacent to the City’s Recreation Center.  This facility should be completed by the end of 2016.  In 

conjunction with OSU and other identified priorities, discussions have been ongoing on how to address 

workforce housing within the City of Newport.  The City is proceeding with a $1.5 million retrofit to the 

City’s main Fire Hall funded entirely by grant resources later this year. 

   

From a planning standpoint, the City created two new Urban Renewal Districts in 2015, the North Side 

Urban Renewal District and McLean Point Urban Renewal District will capture any growth of property 

tax revenue from incremental growth in taxable value with those funds remaining within the districts to 

create improvements that will improve the overall economic conditions of the City of Newport. Urban 

Renewal Districts of the past have created much of the infrastructure in the City of Newport that is now 

iconic such as the Boardwalk on the Bay Blvd, PAC VAC, and the Recreation Center. Urban Renewal 

also facilitated many of the improvements in South Beach that facilitated NOAA’s relocation to Newport.    

 

Also in 2015, the local regulation and management of recreational marijuana and fluoridation of City’s 

water required extensive discussions with new regulations adopted for recreational marijuana and a 

decision to place fluoridation on the May ballot.  

 

Significant headway has been made on a number of critical infrastructure projects including the 71st 

Street Water and Pump Station project, increasing water availability and fire flows to the Agate Beach 

area, inter-tie of the City’s water system with the Seal Rock Water District, Big Creek Wastewater 

forced main and lift station projects, Street and Bike path construction in South Beach, the initiation of 

construction of a New Aquatics Center, and many other smaller improvements. Progress is being made!   

 

During this past fiscal year, staff dealt with a number of unusually and unanticipated issues as well. 

Severe weather conditions in December resulted in a number of issues ranging from slides, damage to 

sanity sewer systems, road issues, and destruction of private property. With the recently declared 

Federal Disaster for these events, the City will be involved in a substantial amount of record keeping in 

order to make any claims for reimbursement for public expenses that resulted during the declared 

emergency. Furthermore, the City will be continuing to work for any opportunities for assistance to the 

home owners on NE 70th Drive.  

 

Also in December, the City Police Department had to use potentially deadly force to address a situation 

on U.S. 101. While this did not result in the death of an individual, it did lay out an extensive process 

214

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 2 

of review and evaluation by the District Attorney who found that the use of force was justified and also 

resulting in an internal review of this matter as well.  

 

In addition to the items outlined above, during the first seven and a half first months of the fiscal 

year, the status of the goals established by the City Council for the 2015-16 Fiscal Year are as 

follows:   

15.1.0 City Operations 

15.1.1 Create an online dashboard that would include the financial reporting on project costs and 

schedules for Public Works projects (3). Status: Ongoing 

Finance, Engineering, and I have met on a number of occasions to more this effort forward. 

The initial review indicated some fundamental issues needed to be resolved in order to have the 

project information tie into the City’s financial software. This has been completed. We currently 

can run a complete appropriation to expenditure report for all projects. One challenge for 

presenting financial reports on projects that extend across fiscal years is that Oregon Budget 

Law requires tracking over a fiscal year while project management focuses on the project from 

start to finish. This requires tracking revenues and expenditures on a different basis than a fiscal 

year. We are currently working to add additional information for a report that can be 

produced for the Council that will show completion dates for contracted projects as well as 

contracted amounts. Once we have this information refined and corrected, we will be able to 

post this information online for public information as well as report regularly with our financial 

reports to the City Council on the status of these projects. Tim Gross has also assigned our new 

Project Manager to look at project management software which will help with the tracking and 

reporting of projects as well. This could result in a modification of the project report that we 

have developed to date.           

15.1.2 Proceed with the discussion of regionalization of the Newport Municipal Airport with various 

stakeholders (3). Status: Completed 

The Regional Airport Review Task Force began meeting in July and held their last meeting on 

February 17, 2016. Their report will be provided to the City Council, Airport Committee, and 

to the Public Advisory Committee on the development of the Airport Master Plan in March 

2016.    

 

15.2.0 Facilities & Infrastructure 

15.2.1 Install Street lights for the Newport Library (5). Status: Ongoing 

Funds were allocated, in the amount of $50,000, for this purpose. At the request of the Library 

Director, the Budget Committee shifted this funding for the renovation of the elevator at the 

Library. This change was adopted by the City Council. There will be a new request in 2016-17 

Fiscal Year.  

15.2.2 Proceed with the replacement of an HVAC system at City Hall (3). Status: Ongoing 

In the budget, funds were provided for the engineering and architectural services for this 

project. Engineering anticipates having a contract for the design of this system which will be 

placed under the existing roof of City Hall to increase the longevity of the HVAC system. It is 

anticipated that an architect will be under contract in the next two months.   

15.2.3 Move forward with Stage 2 of the Library Strategic Plan (3). Status: Completed 

215

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 3 

$150,000 was appropriated for the creation of a teen space at the Library. Of this amount, 

$100,000 is being paid for by the Library Foundation with the City committed $50,000 for 

this project. Work is currently underway to complete the teen room.     

15.2.4 Develop a long-term financing plan for City facilities and begin funding that plan (3). Status: 

Ongoing 

The development of this plan will need to be outsourced due to time commitments and expertise. 

Will include a budget number to embark on this type of facilities planning as part of the 2016-

17 fiscal year budget.    

   

15.3.0 Community Development 

15.3.1 Pursue City beautification.  
 15.3.1.1 Pursue City beautification with flower plantings. Status Ongoing  

15.3.1.2 Implement stronger code enforcement. Status Ongoing 
15.3.1.3 Proceed with annexation of certain South Beach properties. Status: Ongoing 
15.3.1.4 Make modifications to the billboard ordinance (6). Status: Ongoing 

This is a multi-part goal. In the area of maintenance, the Council budgeted additional 
contractual labor to help better maintain the existing park, trails, and bathrooms at a 
higher level than before. Please note that current staffing for these activities is through 
park maintenance/custodial. Also the City and Library have contracted for maintenance 
services due to the limitations of time our in-house staff have for this purpose. The Council 
will need to explore increasing contractual services and staffing to make a more 
significant impact on beautification projects.    
A new Urban Renewal District was formed north of the Yaquina Bay Bridge that will 
generate funding in the future for streetscape enhancements, benches, public art, and 
billboard removal.  How the funds can best be utilized will be determined with future 
City-wide and neighborhood specific planning efforts.  Utility undergrounding is 
underway in South Beach along SW Abalone Street and is being planned for US 101 
between the bridge and 35th Street and along SE Ferry Slip Road.  Once finished, that 
work will significantly improve the streetscape in the area.  Community Development has 
a limited role in code enforcement, as much of that is handled by the community service 
officer who works out of the Police Department.  That said, the Department has actively 
coordinated with the Police Department to resolve nuisance issues, enforce sign codes to 
reduce clutter (e.g. the northwest corner of Harney and US 20) and enforce building 
codes to resolve public health and safety issues. A work session will be held on annexation 
issues later this spring.   

15.3.2 Proceed with an update of the City of Newport’s Parks Master Plan (5). Status: Ongoing 
Partial funding was included in the 2015-16 budget. There will be a request to fund the balance 
in the 2016-17 Fiscal Year budget so this effort will proceed as outlined in last year’s proposed 
budget.  

15.3.3 Make a concerted local effort, involving the building owners and lot owners in the City Center 
to repair their buildings (3). Status: Ongoing 
The new urban renewal district north of the Yaquina Bay Bridge includes the City Center 
area.  Funding for a business façade improvement loan/grant program is an eligible 
project.  The City is embarking on a community visioning effort, which will inform a subsequent 
refinement planning process that will focus on the transportation network and buildings of the 
downtown area.  This will provide business owners with important information so that they can 
make long term investment plans, and should align nicely when urban renewal funding will be 
available (2019-2026 timeframe).   

216

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 4 

15.3.4 Encourage economic development by being friendly to small businesses and finding ways to 
make Newport a better place for small business success (3). Status: Ongoing 
The Community Development Department worked with key stakeholders to update the Nye 
Beach Design Guidelines, eliminating ambiguous language making it easier for business owners 
to understand the rules they need to follow for new development or when they are expanding 
businesses.  The Community Development Department extended access to building services to 7 
days a week, will be assuming mechanical permitting from the County within the Newport City 
limits (providing one stop shopping for permits), and is going live with ePermitting this spring 
so that businesses can submit applications and in some cases obtain permits online without 
having to drive to City Hall.  Lastly, the Community Development Department issued 182 
building permits in calendar year 2015 with a total construction value of $21,957,649.  This 
is on par with pre-recession levels of permit activity (e.g. 2006/2007) and is a 19% increase 
over the number of permits issued last year.  Land use actions, where owners or businesses 
obtain approvals for new development, were similarly up over last year’s numbers with 67 
approvals being issued (a 76% increase).  All of these permits were issued within established 
review timelines with only two appeals (one building and one land use), both of which were 
upheld.  

15.3.5 Create a larger more prominent display for Coast Guard memorabilia within the City of 
Newport (3). Status: Ongoing 
There has not been any significant work on this initiative so far this fiscal year. We will have a 
report for the Council consideration by May on this matter. 
 

15.4.0 Public Safety 
15.4.1 Pursue the hiring of a Fire Prevention Officer/Emergency Manager (6). Status: Completed 

As part of the proposed budget, I did not recommend funding for this position however as part 
of the Budget Committee discussions when the school was not able to partially fund a school 
resource officer position, at a staff level we recommended the creation of an emergency 
coordinator and cost center. This position is currently being advertised and it is anticipated that 
the position will be filled by April.   

15.4.2 Assign to the LINT Team (4). Status: Dropped 
As part of the development of the budget, I did not recommend funding for a new position 
designed specifically for the LINT Team. The department was willing to consider naming one of 
the existing positions to the LINT Team once the department staffing situation stabilized. Since 
that time the LINT Team has disbanded.  

15.4.3 Jointly fund a School Resource Officer with Lincoln County Schools (4). Status: Ongoing 
At budget time, this position was funded assuming 50% of the funding would come from the 
school district. The schools were not able to fund this position and as a result those funds were 
shifted over to help create an emergency coordinator position as described earlier. Ongoing 
discussions are being held by the schools. 
 

2016-2017 City Council Goals 

The Goals prioritized by the City Council are identified by the numbered items (i.e. 1.1, 1.2). The number 

within parentheses indicates the number of Councilors who identified this item as a priority in the Goal 

Setting process. Goals indicated with “C” have been included by consensus.  

 

16.1.0 Personnel  

16.1.1 Pursue funding to create a deputy City recorder position (5).  

16.1.2 Pursue designation of a police officer as a canine officer and acquirer a new dog (5).  

16.1.3 Maintain funding for an assistant planner in the Community Development Department (4).  

217

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 5 

16.1.4 Increase resources for the Finance Department to proceed with project management tracking 

(4). 

Other items identified by the Council during the goal setting session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Make employee safety officer a full time position (1).  

 Create a drug detective position (1).  

 Hire fire prevention officer (1).  

 Create a traffic enforcement officer (1).  

 Provide financial support for volunteer recruitment (1).  

 Hire an HR assistant. 

 Increase funding for the training for the Public Works Department relating to reorganization 
(2).  
  

16.2.0 Human Resources 

16.2.1 Conduct a comprehensive review of all job descriptions of City employees and then complete 
a salary study for all employees of the City(C).  

16.2.2 Pursue a comprehensive reorganization of the Public Works Department (C). 
 

Other Items Identified by the Council during the Goal Setting Session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Fund additional Public Works employees (2).  

 Fund a preparedness guide book (1). 

 Continue focus on training in the Police Department (1). 

 Create a City wide safety training calendar (1). 

 Implement photo ID badging for all City employees. 

 Cross train Public Works employees on various jobs to create a higher level of proficiency. 

 Provide funding for safety fairs. 

 Continue funding for safety including jackets, vest, safety glasses, gloves, etc.  
   

16.3.0 Community Development 

16.3.1 Complete a comprehensive parking study for the Bayfront, City Center, and Nye Beach(C). 
16.3.2 Complete a review of the system development charges for the City of Newport (C). 
16.3.3 Review the roles and functions of City advisory committees (C). 
16.3.4 Secure the second half of funding so that a Parks Master Plan can be initiated in the 2016-

17 Fiscal Year (4). 
16.3.5 Develop a mountain bike trail system on reservoir property which would also include a 

walking trail with disability/wheelchair access (3).  
16.3.6 Investigate relocating National Guard Armory to the airport/South Beach (3).  
16.3.7 Promote housing for all income levels, incorporating the requirements for smart growth and 

livability (3).  
      

Other items identified by the Council during the goal setting session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Evaluate alternative bridge location when replacement of the Yaquina Bay Bridge is required 
(2).  

 Explore alternative crossing methods of Yaquina Bay (1).  

 Implement a Tree Master Plan (1).  

 Work with Fred Meyer to establish a gas station in Newport (1). 

 Inventory City properties.  

218

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 6 

 Construct a new flag pole monument in front of City Hall   

 Complete the bicycle pump track. 
    

16.4.0 Capital Outlay 
16.4.1 Review operations and plan for the start-up of the new Aquatic Center in conjunction with 

the Recreation Center (C). 
16.4.2 Make improvements to the Betty Wheeler Field to address drainage problems (3). 
16.4.3 Conduct a seismic study of the airport runways and facilities (3). 
16.4.4 Develop parking for the City Hall Campus to address the pool, 60+ Center, Police, and 

Farmers Market needs (3). 
16.4.5 Continue with reinvesting to renew the City’s infrastructure (C). 
 

Other Items Identified by the Council during the Goal Setting Session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Upgrade firearms range building and firearms training equipment (2). 

 Extend water and sewer services for economic and land development around the airport (2). 

 Prioritize the capital improvement projects including a more comprehensive review of project 
schedules (2). 

 Repair City clock and Landscaping around the clock (2). 

 Install flashing lights on all crosswalks on 101(2).  

 Complete the Fire Hall seismic retrofit (1). 

 Fund demolition of the former wastewater building to be used as a safety and training site for 
the Fire Department (1). 

 Refurbish the fuel farm (1).  

 Pursue and acquisition with AIP Funding at the airport.  

 Complete Airport Master Plan.  

 Provide financial support for annual fly in event at the airport.  

 Develop shovel ready plans for infrastructure upgrades at the airport.  

 Support grant application for automatic weather observation system and pilot repeater.   

 Coordinate with ODOT on the design and construction of the of the SW 35th Street 
intersection.  

 Develop a pavement management program and funding mechanism.  

 Gracefully retire the old swimming pool.  
 
16.5.0 Equipment  

16.5.1 Install four security cameras at the Library (3). 
 

Other Items Identified by the Council during the Goal Setting Session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Obtain a back-up generator for the Agate Beach Fire Station (2). 

 Update security systems in IT (2). 

 Install a permanent camera system in City Hall for broadcasting meetings (1). 

 Install security cameras for all city facilities inside and outside (1). 

 Purchase three-day survival kits for city employees to use if they are working during a natural 
disaster (1).  

 Purchase gas monitors in addition to other safety equipment (1). 

 Update registration of software for the management of the recreational facilities (1). 

 Update for laptops for the Library (1). 

 Provide additional financial support for IT. 

219

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 7 

 Replace the Parks and Recreation vehicle.  

 Purchase a new canine car for the Police Department.  

 Install speed monitoring on school access routes.  

 Have survival kits for three days in all City vehicles. 

 Replace SCVA units for the Fire Department. 

 Replace Microphone covers in the Council Chambers. 

 Replace chairs seats in the Council Chambers.  
 

16.6.0 Operations  
16.6.1 Undertake a comprehensive sewer and water rate study (C). 
16.6.2 Review and write comprehensive water and sewer policies (C).  

 
 

Other Items Identified by the Council during the Goal Setting Session but not prioritized as goals: 

 Reestablish City Newsletters (Quarterly) as an enclosure in the water/sewer bill (2). 

 Implement a $.5 gas tax year round for the paving of gravel roads in the City (2). 

 Review all City fees to make to it more friendly for development (1). 

 Reestablish funding for non-profit (social service) agencies that provided services within the City 
(1).  

 Review and rewrite the City’s investment policy (1). 

 Work to develop clear policies relating to public lighting, trees and sidewalks (1). 

 Reestablish community and neighborhood watches. 

 Create a facilities budget cost center.  

 Fund historical records preservation. 
     

Vision 2040 
This fall the City Council accepted a report from the Community Visioning Work Group to initiate a 
comprehensive community visioning effort later in 2016. After accepting the report, the City Council 
appointed a steering committee to develop a request for proposals (RFP) for consultants to facilitate 
the community visioning process for the greater Newport area. It is expected that this visioning process 
will incorporate the views of many key stakeholders located within the City of Newport to develop a 
long term vision to help guide future development and policies in the community. This will include 
outreach efforts to all community stakeholders including those who do not normally interact with local 
government. The key provisions of this report are outlined below: 
      
Community Vision 

A vision for the City of Newport should create broad aspirational descriptions of the quality of life that 

the community desires in the future. These concepts can be divided into several appropriate categories 

and should serve as the long-term target for future planning efforts, particularly as the Comprehensive 

Plan is updated. In order for a vision to be sustainable, it needs to be based on a statement of values, 

and in the forefront of future city decision making processes. Furthermore, a vision needs to be revisited 

on a regular basis. The community vision should be the focus of annual goal setting sessions and 

appropriations processes to continue to determine specific steps for reaching the city’s vision. 

 

Guiding Principles for the Visioning Process  

The Work Group identified several guiding principles for this undertaking.  

1. Encourage the community to thoroughly participate and engage. 

220

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 8 

2. Engage Greater Newport Area participants, respecting all perspectives and opinions. 
3. Establish a value based approach to addressing complex issues. 
4. Strengthen relationships between community leaders and citizens.    

 

Geography 

The Work Group felt that the visioning process should go beyond the current city limits and current 

urban growth boundaries and encompass the Greater Newport Area.  

 

Vision Target 

Traditionally, a community visioning project will identify a target year in which to focus the visioning 

effort. The Work Group discussed a range of years from 20 years to 50 years. The Work Group 

recommends that a Greater Newport Area visioning process focus on 2040.  

     

Stakeholders 

A successful visioning process will include participation by many different groups and individuals within 

the Greater Newport Area. The Work Group has identified a list of participants that should be included 

in the community visioning process. 

Potential Topic Areas of a Community Visioning          

A community vision should focus on a number of key areas that will be defined as part of the visioning 

process, for example, they may include, but not be limited to: 

 Education  

 Health 

 Environment  

 Economic Development  
o Tourism 
o Research/Science  
o Commercial Fisheries  
o Governmental (NOAA, US Coast Guard, OSU, EPA, and others) 
o Industrial development 

 Maritime commerce 

 Infrastructure 

 Transportation 

 Maritime 

 Safety/Disaster Preparedness 

 Neighborhoods and Districts 

 Arts 

 Culture 

 History 

 Recreation 
o Sport fishing 

 

Engagement Tools 

The visioning process needs to facilitate broad participation and reach populations not previously 

reached, including, but not limited to:  

 Collection of organizational visions from other community groups (i.e. schools, Port, OSU, etc.) 

221

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 9 

 Public opinion surveys 

 Stakeholder’s surveys 

 Focus group discussions  

 One on one interviews (personal, phone) 

 Use of existing advisory boards and committees 

 Participation by other governmental entities 

 A speaker’s bureau 

 Community events 

 Youth events 

 Public meetings 

 Online interaction (Including Websites, social media) 

 Newsletters 

 Media 

 Multicultural outreach using translation services 

 Community celebrations focused on the visioning process  

 Other similar means to involve the community 
 

Outcomes of Visioning Process 

The Work Group defined four desired outcomes critical for the success of the visioning effort, including: 

vision; core values; realistic strategies to guide sustainable and ongoing implementation; local public 

engagement building community capacity. This process will create mechanisms to ensure that the 

community vision becomes a primary consideration of all future planning, updates to the Comprehensive 

Plan, and the annual appropriations process by the city and other organization to ensure that efforts 

are moving the community in the necessary direction to fulfill the visionary concepts identified through 

this process. A key component of the visioning process will be to identify these mechanisms to ensure 

that the vision will in Newport’s future.  

1. Mission 
2. Core values 
3. Realistic strategies to guide sustainable and ongoing implementation 
4. Local public engagement building community capacity 

 
Timetable 

A comprehensive visioning process will likely take year to complete. The Visioning Steering Committee 

developed a comprehensive RFP. Proposals are due to the City of Newport on March 4, 2016. The 

Steering Committee will then conduct a review of the proposals received and likely conduct interviews 

of the firms to determine who will provide the best services for conducting a community wide visioning 

effort. It is anticipated that the visioning process would be initiated by summer 2016 and completed 

early in 2017. The approved vision would then be available to begin guiding the City of Newport, 

including future goal setting sessions to work towards the realization of the community vision.  

 

A properly executed visioning process should provide the framework for development of longer term 

goals that will be reviewed on an annual basis and modified as necessary from time to time. This will 

provide great continuity from year to year to allow the Council, staff, advisory boards, and community 

to focus on longer term strategies to implement various aspects of the community vision. This will be an 

222

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



2016-2017       Goals 

 

Page 10 

exciting process and will give the community an excellent opportunity to play a meaningful role in 

carving out the vision for the future of the greater Newport area.        

 
Attachments 
Attached to this report are the departmental goals for 2016-17 Fiscal Year.   
      
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Spencer R Nebel, City Manager              

 

223

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:9.A. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
Approval of Purchase of a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water 
Distribution Department 
 
Background: 
The Public Works Department – Water Distribution Division scheduled the replaced of this 
vehicle in the current fiscal year budget. The purchase is being conducted under the State 
Bid Program for a cost of $65,214 less trade-in value brining the purchase price to 
$56,964. This vehicle will replace a 2005 Chevy 3500 service truck with over 100,000 
miles on that vehicle.          

Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council acting as the Local Contract Review Board consider 
the following motion: 
 
I move approval of the purchase of a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the 
Water Distribution Division of Public Works through the State Bid Program in the 
amount of $65,214 less trade-in value $8,250 bringing the total purchase price to 
$56,964 and authorize the City Manager to sign the purchase order on behalf of the 
City of Newport.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
$75,000 was appropriated for this purchase in the current year budget.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

224

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

 

       
       

   
 
             
   

 
 

 
Prepared by: Timothy Gross, PE, Director of Public Works/City Engineer    
 
Title: Approval of Purchase of a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water 
Distribution Department 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
I move to approve the purchase of a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water 
Distribution Department and authorize the City Manager to sign the purchase order on 
behalf of the City of Newport. 
 
Background Information:    
 
The Public Works Department/Water Distribution Division in the FT2015-16 budget 
appropriated $75,000 for the purchase of a new service truck.  The proposed service 
truck is being purchased from Power Ford under the State Bid Program at a cost of 
$65,214, less the trade-in value of three trades totaling $8,250, bringing the purchase 
price to $56,964. 
 
The new truck will replace the current 2005 Chevy 3500 service truck with over 100,000 
miles, and substantial engine hours.  Due to the daily use and extreme weight the truck 
regularly handles, the truck will require substantial maintenance soon. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 

See above. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
Not purchase the truck. 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Invoicing and Purchase Order for 2016 Service Truck 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

225

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



22
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Reference # --j

Gl#
Accounting Review

For Finance Dept. Only

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016
CAPITAL OUTLAY REQUEST

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE OR LEASE

Please use this form for equipment items which are over$5,000 requested for purchase and/or lesse/purchase arrangements.

Date Prepared

Department

Contact Person

Equipment Type, Make:

2 Number of Units Requested

3 Current Number of Similar Units

21512015

Public Works I Water Distribution

Lanny SchUlze, Water Distribution Supervisor

F550 Xl Crew Cab with Utility Box & Crane

4 Description:

IF550 en.. cab TN'""'" UlOily eo",,,,, C""'.

5 Justification: (atlach additional information, if necessary)

This will replace the current Service Truck that is 11 years old with 100,000 miles and even more hours on the engine. The
!equipment and parts that is taken out to the iobsites has made it nessecarv to purchase a heavier duty truck.

6 Purpose of Expenditure:

~
Scheduled Replacement
Present Equipment Obsolete

x Replace Worn-out Equipment
Reduce Personal Time
Expanded Service

New Operation
Increased Safety
Improved Porcedures

7 ~teduse:
51 Weeks per year

8 Estimated Useful life:

9 Cost

c:::llDays per Week

c:::!2Iyears

I::::])Hours per Day

A) Purchase Price

B) Plus: Installation or Other Costs

C) less: Trade-in or Other Discount

Total

10 Replaced Equipment: Make and Model

A) Chev. 3500 Crew Cab I Utility Box &Crane

Per Unit Total

I 1.00 575,000.00 I

180

75,000.00 I1.00

City Vehicle # ~ Estimated Value

#04-5 11 TBD at Trade-In

B)

C)

11 Recommended Disposition of Replaced Equipment

DpOSSibie Use by Other Departments E:]Tradeln r::=:JSale c::::JScrap

12 Atlachments (photos, brochures and other pertinent information)

215120151 :18Ul1'l1<er\newport\PWK\lanny Schulze\Docs\2015-2016 Equipment Request\Copy of EQUIPMENT REQUEST FORM 2015-2016 1 of 1



22
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Purchase Order
City of Newport

169, SW Coast Hwy
Newport, OR 97365

Print Form

P.O. Date:

Company:

Address:

City:

State:

Phone:

Fax:

Contact Name:

102/12/2016

Power Ford Lincoln

P.O. Box 360

Newport

Or. IZip: 197365

P.O. Number:

Deliver To:

Company:

Address:

City:

State:

Phone:

Fax:

Contact Name:

City of Newport

169, SW Coast Hwy

Newport

OR I Zip: 197365

541.574.0620

Lanny Schulze

Item Description Quantity UnitPrlce Amount

1 2016 F550 Crew Cab 4x4 Chassis and Service Body 1 $65,214.00 $65,214.00

Less Trades 1992 Chev Pickup 1 $1,050.00 $1,050.00

2002 Ford Ranger 1 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

2005 Chev Chassis 1 $6,100.00 $6,100.00

Total for Trades Sal ~S"ttJ.oo

Total~. ~,~ ()()I

THIS PURCHASE ORDER INCORPORATES THE TERMS ON THE REVERSE SIDE. BY
ITS SIGNATURE HEREUNDER, CONTRACTOR AGREES TO PERFORM THE
SERVICES/PROVIDE THE PRODUCTS DESCRIBED IN CITY'S RFP OR SOLICITATION
AND VENDORS RESPONSE THERETO, ALL OF WHICH ARE ATTACHED, FOR THE
FEE/AMOUNT SET FORTH THEREIN.

Fund/Dept Line/GL Dept Project Code ChargeAcct

601 I 3320 II 73100 II $56,964.00 I
I II II I
I I I I

I II I I I
I I I I
I I I I

Notes:

Authorizations:

r ____

Department Director

Finance Director

City Manager

Contractor's Authorized Signature

Contractor's Printed Name

Submit this for signature with all documentation



22
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

TERMS OF CITY'S PURCHASE ORDER
I. [n the course of providing Services under this Purchase Order, Contractor may have conlact with the public Contractor will maintain good relations with the public. The City may treat the failure to
maintain good relations with the public as a non-eurable breach ofthis Purchase Order and may disqualify Contractor from future work for the City.
2. Contractor shall be compensated as described in the Purchase Order. Unless otherwise set forth in the Purchase Order, Contractor shall begin Services on the Effective Date and shall complete Services
no later than such date set forth in the Purchase Order or as agreed upon in writing by the parties.
3. Contractor certifies that: (a) Contractor is an independent contractor as defined by ORS 670.700 and not an employee ofCity, shall not be entitled to benefits ofany kiod to which an employee ofCity is
entitled and shall be solely responsible for all payments and taxes required by law. In the event that Contractor is found by a court of law or any administrative agency to be an employee of City for any
purpose, City shall be enutled to offset compensation due, or to demand repayment of any amounts paid to Contractor under the terms of this Ab'Teelllent, to the full extent of any benefits or other
remuneration Contractor receives (from City or third party) as a result of the finding and to the full extent ofany payments that City is required to make (to Contractor or to a third party) as a result of the
finding. (b) Contractor is not an officer, employee or agent of the City as those terms are used in ORS 30.265. (c) No employee of the City, or any pannership or corporation in which a City employee has
an interest, has or will receive any remuneration of any description from Contractor, either directly or indirectly, in connection this Agreement, except as specifically declared in writing. (d) Contractor
currently has a City business license Dr will obtain one prior to delivering Services under this Agreement
4. City has relied upon the professional ability and training of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement Contractor warrants that all its work will be performed with good
workmanship and in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and standards of the industry in which Contractor operates as well as the requirements ofapplicable federal, state and local
laws. Contractor's work will conform to the requirements of this Purchase Order. Acceptance ofContractor's work by City shall not operate as a waiver or release of this warranty. Contractor is fully liable
for the acts and omissions of Contractor and Contractor's subcontractors which cause any damage, injury, death, property damage or loss to any person or property. Contractor will indemnify and defend
the City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers and hold them harmless from any and all liability, causes of action, claims, losses, damages, judgments or other costs or expenses including
attorney's fees that may be asserted by any person or entity which in any way arise from, during or in connection with the performance of the work described in this Agreement Contractor's
indemnification shall also cover claims brought against the City under state or federal workers' compensation laws. If any aspect of tllis indemnity shall be found to be illegal or invalid for any reason
whatsoever, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this indemnification.
5. Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain insurance acceptable to City in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement The insurance shall cover all activities of the Contractor
arising directly or indirectly out ofContractor's work performed hereunder, including the operations of its subcontractors ofany tier.
6. At any time and without cause, City shall have the right in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving notice to Contractor. IfCity terminates the Agreement pursuant to this Section due to
no fault of Contractor, City shall pay Contractor for all approved and undisputed services rendered up to the date of termination. City may modify or terminate this Agreement without cause effective upon
delivery ofwriuen notice to Contractor, or at such later date as may be established by City.
7. For a period of not less than three years after City's final payment to Contractor, Contractor shall permit dIe City, tile State of Oregon and dIe Federal Government (if State or Federal funding is
involved) to have access to all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which are pertinent to the Services provided hereunder for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts
Contractor shall retain those records for at least three years, or until litigation is resolved iflitigation is instituted.
8. Neither City nor Contractor shall be considered in default because of any delays in completion and responsibilities due to causes beyond the control and without fault or negligence on the part of the
parties so disenabled, including but not restricted to, an act of nature or of a public enemy, civil unrest, earthquake, fire, flood, epidemic, quarantine restriction, strike, freight embargo, unusually severe
weather; provided that the parties so disenabled shall notify the other party in writing of the cause of delay. Each party shall make reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate the cause of delay or demult
and shall, upon cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under the Agreement
9. Contractor agrees to comply widl all applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statues, rules, and reb'lliations, including, but not limited to tllOse in Exhibit A. Contractor
also shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, ORS 659.425, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws.
10. Contractor will perform additional work as may be necesS3\)' to correct errors in Services performed under this Agreement without undue delay and without additional cost
11. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State ofOregon. Any action or suits involving any question arising under this Agreement will be brought in the
appropriate court of the State of Oregon. In any action arising under this Agreement, the losing party shall pay such sum as the court may adjudge including reasonable attorney fees and court costs
Contractor sball comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, requirements concerning working hours, overtime, medical care, workers
compensation insurance, bealth care payments, payments to employees and subcontractors and income tax withholding contained in ORS Chapler 279, some provisions of which are anached to this
Agreemenl as Exhibit A. All Contractor's work product accomplished under this Ab'feement, whetller in the form or designs, drawings, as-builts, diagrams, specifications, reports, or odler writings, shall
become the exclusive property of the City. The City is the owner of any copyrights thereto, upon City's final payment to Contractor. This writing is intended both as a final expression of the Agreement
between the parties with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement

EXHmlTA
2798.220 Conditions concerning payment, contributions, liens, withbolding. The contractor shall: I. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for the
performance of the work provided for in the contract. 2. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or subcontractor inaured in the performance of the contract
3. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material
furnished. 4. Pay to the Department ofRevenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167. 5. In addition to dIe conditions specific in subsection 1-4 above, every public improvement contract
shall contain a condition that the contraclor shall demonstrate thai an employee drug testing program is in place. (279C.505)
279C.515 Conditions concerning paymenl of claims by public officcn, paymenl 10 persons furnishing labor or malerials and complaints. I. If the contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make
prompt payment of any claim for labor or services furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor by any person in connection with the public improvement contract as the claim becomes due, the proper
officer or officers representing a municipality, may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due the contractor by
reason of the contract. 2. If the contractor or a first-tier subcontractor fails, neglects or refuses 10 make payment to a person furnishing labor or materials in connection with the public improvement
contract within thirty days after receipt of payment from the contracting agency or a contractor, the contractor or first-tier subcontractor shall owe the person the amount due plus interest charges
commencing at the end oftile ten day period that payment is due under ORS 279C.580 (4) and ending upon final payment, unless payment in ORS 279C.580. TIle rate of interest charged to dIe contractor
or first-tier subcontractor on the amount due shall equal three times the discount rate on 90 day commercial paper in effect at the Federal Reserve Bank in the Federal Reserve district that includes Oregon
on the date that is thirty days after the date when payment was received from the contracting agency or from the contractor, but the rate of interest may not exceed thirty percent. The amount of interest
may not be waived. 3. If the contractor or a subcontractor mils, neglects or refuses to make payment to a person furnishing labor or materials in connection with the public improvement contract, the
person may file a complaint with the Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580. 4. The payment ofa claim in the manner authorized in
this section does not relieve the contractor or the contractor's surety from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims.
2798.230 Condition concerning payment for medical care and providing workers' compensation. (see 279C.530 for public improvement contracts) I. The contractor shall promptly, as due, make
payment to any person, co-pannership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees
of the contractor, of all sums that the contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the contraclor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract or
agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services. 2. All subject employers working under the contract are either employers that will comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are
exempt under ORS 656.126. [2003 c.794 §76c).
2798.020, 2798.235; 279C.520, 279C.540 Conditions concerning bours of labor. I. An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract, either at the time of hire or
before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to
work. 2. A person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in anyone day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases ofnecessity, emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and
in such cases, except in cases of contracts for personal services designated under ORS 279A.055 (or 279C.100) the employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay: (a) For all overtime in excess of
eight hours in anyone day or 40 hours in anyone week when the work week is five consecutive days, Monday through Friday; or (b) For all overtime in excess often hours in anyone day or 40 hours in
anyone week when the work week is four consecutive days, Monday through Fnday; and (c) For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020 (or ORS 279C.540)
3. In the case of contracts for personal services as descnbed in ORS 279A.055, the contract shall contain a provision that the employee shall be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked in
excess of40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under personal services contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201 to 209 from receiving overtime. 4
Persons employed shall receive at least time and a half pay for work performed on the legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 2798.020 (1)(b)(B) to (G) and for all time
worked in excess of 10 bours in anyone day or io excess of40 hours in any one week, whichever is greater.
279C.830 Relating to prevailing rale ofwage in public works contracts. 1. In the event this contract is a public works contract, the parties shall state in the contract tile existing slate prevailing rate of
wage and if applicable, the federal prevailing rate of wage required under the Davis-Bacon Act that may be paid to workers in each trade or occupation required for the public works employed in the
performance of the contract either by the contractor or subcontractor or other person doing or contracting to do the whole or any part of the work contemplated by the contract When the prevailing rates of
wage are available electronically or are accessIble on the Inlernct, the rates may be incorporated into the specifications by referring to the electronically accessible or Internet-accessible rates and by
providing adequate information about how to access the rates. 2. Every contract and subcontract shall contain a provision that the workers shall contain a provision that the works shall be paid not less than
the specified minimum hourly rate ofwage in accordance with ORS 279C.838 and 279C.840. 3.Contractor will pay 10 the Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLl) a fee as provided in
ORS 279C.825(1). The fee shall be paid to the commissioner under the administrative rule of the commissioner. 4.Every contract for public works shall contain a provision stating that the contractor and
every subcontractor must have a public works bond filed with tile Construction Contractors Board before starting work on tile project, unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (4), (7), (8) or (9).



22
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

.' .

POWER FORD LINCOLN
PO BOX 360
NEWPORT, OREGON 97365
Phone 541 265 6686

Bill To: CITY OF NEWPORT Ship To:

INVOICE t# W10216
DATE: 02110/2016

SALESPERSON P.O. NUMBER SHIP DATE SHIP VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS

DON 15 DAYS

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

ONE 2016 F550 Crew Cab 4X4 Chassis and Service Body $65,214.00 $65,214.00

Vin# GEB64349

Less Trades.

1992 CHEV PICKUP VIN 5KE164608 $1050.00
2002 FORD RANGER VlN 2PM5627 $1100.00

2005 CHEV CHASSIS VIN 5E136991 $6100.00

$8250.00 Credit ($8,250.00)

SUBTOTAL $56.964.00

SALESTAA

SHIPPING & HANDLING

TOTAL DUE $56,964.00

Make all checks payable to: POWER FORD LINCOLN MERCURY



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT AND  

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Agenda #:9.B. 
Meeting Date:  3-7-16 

 

Agenda Item: 
Approval of Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-
Brant Street Improvement Project 
 
Background: 
As was indicated at an earlier meeting, the SW Abalone-Brant Street project continues to 
move forward as construction continues in this area. Change Order No. 3 addresses 
additional earth work that was necessary to deal with several design challenges and 
difficulties associated with historical property line surveys in the area. The actual location 
of right-of-way lines required additional cut/fill work with the most significant part of the 
increase being $67,919 for additional earth work. The second largest component of the 
change order is $11,060 for rock and erosion matting with the balance of the work being 
divided in nine different work change directives for this project. The total change order is 
$101,909 bring the total contract price up to $1,667,839.85.       

Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council acting as the Local Contract Review Board consider 
the following motion: 
 
I move approval of Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation and Utilities, LLC. In the 
amount of $101,909 for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the change order on behalf of the City of 
Newport.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
$2,174,000 was budgeted for this project in the current fiscal year. There are sufficient 
funds to cover this change order.  
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager
 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



       
       

   
 
             
   

 
 

 
Prepared by: Jayson Buchholz, P.E. Senior Project Manager, City of Newport Public 
Works 
 
Title: Approval of Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant 
Street Improvement Project  
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
I move to approve  Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation and Utilities, LLC. in the 
amount of $101,909.00 for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Project and authorize the City 
Engineer to execute the change order on behalf of the City of Newport.  
 
Background Information:    
 
The Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project has encountered several design 
challenges along the way due to difficulties associated with historical surveys in the 
South Beach area. Locations of right of way lines and the amount of cut/fill required for 
the project has resulted in a significant amount of field fitting and a large excavation 
quantity change. The addition of a driveway on SW Brant St at the property owner’s 
request, additional catch basins for drainage and permanent erosion control measures 
have also resulted in the necessity of this Change Order.  
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
In Fiscal Year 2015-16, $2,174,000 was budgeted for the SW Abalone-Brant Street 
Project. There are sufficient funds appropriated this fiscal year to accommodate this 
change order. 
 
Original contract price = $1,489,814.00 
Contract price increase from previously approved Change Orders = $76,116.85 
Increase of this Change Order = $101,909.00 
 
Total contract price incorporating this Change Order = $1,667,839.85 
 
Alternatives: 
 
N/A 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

230

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



 
Attachments: 
 

 Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant Street 
Improvement Project 

 

231

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016



EJCDC
:rINE.5 JC.NT CONTrACT
DOCUMET.T5 cuUrTTOC

Change Order No. 3

Issued By:

Date of Issuance: January 27, 2016 Effective Date: 1/28/16
Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.: 2014-002
Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:
Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027
Project: Newport Abalone and 30 Roadway Improvements Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th

Roadway Improvements

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description: This change order contains the following items:
WCD 14—Added time (no 2d mobilization)
WCD 15 — Add catch basin at Sta. 2+00, connect to basin at 1+33 on 27th street.
WCD 16 — Parking Stalls/Brant updates
WCD 17 — Dirt Logic added fee
WCD 18 — Curb changes
WCD 19 — Extra grading
WCD 20 — Time extension to critical path (To address time changes through this change order date)
WCD 21— Protect V-ditch
WCD 22 — Add “acorn” light at NW Corner of 3Oth/Brant
WCD 23— Add CB at SE cornet of Brant & 30th pipe to MH on 30th
WCD 24— Additional driveway on Brant

Time changes through the date of this change order have been discussed and agreed upon, resulting in a new
Substantial Completion date of March 24, 2016. All time changes after this date will be addressed through
subsequent change procedures.
Attachments: WCDs with backup estimates, descriptions

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES

(note changes in Milestones if applicableJ
Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: January 7, 2016
$ 1,489,814.00 Ready for Final Payment: February 6. 2016

days or dates
[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change [Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change
Orders No. 0 to No. 2: Orders No. 1 to No. 2:

Substantial Completion: 10
$ 76,116.85 Ready for Final Payment: 10

days
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: January 17, 2016
$ 1.565,930.85 Ready for Final Payment: February 16. 2016

days_or dates
[Increase] [DecrcaeJ of this Change Order: [Increase] [Decrcac] of this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: 49
$101,909.00______________________________________ Ready for Final Payment: 49

days_or dates
Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial Completion: March 24, 2016
$1,667,839.85__________________________________ Ready for Final Payment: April23, 2016

days or dates

UCDC C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

23
2

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Order No. 3

Issued By: _

Date of Issuance: January 27, 2016

Owner: City of Newport
Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.
Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.
Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Improvements

Effective Date: 1/28/16

Owner's Contract No.:
Contractor's Project No.:
Engineer's Project No.:
Contract Name:

2014-002

2302-027
Newport Abalone and 30th

Roadway Improvements

The Contract Is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description: This change order contains the following items:
WCD 14 - Added time (no 2nd mobilization)
WCD 15 - Add catch basin at Sta. 2+00, connect to basin at 1+33 on 27th street.
WCD 16 - Parking Stalls/Brant updates
WCD 17 - Dirt Logic added fee
WCD 18 - Curb changes
WCD 19 - Extra grading
WCD 20 - Time extension to critical path (To address time changes through this change order date)
WCD 21- Protect V-ditch
WCD 22 - Add "acorn" light at NW Corner of 30th/Brant
WCD 23 - Add CB at SE corner of Brant & 30th

, pipe to MH on 30th
WCD 24 - Additional driveway on Brant

Time changes through the date of this change order have been discussed and agreed upon, resulting in a new
Substantial Completion date of March 24, 2016. All time changes after this date will be addressed through
subsequent change procedures.
Attachments: WCDs with backup estimates, descriPtions

I

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

Original Contract Price:

$ 1.489,814.00

[Increasel [Decrease] from previously approved Change
Orders No. -..Q... to No. ...1....:

$ 76.116.85

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

$ 1,565,930.85

[Increase] {DeGrease} of this Change Order:

$101,909.00, _

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:

$1,667,839.85, _

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES
[note changes in Milestones if applicable]

Original Contract TImes:
Substantial Completion: ...:J=.an"""u::.::a:.:.ry~7.L_'.2=0""'1::.::6=--__
Ready for Final Payment: ...:.F..>:e=.b:..>ru::.::a,-,-ryI...:l:<6.w2~O~1..=6 _

days or dates

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change
Orders No. _1_ to No. _2_:
Substantial Completion: ...:1:.:;0 _
Ready for Final Payment: ....1""'0=-- _

days

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: January 17, 2016
Ready for Final Payment: February 16, 2016

days or dates

[Increase} {DeeFease] of this Change Order.
Substantial Completion: ...::4~9~ _
Ready for Final Payment: ..;4""9=-- _

days or dates

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial Completion: ~M:.:a:.:.:rc""h....2:..:4~,=.:20::;",:1""'6:-- _
Ready for Final Payment: .!:.A:lI:p:.:.:ri::.I.t23::!J1~2:::=0~1..=6 _

days or dates

EJCDC· C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers joInt Contrac;t Documents Committee.

Page 1 012



EJCDC
EMTINEERS JOINT CONIACT
0000MEI IS COMMITTEE

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: / ACCPYED:
By:

______________________

By:

_____________________

By:

________________________

Engineer (if required) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor fAu(horized Signature)
Title Mr. Timothy Gross — Director Title iijTitle: Aaron Collett PE/PM of Public Works/City Engineer ‘

Date:
- —t 7 f6 Date

______________________

Date _4’gJ,6 —

Approved by Funding Agency f if
applicable)

By:

_____________________________________________________

Date:

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

UCDC C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 2 of?

23
3

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

EJCDC~
ENO'iiUERS JOINT CONI7'.ACT
OOCUMEt- 18 COMMITTEE

a:;;;~
ACCEPTED:

By: By: By:

Engineer (if required) Owner (Authorized Signature)
TItle Mr. TImothy Gross - Director Trtle

Title: Aaron Collett PE/PM of Public Works/City Engineer

Date: 2- -12 '(6 Date Date

Approved by Funding Agency (if
applicable)

By: Date:

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCOC" C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pale2of2



EJCDC
NCII 3GNI c,wnr
oocuts OtUflTEE

Work Change Directive No. 14

Issued By: f1lj R Effective Date: 01/06/16

Date of Issuance: January 6, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 3O Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30’ Roadway
Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: The Contractor requested a 10 day time extension or payment for a 2’ curb mobilization (WCD 13) to
either pour curb In two phases or wait and pour with one mobilization. The City prefers to provide a 10 day
extension rather than pay for a second mobilization.

Attachments: tList documents supporting change]
Contractor letter referencing time.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following)

flNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, prelIminary):

Contract Price $ 0.00 [increase] [decreaseJ.
Contract Time 10 days [increase] fdecreac].
Basis of estimated change In Contract Price:

O Lump Sum Q Unit Price
Cost of the Work Other

RECOMMENDED: AUTHORIZED BY: RECEIVED:

By: /4I’J?’ By: By: tti
Engineer (Authorized Signature) Owner (Au orized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Timothy Gross — Director
Title: Aaron Collett fPE/PM) Title: of Public Works! city Engineer Title: ai)tY2-

Date: I 6t Date: Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

_______________________________________________________________

EJCDC’ C-940, Work Change DirectIve.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

23
4

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

EJCDC&

Issued By: MJr=-R.:.....-----
Date of Issuance: January 6,2016

ner: City of Newport

ontractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer:

Project:

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30tll Roadway
Improvements

Work Change Directive No.~
Effective Date: 01/06/16 ~

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.: 2302-027

Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30tll Roadway
Improvements

Contractor 15 directed to proceed promptly with the following chanae(s):

Description: The Contractor requested a 10 day time extension or payment for a 2nd curb mobilization (WCD 13) to
either pour curb In two phases or wait and pour with one mobilization. The City prefers to provide a 10 day
extension rather than pay for a second mobilization.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Conttrletorletter referencing time.

Purpose for Work Change DIrective:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following}

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

181 Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Chanp in Contract PrIce and Contract nmes (non-bInding, prelimInary):

Contract Price $ 0.00

Contract Time 10 days
Basis of estImated change In Contract Price:
o lumpSumo Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

By: ~~ By:

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

(increase} (decrease}.
[Increase] r"esr:eilse).

o Unit Price
181 Other

AUTHORIZED BY:

By: M~:9~
Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Title: Aaron Collett (fE/PM)

Date: I - i -{ ~
TItle:

Date:

Mr. nmothy Gross - Director
of Public Works! Oty Engineer Title:

If%- \15' Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Tille:

Date:

EJCDc· CoMO, Wortl Chanae Directive.
Prepared end publlshecl 2013 by the EnsIneers Joint contract Documents COmmittee.

Pqelof2



EJCDC
EIC .L. R T CUN7 ‘
Do5 C %UrTT

Work Change Directive No. 15

Issued By:

_____________________________

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30 Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add catch basin at Sta. 2+00, connect to basin at 1+33 on 27th street.

Attachments: tList documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 5.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following]

LINon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 5,018.00 [increase] [decrease].

Contract Time 1 days [increase] [decreac].

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

LI Lump Sum Unit Price

LI CostoftheWork LI Other
RECOMMENDED: AiJHORlZEABY: RECEIVED:

By: /fl BYJi /c%13 By:

Engineer (Authorized signature) wner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (A horized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Title: Aaron Collett fPE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title: A/fktj74It

Date: f-_).O.( 6 Date: Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepa ted and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

23
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

I

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 15

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add catch basin at Sta. 2+00, connect to basin at 1+33 on 2ih street.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 5.

Contractor (A

By:

~ Unit Price

o Other

~HO~BY:~ /

By:CJ~~~~~13
<.dwner (Authorized Signature)

By:

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

~ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase] [decrease].
[increase] [EleeFease].

Contract Price S 5,018.00

Contract Time 1 days
Basis of estimated change In Contract Price:

o LumpSumo Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDED:

~~
Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE!PM)

[-)0... (6

Mr. Jason Buchholz - Senior

Title: Project Manager

Date: J-.,I/ ~ lip
Title: Mo&./}tfl-

Date: z.!lf/'"
Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

EJCDC· C·94O, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 ofZ



tI

P’ !

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: Abalone&30th

Owner: City of Newport

-

Owner’s Cont. No.: 2302-02?

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Dale Sent to 1211412015
Contractor:

CPR # (5)

Date: 12/2312015

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 1212312015
from Contractor:

Initiated 8y: D Engineer! Consultant Owner U Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): C108 Spec Section: Storm System
RFI No: NA Other: NA

Attentlon The following change In the conttact on this project Is proposed. Wotk shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for aN direct, indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Contract TIme
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 1 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Change Proposal Description: Storm Piping + Basin

Add Catch Basin (27th) at Approximate Station 2+00
Connect added Basin to Basin at Approximate Station 1+33

Cost Increase: 12” Storm Pipe 67LF @ 54.00 = $3,618.00 (unit price)
Catch Basin I FA @ 1400.00 = $1.400.00 (unit price)

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Coltett

$ 5,018.00

Contractor Action

Owner Action

(Engineer/Consultant) (Date)

Bill Sproul 12123/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date) -

Melissa Roman 12114115
(City of tVewpo,t) (Date)

Page 1 of I

23
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

'5

Project Name: -=A...:::b;;;:a:.:.;lo~n:.::e..:::.;&~30:;...;th::.:..- CPR #

OWner: _C.::..:I~tyc.....;oo.;:.f...;..No.;:.e=w.L.po.::..:rt,-,,- Date:

Owner's Coot. No.: .....;2::.;:3;.:;,0=..2·-=-02=-7'----- Consultant:

Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No:

Date Sent to 12/1412015 Date Received
Contractor: from Contractor:

(5)

12/23/2016

Civil West

2302-027

12/23/2015

Initiated By: o Engineer I Consultant 181 Owner o Contractor

AttentIon: The following change In the contract on this project Is proposed. Work shaH not commence
untll authorized by the Owner. AIf work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, sUpulations, and
condttlons of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, Indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Storm Piping + Basin

Add Catch Basin (27'") at Approximate Station 2+00
Connect added Basin to Basin at Approximate Station 1+33

Cost Increase: 12" Storm Pipe 67LF @ 64.00 =$3,618.00 (unit prlce)
Catch Basin 1 EA@ 1400.00:: $1.400.00 (unit price)

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 1 Days
Rnal Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change In Contract Price:

$ 5,018.00

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
---",::c--:,---=----:----.-------------==-..,......,..---(EngineerlConsultant) (Date)

Contractor Action BiD Sproul 12123/15
-f~C~&~M:-':Ex=-c;;;...a.;.;.v:-:at~'Io-:n)~--------------'-(,7.:::'D~ate':'-~';-'-"--

Owner Action Melissa Roman 12114/15
.-:(:;;CIt,:;.y::..::o~/~N6,..;-w:.::'POrl.=.:..::~=---------------=-=(,~'D..;:..,a~,:-:.;8)~--

Page 1 of1



If

Bill SprouT

From: Melissa Roman <M.Roman@NewportOregon.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 10:11 AM
To: ‘acollett@civitwest.com
Cc; B111 Sproul’; Brian Turner
Subject: Additional CB & Pipe 27th ST
Attachments: Revised Sheet C108 Additional CB.pdf

Hi, Bill,

in all the confusion on 27th, think the additional catch basin has continued to get lost in the paperwork. Would you
please provide a price for one additional catch basin and the pipe to connect ft to the catch basin on the corner?

Aaron,

When we get the pricing information, would you please prepare a WCD for the additional work?

Melissa

A€.04i 11c#

1

23
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

r,

Bill Sproul

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
AU8chments:

Melissa Roman <M.Roman@NewportOregon.gov>
Monday, December 14, 2015 10:11 AM
'acollett@civilwest.com'
'Bill Sproul'; 'Brian Turner'
Additional CB & Pipe 27th 5T
Revised Sheet (108 Additional ca.pdf

.....

()

In all the confusion on 27th
, I think the additional catch basIn has continued to get rost in the paperwork. Would you

please provide a price for one additional catch basIn and the pipe to connect It to the catch basin on the corner?

Aaron.

When we get the pricing Information, would you please prepare a WeD for the additional work?

Melissa

1



aaraa.c
—

m
cm

L

—
—

r
f
r
7

1.
i
i
1

W
%

i
W

—
—_

_

7.
.

D
i
T

V
M

-
j
f
r

T

z
’’r

—
‘

—
—

i
J±

’°
—

a—
p

ra
%

a
a
f
l.’

f
!
iT

l.
I

-
1

—

II—

Ia
—

Ia
-

a

7
.

(
-
t
T

T
/

F
x

\
t
a

fl
/

\
\

1
I
—

a
a

.
—

—
I

t1
\

\
a
a
L

a
1
e
U

’
.
.
‘

I
-I

in
\

\
O

1
I
O

L
-
j
”
.
.
.
.,

-
.

--.
-

•
•
•
•
J
_

7
)

;I
.

%
i..,’

\
a
w

.,-
.7

P
J
1

...
$

•I

J
H

!
ii

-
.
,

*
.c

-
‘
—

4
•

-
;

I.I.
I

S
W

2
th

1
iJ1

L
fl’W

P
L

A
N

-
S

T
A

1
T

O
ST

A
M

-T
h

-4.
1
-
a
c

I.
M

.h
If
F

L
4
4
T

f
f
l
I
a

IIII*IIIII

.
...

-
.

.
-

.

.

A
I
I
a
I
.f

la
1

)
.

-
.

.
.

.
.

.

__________

-
-

.
.

.
.

.
.

—
—

—
—

/

r

-
-

-
-

]
L

.
4
i
O

N
—

-
-

—
_
_

l
i
T

e
1

4
/

—
—

—
I

.
1-

I
.

.
-
-

-
.

.
-

.
/

.
.

—
—

.
.

A
——.

—
—

—
—

—
—

.
•

..—
.

—
-

-
•——

M
4

1
O

T
I
4

O
.

_____________

—
.

—
.

.

.1
I

—
,

C

.1v
f
lizo,

w
O

ttC
iC

4
O

.1
ii..J

w
m

)
_

Ia

0

rJ
-
-
-
i

I
a
I
a
?
r
a
r
A

I
.v

.
a
,,7

w
r
a
7
,,-

*
,.r

1)

L
-1

tw

a
e
T

o

23
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

o



EJCDC
F\. EEr ,Cr. QNJ,CJ
DOCL ‘ET3 CMMITTEE

Work Change Directive No. 16

Issued By:

____________________________

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: Parking stalls on 26th & 27th, east area (3+00) road base 26th to 27th

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 6.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following]

El Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 6,210.00 [increase] [decrease].
Contract Time 2 days [increase] [dccreasel.
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

Lump Sum Unit Price

E Cost of the Work fl Other
RECOMMENDED: AUTHORIZE Y: RECE ED:

By: By: %iL t
Engineer (Authorized Signature) uier (Authorized Signature) Contractor Autho ized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title:
Date: Date: 4 ,,!t.- lip Date: ‘P41’
Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

_______________________________________________________________

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared arid published Z013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

_______

23
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued BV: _

Work Change Directive No. 16

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20,2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LlC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owners Contract No.:

Contractors Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Parking stalls on 26th & 27th, east area (3+00) road base 26th to 27th

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 6.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

~ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase] [decrease].
[increase] [ElecFease].

[gI Unit Price

D Other

AUTHORIZE~ , / /

By: -:J~~ By:

~er (Authorized Signature)

By:

Contract Price $ 6,210.00

Contract Time 2 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:
o LumpSum
o Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~
Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

l~H:>~(p

Mr. Jason Buchholz - Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date: t ;/~ /Ie
Title: n{~
Date: iJ14/'.

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:
Date:

Title:

EJCDC· C-94O, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pagelof2



Change Proposal Request

rc&M

Project Name: Abalone&3Oth

Owner: of Newport

Owner’s Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 1211412015
Contractor:

CPR # (6)

Date: 1212312015

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 12123/2015
from Contractor:

_____

Initiated By: fl Engineer I Consultant Owner LI Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): C206,C207 Spec Section: Roadways
RFI No: NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect, delay impacts and ati other cost and damages
whether known or unknown arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Coflett

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 6,210.00

Contractor Action

Owner Action
(City of Newpoif)

Change Proposal Description: Parking, Street Excavation Quantity Adjustment
Parking Stalls 26mto 271h East Area 2700 SF Total 6240 SF X 1iZSect /27 270 CY
Parking Station 3+00 Apartments Area = 840 SF
Road Base 26th to 27th West Side Area = 2700 SF

Cost Increase: 270 CY @ 2300 = $6,210.00 (contract unit price)

Any additional Base Rock, Valley Gutter or Paving will be measured in field and paid by
contract unit nrices.

(Engineer/Consultant) tVate)

Bill Sproul f 2123/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman 12/14115
(Date)

Page 1 of I

240 City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: Abalone&30th CPR # (6)

Owner: City of Newport Date: 12123/2015

Owner's Cant. No.: 2302·027 Consultant: Civil West

Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No: 2302·027

Date Sent to 12/1412015 Date Received 12123/2016
Contractor: from Contractor:

Initiated By: 0 Engineer I Consultant ~ Owner 0 Contractor

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project Is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed In accordance With the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all dlrec~ Indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain In full force and effect

Change Proposal Description: Parking, Street Excavation Quantity Adjustment

Parking Stalls 26V1 to 27m East Area =2700 SF Total 6240 SF X 1.17Sect /27 =270 CY
Parking Station 3+00 Apartments Area =840 SF
Road Base 26th to 27th West Side Area =2700 SF

Cost Increase: 270 CY @ 23.00 =$6,210.00 (contract unit price)

Any additional Base Rock, Valley Gutter or Paving will be measured in field and paid by
contract unit prices.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change In Contract Price:

$ 6,210.00

12114/15
(Date)

Engineer JConsultant Aaron Collett
-~-;:E·n-gin;-e-e-r/C=-ons-u"lte-n-:;t)------------(D=-a";"'"te-:-~---

Contractor Action alII Sproul 12123/15
-~7.:C;:;;&~M:-'iE;"~:::;';ca:;;:va-ti::-·o-n)""--------------":"::(D~8t;:-:-'e)'-:-=---

Owner Action Melissa Roman
~:-::-:-:'=--7:=:-:-:'=":":":';::':------------":"::::""':"":';~-

(City ofNewport)

Page 1 of 1



Auz

— STAO*7l..1V(I.FT)±
GRATE 12M
IO1EIN(sE3-lO,3W
WEE OW (W 10.3W
ADJUST GRATE 10 12.3

STA IQIU1 20’(RT)
GRATE • 12.99
REMOVE EX CATCH
BSINANO32LF OF OX
10’ PIPE

/b

f/88387PE 9v\

OREGON

DATE: O6l3O

Li

0)
co

I.:fr:
00

U

- STAS3(E) [PEP2LFlS I1i ,-NEWUGFITPEaME

IIyT i1.1.WjT)

lEENS,&)72 / WWQ1W)1O5G’ / SrA1D+t46.2T.1 TRJMTONEW/

NEWUON1EE BONUS
. BTA9*71-11’(LT) RATED

LT

r

_________

ES I - -I i SWBRNT8TSTAStS1J-10ARIJ

SEE SHEET Gills w pipo
N

\ ‘\ SW2flHST6EESHEEr C106— I Cl) I I
I SEE GRADING PLAN. SElECT C207

SW BRANT ST UTILITY PLAN - STA 6+50 TO STA 11+75

SHEET NOTES:

3 TYPICAl. BURY DEPTH
— FORNEW WATERLINE

SIESNEEF NOTES

30

26

20

II

z

SEWN 8
SThS+5a9-4’(lfl
RIEJ 13.58
ITIETN(S)=L52
12 IE EN E) = 9.58
12’ ES IN (SW) a58
12’ IC OUF (N) -

I

. EXISTiNG unimos TO BE PROTECTED IN PLACE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWiSE.
2. ADJUST EIIESTING STORM DRAIN MANHOLE RIMS. SANITARY SEWER W.NIIOLE RIMS, VALVu CAN S LIDS TO MATCH NEW FINISH

GRADES.
3. CONTRACTOR SHAa CONTACT ‘ONE CALL’ FOR LJHIITI’ LOCATES PRIOR TO THE START OP NW EXCAVATION.
4. CONTRACTOR SHALL POTHOLE EXISTiNG WATEREJNEAND OTHER UTILITiES PJ7JORTO NEW WATERLINE CONSTRUCTION TO

CONFIRM EXISTING UTILITY DEPTH. LOCATiON, AND FITTING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONNECTION OP NEW WATERLINE TO
EXISUNG.

5, TyPICAL BURY FOR NEW WATERLINE SHALL BE SW TO TOP CF PIPE. ADJUST DEPTH OF BURY AC RECUIRED TO MAINTAIN
CONSTANT GRADE (30’ NIH .4W MAX)

S. A20ER COAI’I ElTON OF NEW WATERLINE ANDALL TESTING AND CONNECTIONS HAVE BEEN MADE. DESIGNATED PORTIONS OF
EXISTiNG WATERLWEARE TO SE ASANDONEO IN PLACE EIGSUNG VALVES AND BOXES SHALL BE REMOVED IN ThEIR ENTIRETY
ALONG WiTh ANY TEMPORARY SPOOLS ANO CONNECTIONS. ALlY SECTIONS OF WATEFIWN IDENTFIED EN TN! FOLD AC
ABANDONED IN PLACE SHALL NAVE END CAPS, BUND FLANGES. OR PLUGS AS REQUIRED FOR COfb*’LETE ABANDONMENT OF
EXISTING WATERLINES.

• j—GONST 12’PVC BONES

f SOCIAE,32tF8=I.8%

• I DlISTINGASAIH: —

i 1 STASS3*

• OX 8’ EN (W,S,E) 7.0
OX r OUTEN) 8.8

• ADJUSTMMTO 13.44

10

I

05

I

CONSY 8’ 0600—’
GU60 WATER

LINE, 221 CF

€XISWIGSOMH:

.. .

1.58’tU)

OONST 8 csoo

________

CLISOWMEF
LINE 120L$

NINSFPARATIONBETWEEN :• EXEBTINGS0’
STORMORA1NLINE

I
20

25

IS

10 N
05

fOR GRADiNG INFORMATION SEE SHEET GIG?

(i’Nsw BRANT ST PROFILE - STA 6+5010 STA1+75

ANT ST STA 8*87.9. 10.4’ (Ri)
SW 27Th STSTA 1+10.9 7’ (Li)
SEE DETAIL

SCALE: HORZ 1=40’
VERTV*1O’ JuI 2015

0

24
1

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

II

SHEETKOTES:

STAIf831tJ
MIM: AtlJ
r IE IN (W,s.EJ.7J1
."IEOVTOO-U
ADJUST RIM 1013M

SWIllWfTSTSTAa+7U·tU'(Rt')-
6W27TH8T8TA'.'U'8'lrRT) III
8E£DETAJI.

•

. SWIllWfl'STSTAlttfl7.t·1U'(Rt)-~..., II '" ..,""or...~.......

••• ~~: ~I ..~i1 ~BII,~...-
~..............~.......~ l·~ I I I "11.'

SW2mfST"8EE8HEErCI08 U)
SEE GRADING PlAN, SHEET C207

•
ti

~ I tii ~~
~~ s::-en ....

II
.<

tif ~t)
U:o

~;! f~h O~ ad!
~~ ~~~~

~
~ ©lJ@71I
J Ju 2018

... " ~

~ .•• -. 25

••••••• 20

81A I1t47.5 -1t'lll)
RJIoI: 14.25
EX W IN: 7A2
EXWClUn7.22
ADJUST MIlO 14.

...... "' 0 ..

RHlSHED GRADI!
ClIC£HTERUNE

. ....... " ..
J,-~~~m

81"11.71 • 11'(lI'l)*
GRAl£ .. 12.44
10' IE IN (BE). 1G.38'
r IE OUT (W) .1UB
ADJUST GAAll5 TO 1ur

S. EXISTING UIlllTlE8 TO BE PROTECTED INPlACS UNLE&BNOTEDOTHERWISE.
2. AD.lUSf I!XlSTIllO 8TORI.l DRAIN MAHHOLE RIMS, SANITARY SEWER IMNJlCllE RlMS. VALlIE CNf &UDS 10 MAtcH N&W F1Nlfl1f

GRADES.
3. 00N11lACT0Rmw.t. OONTACT'CNE 0AlL" FOR UTIUTYWCAlES PRIOR 10ntESTARTOFNrr EXCAVATION.
4. CONTRACTOR SfW.l POnt01..E EXl8T1NO WATERUNEAHDO~ UTIl..Il1ES PRIORTO NEWw.\lERllNECXlNSTRUC1lON10

00Nf1RU EXISTING UTIliTY OEPnt,lOCA1lON, AND I'ITTINO REQUIREMENJSFORCClHNECTICN OF NEWWATERUNE TO
l!XIS11NG.

1I. lVPtCllQ. BURY FOR NEWW"l£RIJNI! SfW.l8E:W10TOJl' OF PlPfl. ADlUST DEPlHOF BURY 0\8 REQUlREO 10 MAIN1'Mt
CONSTANT GRADIi. (SO" MIN· 41' UAlC)

8. AfTER cot.I'IEllONOF JeYw.\1ERlINEANDNJ.1EBTINOAHDCONNECTIONB HAVE BEEN MADE, DESIClHAT60 PORlION8 Of
EXI8TlNlJ YMTIlIWHEARE10BE ABANDONEO IN PLACE. ElaSTlNGVH.YE8AND BOXES 8tWJ. BE REMal'EO IN l1lElR ENTIIl&1"/'
ALONG WlTJfANY TEMPORAR'/' 8POCll8 AND COIOIEC'flON8. AN'/' Sl!CJIONSOF WliTERl.IAlN IDEN1I'IEDIN THE l'laoIS
AIWlOONED IN PLACe IlKAI.LHAVE END CAPS, &UNO FlANGIi8. ORPlUGSM REQUlIlED FOR COMPlETEAllNfDClNM&HT OF
EXlS11Nl.J W"1ERI.IHE8.

1""40'

.., - -.' , -." .. - ..

SCAlE: HORZ 1"=40'
VERT 1""10'

• 81A8'83*
• Rial: 13.16
• ex8'INCW,8,E):7.0

• '. EXr 0U1'IN): e.e . , •
ADJUSTRlMlO 13.....

8W BlW(l'STSTA 1l'17J1·10,4'IRl)
SWanHST81A1+10.0- 7'(1.1)~
seE DErAIL

1
FOR GRADING INFORIMTJOH SEE SHEET C207

SW BRANT ST PROFilE· STA 6+50 TO STA 1 + 5

$TA1t58.ll.4'~t)
RlIot: 13M
12"IEIN(SI"UB
12"IEINll!I-1I.SII
12" IE IN (llW)..ue
12" Iiiour (N). OAI

SW BRANT ST UTILITY PLAN· STA 6+50 TO STA 11+75
10

. 7

1

tOl.1·8'CL1)
RIM; 18.00
12' IE IN (8) - 12.00
12' IEour (N)" nAIl

SW BRANT ST 8TA..71.3 .10.4' [RJ}'
SW 27TH ST81A 1+10.3·" (RT)

8EEDETAIL~

3' TYPICAl. BURY DEPnt
FORNEWWATERLlN&

SEE SHeer NOl£S

...................... .

.. .. .. .... .... .. .... .... .... .. .. .... .. .. .. .......... . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ...... .... .... ....
• • CONSf 12' PVC 8DR35 • .

SO~E.D8LF~

I
i• 30

I :15

J 20

I
i IS

I
I 10

J 05

I..
i
~

0



rIEE uiiL__
SWWTSTSTAe.87J- lO.4(Rfl=
SW2TflfSTSTA1$19-T(L1)
SEE DETAt 1

C15
EIOSflNQ SD
STAU4E2.7-1t2(L1)
RIM 13.42
SEE SHEETCIOT

TRANSON UPUN
S1AO3IR1) /
c0tIECT 70 BSSTG r/ -
WATEISJNE / = = =

— Es— ss— 12PVC SORSS
— I SOLE)

____

EXAC FOR NEWE’ — —

WATERliNE

t’
0813 UETER &‘iRAl4SlTl04COUPLIN0 I I

I 6• IE IN- 1121 1
WATER ElcE LINE

L ETA 1*3.a . I l• ,f STA 2.44.0 - rM) I STA s7&6. 6(LT)
NEW lIFTER OX 7—R[A0VE

rwi14.s J 7, sroiiwisw I CONNECITOEXISTINOr , 8tA2*82.S. 14Lfl / ThEES I
UGUTPCLE

I ir Ecu? io.ei I 1’
NEWFE HYDRANT

NEW LIGHT rOLE SASE

/

PO1’
‘ NEW io/ NEWUGHT POLE BASE

EX STANDARDIFIEIN—1O,fl I 1f

- . . ASSEMBlY STA2+1 2 2(t1) LOCA1IONf RETAiNiNG / 7’6TA345Z3-2O(L1)

WM.L SEE
SHEET 030*STAi.44.b.54’cU)

_________ ________

-STA3.96.O-W(L1) 4/ )i

I /
SET RIM TO NEW

__ ______________________________

rj

____________

I W—W—W—W—+w—

_____

TEtEPH0NECOJPANY

_____________________________

W 475 5+00
4+00 —i —i

___

—
‘ ss__*__5SF 3__+P2_±Es SW 27TH Sf5

-
Esi -5*-—

ROVEEX I j

— —

V

2
1
r-

M

___

Ii

___

—

___

STA4+5*.EçRJ)*

_________ _________ _________ _____

RJM:3227
\ —\ — 9 DRAIN LINE RASE]’—] REMOVE AND RELOCATE EX . I— 5 IS IN f.25.7O
\ \ OF RETAINING WAIL EXISTING POWER POLE T•PAD, 000RONATE WITH 8 IS OUT (N): E

] W PRCTECtINPLACE\ \ SEEDETML(21SLF) T06ENEcoCATEDE 1ELErno*EcoMP.9nY

\\ OTHERS. SEE GENERAL
STAI+M.3 Rfl ?1 NOTES

______________

\ CONNECT NEW
ETA 1+32.9.1 P (Rfl \ WATER SERVICE ;ri

‘.1 - 0

HRM3 -14.97 E3 UNE TO EX METER F

m
2PISDR35

IF IEOUT = 10.57 WW/% %
6 ‘‘ — PIPE

° SHEET NOTES
r/,/,//,’h’//r/,//I

SW ERANTET. SEE 1. EXISTING UTILITIES TO BE PROTECTED IN PLE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWiSE.
SHEET ClO? 3. ojusT EJCI5flNQ STORM DRAIN MANHOLE RIMS. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE RIMS, VALVE CAN & DOS TO MATCH NEW F1NSH GRADES.

4. CONTRACTOR SNAIL POTHOLE EXISTING WATERLiNE ANDOTHER UTS]TIES PR1ORTO NEW WATERlINE CONSWUCRON TO CONFIRM EXISTING UI1LDYSW 27th ST UTILITY PLAN -STA 1+00 TO STA 4+75 3. OR SHALL CONTACT ONE CALL• roii UTILIrY LOCATES PISOR TO THE START OF ANY EXCAVATiON.

40 DEPTh. LOCATION. ANt) FrTIING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONNECflON OF NEW WATERLINE TO EXISTING.
0. TYPICAl. BURY FOR NEW WATERUNE SHALL SEW TO TOP OF PIPE. AD.SJBT DEPTH OF BURYAS REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN CONSTANt GRADE (30’ MIll. 49’

MM)
5 AFTER COMPLETiON OF NEW WATERlINE AND ILL TESTiNG AND CONNECTIONS KANE SEEN MAD€ DSEIGMA1tD PORRONSOF EXUDNG WATERLINE

ARE TO BE ABANDONED IN PLACE. EXISTING VALVES AND BOXES SHALl. BE REMOVED 04Th9R ENT1RE1V ALONG WITH ANY TEMPORARY SPOOLS AND
CONNECTIONS. ANY SECTIONS OF WATERAIAIN IDENTIFIED IN TIlE F1ELDASABANDONEDINH. SHALL HAVE END CAPS, BlIND FLANGES. OR PLUGS

______-

- AS REQUIRED FOR COMPLETE ABANDONMENT Of EXISTING WATERLINEE

RE38WE

OREGON

R.

rTEE
SW BRANT SISTA 5+712.10.4’ (Ri)
SW2nH STETAI+1Q.3. S’fm)
SEE

DETFJL?

45 —

40 —

EXPIRATION DATE: O613Ofj

ii

U

NEW ROAD SURFACE AT—
CENTERLINE (APPROX)

30—

25 —

20—

IS —

10—

I

I
J

I
I

I
I

45

ETA l+30.B.Il’(Li) ..... .

R1M 14.88
• • 121511—10.77 • .
• .

FIEIN—II.27 .

12’IEOUT= 10.57

STAO*S1J-S(RT) GROUND
CONNECTTO EXISTING F • - .

ETA 0+I2.7 11.2 (CT)
• SEPARATIONRIM=13.42 ..

SEE SHEETCIOT : : : _—
— —

SIAN
SEPARATION • • • V • -

— -. — —

-
— — — — I — — - — — CONNECT NEWS

0 • • . . — — WATERlINE TO EXlSflNO
- • - -

.
:_ — — : ClTr CLISO - : F WATERLINE, SEE DETAIL

- :
WATER LTNE, TSLF

• DGSTINGSSI.0l
.STA4+55-F(RT)*
RIM”5E23’ -

• IEIN(V=23.7
- IEOUT(N)—20.8

40

.•35

— 8

$

:!::I:2-.
SEWER PIPE

3

I

I

S y

CONST8-09000L?sCJ
WATER LINE. 78 CF

5’ NIH CLEARANCE OVER ES UNE
NO PIPE BELLS IN WATERLINE

WITH lIT EITHER SIDE Of $5
CROSSING

-1

25

0

FOR GRADING INFORMATION SEE SHEET 0205

--20

10

a i •
2 2

i 8-TEE
7 SW BRANI ST STA 8487.9- IDA (Ri)

SW 27TH ST STAI+l0.9.r T)
SEE DETAIL

EXISTING SSMfl 1
SW 27th SI PROFILE - STA 1+0010 STA 4+75

ETA 1400.3’ (tfl)s SCALE: HORZ 1=40
RIM-13.1E
II IN (W.S.E) 7.9 —

IS OUT (N) -68
ADJUST RIMTO 13A4

z
Li.
0

-So
L-oz

H
LUi
-JO)
LI.o

July2015

242 City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

{£

SWIlRoWJ~"'TA 1187.1 -1U'(RT}
SW2mlSTSTA1"o.11-7'(ll)~
SEeDErAl.

15
S!:!T.~:A'!ilJt~82.~,!fi!-~l1~.2""'(l=l)-"""
RlU-IJ.4Z
SEE SHEETC101

- ,
SlA Ot3U·&' (RT)
OONHECT10EXlSTJfG 6"
WATERLINe

-VI -- 11'_-411-1..-...."""".

REMOYE & BEA.ACE
EXACFORNEW8'
WATERLINE

SIN BRANTST, SEE
SHE£TC101

STA2f.44.0- 7'(1.1)
SETRlMTONEWFG.NEW
WATERSElMCI! lINE

A R!MOVEEX

~_. (\.-'10 E --E - TREES- ,
r

6"DRADlLUlE08ASE
OF RETA1NING WALL.

i~::~~ '~ NOreS .'•••

'ru ~ ~.~SOPlPE(2'lF)_. ~.
II ~8.U% ~.;;$EEGlWlINGFLAN,8HEETC2Il8

<~//IM v/.IIIJ1 @ VI////////,I///////,I

1 SW27th STUTILITY PLAN -STA 1+00 TO STA4+76
10 1·"40'

RI!HO"IE~ I
lRE£S I

NEWlIGHI'POll! IWlE
STASt5U-ZIl'(ll)

EX8TANDARD
UGHTPOlE

STA4tli8 -2'(R1),j:
RlU:32.23'
a' IE IN IW):25..70
8" IE OUT IN): 2&.8
PROTECT IN PlACE

lD l! ;l;
I---t-+-+-H 5'

•t;

II
~~ ~

~

~I
~~

~~
~ i u.~

~e! ~~
~ ~

o~

i~
e1S~

~~
~~ 5

§

,
©1J®®J

s .lui 2018

I:
I

40

•• 111

• . •• 10

• • .• 45

. .
• •• : •.• - • '.' ••••• 20

SCALE: HORZ 1-"40'
VERT 1""'10'

. ...•• '. • . . . , •••••. ' .STA<4.·2'(RT}t
. R1M"n.:r.r

. : :.....•.:- . : _._._ "".~:.__.""-.~ _~.:=..:=:".:;;.:;p~oor_I~_~_c~_j~_~.;.;7_~ _._._._....;,..:'\.-'_"J_~" ~ ..

. . .
fOR GRADING INfORMATION SEE llHEEl C20Il

.•• .• ' •..•• , .••••• , •. '.:-z _._.~".... '...:...' ••• <-Lt" .. '.' . . . .. 30

: : : -- ~ _ :::~ ::: ::: ::: :- ::: - ~ ~ - :- - ::: ::::T F :
.:.-- -::;;. . -- -~--. , . . _ - ::::i!J .. - - " ••••• " •.•. o:..--.c;:;...---:. "" ...••• ~ e • y __. . ..-r-. • .• .. •••••. .. " 25

... . • ...-:::::. --. . exiSTING . ,-.;... -- ::: ~.-- . •
• __ -:::: --. • WATERLINE :..- - :::: -:- _. • "- -

5W 27th 5T PROFILE - STA 1+00 TO STA 4+76

"COHNECT NEW" ~ •
.•• :WATERLINETOEXlSTINO ~7 .•••. ~

•II"WATeRLINE, SEE DaAlL •

...

2
1

• NEWROADSURFACI!A1 •
: ceNtERLINE IAJ'MOX.J

.. .. .. ..
........... e •••• e ". . .. .

,. " -." " ..

fill BRANT STSTA lIte7.9· tOA' (RT) =
f11127THSTST"1.'U~
I5EI! DETAR. 7

L~Sl:~'A~,tGO~.~~~(LFTb-Jj:,- t
RIM - 13.15'
IE In (W,S,E)" 7.0
IE OUT IN)..e.e
ADJUST RIM TO 1:lA4

STA 0tI2.7 ' ,1.2 tLl)
RIM=1U2
SEe 8HEETC101

&" MIN ClEARI\NCE OVER lIS UNE
NO PIP£ BEllS IN WAJERI.JNE

WITH to' EITHER lIlDl: Of 68
CROSSING

<40- •

35- ."

r-~~~ITIONCOUPLING
30 - • . • STAO~t':""(RT) '.' • - •.. , ••

COIlNEarTOEJOSTlNG r
WATeALUlELJ\

: ~: 12'fVQSOfW$Q
• , •••••.•. PIPE(iOlF)S"3ft26-· ..

CON8T8" C1lOO CL110
WATER UNE, 71 LF

us - ••

20- ..

45- .

I
i

I
I
I
t
j
J

I
I
I
------------------------------------------------------------_......~-...-,;j........_ ...o



z
r:w

.6

‘4
uj

883B7PE

OREGON

iq2”

$. Nl’

IEUST1NGhI I’rsc13.±I
—NW

SIDEWAlK

STAO’6L.l7(R1)EC
I GSTA7+5U ENDCVRDNDGUflEH j

NEWCLkB

_____

III
Ii 1 ANOGUnER tTC14.O

STAi91A3 Laf 42STA7+2?50

4 I

___

cai
- -

---Z. ‘ ‘IslT IS06 / TEC 149I-J, ‘

f Ii: r
CENTERUNEOFNEW25
cNCRETEDRNYUONuEPfl\\

30

25

20

15

10

OS

-$AWCflANO PATCH EUSTIMG - EXELECTRJCAI VAULT
ASPHALT EON WATERLINE ,—CONST EDGE OP PAVEMENT ADJUST RiM TO NEWFG,
EXIENSIOM (SEE SHEEr ClOT) / to MATCH GRADE OF EX ENSURE RIM IS 1120 TRAfFIC

SAWCUTEX1STINGPAVEUENTPERPENDICULAHTO / CURSF10WUNE RATED
I / ROADWAY TO PR(MOE CLEAN EDGES SMOOTH SAW CUt EXISTING PAVEMENT TO PROViDE

ISANSLOONS. MATCH GRADE AT MW CUT. CLEAN LOGE a SMOOTH TRANSifIONS. VERIfY
/ EXISTiNG GRADES S sor ELEVATIONS IN FIELD.

IXIST1NG
EXIS liNt,1 --

- MAICHGRADESAWcUT.

1
I ITh(13.0k 1EXISTING TSC 1432

,yI iipciici IEisik V\ \ F
—- 1—’ITERSECiiON I20cj3J DMli\ -g• .

. STA1.O3SSW5RANrST -. - - - —-- - . - - — . . - -—A STAI+0000SWSTTH$T - -- ( \/
. -L . .. ...• :.

-‘ .s •- .
.. I

Cl) ‘ ETA 1432.54
Ifl-nBC

I,

BEE UTILITY PLAN. SHEET ClOT
SHEET NOTES:

I. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH PROPERV( OWNER(S) FOR REMOVAL &
RELOCATiON OF EXISTING MAILBOXES. FENCING AND ALL OTHER FEATURES AND
EQUIPMENT WITHIN CONSTRUCTION AREA.

2. PATCH EXISTING DRIVEWAYS WITH NEW DRIVEWAY APRONS USING UKE MATERIAL
2. BACK OF NEW CURB AND NEW SIDEWALK SHALL SE CUT OR RLLED TO EXISTiNG

GRADES WITH MAXIMUM SLOPE OP 31.
4. ADJUST EXISTING STORM DRAIN MANHOLE RiMS EANITAfff SEllER MANHCLE RIMS.

VALVE CAN & 110830 WATCH NEW FINISH GRADES.

EXPIRATION ThOW3J

SW BRANT ST GRADING PLAN - STA 6+50 TO STA 11+75
V = 60’

I
I H

z

N
4

I
1
I

I
I
S

I
I

I I

(iNs SW BRANT ST PROFILE - STA 6+5010 STA 11+75
SCALE: HQRZ I’40’

VERT 11cF

p-a

z
II,
0

3

I

July2015

0

24
3

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

If;

.I

I

t;

~f!! ~~
Ii ~~ ~~....

tag!
~~

:~: ~ ~~
o 3 ~~ ta~
5~ i~ ~~~~ C)'

z

~
C)

f
©~®71I

I .lu 20111

...li-t-+-H_I I

.Cl6

.. to

STA 114ROll·
3Z'lRllEC
!NO CURB
ANOGUn£R

~ I

EXElECnUCAl.. VAlA.T
ADJUSTAINTO NEWfG.
I!H8IlR& RIM 18 H2O TlW'FIC
RAlED

tlAWCUT EXI8l1NG PAVENENrTO PROVIDE
<:l1Wf EDGE aSUDOlHlRANSlflONi. VERIFY
exISTING GRADES. SPOT ELEVATlDHS IN FJELD.
MATCH GRADe OtlAWCUT.

_ Il:
• I' .. • .. .. .. 0 ~ 30

l'HV.c. _
: : ~

:0 .0 ., 0 O( . ~ ~i~ 0"
: c~ .. .::~ ~i~.... '.' ti m' . . . . . ~. . :lD

SfA1Ot1U
eat1BlI.IE Of NEW 'JJi'
CONCllEl'e ORNEWAV.
MAlt:H GIWlES. BAa<
OfOfWEWAY

;'

COMSTEOOEOfPNIEJIIEHr
'0""',eliGRADli OF EX
CURBFLOWUNE

SHEEr NOTES:

t. OONTRACTORTOCOORDINATEWI1'HPROJ>EATVOWNEA(8)fMREMOVAI.&
RaOCAllOH OF EXISTING MAlLBOlCE8., FEHClNGAND ALL OTHER FEATlJRES AND
EQUIPMENfWlnllN 00NfITRUC11ClN AREIl.

2. PATai ElUSTIHO lIAIYEWAV8 WITH NEW ORNEWAY APROHS UStNa UJ(£ MA1ERIAI
So BAa<OF N6WQJRIl /lIfO N9ISIOl:WAUC 8IW.l BE CUT OR Fll.lED10 EXlSllMG

GRADESwmtMAlOU1AlSLOPEOI''=1.
4. IID.IUSTEXl8f1llO SfORM DRAIN hWlHOLE RIMS, 8NlfTAftY'seweR 1oWIHa.E RlAtS.

VALVE CNl aLIDS TO MATCH HEW FINISH GRADES.

FINI8IlED 0lWlEoCENTERLINE

. . ............... '" .. . .

SCALE: HORZ 1-:=40'
VERT1....'a

FOR t1T1U1V INFORMATION SEE SHEET ClOT-

"I"'
.. ~ ...:.
L;~ .

gl! :
I~~ ..:.....lEI aI •

SW BRANT ST PROFILE * STA 6+50 TO STA 11+752
20

SWBRANT STGRADING PLAN· STA6+50 TOSTA 11+75
1""'40'

NeW,.
SIOEWAU<

: : "~ :
. . .: ~ . ~~ ; ;..

--:......-=~~-.-:.;...:.!;.,;;...:.~...:..~. ;·':;'1~.5ft~~· ~'~',..'~' ~.~'~'L'~'~.~.~.~.~. ~.~'i'~'~2'~'_'~' ~.J~:.....~~~_"""'--:~~~t:...--~~~~~·l'~· :.~'~'~'~'11;':'~''':':'':'' ':"·1:~·2~~!..:-·~~_-lf5_ -0.,", . Cl..Iia--.-

GSTAlt Sl

...

FlNSHEO GRADE • tOO'V.c.
OcelfTERUHE •• , •• r--~~-~---';''':'''':=:'~--~--..,

25

20

t5

to

05

I;

I
J
I
1

I
J

I
I..
I3 ..... ......I..::.10 ;;e",;;o;......_ ......

o



.—-..-——.-——..
‘
.

,‘
\

,
:
‘
.
‘
—

•-

I
l
r

‘t’
‘

f
I-

I
I

u\
i
i
r

i
)

,
. \‘\l\

\\
t

•
.

\

9
:
1
*
I
2
*
f
q
:
t
j
o
Q

_
_

_

/I j
/fI

i iii!
.
.

‘
: Jf

/
••t’%%.%_

r..::::
p /

,1
,Ø

çi
;.

/1
Ii’

II
I’!;l

l
.

..
:

•1\r
:r

?J
1Ø

1//
//j

i/i
/i

f/M
/

//%
//>

(//
j/\

J fi[
7i)

),
‘/

Z
//

’
\

1I
tI

/1
j

-
ii.

L
ii

‘1
—

‘

I
V

/
1

J/Z
i_

/
/
t

A
VI
i
i

YM
/

-

‘

JL
it

/II
/

/
1
/

‘
/

Z
\

/1
I
j

II
IX

t
r

j
I

J
/f

i
/
f
’
’
,
z

\
l
i
i
i
!

V
i
i
,
t
i
’

\
1

_(
89

I
‘

I
/1

/f
11

I
A

t
I

“
1

1/
y

/

I\
‘
/
/
/
/
/
j

‘v
t l

l‘
i

N\
ç

t;:!
%/

’:
%: :

/
/
9

/
N

V
I
6
f
l

%
—

1
‘

//
J

/
;

;;
;:

[
‘

—
I

I /\j
-

I‘
/fI

///
-
-

/
1

/
I

.-
-

/
/
/
/

//
J
-:

,
‘-

-7
-

I
1

L
—

’J
]

I
I

I
I

I
Ii

I
-
‘

1
—

_
.
‘

f
I

I
—

F
,/

//
I

:
1—

F
J

j
/
L

j
1/
/

L
J
1

’
•:

r
I

/
%

/
/1

1
:.

;-
j

1
1

II
‘

O
-g

—

(I
—

/
/1
I

)
•;

‘1
j

_
I

—1
I

•
-

—
—

‘
1

-
I

I
1/

1
:

cc
rr

1‘1
II

I
II

I
-
1

-
r
\
\

I
I

I’
/\

II
I

j
l

j
\

\\
r
-

1
-
-

J
J
/

ll/
/
J
:

:
4’
\\

0
/
fl

/1
‘I

I
-

-
-

-
‘-I

-
\

7
1

II
,!

-
I_

-
a

•-
j

,
-

\
\
\

f
I

F
-

-
.
.
-

-
—

I
,/J

I-
-

—
-I

•—
IhI

—
I

..
:

*
-

.:
-.

i:
p

U
,

t
I

-
%

_
_

—
.—

_
_
J

i
H

I
1

—
-
l

-.
I

Il
l

—
J

‘
J
r

t—
-

T
h—

_L
1

/
/

II
/-

-
I

-
-

—
--

I
J

I
/

/

1
h
,
-
-
.
i
-
-
—

I
1/

Ii
I

—
1

_
I

—
/

_
]

I
I

T
I

-(
r-

/
H

i
1
-

-
-

-,
—

-
-1

,-
’-

—
—

_
7

l,
i’

l
I

—
—

-
—

:
1

I
’

J
14

I
1

‘
-

—
-

-
I

-
-

I); I

/

\ /
tI

M 4 Il I,

244 City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

16

- .... ;

/

: ~ .. '·i,~.·.. '. ..,
0\

-~.=-_.

lL--

J

'-

(..

7
1.-

'. ,...

- 1-- ----

_·w·--.~ .--
-'--- - --r'. __.--'.-

..,

~
l_=,.dd-=.. -

.:

-

-~- --- ----
,/

.,'

I
I

I

I
I

I

/

I
I

I
I

- -,
I

"'
C
"'~o



EJCDC
NIN.ES JV?flI CONIRACI
DOCAMET5 CDURIItEE

issued By: k
L]

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer’s Project No.:

Contract Name:

Work Change Directive No. 17

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following changefs):
Description: Dirt logic update cost for redesign of Brant Street

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 8.

Purpose for Work Change Directive;
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

flNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 4,253.00

Contract Time 2 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

Lump Sum

fl Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDED:

By:

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

(—7 -t6

U Unit Price
Other

AUTHORlZE-BY

By: 7 %/By:

(Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Project Manager

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

[increase] [dccreacJ.
[increase] [dccreae].

Title:

Date:

Title:

Date:

Contractor

Title:

Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

lid/I?’

Date:

24
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By:

Work Change Directive No.

Effective Date: 01/20/16

17

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner:

Contractor:

Engineer:

Project:

city of Newport

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Dirt logic update cost for redesign of Brant Street

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Controctor CPR B.

Contractor (A

D Unit Price
[8] Other

AUTHORIZE~

By, C1at~ ~'I'/z]y
~r (Authorized Signature)Engineer (Authorized Signature)

By:

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following}

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

~ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase} (Eiesrease].
[increase] [lteerease].

Contract Price $ 4,253.00

Contract Time 2 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

o LumpSum
o Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

(./~7 -(6
Title:

Date:

Mr. Jason Buchholz - senior
Project Manager

;. 71~/(P
Title: ~11/
Date: J1-t4'(,

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

EJCCC' C-94O, wort Change Directive.
Prepared and published lOU by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pqelof2



EJCDC
NGIER JOINT OONTRAT

DOCUMETJS CI’UMIflEO

THJS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EICDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 2 of 2

24
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

EJCDC~
:!NQI"EERS lO..,r COfrf'TR4:T
DOCUM£~T' C\.MWlnEE

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCOC
i

e-940. Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 2 012



Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC

Project Name: Abalone&3Oth

Owner: City of Newport

Owners Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 01122/2016
Owner:

CPR # (8.1)

Date: 0112212016

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received NA
from Contractor:

Initiated By: u Engineer I Consultant 0 Owner Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): NA Spec Section: Engineering/Design
RFI No: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 4,253.00

Engineer / Consultant Aaron Colleft

Contractor Action

(Engineer/Consultant) (Date)

Bill Sproul 01122116
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Change Proposal Description: Design / Surface Corrections I Additional Information

Dirt Logic Assistance (09/10/15) = $2,200.00 Cost Increase: 4053.00+5% $4,253.00
Dirt Logic Assistance (11/11/15) = $1,850.00

During street Grading it was pointed out by Brian Turner (C&M) that the electronic files
provided did not contain enough correct information to hard stake the project. This situation
was also pointed out by Dirt Logic during the modeling process. The intent of the Plans
needed to be verified in many areas on Abalone, Brant and 27th Bill Sproul(C&M) authorized
Dirt Logic to coordinate with Civil West and the City of Newport to finalize the intent of the
Plans and to verify that elevations presented met that intent. This troubleshooting and the
finalizing of electronic files needs to be done on all jobs at some point in the process or you
cannot hard stake. The extra time for this work is reflected in this CPR.

Page 1 of 2

24
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavation & Utilities LLC

Project Name: Abalone&30th CPR # (8.1)

Owner: City of Newport Date: 01/2212016

Owner's Cont. No.: 2302-027 Consultant: Civil West

Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No: 2302-027

Date Sent to 01/22/2016 Date Received NA
OWner: from Contractor:

Initiated By: 0 Engineer / Consultant 0 Owner 00 Contractor

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, Indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown. arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain In full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Design 1Surface Corrections 1Additional Information

Dirt Logic Assistance (09/10/15) =$2,200.00 Cost Increase: 4053.00+5% =$4,253.00
Dirt Logic Assistance (11/11/15) = $1,850.00

During street Grading it was pointed out by Brian Turner (C&M) that the electronic files
provided did not contain enough correct information to hard stake the project. This situation
was also pointed out by Dirt Logic during the modeling process. The intent of the Plans
needed to be verified in many areas on Abalone, Brant and 2ih

• Bill Sproul(C&M) authorized
Dirt Logic to coordinate with Civil West and the City of Newport to finalize the intent of the
Plans and to verify that elevations presented met that intent. This troubleshooting and the
finalizing of electronic files needs to be done on all jobs at some point in the process or you
cannot hard stake. The extra time for this work is reflected in this CPR.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 4,253.00

(Date)

Engineer / Consultant Aaron Collett
~=----:------;:=---:c,-----::-------------=-':""'""':"'"---(Eng;neerIConsultant)

Contractor Action _B~iII~S:-,::p=-ro,-u...;,;.I~--:- O--;:1=-/2-:-21-,:-1_6~_
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Page 1 of2



Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC —

Owner Action Melissa Roman
(City of Newport) (Date)

Page 2 of 2

24
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavatio & Utilities LLC

Owner Action Melissa Roman
(City ofNewport) (Date)

Page 2 of2



/

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: Abaione&3Oth

Owner: City of Newport

Owner’s Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 1211412015
Contractor:

CPR # (8)

Date: 1212312015

Consultant: CMI West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 12l2312015
from Contractor:

initiated By: D Engineer I Consultant D Owner N Contractor

This CPR applies to or Is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): NA Spec Section: EngineeringlDesign
RFI No: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulatIons, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect) delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shah remain in full force and effect.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion; 0 Days

Change Proposal Description: Design Modeling I Surtace Corrections
Dirt Logic Assistance (09110/15) = $2,200.00
Dirt Logic Assistance (11/11115) = $1,350.00

Cost Increase: $4,050.00+5% 4,253.00

Completed the Modeling process including troubleshooting and correcting design issues. -

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

Engineer / Consultant Aaron Co(tett

$ 4,253.00

Contractor Action

Owner Action

(Engineer/Consultant) (Dale)

Bill Sproul 12/23/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman 72/14/15
(City of Newport) (Date)

Page 1 of I

24
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

,

Change Proposal Request

CPR # (8)

Date: 12/2312016

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 12/23/2015
from Contractor:

0 OWner O?J Contractoro Engineer / ConsultantInitiated By:

Project Name: Abalone&30th

Owner: City of Newport

Owner's Cont. No.: -.;2:=.;:30=2-0-==27=-- _

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 12/14/2016
Contractor:

Attention: The foUowIng change In Ihe contract on this project Is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with Ihe lerms, stipulations, and
conditions of Ihe original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, Indirecl, delay Impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subjeot matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shaD remain In full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Design Modeling 1Surface Corrections

Dirt LoglcAsslstance (09J10/15) =$2,200.00
Dirt Logic Aasistance (11/11/15) =$1,850.00

Cost Increase: $4,060.00+6% =4,253.00

Completed the Modeling process including troubleshooting and correcting design Issues.

Contract Time
Change In Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 2 Days
Final Completion: oDay8

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 4,253.00

(Dale)

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
--:::=--:,..--=---::-~------------:=-..,......,..---(Engineer/Consultant)

Contractor Action .....:B:::=i~II-===S:J:p~ro:...::u:.:....1 --:-:---:-- ----:..::12=-12=3=.:,/,..;.15-=--_
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

OWner Action Melissa Roman 12/14/15
-'~':'=C~ity;,;.:o'-:-f7:Ne,...--wp---:..;.ort.:..::?-'--------------:(,:::::Da----:te:-'-:~,.:--;---

Page 1 of1



P0 Box 28317
Portland, OR 97228

BILLIO
C & M Excavation and Utdtles
Bill Sproul
P.O. Box 1624
Sherwood. OR 97140 I

bATE:

1 0911012015 ]

1IL

i F!c1i IVL.][.1nij if
[ - BIB Sproul Upon Receipt 7 15-0573 1 Abalone and 301h

i]i1LHo1 I Ni[.1IIIj
GPS Abalone and 30th OrigInal Grading -

Abalone and30thj / $200.00a. a. a
..o —arC.

EZ•
)________________

. -J- El

Payment due upon receipt, pay by credit card on our online payment center. 1jp)

iirtlnaic.zloço.conVpayments
4It Is apleasure serving youl Li

3

r’i17
I 1-877-775-6442 ] .dlIogico I I 1503] 9O7-95 I)

-- Please refer to email for payment information or go to JfrtIonic.z!oao.oomavments

25
0

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

PO Box 28317
PorUand, OR 97228

BilL TO; _ ._ -. . _

C & M Excavation and utilities
Bill SprouJ
P.O. Box 1624
Sherwood, OR 97140

ITEM; DESCRIPTION: AMOUNT: •

GPS

-. .. ....-=.f

Please refer to email for ment Infonnatfon or 0 to



Bill SprouJ
L 4,JbTRéDeS1A))

From;
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Importance:

invoices@dirtloglc.com
Tuesday, December 08, 2015 10:57 AM
bil)s@candmconstruct.com
Dirtlogic Invoice - Abalone Rev 11-4-15

High

/‘‘l.

Bill Sproul,

ADDENDUM DISCLAIMER: Please note that this takeoff is only current to the date that it was postedon our site and may not reflect any/all Addendum changes that were Issued as we are not
responsible for those changes and can’t as a company absorb those costs. As per our CompanyPolicy AU addendum changes posted after the day we run these takeoffs are in addition to our offeredtakeoff and need to be purchased separately through us, but as with any job you order, we need
sufficient time to process your request along with any direction you can offer to keep costs down foryour company as well as ours.

P0 Box 28317
Portland, OR 97228

Bu1TO:
C & M Excavation and Utilities

Bill Sprout
P.O. Box 1624

Sherwood, OR 97140

DATE:
flit 1/2015

Attached are your quantities and views for the Abalone Rev 11-4-15. The quantities and sectional
depths within this report are carefully researched and recorded. Sectional depths that we are unableto locate within the plans and specs are then assumed based on industry standards. This reports issold as is’ and any additional revisions or customizations will be provided at an additional

hli
GPS

JTeN IIYL’Itli4_ Ti
[ Bill SpTout t jJpqnReceipl 15-0703 Abalone Rev 11-4-15

11II[,1’
Abalone Rev 11-4-15

1

t1’LII1I)I
$1,850.00

7
Payment due upon receipt, pay by credit card on out online payment center.

dirlloglc.corn1av-vour-invoice
It is a pleasure serving you!

— a,JL[ (5031461-2796 1 www.dirtiooic.com I (503] 907-9504

Please tefer to emati for_payment Information or go to dirttoalc.comlpay-vour-invplce

$f85O.Oo 6I

—J p5

I

1

25
1

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

I

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Importance:

involceS@dirtloglc.com
Tuesday, December OS, 2015 10:57 AM
bills@candmconstruct.com
Dirtloglc Invoke - Abalone Rev 11-4-15

High

Bill Sproul,

ADDENDUM DISCLAIMER: Please note that this takeoff is only current to the date that it was posted
on our site and may not reflect any/all Addendum changes that were Issued as we are not
responsible for these changes and can't as a company absorb those costs. As per our Company
Policy AJI addendum changes posted after the day we run these takeoffs are In addition to our offered
takeoff and need to be purchased separately through us, but as with any job you order, we need
sufficient time to process your request along with any direction you can offer to keep costs down for
your company as well as ours.

~ ~ >- ••

, 'o1~TL.O~I'p'~J

PO Box 28317
Portland, OR 97228

~Bi(L TO: I
C & M excavation and Utilities

BID Sproul
P.O. Box 1624

Sherwood, OR 97140

ITEM: DESCRIPTION: AMOUNT: .
AbalOne Rev 11-4-15

Payment due upon receipt, pay by credit cad on our onRne payment center.
d1rUoglc.com/pay-vour-jnyo!c&
It Is a leasure servin oul

GPS

Please refer to emall for payment information or go to dlrt!oglc.com/pay-your-lnyolce

Attached are your quantities and views for the Abalone Rev 11·4·15. The quantities and sectional
depths within this report are carefully researched and recorded. Sectional depths that we are unable
to locate within the plans and specs are then assumed based on Industry standards. This reports is
sold 'as is' and any additional revisions or customizatlons will be provided at an additional

1



EJCDC
E .4E WNT CG
rc,E.IS CMIT1t

Issued By: — Effective Date: 01/20/16

Work Change Directive No. 18

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer’s Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30’ Roadway
Improvements

Contract Price $ 592.00

Contract Time 0 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

LI Lump Sum

Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDEp:

By:

_

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title:
Date: t3o .(‘ Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Unit Price
Other

AUTHORIZ9.$Y:
,- / / /

Ifô1 .LS1Z By:

9wner (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Project Manager

t.2.f..r€

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and publIshed 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: Standard curb change

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 9.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both ofthefollowingJ

LI Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

fincrease] (dccreae].
lincrease] [decrce].

Contractor uthorized Signature)

t/zjt

Title:

Date:

Title:

Date:

25
2

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 18

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20,2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Standard curb change

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 9.

R E 'M
D

: fl
,/JI{,I'/ ..- ,

Contractor ~uthOrizedSignature}

~ Unit Price

o Other

AUTHORI~Y: /

80~b;<.( .J34LfL By:

[g/ner (Authorized Signature)

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

~ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase) [lifeeFease).
[increase) [EleeFease).

Contract Price $ 592.00

Contract Time 0 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:
o LumpSum

o Cost of the Work

R~~~MEN~:
By: (£P-1 ~

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

I".}a-,(~

Mr. Jason Buchholz -Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date: /. U- I~
Title: 1.t"t4- n, { I"

Date: {/'f:..i/t fI

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

EJCDC- C-940, Work Cha..e Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the EnglneersJolnt Contract Documents Committee.

PagelofZ



Change Proposal Request

Project Name: Abalone&3Oth

Owner: City of Newport

Owner’s Cont. No.; 2302027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 1211412015
Contractor:

CPR # (9)

Date: 1212312015

Consultant: Clvii West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 1212312015
from Contractor:

Initiated By: 0 Engineer / Consultant Owner 0 Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): NA Spec Section: Curbs / Hardacape

LRFINo: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed In accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
fuU compensation to the Contractor for ati direct, indirect, delay Impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter ot this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 592.00

(Engineer/Consultant) (Date)

Contractor Action

Owner Action

ili Sproul 12/23/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman 12/14/15
(City of Newport) (Date)

Change Proposal Description: Standard Curb in ODOT Right of Way (Abalone)
Mold Change to Standard Curb Approximately 205 LF @ 2.75 = $563.75

Cost increase: 563.75+5% = $592.00

Measurement and Payment of all curb Included In Contract item 46.

Page 1 of I

25
3

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: Abalone&30th CPR #

Owner: City of Newport Date:

Owner's Cont. No.: 2302·027 Consultant:-'-'----'-'-'-'--------
Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No:

Date Sent to 12/14/2015 Date Received
Contractor. from Contractor.

(9)

1212312015

Civil West

2302·027

12/2312016

Initiated By: o Engineer I Consultant 181 Owner o Contractor

Curbs 1Hardsca e
NA

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. An work shall be performed In accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of Ihe original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
fuJI compensaUon to the Contractor for all direct. indirect. delay Impacts and an other cost and damages
whether known or unknown. arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shaD remain In full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Standard Curb in ODOT Right of Way (Abalone)

Mold Change to Standard Curb Approximately 205 LF @ 2.75 =$563.75

Cost Increase: 663.76+5% =$592.00

Measurement and Payment of all curb Included In Contract Item 46.

Contract Time
Change In Contract TImes:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 692.00

(Dat9)

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
-=:--::---=---::--.,.,..------------=:-..,..---,---(Engin99rlConsultant)

Contractor Action ~Be.:;,iJI..;.S;J;p=-ro;;.,;u;;.;.I~_=_- __--_--_--..:.1:;;,;2/,::;2~3/;...:1....=5--
(C&M Excavatlon) (Dat9)

Owner Action Melissa Roman 12/14/15
-~7.C:-::ity~of=-=N-;-9-W,-'Po-rt7."~-'-------------~(D=-'a-="t9"':-~-'----

Page 1 of1



QUOTATION
December iS, 20-15

Thmzk youfor the opportwafy
szthmitthzg this quotation. 5ulet to

actxptmcewi1hin 25 dmfl.

FURNISHED BY CUSTOMER j
* Bond, Add 2%
* (2Sets) IM Erosion Conkd
*M MaterialsTesllng/ OCT
radthgb Concrete rk
* Traffic Control tJolnt SeaIg if needed
.4LL SURVEY AND lAYOUT
‘All Excavadon, Except Catch Basins
‘Offsite Disposal of Catch Basin Spo1s
‘Over-ron Due to Low Grade (over 5%)
* $chedung -14 Day Nooe Required
*5 for catch Basin Pipe
PipetobeLaidwithinfftofcb

‘M Pipe Materials to Hook Up Catdthssln
‘CatohEasin Ovec-depth(Ftom Top of Curb
0’ to 5’ Bid Price

5’ to B’ Add I 50.OOlFoot

1Z480.0O Over 8’ Md 300OGIFoot
*WashOutA,Ea&Cleaa-Up

• Retainage to be placed in an erest
bearing account as per ORS 7t1t435

J t %0ROGER LANGELIERS44fl! V fC.ncrtP1rnd CON5flLJ(flON (J‘3 Cwb 2d Cuer . Cch Basi

C&M

PROJECT:
Bill Soroul

32929 ROBERTS CT - COBURG, OR 97408
(541)302-6648 - FAX (541)302-6647

- SWAbotc,e SL 3U SL Rd Wayimp. tarTAiioøai rIcos

CCB OREGON# 106364 - WASHINGTON # ROGERLCOZ7P

Questions Please call. Rick Lartgellers 541402-6648No Roci ForTng Iuded or Finegradiog
ITEM QV( UNIT DESCRIPTION

UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 LS MdMobforF1etwo 4,908.75 — 4,908.751 1.S ioinai MoforG&G 4,908.15 4,0$.75150 SF ant Curs
17J5 2,662.50

1hadtoRgurcnedayfocaFflSedcravismybesiguess.

Accepted and agreed:

____________________

Deteth________
.4dRoprssencdkie

TOTAL BID:
QUANTITIES ARE APPRG)CIMATE AND TEE TOTAL PRICE WLL VARY BASED ON ACTUAL QUM1flES INSTALLED. ‘PAYITE?ITTERP4S ARE NET 30 DAYSFROM DATE OF INVOICE. * OVERDUE ACCOUNTS SUBJECT 10 ALATE CHARGE OF 1% PER MOtifK.CUSTOMER SHALL PAY ALL COSTS, E)ENSES AND REASONABIIATtORNEYS’ FEES INCURRED BY RLC DIMlY SUIT. MIBflRA’DON, MEDIATiON,BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDlNG AND POSTJUDGMENT PROCEEDING (AND ANY APPEAL OF THE FOREGODIG)TO COLLECT ANY AMOUNT DUE.

Abalone St Newport Addiorial PriceS 12.-18-15

254

C
ity C

ouncil P
acket for M

arch 7, 2016

fij~~)-ROGER LANGELIERS
." ~~" Cotacr*~an4~ CONSllWCTlON CO.
~ J " onad CIdkr' • CaIcb IIash

~c, C&M

32929 ROBERTS CT - COBURG, OR 97408
(541)302-6648 - FAX(541)3(12-6647

CCB: OREGON # 106384 • WASHINGTON # ROGERLCQZ7Io

QUOTATION
Det:embel'18,2D'15

PROJECT:
Bill Sproul
SW Aliolone St• .::. JOth St Rei W~y Imp. NewporT Additional FrlcC?:i

Questions Please caJl. RiCk Langet1ers 541"'302=5648
No Rock ForGr.ldlng lAClUded orFllI89radillQ

ThtlnIcyou. for the upportunUy of
6Ubmitf:in.g this qut)tatiDn. Sllltject to

aazptIInceU1lfh:in 15 dIzy$.

FURNISHEJ BY CUSTor;:ER '

ITEM QTY UNIT DESCRJPTlON UNITPfUCE TOTAL PRICE

1 LS Add MQb For A_1'DIlc 4.908.75 4,908.75
1 LS AdcII1olaa1 MobforC&G 4.908.75 4,908.75

150 SF SldCurb 17.75 2,662.50

.

Jhad to Rsureone eJllJa dtlj flll'aFilii Sized Crew is my bestguess.

Accepted and agreed: Dated; TOTALS/D: 12,480.00
AuIbOtiZBdRepresentaINe

*QUANlTTIES ARE APPROXINATEAKDTIlETOTAL. PRICE WLL VARX BASED ON ACTUAl.. QUAHTlT1ES 1HSTALLEO. - PAYMENTTERMS ARE NET 30 DAYS
FROM DATE OFINVOICa *OVERDUE ACCOUNTS SUBJECTTO ALATE CHARGE OF 1% PERMOtmt
• CUSTOIlERSHALL PAY ALLCOSTS, EXPENSESAND RCASOItASlEAnORNE'tS' fEES INCtlRRED BY RLC INNfi SUrf. ARBITRATION, MEDIATION.
BAHKRUPTC1 PROCEEDING, AHD POST.JUOGMEHT PROCEEDING lAND Nt( APPEAl. OF THE FOREGOIHG) TO COLLECT AH'fAMOUNt' DUE.

* Bond. Add 2%

* Pl81s (2 Sets) I All ErosfQn CcmIId

- AD Matedars TesfDg I QCT

-AD Rnegradiag for Conaete work

*Traffic Control IJofnt 8eaIilg ifneeded

.ALL. SURVEY AND LAYOUT

- AD Excavation. Except C8fch 8a&iPs

*Oft'sl1e Disposal ofCatch Basin Spoils

.. OverofUll Due to Low Grade (OWl' 5%)

.. Sd1eduHng ·14 Day Nolioe Req\IiJed

*8eatch for eat.ch Basin Pipe
Pipe 10 be Laid within 1ftdeb

-AD PIpe MaI!riaIs to HookUp Catcbb8slnE

~ ()vw..deplh(From TopctQ.tl

0' to 5' Bid Price

5' to 8' Add 150.00/F00t

OVer 8' Add 3OO.l)QfFoot

"Wash-Otlthea&~

.. RetaiBage to be placed In an IDlfnst
bearingeccountas pEl' ORS 701.435

-Abalone St Newport AcIcli&onal Prk:e$12-18-15 \:5@



EJCDC
EE41GINT cOri,;I
LOCPM€!CS MITTE

Work Change Directive No. 19

Issued By:

___________________________

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: Extra grading as calculated with Dirt Logic. Discussed at weekly meeting December 10, 2015 (Tim,
Aaron, Melissa & Bill)

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 10.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following]

Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 67,919.00 [increase] [dccrcac].
Contract Time 5 days [increase] [decrcae].
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

Lump Sum Unit Price
Cost of the Work fl Other

RECOMMENDED: AUTHORI D BY: RECEIVE

By: BY:j*i / By:

Engineer (Authorized Signature) 6eer (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz—Senior
Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title:
Date: t —

- ( f’ Date: .4J===— Date: t/Zi/it..
t-z(- t

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

UCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and publIshed 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

25
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 19

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Extra grading as calculated with Dirt Logic. Discussed at weekly meeting December 10,2015 (Tim,
Aaron, Melissa & Bill)

Attachments: [List documents supporting change}
Contractor CPR 10.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is Issued due to: [check one or both of the following}

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

181 Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

U!;:.~~
Contractor (AUZ~r~~e::lgnature)

181 Unit Priceo Other

AUTHORI~BY: / / I
BY:~QV ~/..h 11.- By:

&("er (Authorized Signature)

By:

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase] [aeeFease].
[increase] [aeeFease].

Contract Price $ 67,919.00

Contract Time 5 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:
o LumpSumo Cost ofthe Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~
Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

( .- ).0 - { ,
Title:

Date:

Mr. Jason Buchholz -Senior
Project Manager

''ll -t •

I-t.{- f~

Title: lIz-4ft.
Date: 111/'"

By:

Title:

Date:

EJCDC· C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pa,e 1 ot'Z



Change Proposal Request

LL

1/

Project Name: Abalone&3Oth

Owner: City of Newport

Owner’s Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 1211412015
Contractor:

-

CPR # (10)

Date: 1212312015

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 1212312015
from Contractor:

Initiated By: U Engineer) Consultant U Owner Contractor

This CPR applies to or Is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): C201-209 Spec Section: Roadway Excavation
RFI No: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The folbwing change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor tot all direct, indirect, delay impacts and alt other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 5 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 6791 9.00

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett

Contractor Action

Owner Action

(EngineerlConsuttant) (Date)

Bill Sproul 12/23/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman 12114115
(City ofNewpo,f) (Date)

Change Proposal Description: Roadway I V-Ditch Excavation Quantity CorrectIon
Dirt Logic Total Excavation 6553 CY. Contract Item 39+40 3600 Deficit=2953 CY

Cost Increase: 2953 CY 23.00 = $67,9f 9.00

Excludes: Tree Removal, V-Ditch(unit price), Slopes above Wulls
Analysis as per Weekly Meeting Dated (12110115) wIth TlmMelissa,Aaron

Page 1 of I

25
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: -,A;..;cb:::..;a::.:l.;:;.on:.:..e::...;:&~30::...:...;;;th~ CPR #

Owner: _C;:;.I:..=.ty'-=-of:....:N~e=.:w:..:..Jpc..:0:..:rt-=-- Date:

Owner's Cont. No.: 2302·027 Consultant:
-=::..=.::::....;;;.;;;~------

Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No:

Date Sent to 12/14/2015 Date Received
Contractor: from Contractor:

(10)

12/23/201&

Civil West

2302·027

12123/2015

Initiated By: o Engineer I Consultant DOwner ~ Contractor

Excavation

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project Is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed In accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constilutes
fuU compensallon to the Contractor for all direct, Indirect, delay Impacts and an olher cost and damages
whether known or unknown. arising from or relating to the sUbject matter of this Change Proposal
Request Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Roadway I V-Ditch Excavation Quantity Correction

Dirt Logic Total Excavation 6553 CY. Contract Item 39+40 =3600 Deficit=2953 CY

Cost Jncrease: 2953 CV @ 23.00 =$67,919.00

Excludes: Tree Removal, V-Ditch(unlt price), Slopes above Walls
Analysis as per Weekly Meeting Dated (12/10/15) with Tlm,Meliss8,Aaron

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial CompleUon: 5 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 67,919.00

(Dale)

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
--,.""........,,----:=-.....,,...---::-------------,:---;-:----

(EngineerlConsultanl)

Contractor Action Bill Sproul 12/23/15
-~-;:;C&~M=-':Ex=-cB-'-v.-a-:;'"tio-n-;-~ -------------;;(D~a7re·~ '----

12/14/15
(Date)

Owner Action Melissa Roman
-'i::-::-:-:-~:.,-:-:..;:..;..,:..:~--------------'-.:.::::-:__,=.;_'----

(City ofNewport)

Page 1 ofi



/7

I ABALONE & 30TH - NO STRtP

3

Prepat.d ay

.Volumel
- V. .:

DhtLogk,4.LC
rcawn ,OcY Trl,8717Th6442

• Tot4h -- - 24VZG0 cr -. - -: -• • V.
V •• . D!çgIccam

Export 46QQCt

w1fiQ(ooange 602CC Cv
—

25
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

3

.. .~

....
t .. .. " .....

.. :'.,Pt!! P'!t,.~, .~Y
". .0......

".: ....:!.,:•.' ... ~.. .•...

'.
.. . ",'-

~.Po~ ,:.'..
. .. ": ." :

: .....

:.

'.

. ....

"

", .\....

. .. '.

.... - \. "1 ..

:v.ok.~'.~ ,,:'~:
, ',' ,'; ~ '":,' :' ,..... 0' "., ..

'.~'~" ','"
: ....: ' .... ~ ".... J ~ ;.... •

: :'.
~ ..:. ,.s.. ··· ~"

'" " .. , '.

: ~~~~~~~~.::...
-:' . ',,' -: :.':~'. .. >2,'-.-.-



163,159.00 SF

CutzSF U9,071.00 SF

FiN SF - 35,344.00 SF

On Grade SF - - 8,144.00 SF

Stripping Region SF 1653S3.0O SF

Totaiffli

ExpOrt 421500 CY

Per 1,10 of a foot change 602.00 CV

Existing Site Prepartion clearing,
Stripping, Demolition

VoIume

No5tdpO rclepth 0,00 CV

Total Ship 0.00 CV

Notes

Alt Pavln Sections are figurad to back of Curb

The Scale that this plan wus .cIed at was ElectronIc

Strippingi- Assumed Area. as par plan

Anyone using this report should verIty all SectIonal Ueptiis & AssLimptIons

• StrIpping quantities are not Included In the Total Cut Volumes above

and should be treated as separate quantities

•* No compaction factor, shrink or swell conversions were taken Into

account in thae calculations

Exciu sloits

Footing Excavation

Trench Spoils

Culirue, Teasop’s OPO MODILS DIRTITOSS tP.K10Vr*

Site Summary

4

t1Baiance Summary

Arern Volumeet

Total SF Total Cut 55S3.00 CV

Z,?7.O0 CV

25
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Site Summary

"

**Balance Summary

4

rf

Arezll

Total6f

C\ltSF

1'111 SF

On GradeSI'

Slrfpplng Ktafon SF

11\1,811.00 SF

11,144..00 SF

lfS,363,oo SF

Volumes:

TlItaICut

ToIaJFlll

bpDrt

Por J./l0 or. root clIa!lJle

7.2'7.00 CY

4,27&.00 CY

602.00 CY

Volume:

HoStrlpO

Notes

Existing Site Prepartlon: Clearing,
Stripping, Demolition

O·Deplh

Tot8l6bfp ..

0.00 CY

0.00 CY

A/I "aylng Sectlo.,. are figured to baak of Curb

The Scele that till. plan wea ,cale' It WI' Electnnle

Strlpplng.- AaauII18d Area. D' per plan

Anyone u"lng this report .hould Yerlfy ell Sectional Deptl.... Auumptlons

• StrippIng quantlt'e. ue nat I"cludad III the Totel Cut Valumes above

and .1I0uld b. t,.ated as separata quantltl.,

•• No compaction factor, ahrlnk or .well conver.lons wera taken Into

.eaount In tllIl,. calculaUon.

EXclusions

FooUng ExcaViltlon

Trench Spoils



4i4 k(4v

_______

- - —

eg rnTtrn,,) Mw MI A o 7hW dt4M) 4 414c,
PA,vicLrncy /IJ 77ce i/J)L ,4t4/

W!’u 4’t cSt4?c4’P 14 t’-04 J4y4 4t-4?z”VAfr pérz- .-T3,ôf4
A,Ja3,-aA,

A V.biTCI( Qrirrc ‘i’JVPLILI 4 iLi’ M)14y %1PAftoS4J A
Irn.r +,(JI/,

Qj m;A1i, 7/4 .cvw.9.’) & /..,y Lc ,4zy 7
• f61’ AT’’11i Aat°A3 Th(e.. -d1F k&’

i”

5/. 77&c QL(4AJ7fly fll4JUJ 71 (,,mwr Q’c7”7 dF ?cgo LtQW5

ADCP/Q7 o Z973 C/. 6e ,V0T 7?YT T/i$ A4y’s fdrL45 AlO7

iO(€. 7c)T 5peAr4#.tR 4 7mw %JIP4 Th’e P icWets ,oc%$,
273cY &?9.7p Tta(k.,Z’t (LAitO/9Nff

5LoP

1?1i A-Ooi’t QU4irny 4t4ys’f O5 N€J ‘. .•
P’øP’vy -,irn A

7/Ic EA5T 43uT 4W4LL dôPM/C hilfick ‘AO roq,c, t’

OfNCSfm14,(r I Jr2iPpnJ nt4t44&&

0 A1MJc 1r4 7/tAT ‘%1c J14ws4> (iai,.) ,CC,2

“%O/3t6. G 7o J&7Th.cJ Lmt Acfth7AThV 1P6CIt /W T€t’,AI
Pt) fWi- P’AD&4y ,9 d ?k,2 S7 )v2f /S 44 O,C’ Co‘b i’1 &J4I/417o,J. ?7b5

1$ Mf4’ib f.4JIfll OODT

&w-
.• -

••

V At7z.......- 4iy ‘s

V.’
f ftD S1WAIt)

25
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

6) !ft/,. y... t),"(qf. ~f/.41,J.T1rle$ ~Lo./~ l.A!a(,f~~JtfI ~~b~}' ~~"'t!,J4J~ OZ!J(J

PIfItT' -fo,d/ II-... ,..'

(j) ~fr~'t!.!~IP"~'1(N' ~(o'}11AII~ (1.!~!N:I)Q7JJ" ~.~.~~'"T~..~!!IIe~AJICAp.)' ~

., .~l6:;).Pe.. ~·A."'~/I'!JJ~ ,/tJ.~A.5 {WI< ~f<~.~t:!FE. ~IJ$ ~#.~~,L .?.&"

>-==---- /'
~ £ • Ilh5(JIiAAJlITY ~/AJIJJ !'I~~#1ltAcr Q!I~N7/'Y tit:. 1...{Q~ ,-eA~S

A- De{::I?/1 oF- 297J G-y, Ir 1J.//iI!L~ (J~ NI)'(ep 7!t;!-T .TII!1 ,.4.4!~rcS.~S /'dll/:JJ N6T 8(

P"He. /AJl71IrJrJr .$~II~/H'" d r.~~~:r .11'At ql? !?t'~~ t-l.!1f#. PIe. PiA.,j9!~c ,J'J1l4~~$.

t mer ~ ZJ 4!~~~~;;;;;;;:QP.JI'#iV (~6fs PfJT I~~Y!/)~ /l!A(l.D/OItAaJ1)
~ SLDP&.$

\
":. (1) tH·u "'ODV~ ~1M1J7.717 !1P.4tyP.l 06e$ II~T l';e~tJl>~. ~ WlH:Dr~;Y":Tl2{n"Ke O,p..

7Ik E-,osr 8AA<JT ~u,. SbJp'AJ~ IvIlICk By ~IJ~I'> ('"6(/A!rA~IHI~IJ r~ Ill.$' '!>y ,

(f) ",!£-AtlG/JJ p/$).eI)eBltr:lJr.71tt!T. y'4/l...MCf= ~~ J'~/I'I'I#.~ .JM;.,,!-~ ~~ 1'(/"~1M~/) ,coIL

tWI2/,(J' 1-6./l.U/J(JIPt. 1I-<:£4~/#(' Td JU71/uJ ()'21/() AIJ',()(IIIli:O S'4P~qC /WI) IrIAT~nJ(.

,v'Pe/X() FfJfL. R4,4btJ/W A-AJ() l"1Jk.k 1"'r!QlAI'M! I' l't4n:r dt: Co 1#1(4 b 111 6}(4'IVII;7/"J. 7J1t5

1$ flJ/.j/.JE- MI"fl-/ (JDDr r~~ACA'RNJ.f.



EJCDC
E.rQI:LRs jOiNr CONTJACT
DOCUME.T5 CQUUITTEE

Work Change Directive No. 20

Issued By:

_____________________

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Effective Date: 01/28/16

Owner: City of Newport

ontractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and
30tb Roadway

Improvements

Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: The Contractor has requested several days of time extension to Substantial Completion due to multiple
causes affecting pour of curb/gutter, which is on the critical path. The City and Contractor agreed at the 2/11/16
Weekly Construction Meeting to a 27 day extension of time. This addresses all time claims through 2/11/16 for this
project. Any future delays that may occur will be addressed through subsequent change procedures.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 11 and letter.

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Unit Price
Other

AUTHORIZED BY:

ner (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date: 4/7.. t

EJCOC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers iolnt Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

RECEIVED:

By: /%.. /‘i2-ti,
Contractor (Authorized Signature)

litle:

Date:

Contract Price $ 0.00

Contract Time 27 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

Lump Sum

Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDED:

By: By:

[increase] [decrease].
[increase] [decrease].

Title:

Date:

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Aaron Collect (PE/PM)

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

26
0

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

EJCDC~
EJUiof.:EERS )()tNf CONTRACl
DDCUM~'T5 C'DMMM11!E

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 20

Effective Date: 01/28/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner:

ontractor:

Engineer:

Project:

City of Newport

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Civil West Engineering services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: The Contractor has requested several days of time extension to Substantial Completion due to multiple
causes affecting pour of curb/gutter, which is on the critical path. The City and Contractor agreed at the 2/11/16
Weekly Construction Meeting to a 27 day extension of time. This addresses all time claims through 2/11/16 for this
project. Any future delays that may occur will be addressed through subsequent change procedures.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 1.1 and letter.

#~~iJ~
Contractor (Authorized Signature)

o Unit Price
~ Other

AUTHORIZED BY: /

By: ~C"...... , 6J£h By:

~uthOrized Signature)Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Contract Price $ 0.00

Contract TIme 27 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

o LumpSum
o Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

By: ttt~~

Purpose for Work Chanle Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or bath of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

[81 Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase] [decrease].
[Increase] [ltesrease].

TItle:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

;)--1 (,..(b
Mr. Jason Buchholz - Senior

Title: Project Manager

Date: ~. /7- tf'
Title: 4f./.a{~

Date: Zlto/t~

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:
Date:

Title:

EJCDC· C·94O, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the E"lineers Joint Contratt Documents Committee.

PlIIe lof2



EJCDC
ENGINtEf JOINT CONTC.KTT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 2 of 2

26
1

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

EJCDC~
£HGlNUM JOINT c:c:wrr.A......
DOCUMEN15 COMMITTU

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCDC' t-94O, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the E"lineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

PlIIeZofZ



EJCDC
ERS Ja NT CUNIR4UT

t OCI ‘ANTS CTMiTTEE

Work Change Directive No. 21

Issued By:

_____________________________

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Protect v-ditch from erosion impacts. Use rip rap and jute matting.

108 CY Rip Rap @ 50.00/CY 5,400.00
Matting 2730SY@ 2.00 = 5,460.00

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
Contractor CPR 12.1
Need pricing backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: tcheck one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 11,060.00 [increaseJ [decrease].

Contract Time 0 days [increase] [decrease].

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:
lump Sum Unit Price
CostoftheWork J Other

RECOMMENDED: AUTHORIZED BY: RECEIVED:

By: dj — By: By: LW t9
Engineer (Authorized Signature) Qner (Authorized Signature) Contractor Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jason Buchholz — Senior
Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title:
Date: /—>q, It Date: Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

26
2

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Elene:;;
Dr~c~
[ OCt ....EMS COMltmU

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 21

Effective Date: 01/20/16

Date of Issuance: January 20, 2016

wner:

Contractor:

Engineer:

Project:

City of Newport

C&M Excavation & Utilities, lLC.

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30tll Roadway
Improvements

Owners Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Protect v-ditch from erosion impacts. Use rip rap and jute matting.

108 CY Rip Rap@50.00/CY= 5,400.00
Matting 2730SY@ 2.00 = 5,460.00

IZI Unit Price

D Other

AUTHORI~Y: I
By:V~w tSud-he, By:

6iner (Authorized Signature)Engineer (Authorized Signature)

By:

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Contrador CPR J2.J
Need pricing backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract TIme, is issued due to: {check one or both of the follOWing]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

IZI Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract nmes (non-binding, preliminary):

[increase) [deeFease).
[increase] [desFease].

Contract Price $ 11,060.00

Contract TIme 0 days
Basis of estimated change In Contract Price:

o LumpSum
D Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~

TItle:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

1-)..0 ,.. t,
Title:

Date:

Mr. Jason Buchholz - Senior
Project Manager

J~II.I!e

TItle: {f1fJstb&l~

Date: J.!li//1J

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

EJCDC· C-940, Work Change Dlrec;tlve.
Prepared and pubOshed 2013 by the Eneineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pace 1 of2



Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC

Project Name:

Owner:

Abalone&3Oth

City of Newport

CPR#

Date:

(12.1)

01120(2016

Owners Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor: C&M Excavation

Date Sent to 0112012016
Owner:

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Received 0112012016
from Contractor:

Initiated By: ci Engineer I Consultant ci Owner rj Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): NA Spec Section: 02310
RFI No: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect, delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Abalone V-Ditch I Permanent ERC
108 CY Rip Rap 50.00/CY = 5,400.00
Matting 2730SY@ 2.00 = 5,460.00

Includes: Rip Rap, Jute Matting and Check Dams as needed.

Notes: Roughly 1,445 LF needed. Unit Price RR Reduction of 60% (need to expedite)

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$11,060.00

Engineer! Consultant Aaron Collett

Contractor Action

Owner Action

(Engineer/Consultant) (Date)

Bill Sproul 01/05/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman
(City of Newport) (Date)

Page 1 of I

26
3

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

)l
Change Proposal Request

C&M Excavation & Utilities,!..""OL....L....C ----'

Project Name: Abalone&3oth CPR #

Owner: City of Newport Date:

Owner's Cont. No.: ....;2=:..;3:..:0;.::2:.....-0::.,:2::..:7 Consultant:

Contractor: C&M Excavation Project No:

Date Sent to 01/20/2016 Date Received
Owner: from Contractor:

(12.1)

01/20/2016

Civil West

2302-027

01/20/2016

Initiated By: o Engineer I Consultant DOwner 00 Contractor

02310
NA

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect. delay impacts and all other cost and damages
whether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain In full force and effect.

Change Proposal Description: Abalone V-Ditch 1Permanent ERC

108 CY Rip Rap @ 50.00/CY =5,400.00
Matting 2730SY@ 2.00 = 5,460.00

Includes: Rip Rap, Jute Matting and Check Dams as needed.

Notes: Roughly 1,445 LF needed. Unit Price RR Reduction of 60% (need to expedite)

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 11,060.00

(Date)

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
""""'7.:=---:--___;:=----:".--.,.,-------------------::::--:-~---

(Engineer/Consultant)

Contractor Action _B=ill:-:-=S~p=-ro.;;....u;....I~---:---------------=O=__:_1=_IO~5;.;,./1..;.,.5~-
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

(Date)
Owner Action Melissa Roman

---:-:=7.-~-:-:-'-...;.;;...;.~-------------___;:::---c__,_---
(City of Newport)

Page 1 of 1



EJCDC
EJCI JS JOINT COF1ROCT
DOCIJMT’.T cOMMITtEE

Work Change Directive No. 22

Issued By:

_____________________________

Effective Date: 01/29/16

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add new “acorn” style street light at the NW corner of Brant Street and 30th
Street

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
Need pricing backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive;
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both ofthefollowing]

Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ -Oo’4q5 [increase] [dccteae].

Contract Time 0 days tincreasel [decrease].

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

U Lump Sum Unit Price
Costofthe Work U Other

RECOMMENDED: AUTHORIL BY: RECEIVED:

By: By: By: ii/tkr

Engineer fAuthonzed Signature) cwner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jayson Buchholz — Senior
Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title: t11iei
Date:

,. )‘ Date: 0 t4 Date: ) i/i 6

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

_________________________________________________________________________

EJCDC C-940, Work change DIrective.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

26
4

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By: __~';"'~.L-- _

Work Change Directive No. 22

Effective Date: 01/29/16

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner:

Contractor:

Engineer:

Project:

City of Newport

C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-D27

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add new "acorn" style street light at the NW corner of Brant Street and 30th Street

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Need pricing backup

uI~C~H
Contractor (Authorized Signature)

~ Unit Price

o Other

~RI~Y: /

By:· JthjS~75uv/fv/'L. By:

~ner (Authorized Signature)Engineer (AuthorIzed Signature)

By:

Contract Price $ ...e.e«r.$ '1M"~
Contract Time 0 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:
D LumpSum

D Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

I'),'''{~

Mr. Jayson Buchholz - Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date: J-.- 3- It,
Title: /f).-(.p" i~t:fJ

Date: ]...)1/16

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:
Date:

Title:

EJCOC" C-940, Work O1ange Dlredlve.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of2



EJCDC
‘T CT

D)CME T2 CCIMTTEE

Work Change Directive No. 23

Issued By:

_____________________________

Effective Date: 01/29/16

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, CLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway Contract Name: Newport Abalone and
30th

Roadway
Improvements Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s);

Description: Address low spot in the SE corner of Brant and 30th ST by adding a catch basin piped to the manhole on
30th (approx. 30 ft).
CPR 13

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
CPR13

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following]

flNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 4,420.00 [increase] [dccrecJ.

Contract Time 0 days [increase] [decrease].

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

LI Lump Sum Unit Price
Cost of the Work Other

RECOMMENDED: AUTHORI BY: RECEiVED:

By: 6”i By: t4 //%4v-y

Engineer (Authorized Signature) &ner (Authorized Signature) contractoc (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jayson Buchhoiz — Senior
Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM) Title: Project Manager Title: A1.ttj. r)’6-tr-
Date: / >-(% Date: Z- ?- tE Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Date:By:

Title:

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

26
5

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By: -----l~"'" tD..,J;;:.. _

Work Change Directive No. 23

Effective Date: 01/29/16

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, llC.

Engineer:

Project:

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Address low spot in the SE comer of Brant and 30th ST by adding a catch basin piped to the manhole on
30th (approx. 30 ft).
CPR 13

Attachments: [List documents supporting change}

CPR 13

I:8J Unit Price

D Other

AUTHORI~Y: _ ,. / REE:LCIVED:

BY:~~S.v~djJ5 By: !j~ rJ
&.Irter (Authorized Signature) Contracto (Autho Ized Signature)Engineer (Authorized Signature)

By:

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricIng of proposed change.

I:8J Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-blnding, preliminary):

[increase] [aeEFease].
[Increase] [decrease].

Contract Price $ 4,420.00

Contract Time 0 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

o lump Sum
o Cost of the Work

RECOMMENDED:

~~-

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

f-rf~(P

Mr. Jayson Buchholz - Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date: Z. ~- I b
Title: At~ ¢6-/L
Date: 1-/4/1 (;

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:
Date:

Title:

EJCDC' C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pagelof2



Project Name: Abaione&3Oth
Owner; City of Newport
Owner’s Cont. No.: 2302-027

Contractor; C&M Excavatton
Date Requested 0112612016
Owner:

CPR # (13)

Date: 0112712016

Consultant: Civil West

Project No: 2302-027

Date Recehied 0112712016
from Contractor:

Initiated By: D Engineer) Consultant Owner D Contractor

This CPR applies to or is related to the following:
Drawing No(s): C105 Spec Section: 02772
Rfl No: NA NA Other: NA

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project is prnposed. Work shall not commenceuntil authorized by the Owner. AN work shall be performed in accordance with the terms, stipulations, andconditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutesfull compensation to the Contractor for all direct, indirect, delay Impacts and all other cost and damageswhether known or unknown, arising from or relating to the subject mailer of this Change ProposalRequest. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remain in full force and effect,

Change Proposal Description: Additional Storm Pipe and BasIn
30 LE 12” PVC Storm Pipe @54.00 =1,620.00
Manhole Connection I EA @1,400.00 = 1,400.00
Catch Basin I EA 1 ,400.00 = 1,400.00

TOTAL 4,420.00

Contract TIme
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

(Unit Price)
(Unit Price)
(Unit Price)

Change Proposal Request

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

Engineer? Consultant Aaron Co]lett

$ 4,420,00

Contractor Action

Owner Action

(Engineer/Consultant) (Date)

Bill Sproul 01/27/15
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Melissa Roman
(City of Newport) (Date)

Page 1 of I

26
6

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Change Proposal Request

Project Name: .....;A..::.;.b"-'a:.:.,.lo::.;;.nc..;;;e..;;.;&..;;..30.;;..;t.;.;.h CPR #

OWner: --=-C.:..::ltyL....;;.of;..;N:..:.8~W:..;;.JpI';.;O;;.;;rt-=- Date:

Owner's Cont No.: 2302·027 Consultant:
~;;"';;';"--'--------

Contractor: C&M ExcavatJon Project No:

Date Requested 01/2612016 Date Received
OWner: from Contractor:

(13)

01/27/2016

Civil West

2302-027

01/27/2016

Initiated By: o Engineer I Consultant ~ Owner o Contractor

02772
NA

Attention: The following change In the contract on this project is proposed. Work shall not commence
until authorized by the Owner. All work shall be performed in accordance with the tenns, stipUlations. and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. The amount of the Change Proposal Request constitutes
full compensation to the Contractor for an direct, indirect, delay Impacts and an other cost and damages
whether known or unknown. arising from or relating to the subject matter of this Change Proposal
Request. Except as modified by this CPR the basic contract terms shall remaIn In full force and effect

Change Proposal Description: Additional Storm PIpe and Basin

30 LF 12" PVC storm Pipe @54.00 =1,620.00 (Unit Price)
Manhole Connection 1EA @1,400.00= 1,400.00 (Unit Price)
Catch Basin 1EA @1,400.00 = 1,400.00 (Unit Price)

TOTAL 4,420.00

Contract Time
Change in Contract Times:

Substantial Completion: 0 Days
Final Completion: 0 Days

Contract Amount
Change in Contract Price:

$ 4,420.00

(Date)

Engineer I Consultant Aaron Collett
----=:--:--==--~--::-------------=:--:-:----(Engineer/Consultant)

Contractor Action _B=I,.:."..II"""S",::p,..--ro_u_1-,.,-...,.- 0_1=12_7.....,1....;...15.:.-_
(C&M Excavation) (Date)

Owner Action Melissa Roman
.....;~7:C~1ty;;..of-::-:-:Ne,-Wj-'P.;..;.ort"'-;;~-----------~(.=va-::te.....,~---

Page 1 of 1



SW Sprout

From: Melissa Roman <M.Roman@NewportOregon.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 26, 2016 4:35 PM
To: ‘Bill Sproul’
Cc: Brian Turner; Jayson Buchholz
Sub)ect: Abalone CB Addition

HI, BIll,

We have a tow spot In the SE corner of Brant and 30th ST. We would like to add a catch basin piped to the manhole on
30th fapprox. 30 ft). Would you please give usa price for installation of catch basin, pipe, core and storm connection?

Thank you,
Melissa

26
7

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

.!!!!.!p.,.ro;,;u..l_ret-=- II.l •---

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
SubJec:t:

HI, Bill,

Melissa Roman <M.Roman@NewportOregon.gov>
Tuesday, January 26, 2016 4:35 PM
'Bill Sproul'
'Brian Turner'; Jayson Buchholz
Abalone CB Addition

We have a low spot In the SE corner of Brant and 30th ST. We would like to add acatch basin piped to the manhole on
30Ul (appro)!, 30 tt). Would you please give us aprice for installation of catch basin, pipe, core and storm connection?

Thank you,
Melissa



Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Attachments: (List documents supporting change]
Need cost backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both ofthefollowing]

121 Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ t.LjiJtT C0t

Contract Time 0 days
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

Lump Sum

El Cost ofthe Work
RECOMMENDED:

By:

_

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title: Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

Date:

[increaseJ [decreac].
[increase] [decrease].

Unit Price

El Other
AUTHORI Y: /

BYjJtL/3
O,mner (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jayson Buchholz — Senior
Title: Project Manager litle:

Date: %. f Date:

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of 2

EJCDC
ECEE jori CQNI; ACI
DOCLICTS COMMIflC

Issued By: iith Effective Date: 01/29/16

Work Change Directive No. 24

Owner: City of Newport Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC. Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 2302-027

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contract Name:

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: Add a standard 20’ wide driveway on SW Brant St at approximately 10+50 on the east side of &ant. It
should just be a simple curb cut.

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

By:

RECEIVED:

Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Date:

26
8

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Work Change Directive No. 24

Effective Date: 01/29/16

EJCDC~
E"uUEEta JD,"' c~r:1iCi
DOCL!"tCMS CDMWITTtt

Issued By:~ _

Date of Issuance: January 29,2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add a standard 20' wide driveway on SW Brant St at approximately 10+50 on the east side ofBrant. It
should just be a simple curb cut.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Need cost backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract TIme, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

~ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change In Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ &;eO c..uJ&T Co~ r [increase] [EiesFease].

Contract Time 0 days [increase] [decrease].

Basis of estimated change In Contract Price:

o Lump Sum 18I Unit Price

o Cost of the Work 0 Other f
RECOMMENDED: AUTHORI~: / / RECEIVED:

By: ~ ~ By~JtI <>(/ ~dj,l3 By:

Engineer (Authorized Signature) 0 ner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)
Mr. Jayson Buchholz - Senior

Title: Project Manager

Date: /L 3~ Ib
TItle:

Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

TItle:

Date:

EJCDC· C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1012



EJCDC
ENC€ER5 JOINT CONTO t
0000MTNTS CJMMITtEE

Issued By: — Effective Date: 01/29/16

Work Change Directive No. 24

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer: Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Project: Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner’s Contract No.:

Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer’s Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th
Roadway

Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):
Description: Add a standard 20’ wide driveway on SW Brant St at approximately 10+50 on the east side of Brant. It
should just be a simple curb cut.

Attachments: [List documents supporting change]
Need cost backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: (check one or both of the following]

El Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times fnon-binding, preliminary);

Aaron Collett CPE/PM)

Unit Price

El Other
AUTHORIZED BY: /

éner (Authorized Signature)

Mr. Jayson Buchholz—Senior
Title: Project Manager

Date:

EJCDC C.940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Pagelof!

_______

-

Contract Price $ 1,512.00 T’ UitT eo.t) increase] [decrcac].
Contract Time 1 days li3 (increase] Idccreae].
Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

LI Lump Sum

LI Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDED:

By:

Engineer (Authorized Signature)

Title:

Date:

REElVED:

By; ,Lit2

Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:

Title:

Title;

Date:

Date:

26
9

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

Issued By: _

Work Change Directive No. 24

Effective Date: 01/29/16

Date of Issuance: January 29, 2016

Owner: City of Newport

Contractor: C&M Excavation & Utilities, LLC.

Engineer:

Project:

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc.

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Owner's Contract No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contract Name:

2302-027

Newport Abalone and 30th Roadway
Improvements

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description: Add a standard 20' wide driveway on SW Brant St at approximately 10+50 on the east side of Brant. It
should just be a simple curb cut.

Attachments: {List documents supporting change]
Need cost backup

Purpose for Work Change Directive:
Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to changes on Contract Price and
Contract Time, is issued due to: [check one or both of the following]

DNon-agreement on pricing of proposed change.

181 Necessity to proceed for schedule or other Project reasons.

I:8J Unit Price

D Other

AUT:::~'BV:PhIPP
~~r (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)

By:~~
Engineer (Authorized Signature)

By:

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price $ 1,512.00 (JJc!f Tv G"x.eGehi U/IJIT tOCi.r) (increase) [ElesFease].

Contract Time 1 days ~ (increase] [ElesFease].

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

o LumpSumo Cost of the Work
RECOMMENDED:

Title:

Date:

Aaron Collett (PE/PM)

~-(7-16

Title:

Date:

Mr. Jayson Buchholz - Senior
Project Manager Title: JIf'fm(Jhl

Date: 2!'B)6
Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

By:
Date:

Title:

•EJCDC C-94O. Work Change Dlredlve.
Prepared and publlshecl2013 by the Engineers Joint Contrad Documents Committee.

PalB 1 of2



EJCDC
E GItEER ici CONTrACT
OOCUMEQT5 COMMIYEC

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCDC C-940, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

_______

Page 2 of 2

27
0

City Council Packet for March 7, 2016

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EJCDC· C-94O, Work Change Directive.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Paee2of2


	City Council Agenda
	2016-89 - February 16, 2016 Work Session.docx
	2016-89 - February 16, 2016 City Council Minutes.pdf
	2016-113 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Adoption of Resolution No. 3740.pdf
	2016-113 - Copy of Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016_2.pdf
	2016-113 - Staff_Report_Resolution_3740_City_Supplemental_Budget_-February_1__2016.docx
	2016-113 - Supplemental__Resolution_No._3740_for_Feb_1_2016.docx
	2016-113 - Budget_with_Supplementals.FY_2016_-_for_Resolution_3740_-_Attach_B.pdf
	2016-113 - Supplemental_Budget_-Resolution_and_Legal_Notice-_Attachment_A_-_March_7_2016.pdf
	2016-107 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation -From Surfrider Foundation regarding Bacteria Testing in the Nye Beach Storm Sewer Basin.pdf
	2016-107 - Staff Report - Surfrider Presentation 3-7-16.docx
	2016-76 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation -From Northwest National Marine Renewable Energy Center (NNMREC) Dr. Belinda Batten and Dan Hellin, Report on Pacific Marine Energy Center - Wave Energy Test Sites.pdf
	2016-76 - NNMREC_City_of_Newport_Council_03072016.pdf
	2016-109 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From the Regional Airport Review Task Force, Final Report Recommendation Relating to the Newport Municipal Airport.pdf
	2016-109 - Memo for Regional Airport Review Task Force Report 2-17-16.pdf
	2016-109 - Report for the City of Newport Regional Airport Review Task Force 2-17-2016.pdf
	2016-99 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation --From Airport Committee, Recommendations on Airport Operations RFP..pdf
	2016-99 - Airport data for RFP.pdf
	2016-99 - Email from Hodges.pdf
	2016-99 - Newport Proforma Budget.pdf
	2016-98 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From Destination Newport Committee, Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike Race 2.pdf
	2016-98 - Coast Hills Classic Mountain Bike 2016.pdf
	2016-98 - CHC_DNCgrant_edit.pdf
	2016-97 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation - From Destination Newport Committee, Recommendation to Approve a Tourism Marketing Grant for Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K.pdf
	2016-97 - 2016 Oregon Coast Aquarium 5K.pdf
	2016-97 - Flippers, Feathers, and Fins 5K Grant Fund Application 2016.pdf
	2016-108 - Mayor Letter Regarding City Manager Salary.pdf
	2016-108 - cm salaries.xlsx
	2016-108 - EmplymtAgrmtAmd SN.docx
	2016-96 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation --Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolutions 3741 and 3742 approving Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Agreements.pdf
	2016-96 - Staff Report CWSRF Loan Resolution Approval 3-7-16.pdf
	2016-96 - Resolution_3741.pdf
	2016-96 - Resolution_3742.pdf
	2016-96 - OPNLTR Loan#R68934.doc
	2016-96 - OPNLTR Loan#R68935.doc
	2016-101 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Possible Action Regarding the Location of the 2016 Farmer’s Market.pdf
	2016-101 - Aerial.pdf
	2016-101 - Mary Young email.pdf
	2016-101 - Letter to council.pdf
	2016-101 - Petition.pdf
	2016-103 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation --Report on Workforce and Affordable Housing Strategies.pdf
	2016-103 - Dear Mayor Roumagoux and Members of the Council (1).docx
	2016-103 - Bill Hall email.docx
	2016-103 - Community Development Department Staff Report
	2016-103 - Attachment A to Staff Report
	2016-103 - LCLT Intergovernmental Agreement
	2016-110 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation -- Scheduling Public Hearing for City Council Goals for 2016-17 FY.pdf
	2016-110 - City of Newport  2016-17  Goals Report.pdf
	2016-100 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation - Approval of Purchase of a 2016 F550 Crew Cab Service Truck for the Water Distribution Department.pdf
	2016-100 - Staff Report purchase of 2016 Ford Service Truck 3-7-16.pdf
	2016-100 - Invoicing and Purchase Order for 2016 Service Truck.pdf
	2016-105 - Council Staff Memo - CO3 -2-19-16.pdf
	2016-105 - Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project
	2016-105 - City Manager's Report and Recommendation - Approval of Change Order No. 3 with C&M Excavation for the SW Abalone-Brant Street Improvement Project.pdf



